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Accommodation Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Section 12()(0
- Bonafide Requirement - Plaintiff has specifically pleaded that she
requires suit accommodation as his son who is unemployed wants to
open a jewellery shop and has no alternative accommodation - Held -
Nothing more is required to be pleaded as to bonafide need - Evidence
led by Plaintiff is not in variance but in consonance with the pleadings
- Appeal dismissed. [Uday Chand Jain Vs. Smt. Sharda Jain] ...1142

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 100 - Second Appeal
- Concurrent finding of the courts below on the question of possession
- Being finding of fact could not be interfered in second appeal - If
there is lack of substantial question of law, such appeal liable to be
dismissed at the stage of motion hearing, [Pahalwan Singh Vs. Swaroop
@ Ramswaroop] A |

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 11 5 - Admissibility
of Promissory Note - 1f the requisite duty is paid on the document like
promissory note, Such document could not be held to be inadmissible -
So that duty may be either in the shape of embossed stamp or revenue
ticket or stamp - Such findings of holding the document/promissory
note inadmissible are liable to be set aside - Hence, the findings may
be modified in revisional jurisdiction. [Bhagwati Devi (Smt.) Vs.
Jameela Begam] ...1193

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 2 - Pleadings -
Construction - Pleadings are loosely drafted and Courts should not
scrutinize the pleading with such meticulous care so as to result in
genuine claims being defeated on trivial grounds - Further pleadings
has to be read as a whole to ascertain its true import and not to cull out

a passage to read the same in isolation. [Uday Chand Jain Vs. Smt.
Sharda Jain] ...1142

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 18 Rule 4(1) -
Examination of witnesses on commission - Commissioner was
appointed for examination of witnesses - As the Petitioner had failed
to keep the witnesses present before the Commissioner; his right to
lead evidence was closed - Order of Trial Court was set aside by High
Court by giving last opportunity to keep his witnesses present on
payment of cost - Petitioner again failed to keep the witnesses present
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before the Commissioner therefore his right to lead further evidence

was closed - Held - Order 18 Rule 4(1) was introduced with a view to
reducing consumption of judicial hours in the process of recording of
oral evidence - However, in cases of serious disputes, the Court, as
far as possible, may prefer to itself record the cross-examination of
material witnesses and the prayer for recording evidence by
Commissioner may be declined by Court - Order appointing
Commissioner is also liable to be set aside as well as the order closing
the right to lead evidence is also set aside - Trial Court directed to
record itself the cross examination and re-examination of witnesses -
Petition allowed. [Babulal Vs, Tarachand] ...1065

Constitution - Article 142 & 226 - Powers of High Court -
Supreme Court in exercise of powers under Article 142 of Constitution
of India while holding that "Koshti" is not a part of ""Halba" Tribe,
moulded the relief by permitting the beneficiaries to retain the benefits
of the degree - Powers under Article 142 of Constitution of India are
not available to High Court - Benefit of directions issued by Supreme
Court cannot be extended to the Petitioner. [Urmila Koshti (Smt.) Vs.
Secretary, ML.P. State Electricity Board, Jabalpur] ...1022

Constitution - Article 226 - Judicial Review - Petitioner
appointed as Asstt. Project Officer in ICDS Project which was
subsequently taken over by Women and Child Development
Department by orders of the State Govt. - Petitionerwas still considered
to be the project employee - Where an order of State Authority is found
to be illegal or arbitrary, unreasonable or irrational, the same is open
to judicial review - However, the High Court will not proceed to
substitute its own decision as it would amount to exercise of power of
authority itself - Petition disposed off with direction to consider the
claim of petitioner for absorption - Petition disposed of. [Sanjeev Kumar
Jain Vs. State of M.P.] ...1015

Co-operative Societies Act, M.P. 1960 (1 70f 1961), Sections 72,
74 & 76, Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 5 -
Cancellation of Plot - Maintainability of Complaint - Complainant
was allotted plot by the society, however, the allotment was cancelled
as he had not deposited the maintenance charges, Bhoo Bhatak and
further did not complete the registration process - Complainant did
not remove deficiencies inspite of repeated notices issued to him - Held
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- Dispute regarding allotment or cancellation of plot is punishable under
Sections 72, 74 of Act and cognizance can be talien only on a sanction
given by Registrar under Section 76 - Provisions of Cr.P.C. not
applicable [Avdhesh Raghuvanshi Vs. State of ML.P.] ...1227

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 5 - See -
Co-operative Societies Act, M.P. 1960, Sections 72, 74 & 76 [Avdhesh
Raghuvanshi Vs. State of M.P.] ...1227

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 145 -
Dispute regarding land or water is likely to cause breach of peace - It
merely recites the circumstances under which a presumption of
possession may be made in favour of the dispossessed party - If the
Magistrate decides the question as to which of the party was in
possession on the relevant date, then it is not necessary to see whether
or not any of the parties had been dispossessed within two months
next before the date of the preliminary order. [Ramcharan Vs. Yogendra
Singh (Minor)] ...1238

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 161,
Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 32 - Dying Declaration - Statement
of deceased recorded by police officer under Section 161 of Cr.P.C. as
to the cause of his death and also about the circumstances of the
transaction which resulted in his death, amounts to be a dying
declaration. [Suresh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB) ...1177

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 233(3) -
Summoning of Prosecution witness as defence witness - If the
prosecution witness is called as a defence witness then, his statement
shall continue which was recorded in the deposition sheet, where his
prosecution evidence was completed - His statement shall be started
as a defence witness from the end of his previous statement. [Pappu
@ Chandra Pravesh Tiwari Vs. State of M.P.] ...1208

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 233(3) &
311 - Summoning of witness in defence - Two prosecution witnesses
were examined and cross examined - Application under Section 311
for recall of those witnesses rejected - Application filed under Section
233(3) of Cr.P.C. without disclosing as to what defence, the applicant
wants to establish - Application was rightly rejected as the same was
- not bonafide and was made with a view to frustrate the order rejecting

oy
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application under Section 311 of Cr.P.C. [Pappu @ Chandra Pravesh
Tiwari Vs. State of M.P.] ...1208

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 319 -
Addition of accused - No Proposed accused can be added in absence
of convincing evidence - There are lot of contradictions in the
statements of witnesses - Same set of witnesses were not believed by
the Trial Court for making companions of applicant as accused - There
is no cogent evidence against the applicant and in case if he is added
then, the prosecution case against present accused persons would be
damaged - Order passed by Trial Court under Section 319 set aside.
[Sunny Gaur Vs. State of M.P.] ...1199

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 319 -
Simuitaneous Trial -Investigating agency during investigation found that
Security Guards had opened fired, although it was mentioned in F.LR.
that initially the applicant opened fired and thereafter other office bearers
of the factory opened fire - Scriber of the F.L.R. did not support the F.L.R.
during trial - Case of Security Guards is diagonally opposite to the case of
applicant - If it is presumed that the firing was done by applicant and his
companions then the case of prosecution against the security guards would
go away and trial would not proceed against them because two
contradictory cases cannot be tried simultaneously - Addition of applicant
as accused bad. [Sunny Gaur Vs, State of ML.P.] ...1199

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 438 -
Anticipatory Bail - The Court may examine the FIR or Complaint on
its face value at this stage. [Ummed Singh Vs. State of MLP.] ...1214

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 438 &
Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act
(33 of 1989), Section 18 - Maintainability of Anticipatory Bail - If the
Litmus test is satisfied i.e. the offence is prima facie not made out
anticipatory bail can be granted - The objection regarding
maintainability of anticipatory bail in the teeth of Section I8 of the Act
overruled. [Ummed Singh Vs. State of M.P.] ...1214

Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Section 126 - Cases of excess load
of consumption of electricity are squarely covered under Explanation
(b) (iv) of Section 126. [Madhya Pradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut
Vitran Co. Ltd. Vs. Smt. Savitri Devi) . «.1027
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Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Sections 126, 135 and MPERC
(Establishment of Forum and Electricity Ombudsman for Redressal
of Grievances of the Consumers) (Revisions-I) Regulations, 2009,
Clause 2.4 (d), (m) and 3.35 - Jurisdiction - If a problem does not fall
within the ambit of 'Complaint' and 'Grievance' under the regulations,
the Electricity Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum cannot be said
to have Jurisdiction to entertain it- An order passed without jurisdiction
is 'non-est' i.e. nullity - Said order has no authority - Impugned order
set aside. [Madhya Pradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co. Ltd.
Vs. Smt. Savitri Devi] ..1027

Entry Tax Act, M.P. (52 of 1976), Section 4(1), Entry Tax Rules,
(M.P), 1976, Rule 4(1)(iii) - Concessional Rate - Coal - Petitioner
supplied coal to M.P.E.B, for the use as raw material - Declaration in
that regard was accepted and concessional rate of 1% was applied -
However, the assessment was reopened on the orders of the Divisional
Commissioner - Held - Concessional rate on coal was on declaration
when entry was effected in local area by registered dealer for use of
raw material in manufacture of other goods - Assessing officer had
rightly accepted the declaration - Order reopening the assessment
quashed. [Western Coal Field Ltd. Vs. Addl. Commissioner,
Commercial] (DB)...1037

Entry Tax Rules, (M.P,), 1976, Rule 4(1)(iii) - See - Entry Tax
Act, M.P, 1976, Section 4(1) [Western Coal Field Ltd. Vs. Addl.
Commissioner, Commercial] (DB)...1037

Evidence Act (I of 1872), Section 21 - Proof of admissions -
Admissions are substantive evidence by themselves though they are
not conclusive proof of the matter admitted - Witness must be asked
questions which would test his veracity more so where thereis a direct
contradiction and conflict between his statements before the Court and
alleged previous admission. [Jagdish Prasad Vs. Kanhaiyalal @
Kandhi) - ...1122

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 21, 138 & 146 - Proof of
adrmissions - Defendant in reply to notice had stated that the plaintiff
had become unchaste after the death of her husband - In written
statement it was pleaded that the plaintiff was unchaste during the life
time of her husband and therefore, she was ousted from her matrimonial

.
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73 B g (A7) 1976, FEm afi)iiD) - @ — gdwr @v
HIETrE, 7.7, 1976, avr 4(1) (A% Hd Hes fo. 7. iy FwR,
HaR ) (DB) ...1037
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ftamry @) (ST ywe B sRarend 9% @) ..1122
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A =AY 89 Y oft — falaw wow ¥ ww siftares fear T fe
T, J9R Ofy B ofifde <ed wrfEmd off sufy, o o wgve § 6w
1950 ¥ & IR Fravra faam Tr o — Hfy wfErd % we g At



14 : INDEX

house in the year 1950 itself - As the defendant had made clear and
specific statements which were directly in conflict with the statement
in reply, the appellants were required to and should have confronted
the defendant with the same during his cross-examination to test his
veracity. [Jagdish Prasad Vs, Kanhaiyalal @ Kandhi] w1122

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 - Dying Declaration -
Statement recorded by police officer - The same is not challenged on
the ground that the officer who recorded the statement was in any
manner interested in bringing about the conviction of appellants by
concocting the said statement - It could not be held that the statement
was doubtful or suspicious. [Suresh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1177

Evidence Act (1 0f 1872), Section 32 - See - Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973, Section 161 [Suresh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...1177

Evidence Act (1 0f 1872), Section 52 - Admission - Admission in
pleadings or judicial admissions or admissions under Section 58 of Act,
1872 made by parties or their agents at or before the hearing of the
case, stand on a higher footing than evidentiary value. [Lalman Soni
Vs. Shri Rupinder Singh Gill] ...1088

Interpretation of Statute - A statute has to be interpreted in the
context it is drafted along with the aim and object. [Madhya Pradesh
Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co. Ltd. Vs. Smt. Savitri Devi] ...1027

Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Section 48 - Actual Possession
or Symbolic Possession - Actual possession should be taken and mere
symbolic possession is not enough. [Pramod Singh Vs. The Secretary,
Department of Housing) ...1043

Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Section 48 - Actual Possession
- Withdrawal from acquisition - Possession of 43.22 acres of land was
taken on 31.08.1967 - No possession of 1.22 acres of land was taken
on the same day - Possession certificate in respect of 1.22 acres of
land was prepared on next day in absence of witnesses nor the
possession was handed over to B.D.A. - State has also denied the
possession certificate in respect of 1.22 acres of land - Even as per
award, area measuring 1.22 acres of land was not included - No
compensation was paid - Buildings existing on the said land are still in
existence and petrol pump is also functioning - As possession of 1.22
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acres of land was never taken, therefore, the State was within its right
to release the said land from acquisition [Pramod Singh Vs. The
Secretary, Department of Housing ] ...1043

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 110 - Section 110
provides the decision making process of the Tehsildar - Intimation of mutation
should be duly published by the beat of drums in the village to which they
relate and its copy if required to be affixed at the Choupal, gudi or any other
place of public resort in the village and a copy should also be sent to the gram
panchayat. [Shakuntala Bai (Smt.) Vs. Chatur Singh] .:995

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 110 & 111 -
Interested person - Petitioners are the original owner - Mutation was
sought on the basis of sale deed executed by Power of Attorney -
Notice of mutation to petitioners was necessary as they are necessary
parties. [Shakuntala Bai (Smt.) Vs. Chatur Singh]| ...995

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 110 & 111 -
Mutation Proceedings - Words "all person appearing to him to be
interested' does not mean that there is any unfettered and uncontrolled
discretion on the Tehsildar to notice any person as per his whims and
fancies - This power is to be exercised diligently and all such persons
who may be interested should be noticed. [Shakuntala Bai (Smt.) Vs.
Chatur Singh] ...995

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 111 - Remedy of
Civil Suit - Mutation order can be challenged by filing appeal - It is
the choice of the litigant to decide the forum where more than one
forums are available - The subsequent filing of suit for a different
relief will not wipe out the right of the petitioner to challenge orders
passed by authorities under MPLRC arising out of order of Tehsildar
- Petitioner is considered as "dominus litis". [Shakuntala Bai (Smt.)
Vs. Chatur Singh] ...995

Motor Veliicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability of
Insurance Company - Act Policy - No plea was raised in written
statement that policy which was issued was an act policy - In absence
of any plea raised in written statement, evidence and cross-objection,
the claim of the claimants cannot be defeated on the ground which is
raised for the first time during course of arguments. [Saraswati
Kushwaha Vs. Badri Singh] ...1101.
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BT el 27 BT e 1 AR wETE Y wh — A o) s Rt
T v (T 91 (hafa) A agr Rig) ...995

FIE¥ I AFIFIIT (1988 BT 59), €RY 147 — a7 HUA BT TR
— vac giferdt — fafeaa Tom & o sl 98 o Tar f5 aifh
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Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability of
Insurance Company - Violation of Insurance Policy - Tractor was insured
for agricultural purposes while it was carrying stones - As the Tractor was

being used in violation of the insurance policy, Insurance Company is not
liable. [Ram Milan Gupta Vs. Dashrath Singh Gond] ...1116

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability of
Insurance Company - Violation of Policy - Insurance Company alleged
that offending vehicle was hired by occupants whereas the witness
examined by Company in this regard was only a hearsay witness which
is having no evidentiary value - There is nothing on record to prove
that vehicle was being used for commercial purpose - Insurance
Company Liable. [Saraswati Kushwaha Vs. Badri Singh] ...1101

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Sections 166 & 173 - Rash and
Negligent Driving - Accident occurred because of felling of bridge when
the Offending Vehicle was passing - There may be some fault on the
part of the concerned department however, if the driver would have
been fully conscious, then the accident could have been avoided -

Tribunal rightly held the owner and driver liable to pay compensation.
[Saraswati Kushwaha Vs. Badri Singh] ...1101

MPERC (Establishment of Forum and Electricity Ombudsman
for Redressal of Grievances of the Consumers) (Revisions-I)
Regulations, 2009, Clause 2.4 (d), (m) and 3.35 - See - Electricity Act,
2003, Sections 126, 135 [Madhya Pradesh Madhya Kshetra Vidyut
Vitran Co. Ltd. Vs. Smt. Savitri Devi] ...1027

Municipal Corporation Act, M.P. (23 of 1956), Section 420 -
Power to demand punishment or dismissal - Non-obstante clause gives
an overriding effect on all other provisions of the Act as well as sub-
ordinate legislation including the rules and empowers the State Govt.
to direct Corporation to suspend, fine or otherwise punish any officer

or servant of Corporation who is negligent in discharge of his duties.
[K. K. Singh Chouhan Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...989

‘' Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993 (1 of
.1994), Section 37, Panchayat (Resignation by Office Bearer) Rules, .P:
1995, Rule 4 - Acceptance of Resignation - Resignation submitted by an
office bearer can be accepted only after a full and complete compliance
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with the provisions of Rule 4 of Rules 1995, contemplating consideration
thereon by Panchayat at its next meeting under notice to petitioner - As
resignation was accepted circumventing the procedure prescribed therefor
and in view of non-compliance of mandatory provisions of rule 4(2) and
(3), it is sufficient to hold that the resignation was not validly accepted -
Petition allowed. [Bihari Das Vs. State of ML.P.] ...1069

Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993 (1 of
1994), Section 70, Panchayat Samvida Shala Shikshak (Employment
and Conditions of Contract) Rules, M.P. , 2005, Rule 14 - Maximum
Age - It is within the powers of State Govt. to prescribe for minimum
and maximum age of recruitment and even to amend the same by issuing
executive order - By circular dated 03.11.2012 maximum age limit is
45 years for direct recruitment - Merely because the petitioner has
passed the eligibility test, no vested right is created in her favour - It
has been rightly held that as the petitioner has crossed the age limit of
45 years, she is not entitled for counseling for appointment to the post
of Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade I - Petition dismissed. [Urmila Rajak
(Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] C...1057

Panchayat (Resignation by Office Bearer) Rules, M.P. 1995,
Rutle 4 - See -Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, MLP. 1993,
Section 37 [Bihari Das Vs. State of M.P.] ...1069

Panchayat Samvida Shala Shikshak (Employment and
Conditions of Contract) Rules, M.P., 2005, Rule 14 - See - Panchayat
Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993, Section 70 [Urmila Rajak
(Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] ...1057

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 34 - Common Intention -
Deceased was working in a Mangoda shop - Appellants were passing
from the front of the shop when the liquor bottle slipped from the hands
of appellant No.3 - Deceased asked him to remove pieces of glass
scattered in front of the shop - Appellant No.3 pierced the spear in the
abdomen of deceased - All the appellants grappled with witnesses -
Held - No injury was caused to the deceased by the appellants No.1
and 2 - It does not appear that appellants No. 1 and 2 shared common
intention of appellant No.3 of causing spear injury to deceased - As
the incident took place suddenly and the appellant No.3 assaulted
deceased with spear which he was already having in his hand, it cannot

-
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be held that the appellants No. 1 and 2 shared common intention with
appellant No. 3 [Suresh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB) ...1177

Penal Code (45 of 1 860), Section 302 - Circumstantial E vidence
- Deceased, the wife of the appellant died because of strangulation -
Appellant was in the house along with his wife and children at the time
of death - No explanation offered by the appellant - Recovery of Pillow
and gold nose-pin at the instance of appellant - Appellant guilty of
committing murder of his wife - Appeal dismissed. [Mohammad Hussain
Ansari Vs. State of MLP.] - (DB) ...1147

Penal Code (45 of 1 860), Section 302 - Circumstantial Evidence
= Deceased wife of the appellant No.1 and daughter in law of appellant
No.2 found dead in the house - Deceased was living with the appellants
- Deceased died of homicidal death - No explanation offered by the
appellants as to how the deceased suffered injuries and died - Appellants
guilty of committing murder - Appeal dismissed. [Sura j Chandrawanshi
Vs. State of M.P.) (DB) ...1153

Penal Code (45 of 186 0}, Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial
Evidence - Last Seen Together - Material omissions and contradictions
in the statement of witnesses - Complainant admitted that he knew the
appellant even then it was mentioned in the Marg Intimation that one
person was seen carrying the can - Marg intimation is not corroborated
by the statement of the witness - Prosecution has failed to prove that
the deceased and appellant were last seen together - Appellant
acquitted. [Karan Vs. State of M.P.] (DB) ...1162

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302 & 304 Part I - Murder or
Culpable Homicide not amounting to murder - Appellant came back
to his house in drunken condition - Quarrel between the appellant and
his deceased wife took place in the course of which appellant poured
kerosene on deceased and ignited her - Held - It could be inferred that
the incident occurred under a sudden impulse without any premeditation
- However, since setting fire to deceased after pouring kerosene on
her indicated that appellant acted either with the intention of causing
death or of causing such bodily injury as was likely to cause death -
Appellant convicted under Section 304 PartI and sentence of 10 years
R.I. [Roop Singh Vs. State of M.P.] (DB) ...1169
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Penal Code (45 of 1 860), Section 376 - FLR. - Delay - F.L.R.
was lodged after delay of 6 days - Explanation offered by prosecutrix
that her father was suffering from epilepsy and her uncle was not
available and she had also become ill is plausible - Explanation not
challenged by defence in cross-examination also - Delay explained.
[Ram Ratan Kewat Vs. State of M.P.] ...1184

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) - Gang Rape -
Appellant No.2 entered inside the house of the prosecutrix while she
was alone in the house - Appellant No.1 who had come along with
appellant No.2 remained outside the house - It cannot be deemed that
appeliant No.1 had come with appellant No.2 with intention to commit
rape on the prosecutrix or he had committed any act in furtherance of
their common intention to commit rape - Appellant No.1 acquitted -
Conviction of appellant No.2 altered to 376(1) of I.P.C. [Ram Ratan
Kewat Vs. State of M.P.] ...1184

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 403, 405, 415 & 425 - Civil
Nature - If allegations in the complaint are taken on their face value,
discloses a criminal offence, complaint cannot be quashed merely
because it relates to a commercial transaction or breach of contract
for which civil remedy is available or has been availed - Commercial
transaction may also involve a criminal offence. [Avdhesh Raghuvanshi
Vs. State of M.P.] .. 1227

Railway Claims Tribunal Act, (54 of 1987), Section 17(1 WB)(2) -
Condonation of delay - After deletion of Section 166(3) of Motor Vehicles
Act, the Claims Tribunal should have adopted liberal approach and should
not have dismissed the claim petition merely on the ground of delay of
five years - Appeal allowed and matter remitted back to Tribunal for
decision on merits. [M. Peetamber Vs. Union of India] ...1107

Registration Act (16 of 1 908), Section 17, Transfer of Property
Act (4 0of 1882), Section 5 - T; ransfer of Property - Registration - There

cannot be a valid transfer of ownership of building in question to the.

State Govt. in absence of a valid conveyance deed - In terms of Section
17(b) of Act, 1908, registration of the documents is mandatory as the
value of the property is more than Rs. 100/-, [Nagar Palika Parishad
Vs. State of M.P.) ’ ...1092
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Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section 33 -
Presentation of Valid Nomination - Caste - Constituency was reserved
for Scheduled Caste - Petitioner had sought to contest the election as
member of Scheduled Caste - However, error crept in showing him as
a candidate belonging to General Category on one page of form - Not
sufficient to reject the same on the ground of disqualification. [Rajesh
Kumar Vs. Devendra Singh] ...1072

Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section 33 -
Presentation of Valid Nomination - Incomplete Electoral Roll - Petitioner
filed incomplete electoral roll - No where pleaded that he or his authorized
representative was present at the time of scrutiny of nomination paper
and had requested for postponing the scrutiny to the next day so as to
enable him to file a complete copy of electoral roll - As per Section 33(5)
clectoral roll could be produced only either with the nomination paper or
at the time of scrutiny - Statute does not contemplate any other time for
production of such copy - Returning officer did not commit any impropriety
in rejecting petitioner's nomination form - Petition dismissed. [Rajesh
Kumar Vs. Devendra Singh] ...1072

Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Sections 33 & 36 -
Presentation of Valid Nomination - Power of Election Tribunal - Election
Tribunal is not bound to confine itself only to the material available to the
Returning Officer at the time of scrutiny - Tribunal is well within its power
in considering the question of propriety and legality of order of rejection
of nomination papers on the evidence produced in the course of trial of
the election petition. [Rajesh Kumar Vs, Devendra Singh] ...1072

" Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities)
Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(1)(x) - It must be prima facie clear that the
incident took place in 'public view' -An essential ingredient of the section
- If it is not clear prima facie bail u/s 438 can be granted - However the
discussion made in the bail order will not affect the trial of the casein any
manner. [Ummed Singh Vs. State of M.P.] ...1214

Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 18 - See - Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973, Section 438 [Ummed Singh Vs. State of M.P] ...1214

Service Law - Contractual Appointment - The Principle of Natural

o
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28 INDEX ‘

Justice and Article 14 of Constitution shall apply - National Institute of
Open Schooling (NIOS) rurning under the aegis of Ministry of Human
Resources Development,Govt.of India - It is equivalent to all Boards like
CBSE, CISCE - Therefore its Vocational Certificates cannot be discarded
merely on the ground that it is not affiliated with NCVT - Narrow
interpretation of eligibility condition will lead to absurdity and create
conflict between recognized institutions of the Government - The order of
termination on this ground without following the principle of natural Justice
liable to be set aside. [Prem Chand Yadav Vs. Madhya Pradesh Poorva
Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co. Ltd.] _ . ¥22

Service Law - Departmental Enquiry - Competent Authority -
State Govt,, in view of Income Tax raid directed the Corporation to
suspend and take disciplinary action against the petitioner -
Commissioner placed the petitioner under suspension and issued
Charge sheet - Mayor-in-council, which is the appointing authority by
its resolution approved and sanctioned the action being taken by
Commissioner in compliance of order issued by State Govt. - Single
Judge had quashed the order of suspension and had dismissed the
petition regarding competency of issuance of Charge sheet - As no
appeal has been filed against the order quashing the suspension,
therefore, the result is not interfered with although the findings in that
regard are set aside - Appeal dismissed. [K. K. Singh Chouhan Vs.
State of M.P.] (DB)...989

Service Law - Promotion - Promotion is not a right though
consideration is - Initiation of promotion will not create any right'in
incumbent nor promotions made at the later date can be treated from
the date of initiation of proceedings. [Union of India Vs. Rajendra Prasad
Yadav] . (DB)...1008

Service Law - Seniority - Traction Rolling Stock in Electric
Loco Shed was formed and 216 posts of group D posts were required
to be filled - Applications were invited from eligible Group D
employees - Seniority of staff transferred from different units of
Central Railway is to be decided upon the length of substantive
post held by such staff in their parent cadre and not from the date
of their joining in TRS. [Union of India Vs. Rajendra Prasad Yadav]

(DB)...1008
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Service Law - Voluntary Retirement - Appellant in his
application for voluntary retirement did not raise any specific condition
for appointment of his son but simply requested to consider on
humanitarian ground - In the light of Rules request for appointment of
his son cannot be treated as a condition precedent for his voluntary
retirement - Application for voluntary retirement which was in
prescribed form was rightly accepted by the authority - Appeal
dismissed. [Kamta Prasad Pandey Vs. State of MLP.] (DB)...*20

Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Reasonable time - Agreement was
executed on 23.02.1983 - Sale deed was to be executed upto
31.05.1983 - Plaintiff gave notice on 07.08.1985 i.e. after a period
of two years and three months - Suit was filed on 04.04.1986 - Suit
was not filed within reasonable time [Umanarayan Vs, Sant Kumar]

...1137

Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16(C) - Specific
Performance of Contract - Readiness and willing to perform - There
was no clause that the sale deed would be executed after the
diversion of land - No such clause was mentioned in the notice -
No averment in plaint that diversion was the condition precedent
for execution of sale deed hpwever, such averment was incorporated
later on by way of amendment - Held - Plaintiff was insisting on the
performance of a condition which was not a part of the agreement -
Plaintiff was not ready and willing to go ahead with agreement on
the terms and conditions stipulated therein - It can be safely inferred
that the plaintiff was not ready and willing to perform his part of
contract. [Umanarayan Vs. Sant Kumar] ...1137

Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963)] Section 34 - Declaration of
title - Municipality had given the building for running the Higher
Secondary School for Girls till separate building is constructed -
School was subsequently shifted to newly constructed building
however, respondent started claiming ownership of the building on
the ground that it has vested in State Govt. - Defendants in various
documents admitting the ownership of the plaintiff/Municipality -
No document to show that the ownership of the building was ever
transferred to the State Govt. - Plaintiff has succeeded in proving



"

e

INDEX 31
#W%—ﬁm#wﬁqﬁ?—meﬁ#ﬁm%mmﬁﬁ
a%mmﬁaqﬂ‘.mgaﬁﬁrq_ﬁﬁaﬁaﬁs‘faﬁﬁtamﬁﬂﬁm.
fér Baa TR B e W™ R v @7 R fear — St @
IS A, SHD A # g @1 Pde, e Qftew darfrgfia 2
gﬁnﬁaﬁfﬁwmm—‘ﬁﬁwﬁmﬁqﬁaﬁmaﬂ,m
ﬁﬁﬁumﬁ'mjﬁuﬁmﬂiﬁmvﬁmmﬁﬁﬁaﬂ?%mw—m
RS | (wPmaT varg aod f .y, <row) (DB)...*20

e srgaly sifafsaw (1963 @1 47), arer 16 — wiier a7
fafifd'se arerT — yf¥agsd g — aqae, 23.02.1983 B Prsai — frwa
foedte @1 frere 31.05.1983 @@ B o — AT F 07.08.1985 B} AW
fear arerfa &t af i &1 mw @Y srafr 3 uvamg — A 04.04.1086 T
T A T - 9w B gfrgE ww @ ey w ad fear T
(ST RT 8. W $AR) ~ ...1137

/ et sy sy (1963 @1 47), arer 16(d]) — alasr @7
Wem—mmwa‘mﬁaﬁvmﬁ—aﬁs‘a‘saﬁmﬁs
e faete &1 frarem, (fY @ soatsm @ vvam fear smT — S
ﬁ'ﬁmaﬁéa&fseﬁ?ﬂ@aaﬁm—mﬁ'ﬁﬁum¢mﬂﬁﬁiﬁm
frew & fyomes 3g, srates 9 qoiard wd off, fog ST uTEwYUT
aﬁaﬁﬁ'ﬂsﬁmmwﬁqﬁaﬁmw—mﬁaﬁmﬁﬁ—aﬁﬁ,wvﬁ
a§mﬂmﬁwﬁ?a‘mmvﬁa§a‘€raﬂﬂwﬁaﬂ—aﬁﬁa#ﬁm
Freerm @@ et = 9 et B T @ farv daw ey woEE @ e
— %% giiiaa vu 4 e Rremar s wear € £ ard), 9fier @ o
AT HF gia B @ fag dar ety v € o) (SueRmT L wd
BHR) ...1137

T RfSfds sgaly sfefaT (1963 BT 47), arer 34 — g B apyer
—wmfam#mﬁﬁmﬁa%ﬁmmﬁvmwﬁa;mﬂmﬁﬁqw
f&aT o 59 @& % yerd o &1 frafor 7€ v wmET — Ten $t qTEd
T Fiffa w97 § @ wmr T, feeg gwefl ¥ 3w e W e @
W BT g frar f5 9w wvw werR ¥ Prfvg fear T @ —
uﬁﬁﬁﬁw#ﬁﬁmaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ/mmwmwﬁﬁw
foar — ww zul? @ fav o1 swaR™ 6 @& 799 B wificg o )
U WRER B gwiaRa f6ar 7 o — 9, we9 1w e w@ifies
wifaa ax 7 wwd | (TR nfast uivg fa Wy, ) ...1092



32 INDEX

its ownership over the building. [Nagar Palika Parishad Vs. State
of M.P.] ...1092

Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 34 - Suit for
declaration - Consequential relief of possession - Plaintiff filed suit
for declaration of her share in the property, for declaration of charge
of her maintenance over disputed property and for declaration that
the will is void ab-initio - Plaintiff is required to value the suit and
pay court fees for every relief - However, if the plaintiff wants to
keep the disputed property in joint ownership to maintain the unity
of the family then even in absence of prayer for partition and
separate possession, the suit could be entertained and adjudicated
- Plaintiff may file a suit for possession subsequently after the
declaration of her rights - Dismissal of suit for want of
consequential relief of possession bad in law - Order set aside.
[Jamna Devi (Smt.) Vs. Rajendra Prasad Ji] ...1004

Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 5 - See -
Registration Act, 1908, Section 17 [Nagar Palika Parishad Vs. State
of M.P.] «..1092

Workmen's Compensation Act (8 of 1923), Section 21 - Claim
Petition - Territorial Jurisdiction - Appellant did not bring it to
the notice of the Commissioner that it has no territorial jurisdiction
- On the contrary.it submitted the jurisdiction of the Court below
by submitting the written statement and by leading evidence - As
appellant has led evidence, therefore, no prejudice has been caused
to the appellant - Claim of claimants cannot be defeated only on

the ground of lack of territerial jurisdiction. [Oriental Insurance
Co. Ltd. Vs. Takshashila] ...1109

Workmen's Compensation Act (8 of 1923), Section 21 -
Driving License - Driver was killed by terrorists in Nepal while he
was driving the truck - Whether the deceased was having valid
driving license to drive the vehicle at Nepal or not makes no
difference as the incident is not the outcome of the negligent driving
of deceased - Appeal dismissed. [Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. Vs.
Takshashila] ...1109

Workmen's Compensation Act (8 of 1923), Section 30 -
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Employer admitted that the deceased was earning Rs. 4000/- per
month - Insurance Company pleaded ignorance - In view of clear
admission of employer, the monthly income of the deceased is
assessed at Rs. 4000/ - Deceased was aged about 20 years
therefore, relevant factor would be 224.00 - Compensation would
come to Rs. 4,03,200/- with interest at the rate of 12% from the
date of incident - Appeal allowed. [Lalman Soni Vs. Shri Rupinder
Singh Gill] ...1088
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NOTES OF CASES SECTION

Short Note (DB)
. 20
Before Mr. Justice Krishn Kumar Lahoti & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
W.A. No. 1254/2006 (Jabalpur) decided on 6 February, 2013

KAMTA PRASAD PANDEY _ ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

Service Law - Voluntary Retirement - Appellant in his application
for voluntary retirement did not raise any specific condition for
appointment of his son but simply requested to consider on humanitarian
ground - In the light of Rules request for appointment of his son cannot
be treated as a condition precedent for his voluntary retirement -
Application for voluntary retirement which was in prescribed form was
rightly accepted by the authority - Appeal dismissed.

dar ffr — WRew darfglea — adiareff 7 |@fes qar faia
F gt adga 7, g3 ¥ Frgfa @ w1 e ud 9 <,
afer daa AT @ aER W AR & o fwee e - faal @
arats ¥, sud A B Fgfa o PR, e Wfitees dafria g
qRiardt ol 9 A W vea-Wftes a1 frgia 2y s, st fafea
grou & ofT, 9% uiitreT gT st vu @ wfier faar mar—snfia wlRe |

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : ViMLa JAIN, J.

Rajesh Dubey, for the appellant.
Jaideep Singh, Dy. G.A. for the respondents/State.

Short Note
*(21) .
Before Myr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
S.A. No. 206/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 15 February, 2013

PAHALWAN SINGH & ors. ...Appellants
Vs.
SWAROOP @ RAMSWAROOP & ors. ...Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 100 - Second Appeal
- Concurrent finding of the courts below on the question of possession



NOTES OF CASES SECTION

- Being finding of fact could not be interfered in second appeal - If
there is lack of substantial question of law, such appeal liable to be
dismissed at the stage of motion hearing.

Rifaer gfar aizar (1908 &7 5), &7 100 — BT e ~ Feot
® 9 R Fradl agreal @ gaedf fres — gl @71 e @Y @
fedra onfla ' swidy =&Y fver o1 woar — afy g A @ wrEM 9w
@1 A9 B, T arfid wrdes & gaE @ umd ) @ wiie e s
Jql1y |

Cases referred :
AIR 1981 SC 1183, 2010 (2) MPLJ 636.

S.K. Sharma, for the appellants.
Sameer Shrivastava, for the respondents No. 1 & 2.
R.F.Rathi, G.A. for the respondent No.3/State.

Short Note
*(22)
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 4223/2011 (S) (Gwalior) decided on 30 January, 2013

PREM CHAND YADAV ...Petitioner
Vs.

MADHYA PRADESH POORVA KSHETRA

VIDYUT VITRAN CO.LTD. & ors. ...Respondents

Service Law - Contractual Appointment - The Principle of
Natural Justice and Article 14 of Constitution shall apply - National
Institute of Open Schooling (NIOS) running under the aegis of Ministry
of Human Resources Development,Govt.of India - It is equivalent to
all Boards like CBSE, CISCE - Therefore its Vocational Certificates
cannot be discarded merely on the ground that it is not affiliated with
NCVT - Narrow interpretation of eligibility condition will lead to
absurdity and create conflict between recognized institutions of the
Government - The order of termination on this ground without following
the principle of natural Justice liable to be set aside.
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Cases referred :

(2006) 2 SCC 315, (2002) 2 SCC 712, (1991) 1 SCC 212,

N.S. Kirar, for the petitioner.
Vivek Jain, for the respondents No. 1 to 3.
Vinod Sharma, for the respondent No.4.
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WRITAPPEAL
Before Mr. S.A. Bobde, Chief Justice & Mr. Justice R.S. Jha
W.A. No. 317/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 April, 2013

K.K. SINGH CHOUHAN _ ...Appellant
Vs. :
STATE OF M.P. & ors. i ...Respondents

A. Municipal Corporation Act, M.P. (23 of 1956), Section
420 - Power to demand punishment or dismissal - Non-obstante clause
gives an overriding effect on all other provisions of the Act as well as
sub-ordinate legislation including the rules and empowers the State
Govt. to direct Corporation to suspend, fine or otherwise punish any
officer or servant of Corporation who is negligent in discharge of his
duties. (Para9)

7. TIRYIfor® 3777 JfEfam, 50 (1956 &T 23), &IvT 420 —
T ar ge=gfa &1 o w1 wfeg—waiul we afufraw @ wH a=r
SUSHT 4R AR grer @ aefiver e fnet frag e 2. ) ssard
gHIg adl & AR Fm & faoefy 99 aftrerdl a1 o= &1, o) s edw
& g ¥ StaEE 2, fdfa $3, adve wr s ¥ fsa w9 g8
frmr @t ey 3 @ e T WweR & 9eed ar 2|

B. Service Law - Departmental Enquiry - Competent
Authority - State Govt., in view of Income Tax raid directed the
Corporation to suspend and take disciplinary action against the
petitioner - Commissioner placed the petitioner under suspension and
issued Charge sheet - Mayor-in-council, which is the appointing
authority by its resolution approved and sanctioned the action being
taken by Commissioner in compliance of order issued by State Govt. -
Single Judge had quashed the order of suspension and had dismissed
the petition regarding competency of issuance of Charge sheet - As no
appeal has been filed against the order quashing the suspension,
therefore, the result is not interfered with although the findings in that
regard are set aside - Appeal dismissed. (Paras 12 to 18)

a. #@ar fafer — fauriy s — w9 gififenT — osg WerR A
ey B w giera ved gr frm o o @t fidfa s aiv
FiuTafe sHTE v @ fay PR fvar - agw R I @t
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freiffam fpar ey oty uwr o fvar — weiy oReg it Pt
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Cases referred :

1965 MPLJ 934, (1989) 2SCC 505, AIR 1995 SC 2390, (2008) 7

SCC 117. : :

. Shobha Menon with Rahul Choubey, for the appellant.
Kumaresh Pathak, Dy. A.G. for the respondents No. 1 & 2.
Sanjay K. Agrawal, for the respondents No. 3 & 4.

ORDER

The Order- of the court was delivered by:
R.S. Jua, J:- The appellant has filed this appeal under Section 2(1) of the
M.P Uchcha Nyayalaya (Khandpeeth Ko Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005, being
aggrieved by order dated 13.02.2013 passed by the learned Single J udge in
W.PNo.2345/2012 whereby the order dated 10.9.2007 and 29.6.2011 passed
by the Commissioner, Municipal Corporation, Bhopal and the State

Government respectively suspending the appellant, have been quashed while

the charge sheet issued to the appellant on 18.10.2007 has been upheld.

2. The undisputed facts of the case are that action had been taken against
the appellant on account of the fact that an Income Tax raid for search and
seizure was made in his premises on 5.4.2007 during which cash worth Rs.4.82
lacs and several documents relating to investments were seized which indicated
that the appellant had relations with several builders. The State Government,
on recejving the aforesaid information, issued an order on 10.9.2007 directing
the Municipal Corporation, Bhopal to suspend the appellant and to initiate a
departmental enquiry against him pursuant to which the Commissioner,
Municipal Corporation, Bhopal passed the order of suspension of the appellant
on the same day i.e. on 10.9.2007 with information of the same to the Mayor-
in-Council. The order of the Commissioner was placed before the Mayor-in-
Council who ratified it by granting approval to it in its meeting held on
12.9.2007. '

LY}
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The Writ Petitions, earlier filed by the appellant against the order of
his suspension, were disposed of with a direction to the Appellate Authority
to decide his appeal which was ultimately decided by the Appellate Authority
of the State Government on 29.6.2011 and the matter was sent back to the

- Municipal Corporation, Bhopal for reconsideration.

" The appellant, thereafter, being aggrieved filed W.P No.2345/2012
which has been partly allowed and the impugned order of suspension dated
10.9.2007 and the order passed by the Appellate Authority dated 29.6.2011
have been quashed granting liberty to the competent authority to take fresh
action against the appellant to place him under suspension. The prayer made
by the appellant for quashing the charge-sheet dated 18.10.2007 has been

" rejected. The appellant, being aggrieved by the order of the learned Single

Judge, has filed the present appeal before this Court.

3. The learned Senior Counsel for the appellant has assailed the order
passed by the learned Single Judge on the ground that in view of the provisions
of the M.P. Municipal Corporations (Appointment and Conditions of service
of officers and servants) Rules 2000 (hereinafter referred to as'the Corporation
Rules’) and the M.P. Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules,
1966 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Civil Service Rules") and the admitted
fact that the appointing authority of the appellant is the Mayor-in-Council the
charge-sheet issued on 18.10.2007 by the Commissioner, Municipal
Corporation, Bhopal, who is not the appointing authority of the appellant,
deserves to be quashed on the ground that it was issued without power,
authority or jurisdiction. It is submitted that the learned Single Judge should
have quashed the impugned charge sheet on the same grounds on which the
order of suspension was quashed as the impugned charge sheet has been
issued on the directions of the State Government and, therefore, the impugned
order of the learned Single Judge, upholding the charge sheet while quashing

the order of suspension which suffers from the same illegality, deserves to be
set aside. o '

4. The learned counsel appearing for the respondent Corporation, on
advance copy, submits that on search and seizure proceedings being conducted

. at the appellant's premises several incriminating documents relating to property

as well as cash were seized from the premises of the appellant and as the
conduct of the appellant was negligent in the discharge of his duties, therefore,
the State Government issued an order on 10.9.2007 directing the Municipal
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Corporation to suspend the appellant and to initiate a departmental enquiry
against him. It is submitted that the State Government is competent to issue
such a direction under section 420 of the Madhya Pradesh Municipal
Corporation Act, 1956 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Act’) and even though
the said provision has not been mentioned in the order, the power of the State
Government to issue such a direction flows from Section 420 of the Act.

5. It is submitted that pursuant to the direction of the State Government,
the matter was taken up urgently and in compliance of the order of the State
Government, the appellant was immediately placed under suspension by the
Commissioner on the same date i.e. on 10.9.2007 and, thereafter the matter
was placed before the Mayor-in-Council, who is the appointing authority of
the appellant, who in turn granted ex-facto approval to the action of the
Commissioner taken in compliance of the direction of the State Government,
in its meeting held on 12.9.2007 and thereafter the impugned charge sheet has
been issued on 18.10.2007.

6. It is submitted by the respondents that the Mayor-in-Council granted
approval to the action of the Commissioner in taking steps in compliance of
the order passed by the State Government dated 10.9.2007 which also directed
initiation of a departmental enquiry and, therefore, as the Mayor-in-Council
granted approval for suspension as well as for initiating a departmental enquiry,
the Commissioner issued a charge sheet to the appellant on 18.10.2007. In
the circumstances, it is submitted that in view of the clear and specific provision
of Section 420 of the Act and the approval of the Mayor-in-Council in its
meeting held on 12.9.2007, the contentions of the appellant are totally
misconceived and deserves to be rejected.

7. The learned Dy. Advocate General appearing for the State has
reiterated and adopted the arguments of the learned counsel for the
Corporation.

8. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length. Section
420 of the Act, reads as under:-

“420. Power to demand punishment or dismissal.-
- Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, if in the opinion
of the Government any officer or servant of the Corporation is
negligent in the discharge of his duties, the Corporation shall,
on the requirement of the Government, suspend, fine or
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otherwise punish him, and if'in the opinion of the Government

he is unfit for his employment, the Corporation shall dismiss
him.” :

9. From a perusal of the aforesaid section, it is clear that it contains a
non-obstane clause giving it an over riding effect on all other provisions of the
Act as well as sub-ordinate legislation including the rules and empowers the
State Government to direct the Corporation to suspend, fine or otherwise
punish any officer or servant of the Corporation who is negligent in the

. discharge of his duties and also further stipulates that if in the opinion of the
Government he is unfit for employment, the Corporation shall dismiss him. It
is also clear from a perusal of Section 420 of the Act, that it does not confer
or vest any discretion in the Corporation to sit over the directions issued by
the Government.

10.  Apparently, the power and authority of the Government to issue the
order dated 10.9.2007 can be traced to and is contained in section 420 of
the Act, even if there is no mention of the provision in the order. It is further
clear that in view of the order issued by the State Government under section
420 of the Act, the appellant was placed under suspension on 10.9.2007 by
the Commissioner and, thereafter the Mayor-in-Council in its meeting held on
12.9.2007 has granted ex-facto approval to the action being taken by the
Commissioner in compliance of the direction issued by the State Government
subsequent to which the charge sheet has been issued on 18.10.2007.

11.  Atthisstage, it is pertinent to note that the Mayor-in-Council, who is
the appointing authority and the competent authority, in its meeting held on
12.9.2007, has granted ex-facto approval and sanction to the action being
taken by the Commissioner in compliance of the order issued by the Urban
Administration and Development Department of the State of M.P. dated
10.9.2007 whereby the State has directed the Corporation to suspend the
appellant as well as to initiate a departmental enquiry against him and,
therefore, the Mayor-in-Council, who is the competent authority, has not limited
or confined its sanction and approval to the order of suspension alone but has
infact approved all the steps taken by the Commissioner in compliance of the
directions of the Government including initiating a departmental enquiry against
the appellant.

12. Inview of the aforesaid facts and circumstances of the present case,
it is manifestly clear that the impugned order of suspension dated 10.9.2007
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and the impugned charge-sheet dated 18.10.2007 have been issued by the
Commissioner in compliance of the order issued by the State Government
under Section 420 of the Act, and the appointing authority i.e. the Mayor-in-
Council has also approved the same, therefore, the contention of the appellant
based-on other provisions of the Act and the provisions of the Corporation
Rules and the Civil Services Rules, which are both sub-ordinate legislation,
have no merit and deserve to be rejected as it is settled law that the statutory
provisions of Section 420 of the Act, which starts with a non-obstante clause,
will prevail over the other provisions of the Act and the Rules which are in the
nature of sub-ordinate legislation.

13.  We are also of the considered opinion that as the action taken by the
Commissioner against the appellant has been approved and affirmed by the
Mayor-in-Council, who is the competent authority, in its meeting held on
12.9.2007, therefore, the contention of the appellant that the impugned orders
issued by the Commissioner lack authority, is also misplaced and misconceived.
A similar view has been taken by a Division Bench of this Court in the case of
Shankerial Choube vs. Shri L. P. Tiwari, Commissioner, Municipal
Corporation, Jabalpur and Others, 1965 MPLJ 934,

14.  We are also of the considered opinion that in view of the specific
statutory provisions of Section 420 of the Act which empowers the Government
to issue direction to the Corporation or its officers to suspend or initiate
departmental proceedings against an employee thereby leaving them with no
- discretion in the matter the peneral principle of administrative law which prohibit
-abdication or exercise of discretionary powers by an authority on the dictates
of a superior authority would not be applicable to the présent case in view of
the specific power to issue directions conferred by Section 420 of the Act,
upon the Government, as application of the said principle to the present case
by ignoring the provisions of Section 420 of the Act, would lead to an absurd
and unwanted situation which would render the statutory provisions of Section
420 of the Act, otiose and redundant.

15. We are, therefore, of the considered opinion that the reasoning to the
contrary, given by the learned Single Judge by relying upon the cases of the
Supreme Court rendered in the cases of State of U.P and Others vs.
Maharaja Dharmander Prasad Singh, (1989) 2 SCC 505; dnirudhsinhji
Karansinhji Jadeja and another vs. State of Gujarat,” AIR 1995 SC
2390; and Pancham Chand and Others vs. State of Himachal Pradesh
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and Others, (2008) 7 SCC 117, cannot be sustained and deserves to be set

aside as the said judgments of the Supreme Court are not applicable to the
facts and circumstances of the present case specifically in view of the existence
of a statutory provision like Section 420 of the Act.

16. The reasoning of the learned Single Judge, contrary to what we have
stated above, is accordingly sct aside. .However, as the respondents have not
.assailed the order of the learned Single Judge, we think it appropriate not to
interfere in the conclusion recorded by the learned Single Judge of quashing
the order of suspension. It is clarified that while the reasons given by the
learmed Single Judge for quashing the order of suspension are set aside, the
‘result is not disturbed only on account of the fact that it has not been assailed
or challenged by the respondents.

17. In the facts and circumstances of the present case, for the
aforementioned reasons, i.e. the statutory provisions of Section 420 of the
Act, and the approval granted by the Mayor-in-Council on 12.9.2007, we
uphold the order of the learned Single Judge dismissing the petition relating to
the challenge to the charge sheet dated 18.10.2007.

18.  Withthe aforesaid observation the appeal, filed by the appellant, stands
dismissed. There shall be no order as to the costs.

Appeal dismissed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 995
WRIT PETITION -
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 5269/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 7 December, 2012

SHAKUNTALABAI(SMT.) ' ...Petitioner
Vs.
CHATUR SINGH & ors. ...Respondents

A. Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 110 -
Section 110 provides the decision making process of the Tehsildar -
Intimation of mutation should be duly published by the beat of drums
in the village to which they relate and its copy is required to be affixed
at the Choupal, gudi or any other place of public resort in the village
and a copy should also be sent to the gram panchayat. (Para7)

#. q wove Giear 4. (1959 #T 20), gIeT 110 — ARI 110

\
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geHlieeR T Frofg 23 &) ufrar sueferg sl @ — armaver &Y qaer
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B. Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 110 &
111 - Interested person - Petitioners are the original owner - Mutation
was sought on-the basis of sale deed executed by Power of Attorney -
Notice of mutation to petitioners was necessary as they are necessary
parties. (Para 9)

& q vIoreq qledl, TH. (1959 &7 20), GI°T¢ 110 § 111 —
feaag =fea — ardhrer yor wrfl & — qearamn g fenfea famy
frde & ameR uR ATAIAReT ATeT AT — AAHIAROT BT AT ATAETOT B LT
9IS o7 FE T AGWS 9HER 2 |

C. Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Sections 110 &
111 - Mutation Proceedings - Words "all person appearing to him to be
interested' does not mean that there is any unfettered and uncontrolled
discretion on the Tehsildar to notice any person as per his whims and
fancies - This power is to be exercised diligently and all such persons
who may be interested should be noticed. (Para 9)

T H ITOI%G iedl, WH. (1959 T 20), FNIY 1160 T 111 —
ATGYYT FrEarear — U 9 fyaeg vda g9 g ol @l & A
el TE 5 defieeR ot ool w9e Y T @ aqur o) off st
F Aifew & &1 B dara @ afata RRefer & - w0 afw
muﬁwmﬁammmwﬁﬁwmaﬁﬂﬁam
iy St faaeg & W@ €

D. Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 111 -
Remedy of Civil Suit - Mutation order can be challenged by filing
appeal - It is the choice of the litigant to decide the forum where more
than one forums are available - The subsequent filing of suit for a
different relief will not wipe out the right of the petitioner to challenge
orders passed by authorities under MPLRC arising out of order of
Tehsildar - Petitioner is considered as "dominus litis". (Para 13)

EF. g o wiedl, #.4. (1959 &7 20), &RT 111 — [faa ars
BT FYFIV — ARNAIOT AR Ht e owgd ded gerdl <7 o7 gady @
— S% e ¥ aftre —rarel &7 fader Suars giaT 2, 99 ey @t

*
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Cases referred :
(2008) 4 SCC 451, (2009) 5 MPHT 282, (2002) 6 SCC 16.

H.D. Guptawith N.X. Gupta, for the petitioner.

K.S. Tomar with Sanjay Tomar, for the respondent No.1.

V.K. Bhardwaj with Adnand V. Bhardwaj, for the respondents No. 3
& 4.

Praveen Newaskar, Dy. G.A. for the State.

ORDER

Sujoy PauL, J.:- [n this petition filed under Artlcle 226 of the
Constitution, the case of the petitioner is as under:-

- The petitioner is the owner of land along with other family members.
The land is in Survey No. 697/02 min area 10141 hectare. A power of attorney
was executed by the petitioner in favour of Hemsingh, whereby he was
authorised to look after the land but no authority for alienating the land was
given to him. This power of attomey was also subsequently cancelled. Hemsingh
alienated the land in the name of his own son and some other persons. The
son of Hemsingh i.e. Balveer Singh (respondent No. 3) and other persons got
their names mutated in the revenue record. No information is given to the
petitioner in the mutation proceedings before recording the names of
respondents in the revenue record. The petitioner feeling aggrieved with the
said action of the Tahsildar preferred an appeal before the Sub Divisional
Officer (SDO) bearing appeal No. 99/05. The appeal aforesaid was filed by
all the owners of the land and the SDO after hearing the parties by order
dated 24.05.2006 allowed the appeal and sei ~side the mutation order made
in favour of respondents No. 1 to 4. The matter was r=mitted back for affording
opportunity of hearing to the parties and enquiry was directed to be conducted.
Against the SDO's order dated 24.05.2006 (Annexure P-4), a revision was
filed by respondent No. 1 Chatur Singh. The other respondents did not file
any revision. The Additional Collector by order dated 30.08.2007 dismissed
the revision with a direction to the Tahsildar to afford opportunity to the parties
and pass a fresh and reasoned order. Against the order of Additional Collector
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arevision was filed by respondent No. 1. This revision was allowed and orders
of SDO and Additional Collector were set aside. The petitioner preferred a
revision against this order of Additional Commissioner before the Board of
Revenue. The Board of Revenue by impugned order Annexure P-1 dated
05.07.2012 dismissed the revision of petitioner. This petition is filed against
the orders Annexure P-1 and and P-2, whereby the revision of respondent
No. 1 was allowed by Additional Commissioner and the revision of the
petitioner is rejected by the Board of Revenue.

2. Shri N.K. Gupta, learned counsel for the petitioner, submits that as
per section 110 of Madhya Pradesh Land Revenue Code, 1959, it was
obligatory on the part of Tahsildar to issue notices to all person who may be
interested in the matter. He submits that as per rules made under the Code
also, the advertisement and notices are required to be issued/published in a
particular manner. The petitioner was a necessary party and was very much
interested being the owner of the land but he was not heard by the Tahsildar,
which vitiates the entire proceedings. By placing heavy reliance on Page 8 of
the rejoinder, it is stated that the document makes it crystal clear that in the
record of the Tahsildar only one document i.e. advertisement is enclosed and
no other document finds place, which shows that no notices have been issued
to the person interested. He further submits that no material is available to
show that advertisement was fixed in the places it is required to be fixed as
per the provisions of MPLRC and rules made thereunder. By relying on various
documents he submits that power of attorney is given to Hemsingh for a limited
purpose and no right was given to him to sell the property.

3. Per Contra, Shri K.S. Tomar, learned senior counsel for respondent
No. 1 and Shri V.K. Bhardwaj, learned senior counsel for respondent No. 3
and 4, supported the orders Annexure P-1 and P-2. Learned senior counsel
appearing for the responderits submit that as per section 111 of MPLRC, the

'remedy for the petitioner is to file a civil suit. The petitioner has already chosen
to file a civil suit and accordingly, no case is made out for interference by this
Court. They relied on section 115 and 116 of the MPLRC and judgments of
Supreme Court reported in (2008) 4 SCC 451 [B.K. Muniraju Vs. State of
Karnataka and others)] and (2009) 5 MPHT 282 [Sakhi Gopal Dixit Vs.
Board of Revenue and another].

4. Shri Newaskar, learned Dy. Government Counsel produced the
relevant record of Tahsildar as per the earlier direction of this Court.
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5. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and peruesed the
record. '
6. The case of the petitioner is that he gave power of attorney for a

~ limited purpose to Hemsingh and that power of attorney did not give authority
to Hemsingh to sell the property. Hemsingh without any authority of law had
sold the property and alienated the same. The power of attorney was also
cancelled and, therefore, it was obligatory on the part of Tahsildar to hear the
petitioner in the mutation proceedings. The main emphasis of Shri N.K. Gupta
is for following “due process” which is allegedly violated by the Tahsildar.

7. Per Contra, Shri K.S. Tomar and Shri V.K. Bhardwaj, learned senior
counsel submitted that proper remedy for the petitioner is to file a civil suit.
Before dealing with these aspects, it i< ~.: . yuote the relevant provision in
this regard. Section 110(3) of MPLRC reads as under:-

*110. Mutation of acquisition of right in Field Book
- and other relevant land records.--

(1)  xxx XXX XXX
(2) xxx XXX XXX

(3)  Onreceipt of the intimation from patwari under sub-
section (2), the Tahsildar shall have it published in the village
in the prescribed manner and shall also give written intimation
thereof to all person appearing to him to be interested in the
mutation and also to such other person and authorities as may
be prescribed.”

Abare perusal of this section shows that the Tahsildar is under a legal
obligation to publish the advertisement in the prescribed manner in the village
and is also required to give written intimation of the same to all person who
are interested in the mutation. Note'27 made under section 110 aforesaid
reads as under:- '

*“27. On receipt of the intimations from the Patwaris,
or. from the Registering Officers under Section 112, the '
Tahsildar shall have the intimations duly published by beat of
drum in the village to which they relate and shall get a copy of
the intimation posted at the chaupal, gudi or any other place
of public resort in the village and shall also send a copy thereof
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to the Gram Panchayat of the village. He shall also give written

intimation of the same to all persons appearing to him to be
interested in the mutation.”

Rule 28 and 32 also reads as under:-

“28 On a date and place to be specified in the intimation
the Tahsildar shall hear the parties concerned and certify the
mutation entry, provided that, where a party remains absent
after having been duly served with a notice, the entry will be
certified ex parte.

32. Disputes shall be decided summarily by the
Tahsildar on the basis of title and not possession. Any transfer
by a person whose name is not recorded in the Khasra shall
not be admitted in mutation by the Tahsildar. The order shall
contain the names of the parties and witnesses and a brief
summary of the evidence produced by either side together with
the Tahsildar findings thereon.”

A conjoint reading of section 110(3) and aforesaid rules will make it
clear that the Tahsildar is required to act in a particular manner. He is required
to publish an advertisement, beat of drum is to be used for the purpose of said
publication in the concern village, copy of intimation is required to be posted
at chaupal, gudi and other place of public resort in the village and copy of the
same is required to be sent to Gram Panchayat of the village. In addition
thereto, the Tahsildar is required to give written intimation of the publication
to all persons who may be interested in mutation. Thereafter, by fixing a date
in the intimation, the Tahsildar is obliged to hear the parties concern and then
certify the mutation.

8. The twin questions at this stage emerge for consideration are:-

(i) Whether the present petitioners can be treated as interested
person and whether they were required to be noticed.

(i) Whether, the Tahsildar has followed the aforesaid procedure.

9. The mutation was claimed on the strength of a sale deed which was
executed on the basis of power of attorney. The petitioners were original
owners of the land and, therefore, in the opinion of this Court, they should
have been treated as person interested by the Tahsildar. It was obligatory on
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the part of the Tahsildar to issue notice to the petitioners as well. The language
used section 110(3) and Note 27 aforesaid which employed the words "all
person appearing to him to be interested” does not mean that there is any
unfettered and uncontrolled discretion on the Tahsildar to notice any person
as per his whims and fancies. This power is to be exercised diligently and all
such persons who may be interested should be noticed. In my opinion, the
petitioners should have been noticed being the original owner of the property.
This first question is answered in favour of the petitioners.

10.  The second question is about the decision making process adopted
by the Tahsildar. The original record is also produced for the perusal of this
Court. The original record does not contain any indication as to where the
advertisement was affixed. There is no mention that it was affixed in chaupal,
gudi and other relevant places where it was required to be affixed. It is also
not clear as to when this advertisement was actually affixed. The record also
does not contain any indication that any notices were issued to the interested
person including the petitioners. This is one of the reasons on which the SDO
interfered in appeal and gave his finding that the appellants/present petitioners
were not noticed. The date of notice and advertisement and the place where
it was allegedly affixed etc. is not clear. The said finding of the SDO were not
disturbed by the Commissioner or by the Board of Revenue.

11.  Inthe considered opinion of this Court, the finding of the SDO to the
extent indicated above is in accordance with law. The main thrust of the
argument of learned senior counsel for the respondents is that the proper
remedy for the petitioners is to file a civil suit. Heavy reliance is placed on
sections 111, 115 and 116 of the MPLRC in this regard. By placing reliance
on the judgment of Sakhi Gopal Dixit (supra), it is argued by Shri Bhardwaj
that the proper remedy for the petitioner is to file a civil suit and in facton a
later stage, petitioner has already filed a civil suit. In such circumstances, this
petition is not tenable and the Board of Revenue and the Commissioner have
not committed any error of law.

12.  Section 111 of the Code deals with the jurisdiction of the civil courts
to decide any dispute in which State Government is not a party and it is relating
to any right which is recorded in the record-of-rights. Section 115 deals with
power of Tahsildar to correct the entry, if it is found to be incorrect and made
by an officer subordinate to him.

13.  Inthe considered opinion of this Court, it cannot be disputed as per
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the scheme of MPLRC that a mutation order can be challenged by filing an
appeal under the provisions of MPLRC. This is settled in law that it is the
choice of the litigant to decide the forum. When more than one forums are
available to him. I am unable to hold that petitioner's appeal under section
44(1) of MPLRC was not tenable against mutation order of the Tahsildar.
The Apex Court in (2002) 6 SCC 16 [Dhannalal Vs. Kalawatibai and
others], held as under:-

“The plaintiff is dominus litis, that is, master of, or
having dominion over the case. He is the person who has
carriage and control of an action. In case of conflict of
jurisdiction the choice ought to lie with the plaintiff to choose
the forum best suited to him unless there be a rule of law
excluding access to a forum of the plaintiff's choice or permitting
recourse to a forum will be opposed to public policy or will be
an abuse of the process of law.”

The respondents have also filed an appeal under section 44 before the
Commissioner, which was decided by Annexure P-2 dated 15.11.2010.
Resultantly, petitioner filed revision which was decided by the Board of Revenue
on 05.07.2012 (Annexure P-1). Thus, even assuming that jurisdiction was
also vested with the civil court, it cannot be held that the petitioner's appeal-
before the SDO was incompetent under section 44 aforesaid. Section 115 is
erroneously relied by the respondents which has no application in the facts
and circumstances of this case. In this case admittedly entry is made by the
Tahsildar and not by his subordinate employee/officer and, therefore, section
115 has no application. In the facts and circumstances, section 116 also has
no application. Apart from this, civil suit was filed in 2012 for declaring the
sale deed dated 14.02.2005 as null and void whereas order of mutation was
challenged before SDO on the basis of flaw in decision making process. Thus,
subsequent filing of said suit fora different relief will not wipe out the right of
petitioners to challenge orders passed by authorities under the MPLRC arising
out of order of Tahsildar.

14.  Atthe cost of repetition, it may be mentioned that the petitioner's
appeal under section 44 is tenable and, therefore, no fault can be found
regarding maintainability of appeal before the SDO. Merely because some
other remedy is also available, the petitioner cannot be deprived from the
* fruits v{'iksz decision of the SDO.
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15.  InAnnexuresP-1dnd P-2, the competent authorities have failed to
see whether the Tahsildar has followed the “due process”. The decision of
SDO was not interfered with on that ground. This is settled in law that if a
thing is required to be done in a particular manner, it has to be done in the
same manner or niot at all. In other words, the due process has to be followed
and other methods are forbidden. The interference by the Commissioner was
mainly on the ground that the power is only vested with the civil courts. This
order is affirmed by the Board of Revenue. I am unable to uphold this reason
for the simple reasons that decision making process was subject to judicial
review by the SDO under section 44 of MPLRC. Therefore, on the ground
that a civil court may also have jurisdiction, the order could not have been
interfered with. In the judgment of Sakhi Gopal Dixit (supra), this Court
recorded that the petitioner was noticed and he did not file any objection
pursuant to proclamation issued by the authority in accordance with the
procedure prescribed by section 110 of the Code and, therefore, the authority
after recording the statement of respondent No. 2 and his witnesses recorded
a finding and allowed the application for mutation. That was a case where
despite service of notice, the petitioner therein did not file any objection and
did it after a period of one-and-half-months. That too before the appellate
authority. In para 6, 9 and 10 of the judgment of Sakhi Gopal Dixit (supra),

+ this Court has given a specific finding that the due procedure prescribed by

law was followed. On the basis of said reason, interference was declined. On
the contrary in the present case, as analyzed above, the “due process™ is not
followed and the entire proceedings before the Tahsildar are polluted and
vitiated. ’

16.  Consequently, judgment of Sakhi Gopal Dixit (supra) is of no
assistance to the respondents. This is settled in law that a Judgment is precedent

.on the basis of facts and circumstances of a particular case. The principle of

law/ratio decidendi is to be derived on the basis of relevant facts and the
principles cannot be applied in vacuum or as a thuriib rule without considering
the fact situation of a particular case. The réspondents have also relied on the
judgment of B.K- Muniraju (supra). In my opinion, the said judgment is of no
help to the respondents. In the judgment of B.X. Muni Raju (supra), the
scope of interference by this Court is restated by the Supreme Court, which
shows that the interference may be made when the Court/authority below has
acted in flagrant disregard of law or rules of procedure or acting in violation

of principle of natural justice. On the basis of this judgment also, the interference
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needs to be made because the due procedure has been grossly violated by
the Tahsildar.

17.  Accordingly, in the opinion of this Court, Annexures P-1 and P-2
cannot be permitted to stand and are accordingly set aside. The order of the
SDO is affirmed to the extent, he remitted the matter back to the Tahsildar to
hear both the parties, peruse the relevant material and pass appropriate orders.
It is made clear that it will be open for the Tahsildar to take a decision in
accordance with law on the basis of material on record and any finding on
merits in the order of SDO will not bind him.

Consequently, Petition is allowed. No costs.
Petition allowed.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari ) .

W.P. No. 12910/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 12 December, 2012

JAMNA DEVI(SMT.) ...Petitioner
Vs.
RAJENDRA PRASAD JI ...Respondent

Specific ReliefAct (47 of 1963), Section 34 - Suit for declaration
- Consequential relief of possession - Plaintiff filed suit for declaration
of her share in the property, for declaration of charge of her maintenance
over disputed property and for declaration that the will is void ab-initio
- Plaintiff is required to value the suit and pay court fees for every
relief - However, if the plaintiff wants to keep the disputed property in
joint ownership to maintain the unity of the family then even in absence
of prayer for partition and separate possession, the suit could be
entertained and adjudicated - Plaintiff may file a suit for possession
subsequently after the declaration of her rights - Dismissal of suit for

want of consequential relief of possession bad in law - Order set aside.
(Paras 5 and 8)
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Case referred :
. AIR 1958 SC 245

Devesh Khatri, for the petitioner.
Vivek Rusia, for the respondent.

ORDER

U.C. MaHESBWARI, J.:- Looking to the nature of question involved
in this petition, instead to hear on the question of admission, with the consent
of the parties, the same is heard for final disposal.

Heard.

1. The petitionet/plaintiffhas filed this petition for quashment ofthe order
dated 15.9.09 Annex.P/5 passed by the IV ADJ (FTC) Khandwa in COS
No.2-A/09 whereby allowing the application of the respondent filed under
Order 7 rule 10 t/w 11 of the CPC in part, the petitioner has been directed to
pay the requisite court fees in accordance with the prayer made in the plaint.
In addition to it, the petitioner was also directed to amend the pleadings for
consequential relief of possession because even on decreeing the suit the decree
could not be executed for obtaining the possession of the property by the
petitioner. ’

2 Petitioner's counsel after taking me through the averments of the petition
as well as the papers placed on the record along with the impugned order
said that in view of the settled proposition of the law, the parties like the
petitioner/ plaintiff has a right to to get the decree of declaration only with
respect of her share in the disputed property along with the prayer of perpetual ‘
injunction restraining the respondent/defendant to interfere in her right and
share in the disputed property and, insuch premises, she could not be insisted
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" to arnend the plaint for the prayer of separate possession of the property if
she wants to keep the property in the joint ownership to maintain the unity of
the family and, in such premises, the direction of the trial court to amend the
plaint for the purpose of separate possession is not sustainable under the law.
In continuation, he said that although in the plaint three different declarations
with'respect of the disputed property has been made by the petitioner i.e(a)
declaration regarding charge over the disputed house of her maintenance ;)
declaration of her share in the house/plot and (c) declaration to declare the
alleged Will as ab initio void. And as a consequence of such relief, the prayer
for perpetual injunction has been made. So, in such premises, the valuation of
 single declaration and the court fees paid accordingly, is sufficient. It does not
require any more valuation or the court fees and prayed for setting aside the
impugned order and quashment of the aforesaid application of the respondent
by allowing this petition.
3. “The aforesaid prayer is opposed by the respondent's counsel Shri
Vivek Rusia contending that the impugned order bein g based on the proviso
of section 34 of the Specific Relief Act and also taking into consideration that
“three'different reliefs of declaration have been made by the petitioner, is in
cohfc}x;n;iti{ with law. It does not require any interference at this stage. He
p‘ra)'red?t'fjat'i'n view of the proviso of the aforesaid section 34, the suit of the
petitioner could not be decreed because the available consequential relief has
not been prayed in the plaint and prayed for dismissal of this petition. He also
placed his reliance on a decision of the Apex Court in the matter of S.Ram
ArS:Sp. Sathappa Chettiar Vs. S. Rm. Ar. Rm. Ramanathan Chetticr-
AlIR 1958 SC-245.

4.  Having heard the counsel keeping in view their arguments, [ have
carefully perused the papers placed on the record along with the impugned
order. It is apparent from the prayer clause of the plaint Annex.P/1 that the
impgugneﬂ -suit has been filed by the petitioner with the prayer of three
dé:clarations;‘ (2} is to declare the charge of her maintenance over the disputed
property;i(b) declaring her share in such property and (c ) declaring the Will
dated'5.7.96, as alleged, executed by Late Ram Prasad projected and filed
by respondent to be ab initio voidand as a consequence the prayer for perpetual
injunction is also prayed. It is apparent fact from the plaint that the suit has
been valued only for the relief of one declaration and court fees was also paid
accordingly. True'it is that the prayer of perpetual injunction, the valuation is
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separately made and the court fees was 15aid accordingly.

5. In the available scenario when herself, according to her plaint, has
filed the suit for giving three different declaration then even in the absence of
any objection of the other side, in view of the law laid down by the Apex
court in the aforesaid cited case, the petitioner is bound to pay the court fees .
separately in the suit on every declaration and undisputedly, the petitioner
neither valued nor paid the court fees on all the aforesaid prayer of three

~ declarations. So, in such premises, till this extent the order impugned is hereby
affirmed and the petitioner is directed to value the suit of three different
declaration and pay the court fees accordingly otherwise the suit cannot
proceed further for adjudication. Such exercise be carried out by the petitioner
within thirty days from today by filing the appropriate application in this regard
before the trial court, failing which the suit shall stand dismissed automatically
without further order either by this court or the trial court.

6. So far the valuation of the suit for the purpose of jurisdiction, which is
made by the petitioner Rs.300000/- in view of the stated price of the disputed
house does not appear to be contrary to law, hence on such question, on the
ground of valuation for the purpose of jurisdiction, the impugned suit could
not be dismissed. The same was rightly entertained by the trial court.

7. So far the question raised by the respondent's counsel that in view of
the proviso of section 34 of the Specific Relief Act in the absence of the
consequential relief of separate possession, the impugned suit could not be
entertained and adjudicated by the trial court as such the same could neither
entertained nor decreed. '

8. In the available scenario of the matter, such argument has not appealed
me because as per the settled position, the person like the petitioner could
not be insisted to file the suit for separate possession if she wants to keep the
disputed property in joint ownership to maintain the unity of the family and on
arising the occasion, subject to decree of the impugned suit for which the
same has been filed, the petitioner may file the separate suit for possession of
her share after declaring her rights in the present suit. So, in such premises, it
is held that even in the absence of prayer for partition and separate possession
of the disputed property, the suit could be entertained and adjudicated in
accordance with the procedure prescribed under the law. So, in such premises,
the findings of the trial court holding that the impugned suit in the lack of
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consequential available relief of partition and separate possession, is not
entertainable or the decree which may be passed in the suit could not be
executed, is hereby set aside.

9, In view of the aforesaid, by allowing this petition in part, the impugned
order Anenx.P/5 is hereby modified till the extent as stated above along with
the observation and direction made in the foregoing paras of this order.

10.  Itismade clear that this order has been passed taking into consideration
the averments of the plaint. Pursuantto it, it is observed that the respondent/
defendant shall be at liberty to raise all the available defence and objections in
his written statement ‘and same shall be considered by the trial court in
accordance with the procedure prescribed under the Jaw without being
influenced from any observation or findings given by this court in this order or
by the trial court in the order impugned.

C.C as perrules.

Petition partly allowed.

L.L.R. [2013] M.P,, 1008
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Ajit Singh & Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
W.P. No. 7135/2008 (Jabalpur) decided on 17 December, 2012

'UNION OF INDIA & ors. ... Petitioners
Vs.
RAJENDRA PRASAD YADAV & ors. ...Respondents

A. Service Law - Seniority - Traction Rolling Stock in
Electric Loco Shed was formed and 216 posts of group D posts were
required to be filled - Applications were invited from eligible Group D
employees - Séniority of staff transferred from different units of Central
Railway is to be decided upon the length of substantive post held by -
such staff in their parent cadre and not from the date of their joining in
TRS. (Paras 13-15)

F war iy — wiwar — gfies aiet v F SF AT
e = rar 7 stk gy ‘sﬂ'uai"a%zwwwmmaﬁféﬁm—-gw
'ﬁ‘iﬁmmamﬂmﬁm‘ﬁm‘&ﬂmﬁﬁmﬂﬁ—miaﬁ
ﬁﬁlﬂs‘mﬁ@wﬁaﬁamﬁvﬁwmﬁaﬁ%wmm



IL.R.[2013]M.P.  Union of India Vs. Rajendra Prasad Yadav (DB)1009

mﬂqma?mﬁwﬁrﬂﬂﬁwwaﬁmwﬁfmmaﬂ%t{
IR 9 f5 v% g1 darey ¥ syeer @ fafr @

B. Service Law - Promotion - Promotion is not a right though
consideration is - Initiation of promotion will not create any right in

- incumbent nor promotions made at the later date can be treated from
the date of initiation of proceedings. (Paras 19 & 20)
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Cases referred : ]
(2011) 6 SCC 725, (2011) 7 SCC 789.

Atul Choudhary, for the petitioners.
Akash Choudhary, for the respondents No. 1 to 4.

' ‘ ORDER

The Order of the court was delivered by:
SANJAY YADAV, J:- What should be the criteria for fixing seniority of the
incumbents brought from different seniority group in a newly created cadre, is
the issue which crops up for consideration in the writ petition directed against
the order dated 30.11.2007 passed by the Central Administrative Tribunal,
Jabalpur Bench Jabalpur in Original Application No. 656/2005; (i) Whether
the seniority should be from the date the incumbent held the substantive post
in the parent cadre; (ii) whether the seniority should be from the date when
the incumbent reports the joining in new cadre, or (iii) Whether the seniority
should be from the date the cadre is closed; are the off shoots of the main
issue.

2. The facts relevant are that with the formation of Traction Rolling Stock
(for Short TRS) in Electrical Loco Shed ,New Katni Junction presently West
Central Railway (previously Central Railways) riced arose to fill in 216 group
D posts, for that applications were invited from eligible group D employees
of Jabalpur Division, Central Railway (presently West Central Rallway), vide
letter dated 11.7.1996 on the following terms:

—(ﬁ)mwwwzﬁmv@iﬁm%ﬁw
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3. Thaf, with formation of TRS in Electric Loco shed, the Railway
Administration decided to close the steam Loco Shed and further decided to

absorb the employees of steam loco shed in the Electric loco shed. The terms
and condition remained the same as was stipulated vide letter dated 11.7.1996.

4. That, before closure of cadre, decision was taken by the Railways in
the Joint meeting with the recognized Unions viz, Central Railway Majdoor
Sangh and National Railway Majdoor Union held on 18.7.2002; whereby,
besides other issues (not relevant for the present, therefore, not spelt out),
following principles were laid down for determining senjority of the non-gazetted
staff of TRS cadre of new Katni Junction J abalpur, circulated vide circular
No.HRD/228/EI/ELS/NKJ/Jabalpur dated 30/7/2002 that:

“1.5.1: All promotion order issued for this cadre prior to the
date of closure of cadre i.e. 20.8.2002 are deemed fortuitous
and purely ad hoc without any prescriptive right for the staff
for any such posting, promotion in the grade.

1.5.2 The seniority of staff transferred from different units of
Central Railway on or before 20.8.2002 shall be based on

.rules applicable to inter se seniority depending upon the length
of substantive post held by these staff'in their parent cadre as
on 20.8.2002.

1.5.3 Staff who have come on transfer on their own request
from other Railway shall come on bottom seniority in the
recruitment grade.

1.5.4 The seniority of the staff directly recruited for ELS/NKJ.”
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5. The TRS cadre was subsequently closed on 20.8.2002. Material on
record reveals that before closure of the TRS cadre, the exigency of SEervices
warranted certain promotion to the post of Technician Trade such a$ Technician
Grade IIl and Grade IL. As such promotions were made from amongst the
incumbents who had joined in pursuance to letter dated 11 7.1996, Bug. since
the TRS cadre was open these promotion were treated as pu_rq!f.a:dho_c'}.ﬁ- ;
Apparently, no substantive right was conferred on such posts ohfy"vhi‘éh they
were promoted on adhoc basis. - S T

6. That, with the implementation of policy as circulated vide letter dated

30.7.2002 .i.e, with the drawing of seniority list in the TRS Department after

closure of cadre (20.8.2002) grievance arose amongst the group.D staffand.
in the Artisan Cadre in respect of fixation of seniority which led to filing of
Original Application in the Tribunal (O.A.No.1 049/2004 Babulal and others

V. Union of India and others) by certain employees. The application was’
disposed of with direction to the Railway to decide representation. This

direction led to passing of order dated 19.1.2005; whereby, it was stated

that the respondents/ applicants and similarly situated other employees were.
regularized as Helper in grade Rs.2650-4000 and that they were working as

ad hoc technician grade Rs.3050-4590 (except one Harkesh Bahadur Yadav).
1t was further stated that these employees since were promoted as Te‘g:hni_ciaﬁ

Grade I1I in pay scale 3050-4590 prior to closure of cadre, i.e., 20.8.2002.

After its closure, their promotions were treated as ad hoc and, therefore,

their name was not included in the seniority list of regular Technician Grade

IIL It was further informed that by order No. 12/2002 dated 16.10.2002, 9

helpers, i.¢., respondent Nos. 12 to 20 were regularly promoted on'the post
of Technician Grade III. It was further informed that steps are being taken to

regularize 10 employees as Technician Grade IILin grade Rs.3 050-4590 undér
restructuring scheme effective from 1.11.2003. These employees were S/Shri
Madhukar Rao, Yogi Prasad, Suresh Kumar, Dineshwar Prasad, Baﬁufe‘xﬁl, :
Shrikant, Murlidharan, Jagdish Prasad, Ramlakhan and Mahesh Prasad: In
respect of others, it is stated that because of non-availability of the post in
Technician Grade III they could not be regularized. Respondent Nos.1to 11
still aggrieved for not being regularized as Technician Grade Il in T.R.S cadre
and by order dated 19.1.2005, preferred O.A. No. 656/2005 before the
Central Administrative Tribunal, Jabalpur Bench, Jabalpur seeking.the
quashment of order dated 19.1.2005 and for setting aside the seniority list
dated 30.5.2003 and 5.4.2004. o
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7. Apparently, the order dated 16.10.2002; whereby, respondent Nos.
12 to 20 who were regularly promoted as Technician Grade III was not
challenged. :

8. Tribunal, after taking into consideration riva] contentions quashed the
order dated 19.1.2005 as well as the seniority list dated 30.5.2003 and .
5.4.2004 so far as it related to Technician Grade Il in respect of respondent
Nos. 12 to 20 with a direction to the Railways to consider the case of
respondent Nos. 1 to 11 (applicants in original application) and respondent
Nos. 12 to 20 (respondents in original application) for regularization as
Technician Grade IT as and when they are found eligible as per their seniority
position and subject to fulfillment of eligibility criteria, treating them on equal
footing and maintaining the seniority in the T.R.S cadre on the basis of their
joining the cadre. The respondent Railways were further directed to draw
fresh seniority list of Technician Grade Il after regularization of the applicants
and respondents as Technician Grade ITI. The Tribunal further directed that
revised seniority of Helper Khalasi/Khalasi be prepared including the name of
respondents on the basis of j oining the T.R.S cadre and that since the private
respondents have already cleared the written test and viva voce required for’
regularization, they may not be subjected to these tests/examination again for
regularization. ' .

9. The above conclusion has been arrived at by Tribunal by construing .
that the circular dated 30.7.2002 which laid down the policy regarding the
fixation of seniority of Group D and the Artison Cadre in the newly T.R.S
Department is applicable from the prospective date and, therefore, will not
have an overriding effect on the letter dated 11 .7.1996 issued at Divisional
level inviting applications for posting in the T.R.S Department and that their
. seniority will be counted in the Department from the date of assuming the
charge,

10.  The Tribunal ignores following aspects which makes its reasonings
Vulnerable. Firstly, that, till closure of cadre in a newly constituted department
the entire cadre is open and does not attain permanency. The cadre means the
strength of a service or a part of service sanctioned as a separate unit. In the
case at hand, the phasing out of steam engines and introduction of electric
engines led to formation of new department, viz., Traction Rolling Stock
(T.R.S). To man the same employees from different departments were given

the opportunity to opt for Group 'D' post in the T.R.S Organization vide letter
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dated 11.7.1996 issued by the Divisional Railway Manager, the Divisional
Head. The letter no doubt contains the stipulation that the candidates will be
placed lower in the seniority in grade Rs.750-940 and their seniority shall be
counted from the date of their joining the organization. Since the cadre was
not made permanent, promotions within the T.R.S. Organization to higher
post of Artisan Grade I1I and Artisan Grade II was regulated by taking into
the seniority from the date of joining the organization. This practice was rightly
not faulted with as the promotion within organization were purely temporary
and did not confer any substantive right in favour of promotees. However,
since the establishment of T.R.S was of permanent nature, policy decision in
consultation with the recognized Union was taken at Zonal Level for closure
of cadre, i.e., restraining free inflow of personnels from different departments/
sections; leading to issuance of circulz. vawca 30.7.2002.

11.  Under Section 2 (32) of Indian Railways Act, 1989 “railway
administration” has been defined to mean'that in respect of a Government
railway, the General Manager of a Zonal Railway; under whom is vested the
general superintendence and control of zonal railway (Section 4 (2) of the
Railways Act, 1989). Since the policy decision as circulated on 30.7.2002
was taken at level of zonal railway, it will have overriding effect over the
decision which was taken at the divisional railway. Thus, the circular dated
30.7.2002 supersedes the letter issued by the Divisional Railway Manager
on 11.7.1996.. Since the service conditions of the incumbents in T.R.S
Organization are governed by Rules and Regulations framed by the Railway
Administration, the employer, the employees are governed by all such Rules
and Regulations framed during their service tenure from time to time. It cannot
be said that since they were brought in the organization with a stipulation that
their seniority would be reckoned from the date of their joining the cadre it
would prevent the Railway Administration from laying down a pohcy on the
closure of cadre to determine inter se seniority of the incumbent who forms
part of the permanent cadre after the closure.

12.  Tribunal in our considered opinion was, therefore, not _]ust1ﬁed in
holding that the circular dated 30.7.2002 is prospective in nature and will not
be applicable to the respondents (applicants in O.A. No. 656/2005).

13.  Secondly, the Tribunal has ignored the fact, which makes the decision
by the Tribunal directing for construing the seniority from the date of joining
T.R.S organization is vulnerable for the reason that ignores the fact that
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employees from different departments were carved out for their posting in
newly constituted T.R.S organization. These employees though carried their
respective seniority; however, the date of their relieving from parent department
varied; therefore, an employee though senior and opted for his.transfer to
T.R.S organization from other section/department, will be required to take a position
in the seniority list below him. This would create an enormous position as the
senior for no fault of his would be placed to the below his service junior. The
anomaly would further be (unfounded if the service junior on the basis of the
seniority in T.R.S organization is further promoted in the Artisan Grade.

14, Ttwastorule out these anomalies the Zonal Headquarter in consultation
with the recognized Union decided that after closure of cadre in the T.R.S
department the seniority of staff transferred from different units of Central
Railway on or before 20.8.2002 shall be based on rules applicable to inter se
seniority depending upon the length of substantive post held by these staffin
their parent cadre as on 20.8.2002. :

15. Inview whereof the direction by the Tribunal for maintaining seniority
in the T.R.S cadre on the basis of joining the cadre cannot be given the stamp
of approval. Instead we direct that seniority in the T.R.S cadre would be
strictly in accordance with the policy decision as contained in the circular
dated 30.7.2002.

16.  Next question which arises for consideration is whether in absence of
challenge to promotion order dated 16.1 0.2002; whereby, respondents No.
12 to 20 were promoted as Artisan Grade II1, the Tribunal is Justified in setting
at naught such promotions by dislocating the seniority prepared as per the
policy decision dated 30.7.2002.

17.  Ttiscontended on behalf of respondent Nos. 1 to 11 (applicants in
Original Application No. 656/2005) that the entire proceedings for promotion
of Group D staffin the T.R.S Organization to Artisan Grade III was initiated
before closure of the cadre and it was only that, the promotion orders were
passed on 16.10.2002 after the closure of T.R.S cadre (which was on
20.8.2002); therefore, these promotions as per the policy decision dated
30.7.2002 ought to have been treated as fortuitous and purely ad hoc.

18.  Paragraph 1.5.1 of the circular dated 30.7.2002 stipulates that, “All
promotion order issued for this cadre prior to the date of closure of cadre i.e.
20.8.2002 are deemed fortuitous and purely ad hoc without any prescriptive

S
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ng"ht for the staff for any such posting, promotion in the grade”.

l 9: It is a settled principle of law that the promotion is not a right though
the consideration is. {For an authority please see Deepak Agrawal v. State
of: U P : (2011) 6 SCC 725 and Jagdzsh Prasad v. State of Rajasthan :
(2011) 7 SCC 789..

20 +  Inview whereof the initiation of proceedings for promotion will not
create any right in the incumbent for promotion, nor the promotions made at
the later dated can be treated from the date of initiation of proceedings. The
promotlon comes into existence from the date of order.

21} Inthe case at hand the promotion of respondent Nos. 12 to 20 since
was by virtue of order dated 16.10.2002, i.e »fter 20.8.2002, the date from
wI_i'ich the T.R.S Cadre was closed, paragraph 1.5.1 of the circular dated
3(/7.2002 does not get attracted as would cause any dent to the order dated
16.10.2002. And in absence of a direct challenge to such order the same
ou ght not have been tinkered with by the Tribunal indirectly.

22 In view of above analysis we uphold the challenge to the order dated
30| 11.2007 passed by the Tribunal in Original Application No. 656/2005.
We accordingly set aside the same and dismiss the original application O.A.
656/2005.

23.  Intheresult, petition is allowed. However no costs.
Petition allowed.

[.L.R. [2013] M.P.,1015
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
" W.P.No. 7116/2008 (S) (Jabalpur) decided on 8 January, 2013

SANJ EEVKUMAR JAIN ...Petitioner
Vs,
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

K Constitution - Article 226 - Judicial Review - Petitioner appointed
as.Asstt. Project Officer in ICDS Project which was subsequently taken
over by Women and Child Development Department by orders of the State
Govt. - Petitioner was still considered to be the project employee - Where
an order of State Authority is found to be illegal or arbitrary, unreasonable
‘or irrational, the same is open to judicial review - However, the High
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Court will not proceed to substitute its own decision as it would amount
to exercise of power of authority itself - Petition disposed off with
direction to consider the claim of petitioner for absorption - Petition
disposed of. (Paras 12 to 14)

GG — JgwT 226 — ~=IF YAfdatar — ard @1 Fgla,
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Cases referred :

1995 Supp (2) SCC 611, 1995 Supp (3) SCC 152, (1999) 7 SCC
499, (2009) 3 SCC 68, W.P. No. 2584/2005 (Dr. Premiata Purohit & ors.
Vs. State of Rajasthan & ors.), AIR 1992 SC 789, (2009) 6 SCC 611,
2011(1) MPLJ 410, (2006) 3 SCC 674.

Sanjay Agrawal, for the petitioner.

Prashant Singh, Addl. A.G. with ¥P. Tiwari, P.L. for the respondents
No. 1to 4. .

Om Namdeo, for the respondent No.5.

Mohan Sausarkar, for the respondent No. 6.

ORDER

ALOK ARADHE, J.:- In this writ petition, the petitioner who was
appointed as assistant project officer in Integrated Child Development Scheme
Project (ICDS), Tendukheda by Janpad Panchayat, Tendukheda inter alia
seeks a direction to the respondents to absorb his services in Women and
Child Development Department of Government of Madhya Pradesh. The facts,
necessary for adjudication of the controversy involved in the writ petition are
narrated hereunder.

2. The ICDS project was introudced by the Government of India through
the Department of Human Resources Development for integrated delivery of

.
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certain services of pre-school children, pregnant and lactating women. The
object of the scheme was to improve the health and nutfritional status of children
and women and to reduce the incidences of school dropouts and physical and
social welfare and development of the child. Paragraph 47 of the scheme
provides that even though funds will be provided by the Central Government,
the staff will be borne on the appropriate cadres of the State and therefore,
the State should sanction the posts (as per appendix) in the appropriate
corresponding State pay scale The anganwadi workers and their helpers
will be honorary workers.

3. TheState Govemment by order dated 2.6.1995 handed over the ICDS
. project at Tendukheda, district - Damoh to J anapad Panchayat, Tendukheda
and sanctioned the staffing pattern. Anadvertisement dated 15.12.1995
was issued by the Janpad Panchayat, Tendukheda. The petitioner in response
to the aforesaid advertisement submitted an application. By communication
dated 6.1.1996, the petitioner was asked to appear for interview on
17.1.1996. Thereafter by order dated 15,3.1996, the petitioner was appointed
temporarily on the post of Assistant Project Officer. The order of appointment
contained a stipulation that the petitioner would be required to complete the
period of probation of two years and the post on which the petitioner is
appointed is temporary and the petitioner shall not be treated as government
servant. The order of appointment further contained a stipulation that services
of the petitioner can be terminated any time without assigning any reason.

4, Thereafter vide resolution dated 23.7.1998 passed by the Janpad
Panchayat, Tendukheda the services of the petitioner were regularised on
successtul completion of the period of probation in anticipation of approval
by the State Government. It has been averred in the writ petition that from
time to time, the petitioner not only performed the duties of the post of Assistant
Project Officer but he was assigned various duties which are performed by
the employees of the State Government. The petitioner, in support of the
aforesaid submission has annexed copies of such orders as Annexures P-12
to P-22.

5. . Ameeting of the district level departmental advisory committee was
held on 17.3.1999 in which the resolution was passed to confer the status of
government servants on the employees working in ICDS project, Tendukheda
and the same was forwarded for approval to the State Government. Similarly
Janpad Panchayat, Tendukheda and Zila Panchayat, Damoh passed the
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resolutions dated 22.6.2000 and 31.1.2004 respectively for treating the
employees in ICDS project as government servants and the same ﬁrcre
forwarded for approval to the State Government. It has further been avetred
in the writ petition that services of the employees in Denida Health and Farh_ily
Welfare Scheme and the Tilhan Sangh as well as the services of the employees
working in Overseas Development Administration Project were absorbed in
the State Government. In support of the aforesaid stand, the petitioner has
annexed copies of the orders dated 4.8.2005, 25.1.2006 and 17.11.1998
as Annexures P-30, P-7 and P-6 respectively. It is also asserted that all the
ICDS projects in the State Government are run by the State Government
except in the Janpad Panchayat, Tendukheda and Sihawal. It is stated in the
rejoinder that on 18.4.2010 the project has been taken over by the State
Government and by an order dated 4.8.2010 passed by the State Government
the ICDS project in Tendukheda has been transferred to Women and Child
Development Department. In pursuance of the aforesaid order, vide otder
dated 5.8.2010, the project was taken over by the Project Officer, Women
and Child Development Department Tendukheda. It is also averred that v1de
order dated 27.5.2009 in district - Damoh, eight ICDS projects have been
launched ineluding one in Tendukheda and number of posts are lying vacant
in new projects. In the aforesaid factual backdrop, the petitioner-has
approached this Court.

6. Learned counsel for the petitioner submitted that though the petitioner
was appointed under a particular project against the vacant sanctioned post
after going through the process of selection, yet over a period of time he has
been treated as employee of the State Government inasmuch as various duties
which are performed by the employees of the State Government were entrusted
to the petitioner. In this connection, learned counsel for the petitioner has
invited the attention of this Court to Annexures P-12 to P-22, It is also
submitted that resolutions have been passed by the district level departmental
advisory committee, Janpad Panchayat, Tendukheda and Zila Panchayat,
Damoh to confer the status of government servants on the employees working
in ICDS project, Tendukheda. It is further submitted that the project is perennial
in nature and the petitioner has been performing the duties in the project for
past 17 years. Itis further submitted that the ICDS project was launched in
the year 1975 by the Central Government and the same is continuing and in
future also the same would continue. It is also contended that since the project
has z!r=ady been taken over by the State Government, therefore, action of the

-
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State Government in treating the petitioner as project employee is absolutely
unjustified. In support of his submissions, learned counsel for the petitioner
has placed reliance on the decisions in Parimal Chandra Raha and Others
v. Life Insurance Corporation of India and Others, 1995 Supp (2) SCC
611, National Federation of Railway Porters, Vendors and Bearers v.
Union of India and Others, 1995 Supp (3) SCC 152, Government of T.N.
and Another v. G Mohamed Ammenudeen and Others, (1999) 7 SCC
499 and State of West Bengal and Others v. Kaberi Khastagir and Others,
(2009) 3 SCC 68 as well as order dated 13.4.2010 passed by learned single
Judge of High Court of Judicature for Rajasthan in W.P. No.2584/2005 (Dr.
Premiata Purohit and Others v. State of Rajasthan and Others).

A On the other hand, learned Additional Advocate General submitted
‘that the petitioner was appointed on contract basis as is evident from the
order of appointment. It is urged that no service rules have been framed
governing the service conditions of the petitioner. The petitioner has been
appointed on contract basis and a project employee has no right to seek
regularisation. It is further submitted that in pursuance of the directions issued
by the Central Government to change the staffing pattern in the year 2003,
the strength of the employees working in ICDS project has been reduced. It
is also contended that reliance placed by the learned counsel for the petitioner
on decision in Kaberi Khastagir (supra)is of no assistance to the petitioner
in the facts of the case, as the order of appointment of the employees in the
aforesaid case contained a stipulation that their service conditions will be the
same as that of the government employees whereas in the instant case, the
order of appointment of the petitioner clearly stipulates that the services of
the petitioner are temporary and the petitioner shall not be treated as
government servant. In support of his submissions, learned Additional
Advocate General has placed reliance on the decisions in Delki Development
Horticulture Employees’ Union v. Delhi Administration, AIR 1992 SC
789, Mohd. Abdul Kadir and another v. Director General of Police,

Assam and others, (2009) 6 SCC 611 and Vijay Kumar Bajpayee v. M.P.

Urja Vikas Nigam Ltd. and another, 2011 (1) MPLJ 410.

8. Learned counsel for the respondent No.5 supported the stand of the
petitioner.
9. On the other hand, learned counsel for the respondent No.6 has

submitted that ICDS project is a centrally sponsored scheme which has been
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implemented by the States all across the country on a sharing pattern of 90:10

for all components including supplementary nutrition programme. It has further

been submitted that 90% of the operating cost for implementation of ICDS
project is borne by the Central Government and the salary and allowances of
the staff appointed for implementation of the project is borne on appropriate
cadre of the State and in the appropriate corresponding State pay scales
sanctioned by the State Government. Itis also contended that guidelines on
the staffing pattern and the recruitment rules for appointment of the staff under
ICDS project are framed by the State Government and the State Government
is responsible for recruitment of officers and staff and their service conditions
under the ICDS scheme.

10.  Ihave considered respective submissions made by learned counsel
for the parties. Admittedly the ICDS scheme was promulgated by the Central
Government on 2.10.1975 through the Department of Human Resource
Development with the object of integrated delivery of certain services such as
supplementary nutrition, immunisation, health check-up, referral service, non-
formal education and health and nutrition education to pre-school children
~ and pregnant and nursing women. The Scheme was aimed at reduction ofthe
incidence of school dropouts and laying the foundation for proper psychological,
physical and social development of the child. Paragraph 47 of the Scheme
reads.under:

"Even though funds will be provided by the Central
Government, the staff will be borne on the appropriate cadres
of the State and therefore, the State should sanction the posts
(as per appendix) in the appropriate corresponding State pay
scale. The Anganwadi workers and their helpers will be
honorary workers."

11.  Paragraph 47 of the Scheme was considered by the Supreme Court in
Kaberi Khastagir (supra) and in paragraph 31 of the decision, the Supreme
Court by taking into account paragraph 47 of the Scheme, held that it is difficult
to accept the case of the State Government that employees of the project
were project employees and not the employees of the State Government. The
relevant extract of paragraph 31 of the aforesaid decision reads as under:

" ... In fact, Para 47 of the Scheme, which has been extracted
hereinabove, in no uncertain terms makes it very clear that
even though funds for the Scheme would be provided by the

-+ &
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Central Government, the staff would be borne on the
appropriate cadres of the States which would sanction the
posts in the appropriate corresponding State pay scale. In
the face of such provision it is difficult to accept that the writ
petitioners were project workers and not the employees of
the State Government.”

12.  Initially the petitioner was employed by the Janpad Panchayat.
However, subsequently, by an order dated 18.4.2010 passed by the State
Government, the ICDS project in Tendukheda has been taken over by the
State Government and by an order dated 4.8.2010 the same has been
transferred to Women and Child Development Department. In compliance
of the aforesaid order, the project has been taken over by the Project Officer
of the Women and Child Development Department. In view of the stand
taken by the Central Government in paragraph 4 of its reply, which has not
been controverted by the State Government, the State Government was under
an obligation to frame Rules for appointment of the functionaries in respect of
the posts in the Project. The State Governinent, therefore, ought to have
framed the rules in respect of the service conditions of the employees working
in the Project. Merely because the State Government has not framed the
Rules under the Scheme, the contention made by learned Additional Advocate
General that the decision in Kaberi Khastagir (supra) is distinguishable,
cannot be accepted.

13.  .The petitioner in this writ petition has prayed for a direction to the
respondents to absorb his services in Women and Child Development
Department of Government of Madhya Pradesh. It is well settled that where
an order or an action of State Authority is found to be illegal or in contravention
of prescribed procedure or is arbitrary, unreasonable or irrational, the same
is open to jildicial review. In such a case, when the High Court finds that the
action requires interference in exercise of power of judicial review, the High
Court will not proceed to substitute its own decision in the matter as that
would amount to exercise of power of the authority itself, but shall require the
authority to consider the matter. It is equally well settled that the Court to
direct an authority to 'consider’ only requires the authority to apply its mind
to the facts and circumstances of the case and to take decision in accordance
with law. [See. A.P SRTC and Others Vs. G Srmzvas Reddy and Others,

(2006) 3 SCC 674].

14.  Inthe light of aforesaid well settled legal position, I am inclined to

h
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dispose of the writ petition with adirection to the State Government to consider
the claim of the petitioner for absorption in Women and Child Development
. Department taking into account all the aspects of the matter more particularly
in the light of the findings recorded by the Supreme Court in paragraph 31 of

- decision in Kaberi Khastagir (supra). The State Government, while deciding

the claim of the petitioner, shall also bear in mind that petitioner has been
working in the project for past more than 17 years and is performing the
duties which have been assigned to him by the State Government from time to
. time and the fact that the State Government has already taken over the project
and the same is being run by Women and Child Development Department.
Needless to state, the claim of the petitioner shall be decided by a speaking
. order within a period of three months from the date of production of certified
copy of the order passed today. '

Petition disposed of.

LL.R. [2013] M.P.,1022
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
W.P. No. 12980/2004 (S) (Jabalpur) decided on 22 J anuary, 2013

URMILA KOSHTI (SMT.) , ...Petitioner
Vs. '

SECRETARY, M.P. STATE ELECTRICITY BOARD, .
JABALPUR & ors. ..-Respondents

Constitution - Article 142 & 226 - Powers of High Court -
Supreme Court in exercise of powers under Article 142 of Constitution
of India while holding that "Koshti" is not a part of "Halba" Tribe,

moulded the relief by permitting the beneficiaries to retain the benefits -

of the degree - Powers under Article 142 of Constitution of India are
‘not available to High Court - Benefit of directions issued by Supreme
Court cannot be extended to the Petitioner. (Paras 5 & 6)
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Cases referred

AIR 2001 SC 393, AIR 2004 SC 1469, 2005(4) MPLJ 303, (2007)
5 SCC 336, (2008) 14 SC 545, (2012) 8 SCC 430, 2003(1) MPLJ 513,
(2008) 5 SCC 652, AIR 2009 Bom. 122.

Anshuman Singh, for the petitioner:
Anoop Nair, for the respondent No.1.
D.K. Bohrey, P.L. for the respondents No. 2 & 3.

ORDER = :

ALOK ARADHE, J.:- In this petition, the petitioner who was
employed as a Stenographer in the erstwhile M.P. State Electricity Board,
has assailed the validity of the order dated 16.4.2004 by which the
services of the petitioner have been terminated. In order to appreciate
the petitioner's grievance, few facts need mention, which are stated infra.

2. The petitioner obtained a caste certificate on 8.10.1984 on the
ground that she is a member of the Scheduled Tribe community being
“Halba”. On the basis of the aforesaid caste certificate, the petitioner
was given the appointment on the post of Stenographer on 12.2.1990 in
the erstwhile M.P. State Electricity Board. It appears that several
complaints were received by the respondent-Board from time to time
with regard to procurement of employment on the basis of false caste
certificates. Accordingly, the respondent-Board took a decision on
19.12.1996 to verify the caste certificates, pursuant to which 43 cases
were referred for scrutiny. The Joint Director of the Board thereafter
issued a notice to the petitioner by which she was asked to produce
evidence with regard to her status as person belonging to Scheduled Tribe
category. However, the petitioner failed to adduce any evidence.
Thereupon, a charge-sheet was issued to the petitioner and a departmental
enquiry was held in which the caste certificate issued in favour of the
petitioner was found to be false. Accordingly, vide order dated
16.11.2004, the services of the petitioner were terminated. The petitioner
filed a writ petition namely W.P. No.11107/06(s) in which the petitioner
challenged the action of the respondents in cancelling the caste certificate
issued to the petitioner. The aforesaid writ petition was disposed of by a
Bench of this Court vide order dated 5.9.2007 with a direction to examine
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the validity of the caste certificate by High Power Scrutiny Committee
which was constituted in view of the law laid down by the Supreme Court
in Madhuri Patil's case. Thereupon, the matter was referred to the
High Power Scrutiny Committee which also vide order dated 6.1.2009
recommended the cancellation of the caste certificate. Thereafter, the
petitioner obtained certain additional documents and filed an application
for review before the High Power Scrutiny Committee however, the
application submitted by the petitioner failed to evoke any response.
Thereupon, the petitioner approached this Court by filing another writ
petition namely W.P. No.5059/2009 which was disposed of by a Bench
of this Court vide order dated 15.6.2009 with the direction to the
respondents therein to take into consideration the documents which were
obtained by the petitioner. In compliance of the directions issued by this
Court, the High Power Scrutiny Committee once again examined the case
-of the petitioner and vide order dated 18.7.2011 upheld its previous
decision and found that the caste certificate has wrongly been issued to
the petitioner. In the aforesaid factual background, the petitioner has
approached this Court.

3. Learned counsel for the petitioner while inviting the attention of
this Court to paragraph 38 of the judgment in the case of-State of
Maharashtra Vs. Milind and others, AIR 2001 SC 393, submitted that
all the admissions and appointments which have attained finality were
protected by the Supreme Court and the Supreme Court itself had given
prospective effect to the law laid down by it in the case of Milind (supra).

It is further submitted that the Supreme Court in the case of R. Vishwanatha
Pillai Vs. State of Kerala and others, AIR 2004 SC 1469, was not

dealing with the case of person belonging to “Halba” community, whereas
cases of Bank of India and another Vs. Avinash Mandivikar, 2005(4)
MPLJ 303 and Additional General Manager, Human Resource, BHEL,

Ltd., Vs. Suresh Ramkrishna Burde, (2007) 5 SCC 336 were cases
where the appointments were obtained by producing forged documents

which is not the case here. It was further submitted that a Bench of two.

Judges of the Supreme Court in the case of Punjab National Bank and
dAnother Vs. Vilas, S/o. Govindrao Bokade and another, (2008) 14
SCC 545 has extended the benefit of the ratio laid down in Milind's case
to a case of appointment. Tt is also submitted that in somewhat similar

facts, the benefit of law laid down by the Supreme Court has been

LT
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extended by the Supreme Court in the case of Kavita Solunke Vs. State
of Maharashtra and others, (2012) 8 SCC 430. Learned counsel for
the petitioner while placing reliance on the decisions in the case of
Jabalpur Bus Operators Association Vs. State of M.P. and others,

2003 (1) MPLJ 513, has urged that the ratio laid down in Milind's case
which is a decision rendered by the Constitution Bench of the Supreme
Court, has not been explained by the Co-ordinate Bench and, therefore,
the directions issued in paragraph 38 of the judgment would apply to the
case of the petitioner as well. It is further urged that the direction issued
by the Supreme Court that the admissions and appointments which have
attained finality will not be affected by the law laid down by the Supreme
Court in the case of Milind, supra, has not been issued under Article 142
of the Constitution of India. Alternatively, learned counsel for the
petitioner submits that the petitioner be granted the liberty to challenge
the reports submitted by the High Power Scrutiny Committee dated
6.1.2009 and 18.7.2011 by way of separate writ petition.

4, On the other hand, Shri Anoop Nair, learned counsel for
respondent No.1 submitted that in view of the recommendations of the
High Power Scrutiny Committee, the petitioner is not entitled to the benefit
of continuance of service. It is further submitted that petitioner does not
belong to Scheduled Tribe and, therefore, she is not entitled to benefit of
the law laid down by the Supreme Court in the case of Milind, supra.
Learned Panel Lawyer for respondents No.2 and 3 has placed reliance
on the recommendations of the High Power Scrutiny Committee and has
submitted that petitioner is not a member of Scheduled Tribe community
and, therefore, she is not entitled to benefit of law laid down by Supreme
Court in Milind's case.

5." .I'have considered the respective submissions made by learned
counsel for the parties. In the case of Milind (supra), the question which
arose for consideration was whether the respondent who belonged to
“Koshti” caste could claim the benefit of Scheduled Tribe reservation on
the ground that it was a sub-tribe of “Halba”. The Supreme Court held
that “Koshti” was not a part of Scheduled Tribe of “Halba” and the entries
in the Scheduled Tribes Order could not be amended or expanded by
any authority. However, while allowing the appeal preferred by the State
Government, the Supreme Court moulded the relief by permitting the
tespondent therein to retain the benefits of his degree. In the case of
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Yogesh Ramchandra Naikwadi Vs. State of Maharashtra and others,
(2008) 5 SCC 652, the Supreme Court while considering the ratio laid
down in Milind’s case, supra, inter-alia held as follows:-

“The benefit extended in Milind and Vishwanatha Pillai
cannot obviously be extended uniformly to all such cases.
Each case may have to be considered on its own merits.
Further what has precedential value is the ratio decidendi
of the decision and not the direction issued while moulding
the relief in exercise of power under Article 142 on the
special facts and circumstances of a case. We are therefore
of the view that Milind and Vishwanatha Pillai cannot be
considered as laying down a proposition that in every case
where a candidate's caste claim is rejected by a Caste
Verification Committee, the candidate should invariably be
permitted to retain the benefits of the admission and the
consequential degree, irrespective of the facts.”

6. Similar view has been taken by the Full Bench of Bombay High
Court in the case of Ganesh Rambhau Khalale Vs. State of Maharashtra
and others, AIR 2009 Bombay 122, and it has been held that directions
issued by the Supreme Court in paragraph 38 of its judgment is not the
law declared by the Supreme Court under Article 141 of the Constitution
of India and the directions have been issued in exercise of powers under
Article 142 of the Constitution of India. The Supreme Court in the case
of Kavita Solunke, supra, has also extended the benefit of the law laid
down by Supreme Court in the case of Milind in exercise of powers
under Article 142 of the Constitution of India. The powers under Article
142 of the Constitution of India are not available to this Court, therefore,
the benefit of the directions issued by the Supreme Court contained in
paragraph 38 of the judgment in the case of Milind, supra, cannot be
extended to the petitioner.

7. However, the petitioner would be at liberty to challenge the validity
of the recommendations of the High Power Scrutiny Committee dated
6.1.2009 and 18.7.2011 in accordance with law.

Accordingly, the writ petition is disposed of.

Petition disposed of.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
W.P. No. 7319/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 30 January, 2013

MADHYAPRADESH MADHYAKSHETRA

VIDYUT VITRAN CO. LTD. ~...Petitioner
Vs. : ,
SMT. SAVITRIDEVI ...Respondent

A. Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Section 126 -- Cases of
excess load of consumption of electricity are squarely covered under
Explanation (b) (iv) of Section 126. (Para 10)
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B.~ Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Sections 126, 135 and
MPERC (Establishment of Forum and Electricity Ombudsman for
Redressal of Grievances of the Consumers) (Revisions-I) Regulations,
2009, Clause 2.4 (d), (m) and 3.35 - Jurisdiction - If a problem does
not fall within the ambit of "Complaint' and 'Grievance' under the
regulations, the Electricity Consumer Grievance Redressal Forum
cannot be said to have Jurisdiction to entertain it - An order passed
without jurisdiction is 'non-est’ i.e. nullity - Said order has no authority
- Impugned order set aside. (Para 20)
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C. Interpretation of Statute - A statute has to be interpreted
in the context it is drafted along with the aim and object. (Para 12)
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Cases referred :

ILR (2008) MP 1599, (2010) 4 SCC 539, (2012) 2 SCC 108, AIR
19568034Q(2NB)7SCC79L(2MW)2SCC3Si(2MW)6SCC381
2012(2) MPHT 249(DB).

Vivek Jain, for the petitioner,
A.V. Bhardwaj, for the respondent.

ORDER

Svioy PauL, J.: In these batch of petitions similar questions are
involved, and therefore, with the consent of parties, matters are analogously
heard and decided by this common order.

2. The facts are taken from W.P.No.73 19/2011. The Madhya Pradesh
Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitaran Company Limited (the Company) has filed
this writ petition against the order of ] ectricity Consumer Grievances Redressal
Forum (the Forum) dated 26.9.2011. The respondent/consumer filed an
application under Section 42(5 )ofthe Electricity Act, 2003 before the Forum.
The respondent stated that she is a consumer and her electricity meter is placed
outside her shop. On 25.4.2011 the Vi gilance Team of the Company checked
the said electricity connection/meter and prepared a provisional bill. By
communication dated 30.4.2011 (Annexure P/6), an amount of Rs.66,584/-
was provisionally assessed and the respondent was directed to either accept
this amount or file her objection.

3. Shri Vivek Jain, learned counsel for the petitioner, submits that in these
batch of petitions in certain matters, objections were taken about jurisdiction
and maintainability of the complaint/proceedings before the Forum and in certain
cases, those objections were not taken. He submits that the Forum had inherent
lack of jurisdiction, and therefore, interference be made by this Court. He
relied on certain provisions of the Electricity Act and the regulations by which
the Forum was constituted. The regulation is known as MPERC (Establishment
of Forum and Electricity Ombudsman for Redressal of Grievances of the
Consumers) (Revision-I) Regulations, 2009 (hereinafier called as 'Regulations”).

4. Per contra, Shri A.V.Bhardwaj, Shri J .P.Kushwah, Shri B.D.Jain, Shri
K.K.Shrivastava, Shri Abbhishek Parashar and Shri Rajesh Mittal, learned
counsel for the respondents, supported the order passed by the Forum. In

‘6 g
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cases where no objection about maintainability of the proceedings before the
* Forum is taken by the Company, learned counsel for the respective respondent
submit that once the Company has submitted to the jurisdiction of the Forum,
it is no more open for the Company to state for the first time before this Court
that the Forum was lacking jurisdiction. The main contention of learned counsel
for the respondents is that it was obligatory on the part of the Company to
establish their specific case under Section 126 of the Electricity Act, 2003
before the Forum. Only when the said casé was established to the hilt before
the Forum, a conclusion can be drawn that the Forum had no jurisdiction. In
absence thereof, it cannot be said that Forum had no jurisdiction. By drawing
the attention of this Court on the language of Section 126 of the Electricity
Act, the learned counsel for the respondents stated that when it is not in dispute
that respondents had an authorized elz.uicity connection, mere overdrawl of
clectricity beyond permissible limit will not amount to unauthorized use of
electricity within the meaning of Section 126 of the Electricity Act.

5. Shri A.V.Bhardwaj, learned counsel for one of the respondent, submits
that in L.L.R. (2008) M.P. 1599 (Dr. Hari Singh Gaur Vishwavidyalaya
Sagar (M.P.) & anr. Vs. Rajeshwar Yadav), this Court interpreted Section .
2(2) Explanation of the M.P. Uchcha Nyayalaya (Khand Nyaypeeth Ko
Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005 and opined that the word 'petitioner' used in the
Explanation does not mean that petitioner who files a writ petition, but to
understand as a party who files the Writ Appeal. He submits that the provisions
of the Regulations are to be interpreted in the same manner, and therefore, it
will be open for both the parties to prefer appeal agamst the order of the
Forum.

6. In rejoinder submission, Shri Vivek Jain, learned counsel for the
petitioner submits that against an order passed under Section 126, appeal lies
under Section 127 to the statutory appellate authority and as per the
Regulations, there was a specific bar to deal with the matters which are arising
out of certain provisions of certain chapters m.~tioned il the Regulations. In
view of this specific bar, there was an inherent lack of jurisdiction on the part
of the Forum and the Forum has erred in entertaining the matters. Lastly it is
stated that there is a difference between pecuniary jurisdiction and jurisdiction
with regard to subject matter. He submits that in the present case, the Jack of
jurisdiction is with regard to subject matter which amounts to inherent lack of
jurisdiction, and therefore, whether or not such objection is taken, interference
can be made at any stage. He cited certain judgments in this regard.
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7. Ihave heard learned counsel for the parties and perused the record,

8. The first contention of the consumers/respondents is that under the
Regulations the Forum had jurisdiction. Another limb of the argument is that
the case of over-drawl of electricity beyond authorized limit does not fall
within the ambit of Section 126 of the Electricity Act. It is apt to quote the
relevant provisions to deal with this facet. The relevant portion of Section 126
of the Electricity Act, 2003 reads as under:- '

126. Assessment.-(1) If on an inspection of any place or
premises or after inspection of the equipments, gadgets,
machines, devices found connected or used, or after inspection
of records maintained by any person, the assessing officer
comes to the conclusion that such person is indulging in
unauthorised use of electricity, he shall provisionally assess to
the best of his judgment the electricity charges payable by such
person or by any other person benefited by such use.

(5)  Ifthe assessing officer reaches to the conclusion that
unauthorised use of electricity has taken place, the assessment
shall be made for the entire period during which such
unauthorised use of electricity has taken place and if, however,
the period during which such unauthorised use of electricity
has taken place cannot be ascertained, such period shall be
limited to a period of twelve months immediately preceding
the date of inspection.

(6) * The assessment under this section shall be made at a
rate equal to twice the tariff applicable for the relevant category
of services specified in sub-section (5).

Explanation.-For the purpose of this section,-

(a) “assessing officer” means an officer of a State
Government or Board or licensee; as the case may be,
designated as such by the State Government;
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(b) “unauthorised use of electricity” means the usage
of electricity-

(i) by any artificial means; or

(ii) by a means not authorised by the concerned
person or authority or licensee; or

(iii) through a tampered meter; or

(iv) for the purpose other than for which the
usage of electricity was authorised; or

(v) for the premises or areas other than those for
which the supply of electririty was authorised.”

9. Itis not in dispute that against a final order made under Section 126,
an appeal lies to prescribed authority under Section 127 of the Electricity
Act. The first question is whether over-drawl of electricity amounts to
unauthorised use of electricity ? The basic contention of the respondents is
that under Section 126 (6) (b) of the Electricity Act, over-drawl of electricity
is not covered. '

10.  Inthe opinion of this Court, the curtains are finally drawn on this issue
by the Supreme Court in the case reported in (2010) 4 SCC 539 (Punjab
State Electricity Board Vs. Vishwa Caliber Builders Private Limited).
Following this judgment, in its recent judgment reported in (2012) 2 SCC
108 (Executive Engineer, Southern Electricity Supply Company of Orissa
Limited (SOUTHCO) and another Vs. Sri Seetaram Rice Mill) the Apex
Court opined in para 76 as under :-

“76. The consistent view of this Court would support the
proposition that the cases of excess load of consumption would
be squarely covered under Explanation (b) (iv) of Section 126
of the 2003 Act. Once this factor is « ~tablished, then the
assessing officer has to pass the final order of assessment in
terms of Sections 126(3) to 126(6) of the 2003 Act.”

(Emphasis Added)

Thus, it can be safely concluded that cases of excess load of
consumption are squarely covered under Explanation (b)(iv) of Section 126
of the Electricity Act, 2003. Thus, this contention raised by the respondents is

'
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rejected.

11. Coming to the question whether the Forum had jurisdiction, it is
profitable to quote certain definitions from the Regulations. Clause 2.4 (d)
defines complainant as under :-

“(d) “Complainant” means-

(1) a consumer as defined under clause (15) of Section
2 of the Act; or

(ii) an applicant for new connection ; or
(iii) any registered consumer association; or

(iv) any unregistered association of consumers, where
the consumers have similar interest; or

(v) in case of death of a consumer, his legal heirs or
representatives;

Clause 2.4 (e) defines complaint as under :-

“(e) “Complaint” means any representation in writing
made by a complainant regarding redressal of
Grievance.”

Clause 2.4 (m) which deals with grievance reads as under :-

(m) “Grievance” shall mean a dissatisfaction of the
Consumer arising out of the failure of the Licensee to
register or redress a Complaint and shall include any
dispute between the Consumer and the Licensee with
regard to any Complaint or with regard to any action
taken by the Licensee in relation to or pursuant to a
complaint filed by the affected person. However, the
matters falling within the purview of any of the following
provisions of the Act will not form a grievance under
these Regulations:

(i) Unauthorised use of electricity as provided under
Section 126 of the Act;

(ii) Offences and penalties as provided under Sections
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- 13510 139 of the Act;

(iii) Compensation related to accident in the distribution,
supply or use of electricity as provided under Section
1‘61 of the Act; and

(iv) Recovery of arrears where the bill amount is not
" disputed.” :

12. A bare perusal of the aforesaid definitions, makes it crystal clear that
Regulation making authority has consciously dealt with the aspect as to who
can prefer a complaint. A minute reading of the aforesaid definitions will show
that such grievance or complaint can be made by the consumer. Clause 2.4
(e) and (m) i.e. complaint and grievance are interwoven. By way of complaint,
the complainant has to seek redressal of his grievance and grievance is a
written note of dissatisfaction of the consumer arising out of the failure of the
Licensee, and therefore, the Regulations are worded in a manner which specifies
that the complaint can be preferred only by an aggrieved consumer. Thus, the
judgment cited by Shri A.V.Bhardwaj in Dr. Hari Singh Gaur
Vishwavidyalaya Sagar (supra) has no role to play in the context regulations
are drafted, it cannot be compared with the M. P Uchcha Nyayalaya (Khand
Nyaypeeth Ko Appeal) Adhiniyam, 2005. This is settled principle of
interpretation of statute that a statute has to be interpreted in the context it is
drafted alongwith the aim and object. The aforesaid consideration would show
that the said judgment in Dr: Hari Singh Gaur Vishwavidyalaya Sagar (supra)
is of no assistance to the respondents.

13.  The definition of “grievance™ excludes the problems arising out of
unauthorised use of electricity under Section 126 of the Electricity Act and

' certain other provisions. Thus, consciously the Regulation making authority -
has excluded the complaint arising out of action under Section 126 of the
Electricity Act. The document, Annexure P/6, dated 30.4.2011 on its forehead
clearly shows that the action was taken under Section 126/135 of the Act.
Both the grievances arising out of those sections are excluded from the purview
of “grievance”. Thus, consciously a separate Forum was prescribed for
problems arising out of Sections 126 and 135 etc.

14.  Clause 3.35 deals with the jurisdiction of the Forum which reads as
under :-

“3.35 Notwithstanding the above, the Forum shall not entertain
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any representation in regard to the matters which are subject
matters of existing or proposed proceedings before the
Commission or before any other authority including those under
part X, XI, XII, XIV, XV and XVI of the Act.”

The said provision makes it crystal clear that no proceedings can be
entertained by the Forum which are arising out of certain Chapters of the
Electricity Act. It includes Chapter X1I and XIV of the Electricity Act. Thus,
there is a specific bar about jurisdiction of the Forum with regard to
proceedings/orders arising out of certain sections and Chapters of Electricity
Act. The question of Jack of jurisdiction is to be examined in the context of the
aforesaid provisions of the Regulations.

15.  Shri B.D.Jain, learned counse] for the respondent in one matter, stated
that it was not established before the Forum that a case under Section 126 of
the Electricity Act is made out. In absence thereof, the Forum cannot be
precluded to examine the action of the Company. In my opinion, this argument
is misconceived and lacks substance. The order Annexure P/6 clearly shows
that action was initiated under Section 126/135 of the Electricity Act. The
definition of “complaint” read with “grievance” clearly shows that such action
is beyond the judicial review of the Forum under the Regulations. Clause 3.35
makes it clear like noon day that there is a specif bar regarding certain subject
matters for the Forum and with regard to certain Chapters which includes
Chapter XII and XIV. Thus, in the opinion of this Court, the Forum had no
Jurisdiction even to examine whether a clinching case under Section 126 of
the Electricity Act is made out. Undoubtedly, Sections 126/135 fall within
those chapters which are beyond the jurisdiction of the Forum.

16.  The second question is related to those cases where admittedly the
Company had not taken objection regarding maintainability of the matter before
the Forum. The question is whether in those cases the judicial review of this
Court is barred or whether the Forum's order can be upheld ?

17.  The Apex Court way back in A.LR. 1956 SC 340 (Kiran Singh and
others v. Chaman Paswan and others) opined in para 6 as under :-

“6. The answer to these contentions must depend on what the
position in law is when a court entertains a suit or an appeal
over which it has no jurisdiction, and what the effect of Section
1 of the Suits Valuation Act is on that position. It is a

~
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fundamental principle well established that a decree passed
by a court without jurisdiction is anullity, and that its invalidity
could be set up whenever and wherever it is sought to be

enforced or relied upon. even at the stage of execution and
even in collateral proceedings. A defect of jurisdiction, whether

it is pecuniary or territorial, or whether it is in respect of the
subject-matter of the action, strikes at the very authority of
the court to pass any decree, and such a defect cannot be
cured even by consent of parties. If the question now under
consideration fell to be determined only on the application of
general principles governing the matter, there can be no doubt
that the District Court of Monghyr was coram non judice, and
that its judgment and decree would be nullities. The question
is what is the effect of Section 11 of the Suits Valuation Act on
this position.”

18.  Abare perusal of this para shows that where the Court/Forum lacks
inherent jurisdiction, this objection can be taken at any stage and even at the
stage of execution. The ratio of this case is consistently followed by Supreme
Court in catena of judgments. In (2005) 7 SCC 791 (Harshad Chiman Lal
Modi v. DLF Universal Ltd. And Another), the Apex Court has followed
this view. In (2007) 2 SCC 355 (Hasham Abbas Sayyad Vs. Usman Abbas
Sayyad and others), the Apex Court held as under:-

22. The core question is as to whether an order passed by a

person lacking inherent jurisdiction would be a nullity. It will
be so. The principles of estoppel, waiver and acquiescence or
even res judicata which are procedural.in nature would have
no application in a case where an order has been passed by
‘the Tribunal/court which has no authority in that behalf. Any
order passed by a court without jurisdiction would be coram
non judice, being a nullity, the same ordinarily should not be
given effect to. [See Chief Justice of A.P. v. L.V.A. Dixitulu
and MD, Army Welfare Housing Organisation v. Sumangal
Services (P) Ltd.]

23. . Thisaspect of the matter has recently been considered
by this Court in Harshad Chiman Lal Modiv. DLF Universal
Ltd. in the following terms: (SCC pp. 803-04, para 30)
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“30. We are unable to uphoid the contention. The
jurisdiction of a court may be classified into several
categories. The important categories are (i) territorial
or local jurisdiction; (ii) pecuniary jurisdiction; and (iii)
jurisdiction over the subject-matter. So far as territorial
and pecuniary jurisdictions are concerned, objection
to such jurisdiction has to be taken at the earliest
possible opportunity and in any case at or before
settlement of issues. The Jaw is well settled on the point
that if such objection is not taken at the earliest, it
cannot be allowed to be taken at a subsequent stage.
Jurisdiction as to subject-matter, however. is totally
distinct and stands on a different footing, Where a court
has nojurisdiction over the subject-matter of the suit

by reason of any limitation imposed by statute, charter
‘oI commission, it cannot take up the cause or matter.

An order passed by a court having no jurisdiction isa

nullity.”

(Emphasis Added)

19.  In (2007) 6 SCC 382 (S.Sethuraman v. R. Venkataraman and
Others) Apex Court held that jurisdiction of this Court under Article 226 with
regard to maintainability of a matter is not hit by estoppel. Despite having
submitted to the jurisdiction of appellate Authority, the petitioner could not be
estopped from challenging the final order of the appellate authority through a
writ petition. The Division Bench of this Court in the case reported in 2012(2)
M.P.H.T. 249 (DB) (Qutubuddin v. M. P.Pashchim Kshetra Vidyut Vitran
Co. Ltd. and others) opined as under in para 7:-

“The definition of the term 'Grievance' specifically excludes
from its ambit the 'unauthorised use of electricity', as provided
under Section 126 of the Act. In the circumstances, the Forum
established under Section 42(5) of the Act is not empowered
to deal with the grievances of the consumers regarding
'unauthorised use of electricity', as provided under Section 126
of the Act.”

20.  Inthelight of the aforesaid judgments read with the provisions of the
Reguiations makes it clear that there was a specific method by which a

-
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complaint can be preferred for a grievance. Ifa problem does not fall within
the ambit of 'complaint' and 'grievance' under the Regulations, the Forum
cannot entertain it. Bar created under clause 3.35 also excludes jurisdiction
of the Forum in certain matters. Thus, if beyond the aforesaid, the Forum had’
exceeded jurisdiction and entertained the matters, in my opinion, it is a case
of inherent lack of jurisdiction on the part of the Tribunal, and therefore,
whether or not such objection is taken before the Forum, this Court can
interfere in the matter. This objection arising out of cases where the Company
has not taken the objection before the Forum is also of no assistance to the
respondents.

21.  Onthe basis of aforesaid analysis, it is clear that the Forum had no
jurisdiction to entertain and deal with the matters. Hence, the orders of the
Forum impugned herein are without authority of law and cannot be upheld.
Consequently, the orders impugned (Annexure P/1) are set aside. The Writ -
Petitions are allowed. However, it is made clear that the consumers/
respondents herein are at liberty to avail the remedy available to them under
the law and if they avail the said remedy promptly, time consumed before the
Forum and this Court will not be taken into account for the purpose of counting
limitation under any law. No costs.

Petition allowed.

L.L.R. [2013] M.P.,1037

" WRIT PETITION

Before Mr. Krishn Kumar Lahoti, Acting Chief Justice &
' ‘ Mr. Justice M.A. Siddiqui

W.P. No. 13832/2005 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 February, 2013

WESTERN COALFIELDLTD. . . ...Petitioner ,
Vs. ' )
ADDL. COMMISSIONER, COMMERCIAL & ors. ...Respondents

Entry Tax Act, M.P. .(52 of 1976), Section 4(1), Entry Tax Rules,
(M.P), 1976, Rule 4(1 )(iii) - Concessional Rate - Coal - Petitioner
supplied coal to M.P.E.B. for the use as raw material - Declaration in

that regard was accepted and concessional rate of 1% was applied -
However, the assessment was reopened on the orders of the Divisional
Commissioner - Held - Concessional rate on coal was on declaration

when entry was effected.in local area by registered dealer for use of -



1038 Western Coal Field Ltd. Vs. Addl. Comm, Commercial(DB) ~ LL.R. [2013]M.P.

raw material in manufacture of other goods - Assessing officer had
rightly accepted the declaration - Order reopening the assessment

quashed, . (Para7)

3 7Y FETT, 53 (1976 @7 52). EI%T 4(1), 7T FY frym, (7,
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H.S, Shrivastava, for the petitioner.
Rahul Jain, Dy. A.G. for the respondents.

ORDER

The Order of the court was  delivered by :
K.K.Lanori, J:- This petition is directed against the order Annexure
P-8, dated 4.2.2005, by which the respondents have imposed entry tax
@ 2.5% on the petitioner for sale of the goods namely coal (not for
cooking purposes). The aforesaid goods was sold to M.P. Electricity
Board, Sarni to be used for the production of electricity, upon filing a
declaration in Form I Rule 4(1)(iii) of the Rule namely Entry Tax Rules,
1976.

2. The contention of the petitioner is that as per the notification Annexure

P-9, which was made effective from 1.5.1 997, the petitioner was liable to
make payment of entry tax at the rate of 1% on the coal as the entry was
effected into local areas by the registered dealer for use as raw material in the
manufacture of other goods and the due declaration was filed by the Board in
this regard,

It is also submitted that earlier vide Annexure P-1 dated 12.4.2001 ,
the declaration was accepted and the petitioner was imposed entry tax at the
rate of 1% on the coal but the matter was wrongly reopened by the respondents
and higher rate of tax was imposed for which petitioner was not liable.

3. Shri Rahul Jain, Dy.A.G. supported the order and submitted that as
per the rules the entry tax was payable @2.5% and rightly the earlierorder

i
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was recalled and subsequent order was passed.

4. We have perused the record and find that vide order Annexure
P-1 dated 12.4.2001, the Assessing Officer had accepted the declaration
furnished by the petitioner under Rule 4(1) (iii) of M.P. Entry Tax Rules,
1976. Though the coal sold to M.P. Electricity Board, was purchased for
the use as raw material and relying on the declaration, concessional rate
of 1% was applied on the petitioner. It appears that thereafter vide
Annexure P-2 dated 17.5.2004 the Divisional Commissioner, Commercial

- tax, Chhindwara directed the Assessing Officer to reassess the petltloner

The Divisional Commissioner had also directed the Assessing Officer that
under Section 4 and Rule 4 under the Entry Tax Act there was no provision
for sale of goods namely coal at the rate of 1% under declaration, the
declaration was wrongly accepted, whereas it appears that because of
the aforesaid letter matter was reopened and Assessing Officer vide order
P-6 reassessed the entry tax and directed payment of entry tax at the
rate of 2.5%.

5. To appreciate the rival contentions of the parties it would be
appropriate if the relevant provisions are referred. Section 4(1) of the Entry
Tax Act, 1976 reads thus: -

"The entry tax payable by a dealer under this Act, shali
be charged on his taxable quantum relating to goods specified
in Schedule-II and Schedule-III at thc rates mentioned inthe | -
said Schedules: ’

Provided that notwithstanding anything contained in this -
sub section and subject to such conditions and restnctlons as :
may be prescribed.” -

(i) the entry tax payable in respect of goods
specified in Schedule -II other than iron and steel as
specified in Serial No.3 of the said Schedule which are
consumed or used as raw material for the manufacture of -
other goods shall be one per cent, if the rate of tax spemﬁed
in Schedule -1l exceeds one per cent;

(i) Where the dealer contravenes any:of the
conditions or restrictions or has not consumed or used the
goods as raw material for the manufacture of other goods
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in any local area in Madhya Pradesh. he shall be liable to
pay as entry tax amount equal to the difference between
the entry tax payable at the full rate as mentioned in
Schedule-I1, and concessional rate of such tax mentioned
in clause (i) above:

Provided further that where the goods specified in
Schedule -1, other than iron and-steel as specified in Serial
No.3 of the said Schedule which have already suffered entry
tax at a rate exceeding one percentum or purchased by a
registered dealer from another such dealer for consurmption
or use by him as raw material for the manufacture of other
goods, he (the purchasing registered dealer) shall, subject
to such restrictions and conditions as may be prescribed,
be entitled to a set off or refund, as the case may be, of an
amount equal to the difference between the amount of tax
computed at the full rate of tax mentioned in Schedule -II
and the amount of tax at one per cent, on such proportion
of the price at which he had purchased the goods, as may
be prescribed."

The aforesaid provisions specifically provides that entry tax
payable in respect of goods specified in Schedule-II which are consumed
or used as raw material in the manufacture of other goods shall be 1%., if
the rate of tax specified in Schedule Il exceeds 1%. Schedule -II of the
Entry Tax Act provides 2% of tax on coal including coke in all its forms
but because of the aforesaid provision, coal was chargeable @1%, if it
was to be consumed as raw material in the manufacture of other goods.
Rule 4(1) (i) and (iii) of the Entry Tax Rules 1976 provides thus:

(i)"The entry tax at the concessional rate shall be charged
only if the entry goods specified in Schedule II or Schedule
III, as the case may be, is effected by a dealer registered
under the (Vanijyik Kar Adhiniyam)

(iii) entry tax at the concessional rate shall be charged by
the selling registered dealer who sells good specified in the
Schedule II to another. registered dealer for use as raw
material in the certificate of registration under the (Vanijyik
Kar Adhiniyam) of purchasing registered dealer and
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produce at the time of assessment a true declaration in
Form I duly filled in and signed by the transaction of sale if
the total sale price covered by the declaration does not
exceed [rupees ten thousand.]

The aforesaid provisions specifically provides that entry tax on the
concessional rates shall be charged only if the entry of goods specified in
Schedule -11 is effected by the registered dealer. Sub Section (iii) provides
that if the goods specified in Schedule-Il is sold to another registered dealer
as raw material, the declaration in Form I is required to be furnished by the
registered dealer. In this case it is not in dispute that on furnishing such
declaration, concessional rate of 1% was made applicable on the petitioner
in respect of entry tax. Notification has also been issued by the State
Government on 4.5.1999 which reads thus:

In exercise of the power conferred by Section 10
of the Madhya Pradesh Sthaniya Kshetra Me Mal Ke
Pravesh Par Kar Adhiniyam, 1976 (No.52 of 1976), the
State Government hereby exempts the class of goods
specified in column (2) of the Schedule below from payment
of entry tax under the said Adhiniyam to the extent
specified in column (3) subject to the restrictions and
conditions specified in column (4) of the said Schedule for
the period from 1St May, 1997 to 30th September, 1997.
This exemption shall not affect the tax liability created by
any notification issued under Section 4-A of the said

Adhiniyam:
SCHEDULES & NOTIFICATION (VOL-II)
S.No|Class of goods | Extentof Restrictions and Conditions
exemption subject to which exemption is
granted.
1 2 3 4
8 |Coal excluding Partly so as When the entry is effected into a

cooking coal. to reduce the | local area by a registered dealer

rate, '

6. This notification also provides that the concessional rate of 1% was
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applicable for the goods excluding the cooking coal when entry was affected
into local areas by registered dealers for use of raw material in the manufacture
of other goods. This notification was made effective by another notification
dated 5.7.1999 which reads thus:-

. Inexercise of the i)ower conferred by Section 10 of
the Madhya Pradesh Sthaniya Kshetra Me Mal Ke Pravesh
Par Kar Adhiniyam, 1976 (No.52 of 1976), the State
Government hereby makes the following amendment in this
department Notification No.A-3-80-98-CT-V-(49) dated 4th

May, 1999 namely:-
AMENDMENT
1 2 3 ‘ 4
8 |Coal excluding Partly so as When the entry s effected info a
cooking coal. to reduce the | Iocal arca by aregistered dealer
rate tax to 1 for use as raw material in the
percent manufacture of other goods.
7. On the perusal of the aforesaid, it is apparent that from

1.5.1997, concessional rate on coal (excluding coal for cooking
purpose), when entry was effected in local area by registered dealer
for use of raw material in manufacture of other goods, was 1% and
accordingly on the basis of the declaration submitted by M.P. Electricity
Board, which was filed by the petitioner before the Assessing Officer,
Assessing Officer vide order Annexure P-1 had rightly directed
payment of entry tax @ 1% on the petitioner. Respondents wrongly
reopened the matter, misconstruing the provisions, while by an earlier
order dated 12.4.2001 correct rate was made applicable and petitioner
“was rightly assessed. :

8. In view of the aforesaid submission, order Annexure P-8 in so far as it
_ relates to imposition 0f 2.5% entry tax on the petitioner in respect of the coal
-sold to the M.P. Electricity Board is hereby quashed and earlier order dated
12.4.2001 in that regard is maintained. Considering the facts of the case there
shall be no order as to costs.

Order accordingly.
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I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1043
_ WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Rajendra Menon :
W.P. No. 5045/1998 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 March, 2013

PRAMOD SINGH . ... Petitioner
Vs.

THE SECRETARY, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ors....Respondents-

A. Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Section 48 - Actual
Possession - Withdrawal from ac¢quisition - Possession of 43.22 acres
of land was taken on 31.08.1967 - No possession of 1.22 acres of land
was taken on the same day - Possession certificate in respect of 1.22

acres of land was prepared on next day in absence of witnesses nor _ -

the possession was handed over to B.D.A. - State has also denied the
possession certificate in respect of 1.22 acres of land - Even as per
award, area measuring 1.22 acres of land was not included - No
compensation was paid - Buildings existing on the said land are still in
existence and petrol pump is also functioning - As possession of 1.22
acres of land was never taken, therefore, the State was within its right
to release the said land from acquisition. ' (Parasl6 to 20)

z T STolT ARIITT (1894 BT 1), SINT 48 — TAAT Heodl
— &7 @ FITE) — 43.22 TP A ST Dol 314.08.1967 BT [T TAT — 1.
22 THe AN T 9 fi7 weow - for@m TN — 1.22 THS AW F WA
¥ guror o aret faw wfert v aqeRefy F dar fear man st W @
LAY, P Heoll WU AT — 1.22 (B qM & WL F wSq A A Feaw
U7 UF B IHFN fHAT — UET 96 {5 A B FIUR 1.22 (BS TG B
Afy & wuifase T fur 1 — S afrew sar 9 fear T - Se|
ﬁﬁwﬁmﬁmaﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁ'ﬁaﬁxﬂgTaﬁqtﬁaﬂﬂﬁ%—
{%1.2zmﬂﬁmw-mqﬁmwsm,wﬂﬁaﬁmﬁa
q qaq DT U B ARHFR A o) '

B. Land Acquisition Act (1 of 1894), Section 48 - Actual
Possession or Symbolic Possession - Actual possession should be taken
and mere symbolic possession is not enough. (Paras 25 to 27)

& qfr g7 I (1894 BT 1), ST 48 — TEAAT ool
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Cases referred : ‘

AlIR 1966 SC 3377, (1996) 7 SCC 269, (2005) 6 SCC 745, (2011)
5 SCC 394, (2007) 8 SCC 705, AIR 1983 Punjab and Haryana 147, AIR
1975 SC 1767, AIR 1981 Gujarat 107, (2000) 9 SCC 376, AIR 1987 SC
2421, AIR 1983 SC 1303, (1979) 2 SCC 492.

Anil Khare with Ms. Namrata Kesharwani, for the petitioner.
Samdarshi Tiwari, G.A. for the respondents No. 1 & 2.
R.N. Singh with drpan Pawar, for the respondents No. 5 to 9.

ORDER

RAJENDRA MENON, J.: Even though in this writ petition challenge is
made to four orders namely : Annexures P/3, P/4, P/5 and P/14, but during
the course of hearing, learned counsel for the petitioner submitted that challenge
to order-dated 13.2.1996 — Annexure P/4, in the matter of release of land
under the Urban Land Ceiling Act; and, the order-dated 3.8.1998 — Annexure
P/14, passed in the revision are not pressed and they are being withdrawn.

That being so, in this petition for the present, challenge is only made to
order-dated 29.12.1995 — Annexure P/3, passed by respondent No.1,
whereby land measuring 1.22 Acres situated in Survey No.1519/2 is released
from acquisition in accordance to the provisions of Section 48 of the Land
Acquisition Act, 1894 and challenge is also made to an order-dated 17.7.1996
— Annexure P/5, passed by respondent No.2, whereby sanction for
construction of a commercial complex has been granted under section 30 of
the MP Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973.

2- Brief facts, necessary for disposal of this writ petition, are that petitioner
claims to be a resident of Bhopal and engaged in the business of establishing
Hotels and managing them. It is stated that respondent No.2 —the Director of
‘Town and Country Planning, formulated a Zoning Plan for Bhopal, which was
known as MP Nagar, Zone II, and the petitioner on the basis of the said plan
purchased a plot bearing No.256, which was allotted to him by the Bhopal
Development Authority. He is said to have constructed a Hotel on the plot
which is known as ‘Hotel Ganpati’. It is said that this Hotel is constructed in
Plot No.256 and is in front of the main road. The petitioner is said to hdave
purchased the plot and constructed the hotel on being satisfied with regard to
necessary approach road and other infrastructural facilities being available. It

is further stated that a Notification was issued on 7.1.1960 by the State

“a
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Government — Annexure P/1 under section 6 of the Land Acquisition Act,
1894 for the purpose of acquiring certain land for development of Bhopal.
Even though various lands are notified for acquisition in the Notification, for
the purpose of the present petition, the land bearing Survey No. 1519/1 area
34.72 acres and land bearing Survey No.1519/2 area 8.50 acres, are only
relevant. The said land belongs to respondent Nos. 5 to 11. The land was
acquired and vide Annexure P/2, on 31.8.1967, possession of the land with
regard to both these survey numbers, total area 43.22 acres, was taken over
by the Government through the Land Acquisition Officer, Bhopal and it was
transferred to the Bhopal Improvement Trust. However, while taking over
possession of this land as per this possession certificate — Annexure P/2, certain
area was left out, which is indicated in the certificate as a petrol pump, a
store, cattle shed, residential building. Thicareai.e.... 1.22 acres, is situated
in Survey No.1519/2. The dispute and controversy in this writ petition is with
regard to this area measuring 1.22 acres, of which possession is not shown
to be taken vide Annexure P/2. Be that as it may, after the possession and
acquisition proceedings were held, it is said that exercising the powers available
under section 48(1) of the Land Acquisition Act, an order was passed by the
State Government vide Annexure P/3, on 29.12.1994, whereby this land
measuring 1.22 acres and consisting of a petrol pump situated in 0.2 acres;
two sheds situated in 0.05 acres; a residential house situated in 0.06 acres;
and, open land measuring 1.09 acres was denotified and released from
acquisition. It was held that possession of this area has not been taken over
and, therefore, the denotification was issued and there is withdrawal from
acquisition of this area and one of the conditions imposed for denotification

. was that certain area, which is required for construction of a 62° wide road,

shall not be released. It is stated that the respondents 5 to 11 have agreed for
this.

3- After release of this area, it is said that respondents 5 to 11 prepared
a scheme for construction of a commercial complex and submitted their plan/
map, in accordance to the provisions of secticn 30 of the MP Nagar Tatha
Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973, their map has been sanctioned vide Annexure
P/5 dated 17.7.1996. It is averred by the petitioner that for constructing the
commercial complex, respondents 5 to 11 started digging the road, as a result
the 12 meter road, which was existing in front of the petitioner’s hotel is being
reduced to a 8 meter road and, therefore, this writ petition is filed challenging
the denotification — Annexure P/3, the permission granted for construction—
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Annexure P/5 and a direction is sought to respondents 1 to 5 either to restore
the width of the road to 12 meters or to make arrangement for appropriate
approach to the petitioner.

4- Shri Anil Khare, learned Senior Advocate, ably assisted by Ms.
Namrata Kesharwani, took me through the documents and other material
available on record, invited my attention to a document filed during the
pendency of the writ petition alongwith I.A. No. 1910- W/2003, and submitted
that vide Annexure P/26, which is filed alongwith this application, possession
of the petrol pump, store, cattle shed and residential area, which forms 1.22
acres of land denotified, was taken over on 1.9.1967 by the Land Acquisition
Officer, Bhopal and as the possession of this area is taken over immediately
after acquisition on 1.9.1967, the first and foremost argument is that the land
of which possession has been taken cannot be denotified by exercising the
powers conferred under section 48(1) of the Land Acquisition Act.

5- Inviting my attention to the first possession certificate — Annexure P/2
dated 31.8.1967; the second possession certificate — Annexure P/26, as
indicated hereinabove, issued on the next day i.e... 1.9.1967 and further
referring to certain communications available on record, particularly, a letter
dated 8.3.1982 — Annexure P/19 issued by the Chairman, Bhopal Vikas
Pradhikaran and a document ~ Annexure P/20 — areply, which was given in
the floor of the Vidhan Sabha, learned Senior Advocate tried to emphasize
that these documents go to show that possession of the land was taken over
and once possession is taken over, it is argued that the denotification under
section 48 is not permissible. It was emphasized by Shri Anil Khare, learned
Senior Advocate, and Ms. Namrata Kesharwani, that the documents —
Annexures P/2 and P/26, do establish that possession was taken over and the
contention of the respondents that possession is not taken over is refuted by
them mainly by referring to the documents. It was submitted by them that
there is no specific mode of taking over of possession laid down under the
Land Acquisition Act and, therefore, if possession is taken over by making of
a Panchnama, even without the presence of the land owners, the possession is
deemed to have been taken over and once the possession is taken over, no
further denotification under section 48 of the Land Acquisition Act is
permissible.

6- It is argued by learned counsel for the petitioner on the basis of certain
judgments relied upon by them, that it is a settled principle that one of the
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)



-~y

LL.R.[2013]M.P. P. Singh Vs. The Secy. Dept. of Housing 1047

accepted mode of taking possession of an acquired land is by recording a
memorandum or Panchnama by the Land Acquisition Officer in the presence
of witnesses, it would be impossible always to take physical possession of
the acquired land and, therefore, taking over of possession by Panchnama is
the appropriate mode. Accordingly, contending that the documents and material
available on record in this case does show that the possession has been taken
over and placing reliance on the following four judgments, it was argued that
once possession is taken over, as is apparent in the present case, the action
for denotification under section 48(1) is not permissible. The judgments relied
upon by learned counsel for the petitioner are: AIR 1966 SC 3377; State of
TN and another Vs. Mahalakshmi Ammal and others, 1996(7) SCC 269;
Mandir Shree Sita Ramji @ Shree Sita Ram Bhandar Vs. Land Acquisition
Collector and others, 2005(6) SCC 745 and, Banda Development
Authority, Banda Vs. Moti Lal Agarwal and others, 2011 (5) SCC 39%4.

7- Thereafter, with regard to permitting the respondents to make
construction of the commercial complex and granting them liberty to do so by
sanction accorded under section 30, it is argued that a Zoning Plan for the
area'in question has been issued, maps have been filed to show that in the
Zoning Plan, the area is reserved for certain activities like green belt, widening
of road etc, and as the sanction accorded for construction by the respondents
is contrary to the Zoning Plan, the same is unsustainable. It is submitted that
the sanction for construction of commercial complex to the respondents is
contrary to the requirement of section 53, of the MP Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh
Adhiniyam, 1973, which prohibits and restricts land use and development
once a scheme and Zoning Plan is approved and contending that contrary to
the statutory provisions, the sanction is accorded, it is argued that issuance of
sanction vide Annexure P/5 under section 30 is unsustainable. In support
thereof reliance is placed on the case reported in Chairman, Indore Vikas
Pradhikaran Vs. Pure Industrial Coke & Chemicals Limited and others,

2007 (8) SCC 705. -

8- Shri Samdarshi Tiwari, learned Governme. * Advocate appearing for
the State, has produced the entire original record pertaining to the acquisition
process and taking over possession and by taking me through the award, it is
argued by him that in paragraph 28 of the award, it is specifically mentioned
that no compensation has been assessed orpaid for the land in questioni.e...
with regard to the area where petrol pump, store, cattle shed, residential
building is situated. It is submitted by learned counsel for the State Government
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that for this area measuring 1.22 acres no compensation is assessed. Leamned
counsel thereafter referred to certain reports of the Revenue Inspector and
the Collector to submit that possession of this area measuring 1.22 acres is
not taken over and as possession is,not taken over the action taken under-
section 48(1) is proper. As far as the possession certificate — Annexure P/26
dated 1.9.1967 is concerned, Shri Samdarshi Tiwari refers to the note-sheet
available, prepared by Collector, Bhopal to say that the Collector has
categorically stated that no such document of taking over possession is available
on record and the finding recorded is that even on the date when the note-
sheet is prepared, just before according permission for denotification on
29.12.1994, it is found that the possession is with the Jand owners. Accordingly,
Shri Samdarshi Tiwari submits that possession has not been taken over and,
therefore, the action taken is proper.

9- As far as sanction of the map and the action taken for grarting
permission under section 30 of the MP Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam,
1973 — Annexure P/5 is concerned, Shri Samdarshi Tiwari submits that no
Zoning Plan as contended is sanctioned, petitioner has not filed any such Zoning
Plan with regard to the area in question and merely by referring to a lay-out
map filed as Annexure, it cannot be said that the indication shown in this lay-
out map is the Zoning Plan. It is argued that the lay-out plan was only a
proposal, it was not converted into any statutory scheme or Zoning Plan after
following the requirement, statutory in nature, as contemplated under the MP
Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973 and, therefore, in the absence of
any statutory Zoning Plan, there isno illegality in according sanction under
section 30, of the Act of 1973,

10-  Shri R.N. Singh, learned Senior Advocate appearing for respondent
Nos. 5 to 9, apart from adopting the submissions already made by Shri
Samdarshi Tiwari, took me through the documents available on record —
Annexure P/14, Annexure P/2 and Annexure P/26, and vehemently argued
that possession has not been taken over. Learned Senior Advocate invited
my attention to the report submitted by the Collector dated 23.3.1 990, filed
alongwith I.A. No. 5999/2010. The report of the Revenue Inspector —
Annexure B dated 19.7.1990 also filed alongwith I.A. No. 599/2010 ; the
documents Annexure P/19 and P/20, relied upon by Shri Anil Khare, and
tried to demonstrate before this Court that the contentions of taking over of
possession is not correct, the document itself did not establish taking over
of possession and as possession has not been taken over, in accordance to
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the requirement of law, and as no compensation is paid, learned Senior
Advocate appearing for the respondents argues that the petitioner cannot
have any grievance. That apart, with regard to taking over of possession,
learned Senior Advocate submits that actual physical possession has to be
taken over and even if for a moment it is assumed that Annexure P/26 is the
document evidencing taking over of possession, but as actual physical
possession is not taken and it is only a paper arrangement, the same cannot
be accepted. | '

11-  Itis submitted by learned Senior Advocate for the respondents that
the word “possession’ as used in section 48 of the Land Acquisition Act has a
very narrow meaning and concept, therefore, actual permanent and physical
possession is required to be taken. In support thereof, learned counsel invites
my attention to the judgment of the Punjab and Haryana High Court in the
case of Agya Ram Vs. State of Haryana and others, AIR 1983 PUNJAB
& HARYANA 147; Supreme Court judgment in the case of Balwana
Narayan Bhagde Vs. M.D. Bhagwat, AIR 1975 SC 1767, to say that the
possession as referred to under section 48(1) is actual physical possession
and not symbolic possession. Further reliance in this regard is placed on a
judgment of the Gujarat High Court in the case of Trustees of Bai Smarth
Jain Shvetambar Murtipujak Gyanoddhaya Trust and others Vs. State
of Gujarat and another, AIR 1981 GUJARAT 107,

12-  Thatapart, Shri R.N. Singh raised a preliminary objection with regard
to the locus standing and right of the petitioner to file this writ petition. It was
argued by learned Senior Advocate that petitioner is a stranger to the entire
proceeding for acquisition and as he is a strange to the acquisition proceedings,
he does not have any right to file this writ petition. In support of the aforesaid
contention, learned counsel invites my attention to the judgment rendered in
the case of Coats Viyella India Limited Vs. India Cement Limited and
another, (2000) 9 SCC 376, and argues that when the land belonging to the
respondents are acquired and when it is notified, a person like the petitioner,

who is a stranger, has no right to challenge the action taken under section
48(1).

13-  Asfaras granting sanction under section 30 of the MP Nagar Tatha
Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973 is concerned, it is submitted by Shri R.N.
Singh, learned Senior Advocate, that there is no statutory scheme or Zoning
Plan either filed by the petitioner or shown to be existing and, therefore, in the
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absence of the same, no interference can be made. Apart from relying on the
judgments as indicated hereinabove, learned Senior Advocate also placed
reliance on the following judgments in support of his contentions: The Special
Land Acquisition Officer, Bombay and others Vs. M/s Godrej and Boyce,
AIR 1987 SC 2421 (1); and , State of UP and others Vs. L.L. Johnson and
another, AIR 1983 SC 1303,

14-  Ms. Namrata Kesharwani refuted the contention with regard to locus
standing of the petitioner to file the writ petition and submits that when the
petitioner purchased the plot and constructed the Hotel, he was made to believe
that the Zoning Plan available will be given effect to, but now when it is being
violated, there is breach of the promise made to him, which amounts to
promissory estoppel and, therefore, in the light of the law laid down by the
Supreme Court in the case of Mahindra and Mahindra Limited Vs. Union
of India and another, 1979(2) SCC 492, argued that the petitioner has a
right to challenge the act. As far as issuance of the document — Annexure P/26
with regard to possession is concerned, it is submitted by her that the contention
of Shri Samdarshi Tiwari that no such document is available is wholly incorrect,
because reference to these documents are made in Annexures P/19 and P/20.
She refers to Annexure P/19, a communication made by the Chairman, Bhopal
Vikas Pradhikaran on 3.3.1982, wherein reference is made to this document;
and, certain queries and answers in the floor of the Vidhan Sabha — Annexure
P/20, to refute the contentions of Shri Samdarshi Tiwari to the effect that
possession is not taken over. Accordingly, learned counsel seeks for interference
into the matter,

15- Ihave heard learned counsel for the parties at length and perused the

records perused.

16-  Section 48 of the Land Acquisition Act permits withdrawal from an
acquisition already undertaken but the withdrawal is subject to the condition
that possession of the acquired land has not been taken. In this regard, the
words used in the statute are “withdrawal from the acquisition of any land of
which possession has not been taken”. -

17- - Inthis case admittedly the State Government has passed the impugned
order — Annexure P/3, on 29.12.1994, and by this order there is withdrawal
from acquisition so far as land measuring 1.22 acres situated in Survey
No.1519/2 is concerned. The question, therefore, would be as to whether
possession of this area has been taken over after acquisition. If possession is

L
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taken over, withdrawal is not permissible and, therefore, the moot question
for consideration is as to whether possession of the area in question has been
taken over or not?

18- " After the land has been acquired, it is seen that possession was taken
over, on 31.8.1967, possession certificate in this regard is Annexure P/2 and
this possession certificate shows that on behalf of the Bhopal Improvement
Trust one Shri K.N.S. Iyengar, Trust Engineer, was handed over possession
and the Land Acquisition Officer Shri D.N. Singh took over the possession
and then handed over the possession to the Bhopal Development Trust, the
possession certificate — Annexure P/2 bears the signature of both Shri K.N.S.
Iyengar and Shri D.N. Singh, it is attested by two witnesses and it speaks of
taking over of possession of land bearing 43.22 acres situated in village Bhopal,
Tehsil Huzur bearing Khasra No.1519/1 and 1519/2. However, it is also
indicated in this possession certificate that possession is taken except of petrol
pump, store, cattle shed (situated just near road side) and residential building.
It is, therefore, clear that when initially possession was taken over on
31.8.1967, possession of the area in question measuring 1.22 acres is not
taken.over and according to the petitioner, it is taken over vide Annexure
P/26 on 1.9.1967. This possession certificate is not filed alongwith the writ
petition. It does not form part of the petition nor is it part of the pleadings in
the writ petition. The writ petition was filed on 15.10.1998 and in the averments

. made in the writ petition, there is no mention of this possession certificate

dated 1.9.1967 nor is it stated that posséssioh of this area was taken over by

" this possession certificate. Infact this document is brought on record vide L. A.

No. 1912-W/2003, an application for taking document on record, which is
filed on 6.11.2000 alongwith affidavit of the petitioner. Even though it is shown
to be certified copy issued from the Collectorate, Bhopal there is no averment
made in the writ petition as to how and in what manner this document came
into possession of the petitioner and why it was not filed alongwith the petition.
Be it as it may be, this possession certificate — Annexure P/26 is of the very
next date after possession was taken over on 31.8.1967. It is executed on
1.9.1967 at 11.10 AM and it only says that on behalf of the Government of
Madhya Pradesh Shri D.N. Singh, the Land Acquisition Officer, has taken
possession of the land and he refers to the award which has been passed in
Case No.109/LA/59 to say that he is taking over possession for which the
award has been passed. Surprisingly, this possession is not taken over,in the
presence of the witnesses who were present on the previous day when
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Annexure P/2 was issued nor is the possession handed over by Shri D.N.
Singh to the Bhopal Improvement Trust or its representative as was done on
the previous day. Therefore, the question is as to whether possession was
actually taken over as indicated in the certificate or this certificate is a
manufactured document, which does not exist as canvassed by the respondents.

19-  According to the return filed by the respondents namely —the State
Government, the Bhopal Development Authority and the Director of Town
and Country Planning, no such document is available and no such taking over
of possession is recorded. Even in the original records produced by Shri
Samdarshi Tiwari and in the award itself, it is indicated that the award is passed
with regard to the land acquired, but it is not with regard to the petrol pump,
store, cattle shed and the residential building. It is, therefore, clear that the
award passed does not relate to this area of which possession is said to be _
taken over by this document — Annexure P/26. On the contrary, the
overwhelming note-sheets and other documents available in the original file
prepared in the office of the Collector, Bhopal goes to show that no such
- document of taking over of possession is-available. The note-sheet consists of
the report dated 1.6.1997, spot inspection and various other documents and
it also refers to award passed to say that even in the award this area is not
included. That apart, in the documents available on record — Annexures A and
B, filed alongwith I.A. No. 5999/2010 by the respondents, it is seen that the
Collector Bhopal was directed to conduct an inquiry and in his report submitted
to the Secretary, Government of MP, Revenue Department on 23.3.1990 and
again on 19.7.1990, the report is that in the award passed, this area is not
included, no compensation for this area is paid and the possession is not even
taken over. It is specifically mentioned in this report that a spot inspection has
been done of the area and it is found on such inspection that in this area-a
petrol pump is still in existence, it is functioning; a building is available where
occupants are staying; a shed and a Godown and certain area are available,
which are in the physical possession of the owners. Both these reports —
Annexures Aand B, submitted by the Collector clearly shows that possession
~ is not taken over.

20-  Petitioner tries to refute these findings in the original file and the
documents - Annexures A and B, by relying on Annexures P/19 and P/20.
Apart from the aforesaid, there is nothing in rebuttal produced by the petitioner.
Asfur 5~ Annexure P/19 is concerned, it is a communication made on 3.3.1982
by the Chairman, Bhopal Development Authority, Bhopal to the Additional

'l

"
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Director, Chief Town Planner, Town and Country Planning Department; Bhopal
and the subject of the communication is release of the land in question,
reference is made to a letter dated 3.9.1981 and in paragraph 1 of the letter,
the Chairman says that total 43.22 acres of land, which was acquired from
Shri Sajjad Hussain by the State Government and was transferred to the.
Bhopal Vikas Pradhikaran through the Collector, Bhopal. Thereaftcr he says
asunder -

(13

£ .... except the area covered by the petrol pump, store and
cattle shed (situated just near road side) and residential building
only, vide the possession certificate ehclosed herewith.”

- Thereafter, he says that possession of the property situated above has
been taken over by the Land Acquisition Officer on behalf of the State
Government on 1.9.67, copy of certificate enclosed. Thereafter, he again goes
to say in paragraph 3 that since Pradhikaran has not taken over possession of
these structures, they have been excluded, he has no objection if denotlﬁcatlon
is done and the layout plan approved by the department.

A complete reading of this document goes to show that Chalrman
Bhopal Vikas Pradhikaran refers to taking over of possessxon oftotal 43.22
acres of land and he specifically says that the area consisting of petrol pump,
store, cattle shed, residential building etc is not included in the possession
certificate. Merely because he is referring to copy of a certificate enclosed as
1.9.67, without the enclosure being there and without any other material to
show that this certificate is the same cert1ﬁcate Annexure P/26,1am not
inclined to accept the contention of the petitioner. The communication —
Annexure P/19 relied upon does not show that the possession of the present
arca was given to the Bhopal Vikas Pradhikaran. On the contrary, in paragraph
1 of the said communication, as quoted hereinabove, it specifically says that
possession of this area was not taken and Bhopal Vikas Pradhikaran has no
objection if layout plan for this area is sanctioned.

21-  As faras Annexure P/20 - the question and answer submitted in the =

Vidhan Sabha is concerned, this is a typed document, it does not bear the
signature of anybody, it is not known as to who has issued it, it is neither a
certified nor signed as an authentic true copy or a certified copy, it is only a
typed material in a plain paper without any particulars and this cannot be used

"« for the purpose of holding that possession is taken over. If the overwhelming

evidence and documents available on record, as indicated hereinabove, is
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taken note of, it would be clear that in the case in hand taking over of
possession is not established. On the contrary it is a case where possession of
the area is found to be still with the land owners and, therefore, as the possession
of the area is not taken over, I see no reason to ‘hold that the area cannot be
denotified.

22-  Once such a finding is recorded, itis not necessary now to go into the
question of actual possession, physical possession or the manner of taking
possession as canvassed by Shri Anil Khare, learned Senior Advocate, as on
a close scrutiny of the documents as discussed hereinabove, this Court is
satisfied that possession of the area in question, which has been denotified
vide Annexure P/3 has not been taken over and, therefore, if for the area
possession of which is not taken over is released from acquisition or the
Government withdraws from the acquisition, no error is committed warranting
interference. However, as parties made detailed submission during the course
of hearing with regard to the fact that actual possession is not taken over, I
deem it appropriate to consider this question also as an alternate submission
made by the parties.

23-  The matter can also be considered in the light of the submissions made
by the parties with regard to actual possession being taken over or the effect
of only taking symbolic possession in a matter of- withdrawal from acquisition

under section 48(1). Learned counsel for the petitioner says by relying upon _

various judgments as are indicated hereinabove that possession of the land
can be taken over by any manner even by recording of a Panchnama by the
Land Acquisition Officer and no specific procedure for this is laid down. That
being so, if for a moment it is assumed that Annexure P/26 is the document by
which possession is taken over, the question would be, in the facts and
circumstances of the present case whether it can be said that actual physical
possession in the case has been taken over.

24-  Eventhough in the judgments relied upon by Shri Anil Khare, learned
Senior Advocate, and Ms. Namrata Kesharwani, it is held that possession
can be taken over and for the same no specific procedure or rule is laid down,
but when it comes to considering the question of possession as is contemplated
under section 48 of the Land Acquisition Act, the High Court of Punjab and
Haryana and the High Court of Gujarat have dealt with the matter.

25~  The Punjab and Haryana High Court has dealt with the matter in the
case of 4gya Ram (supra) and has held that the word ‘possession’ as is used

L]



LL.R.[2013]M.P. P. Singh Vs. The Secy. Dept. of Housing 1055 .

in section 48 does not mean only symbolic taking over of possession, but it
means actual taking over of possession. It is held that the word ‘possession’
used in section 48 has a narrower concept and its meaning is ‘permanent
actual physical possession’ of the land. Mere deprivation of use of the land
for a particular purpose by a landowner does not mean that he is dis-possessed.

26-  The Supreme Court has also considered the matter in the case of

. Balwana Narayan Bhagde (supra), and after taking note of the provisions of
sections 16, 17 and 48 of the Land Acquisition Act, it was held that when the
government proposes to take possession of the land acquired under the Land
Acquisition Act, it must take actual possession of the land since an interest in
the land is sought to be acquired by it. The Supreme Court says that there is
no question of taking symbolic possession as understood by various judicial
decisions under the Code of Civil Procedure, nor would possession merely
on paper be enough. It is held by the Supreme Court in the aforesaid case
that what the Land Acquisition Act contemplates as a necessary condition of
vesting of land in the government is the taking of actual possession of the land
and such possession would have to be taken as the nature of land admits of.
The Supreme Court says that there cannot be any hard and fast rule with
regard to the procedure to be followed after taking over possession, but actual
physical possession should be taken and mere symbolic possession is not
enough. o

27-  Iftheaforesaid judgments in the cases, as relied upon and referred to
hereinabove, are applied in the facts and circumstances of the present case, it
would be seen that in this case only a symbolic possession is seen to have
been taken vide the Land Acquisition Officer vide Annexure P/26, because
inspite of the same having been taken over on 1.9.67, the overwhelming
document and reports available on record, do show that the petrol pump is
still functioning, the cattle shed and the store are occupied by the owners
namely the respondents and possession of the area is still with the original -
owners. Ifthat be so, it is a case where even if the document — Annexure P/’
26 1s admitted, it only indicates taking over of symbolic possession, but as
actual physical possession is not taken over as is evident from the documents
available on record and the discussions made hereinabove, it is a case where
this Court has to hold that for the purposg of section 48 in this case, possession
has not been taken over and, therefore, the government can still withdraw
from acquisition.
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28-  As for granting permission to make construction and sanction of the

layout plan for constructing a commercial complex under section 30 of the
MP Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973 is concerned, records indicate
that against the aforesaid, petitioner did not file any appeal, but a revision was
filed under section 32 and this revision has been dismissed vide Annexure P/9
with a slight modification that the sanction accorded is subject to the condition
that a 8 meter wide road is left open. - :

29-  Contention of the petitioner is that this sanction is contrary to the Zoning
Plan and, therefore, it is illegal. However, no Zoning Plan or documents to
show that an approved and duly notified Zoning Plan in accordance to law is
available. Only some maps are filed, which are nothing, but aproposed layout
maps/plans. : -

30- A ZoningPlan is prepared in accordance to the requirement of section
20 of the MP Nagar Tatha Gram Nivesh Adhiniyam, 1973. It is contemplated
in this prov151on that the local authority may on its own motion and after
publicaticn of 4 development plan or thereafter if so required, prepare a Zoning
Plan. The contents of the Zoning Plan has to be as contemplated under section
21, thereafter it is held in section 22 that for the purpose of preparing,
Iﬁublication'approval and bringing into operation a Zoning Plan, the provisions

of section 18 and 19 would apply. Sections 18 and 19 contemplate a detailed

provision for preparation, sanction and publication of a development plan and
these contemplates publication in the Gazette, inviting objections, sanction
etc. The detailed procedure for publication of the draft approved, sanction
and Gazette Notification is contemplated under sections 18 and 19. Nothing
is brought to the notice of this Court to show that in the matter of preparation
of the Zoning Plan, which is said to have been violated in sanctioning the
commercial complex vide Annexure P/5. In the absence of any material or
document available to show that a Zoning Plan as required under the statute
has been published and in force, I am not inclined to interfere into the matter
as statutory violation of a Zoning Plan is not made out. Even existence of a
Zoning Plan is not borne out from the material available on record. -

31- Takmg note of the totality of the circumstances and the material avaﬂable
on record I see no reason to interfere into the matter.

3_2 - Before parting, it may be indicated that Shri Umesh Trivedi, Advocate,
appeared and submitted that he is appearing for certain interveners, who have
filed an application for intervention beilr‘;‘\g I.A. No. 9311/2009. This application

=

[
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is filed on 7.9.2009 i.c... after 11 years of filing of this writ petition. This
application has not been allowed and there is nothing to show as to how and
in what manner the interveners are aggrieved. However, the fact remains that
the interveners are trying to challenging the Notification dated 29.12.1994.
They have slept over the matter for more than 15 years and now their

" intervention at this stage cannot bc penmtted Therefore, the interveners were

not heard.

33-  Accordingly, ﬁndmg no ground to interfere into the matter, the petmon
stands dismissed. No order as to costs.

Petition dismissed,

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1057
. WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
"W.P.No. 7036//2013 (J abalpur) demded onl8 Aprll 2013

URMILA RAJAK (SMT.) Petmoner
Vs, -
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ' . .Respondents

. Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhinipam, M.P. 1993 (1 of
1994), Section 70, Panchayat Samvida Shala Shikshak (Employment
and Conditions of Contract) Rules, M.P. , 2005, Rule 14 - Maximum.
Age -1t is within the powers of State Govt. to prescribe for minimum
and maximum age of recruitment and even te amend the same by issuing
executive order - By circular dated 03.11.2012 maximum age limit is

45 years for direct recruitment - Merely because the petitioner has

passed the eligibility test, no vested right is created in her favour - It
has been rightly held that as the petitioner has crossed the age limit of
45 years, she is not entitled for counseling for appointment to the post

- of Samvida Shala Shikshak GradeI - Petition dismissed. (Para 10,11,12)
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Ankit Agrawal, for the petitioner.
Piyush Dharmadhikari, G A. for the respondent/State.

ORDER

SaNJAY Yapav, J.:- Respondents in view of the issue raised does not
wish to file reply, instead rely upon circular No. ¥ 3-11/12/1/3, dated
03-11-2012.

1. With consent therefore, heard finally.

2. Being aggrieved by the action of respondents in denying the petitioner
" to participate in the counselling for appointment as Samvida Shala Shikshak
Grade I on the ground that she is over age present writ petition has been filed
seeking direction to the respondents to consider her for appointment by
extending relaxation as per Rules.

3. Facts uncontroverted are that petitioner belongs to other Backward
Class, presently working as Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade III under women's
-quota appointed since 16-09-2006 at Primary Schools, Bhita, Janpad
Panchayat Shahpura (Bhitoni). That being a graduate and Post Graduate in
Commerce and having the degree of Bachelor in Education, petitioner applied
and participated in the eligibility test for appointment to the post of Samvida
Shala Shikshak Grade I and secured 186 rank in reserved open category
(There is no material on record to suggest that the merit position obtained by
the petitioner is under'women category). That after having successfully passed
the eligibility test the petitioner was called for verification and scrutiny of the
requisite documents; whereon, she was informed that having crossed 35 years
of age she is not eligible for appointment as Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade I
because of her being overage. Petitioner is 48 years of age. Controversy
 starts here.

4. Contentions on behalf of petitioner are that being an other Backward
Class Category woman candidate and having the experience of seven years
as Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade 11, the petitioner is entitled for the relaxation
of 17 years in age. Circular dated 10-01-2012 which stipulates the procedure
and format for appointment of Samvida Shala Shikshak has been placed

v
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reliance on. The relevant clause relied upon is clause 2 and 3 of the format of
advertisement for appointment of Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade ], stipulating

.

¥y

the educational qualification and age in the following terms :-
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5. Placing reliance on clauses 3(3) and 3(5) of the Circular dated
10-01-2012 it is contended on behalf of the petitioner that being a woman
candidate she is entitled for relaxation in age by 10 years and further having
satisfactorily worked as Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade IiI since 16-09-2006,
petitioner is entitled for further relaxation of seven years (2006 to 2013).
Thus, it is urged that the petitioner is entitled for total 17 years of relaxation,

i.e. till she attains 52 years of age she is entitled for appointment as Samvida
Shala Shikshak Grade I.

6. The respondents on their turn have denied the contentions raised on
behalf of petitioner that the petitioner is entitled for relaxation of 17 years for
appointment of Samvida Shala Shikshak Grade I. It is urged that a maximum
limit of 45 years have been laid down by the circular issued vide No. #3-11/
12/1/3 dated 03-11-2012 whereby a person seeking employment through
direct recruitment with all relaxation would be entitled for appointment upto
45 years and not beyond the same. It is contended that since the petitioner is
48 years she is not entitled for an appointment.

7. Considered rival submissiohs.

8. The Madhya Pradesh Panchayat Samvida Shala Shikshak (Employment
and Conditions of Contract) Rules, 2005 framed by the State Government in
exercise of the powers conferred by sub-section (1) of Section 95 read with
sub-section (2) of Section 70 of the Madhya Pradesh Panchayat Raj Avam
Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam. These Rules govern recruitment and condition of
service of Samvida Shala Shikshak employed by Janpad Panchayat or Zila
Panchayat as the case may be.

-
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9. Sub Rule (4) and (8) (c) of Rule 6 provides for educational
qualification, age and other requirements for appearing in the eligibility
examination of Samvida Shala Shikshak to be as specified in Schedule II.
Note (a) appended with Schedule II lays down following qualification :~

“Note.-(a) Qualification :-

(1)  Anycandidate, who have obtained minimum marks in
the eligibility examination of Samvida Shala Shikshak
as per sub-rule (5) of Rule 6, may apply to Panchayat
for the employment as Samvida Shala Shikshak.

(2)  The relaxation in maximum age limit in respect of
Scheduled Caste, Sch~--:1zd Tribe and Other
Backward Classes or any other class shall be according
to Government rules in force at the time of employment.

(3)  Women candidates shall have ten years relaxation in
maximum age limit in addition to other relaxations.

) " The Instructors/Supervisors of erstwhile Government
Non Formal Education Centres, the Honorary
Teachers appointed for Government schools, Guruji
of Education Guaranty School and part time teacher
of Vocational Education shall be given twelve years
relaxation in maximum age limit (35 years).

(5)  The candidate-who have worked as Samvida Shala
Shikshak and who apply fresh for employment as
Samvida Shala Shikshak, shall be entitled to relaxation
in maximum age limit to the extent of the period, they
have worked previously as Samvida Shala Shikshak.
On this basis, the relaxation shall be to a maximum of
nine years, Provided their contrac* was not terminated
due to their work being found unsatisfactory.

(6) Daily Wage Workers who are either working or
retrenched by Government, shall have relaxation in
maximum age limit equivalent to the period of service
rendered by them subject to the condition that the
candidate shall not have attained 40 years of age.
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(7)  The minimum and maximum age shall be counted with
reference to 1st January of the calendar year in which
/ the vacancies are advertised.

(8)  Theeducational qualification for the employment of
Samvida Shala Shikshak mentioned in column (7D
Remarks of Schedule II, shall be acceptable also for
other corresponding posts of Samvida Shala Shikshak.”

10.  Rule 14 of 2005 Rules provides for that the “power to “prescribe”,
wherever provided under these rules, shall be exercised by the Government
by issuing executive orders.”That sub-section (2) of Section 70 of 1993 Act
provides for that “The qualification, method of recruitment, salaries, leave,
allowance and other condition of service including disciplinary matters of such
officer and servants shall be such as may be prescribed.” Thus it is within the
powers of the State Government to prescribe for minimum and maximum age
of recruitment and even to amend the same by issuing executive order. These
orders are issued by the State Government in the name of Governors as
postulated under Article 166 of the Constitution that all executive action of
the Government of a State shall be expressed to be taken in the name of the
Governor. The State Government in exercise of the powers so conferred issued
circular dated 03-11-2012 fixing the maximum age limit in direct recruitment
in service in the following terms :-
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11. It is thus clear from above circular that for direct recruitment the
maximum age till which a person can get an employment under the State
including appointees in Janpad Panchayats, Zila Panchayats is 45 years. Though
itis contended that the circular which lays down the maximum age limit for
direct appointment issued on 03-11-2012 is not effective from.a retrospective
date, the submissions have been noted to be rejected. Merely because the
circular effect those who have crossed the age limit prescribed for appointment
on the date of issuance of circular, the same cannot be termed as retrospective.
Furthermore that, there is no right to appointment. In view whereof the
petitioner having earlier passed the eli gibility test no vested right is created in
her favour. As such the contention that the circular dated 03-11-2012 has
adversely effected her right for appointment has no substance.
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12.  Thus, there being maximum age limit prescribed for direct recruitment,
the petitioner having crossed the age limit of 45 years, has rightly been held
not entitled for counselling for appointment to the post of Samvida Shala
Shikshak Grade L. -

13.  Inview whereof petition fails and is dismissed. No costs.

Petiton dismissed.

L.LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1065
- WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra
W.P. No. 21711/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 April, 2013

BABULAL ... Petitioner
Vs. -
TARACHAND & anr. ...Respondents

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 18 Rule 4(1) - Examination
of witnesses on commission - Commissioner was appointed for examination
of witnesses - As the Petitioner had failed to keep the witnesses present
before the Commissioner, his right to lead evidence was closed - Order of
Trial Court was set aside by High Court by giving last opportunity to keep
his witnesses present on payment of cost - Petitioner again failed to keep
the witnesses present before the Commissioner therefore his right to lead
further evidence was closed - Held - Order 18 Rule 4(1) was introduced
with a view to reducing consumption of judicial hours in the process of .
recording of oral evidence - However, in cases of serious disputes, the
Court, as far as possible, may prefer to itself record the cross-examination
of material witnesses and the prayer for recording evidence by
Commissioner may be declined by Court - Order appointing Commissioner
is also liable to be set aside as well as the order closing the right to lead
evidence is also set aside - Trial Court directed to record itself the cross
examination and re-examination of witnesses - Petition allowed. .

' (Paras-3,4,6 and 8)
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e U S &7 aftreR wArw fRar - e ST §RT 9, @y
BT HAAE HA W AT WA B ST @ o1 Afer aaww 29 gy
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ferameoT =TaTe W AR AT fraT - A, SRR $ wae weherr
® wuRerd @ A ¢ fava wr, 1ufay v afiRew @ b o @0
FfereR garw fFar T — afifafRa — smder 18 Prm 4(1) =t 3w gfe
¥ q¥: wenfia faar mar on R wifes wier afifafae fad @t oY gfsar
A =i W STAT g o we — g TR faret @ gween F
AT o8] 9@ 999 8 wWd aifeas ariery &1 gfir whaor affaleg
- & B wrafiear @ gwar @ it ofem g wiew afifafeg Y
P U B AT I Y GHAT § — SHER @ Pl o1 et
Furst f5d o ATy i @iy & WiE 0w w9 @1 Ao 9ard 19
&1 ARy H AU — frerer SR B @, g 1 thiwdan o
g v afifafen oxT @ fay FREw e T — afrer b9z

Cases referred :
AIR 2003 SC 189, AIR 2005 SC 3353.

Pranay Verma, for the petitioner.
G.S. Baghel, for the respondents.

ORDER
R.C. MisHRA, J.:- With consent, the matter is finally heard.

1. This is a petition, under Article 227 of the Constitution of India, for
issuance of a writ in the nature of certiorari quashing the order-dated 7/11/
2012 (Annexure P-11) passed by Second ADJ, Gadarwara, Distt.
Narsinghpur in Civil Suit No.12-A/10, whereby respondents’ application dated
16/10/2012 was allowed and accordingly, petitioner’s right to lead further
evidence was closed.

2. The suit has been filed by the petitioner for declaration of title in respect
of a house and permanent injunction restraining the respondents from alienating/
transferring the house or from interfering with his possession thereon in any
manner. Upon his request, vide order dated 12/10/2011, Shri T.S. Thakur,
Advocate was appointed as Commissioner for recording of cross-examinations
and re-examinations of his witnesses, whose chief-examinations were furnished
by way of affidavits. However, this exercise is yet to be completed.

3. . Observing that delay is attributable to the petitioner inasmuch as he
had failed to keep the witnesses present before the Commissioner, vide order
dated 18/1/2012, the trial Judge closed petitioner’s right to adduce evidence.

This order was interfered with by way of an order passed in W.P. No.1833/12

L/

e
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on 16/3/2012 (that was modified vide order-dated 19/4/2012 in Review
Petition No.336/2012) and in the interests of justice, last opportunity was granted
to the petitioner for the purpose subject to payment of costs of Rs.750/- witha

* further direction that he shall keep present all his witnesses on 26/4/2012.

4, According to the petitioner, summons to one of the witnesses namely
Jagdish could not be served as he had gone out of station whereas the other
witnesses namely Manoj Dubey, the Document Writer and Sheikh Raheem, one
of the Attesting Witness of the Will relied on by him, failed to appear despite
service of respective summons. However, fact of the matter is that the order
dated 12/10/2011 casted an obligation on the petitioner to produce the witnesses
before the Commissioner. Even otherwise, as explained in Salem Advocate Bar

. Association, Tamil Nadu v. Union of India AIR 2003 SC 189—

“Reading the provisions of O.16 and O.18 together, it
is evident that O. 18, R. 4(1) will necessarily apply to a case
contemplated by O. 16, R. 1A i.e. where any party to a suit,
without, applying for summoning under R. 1 brings any witness
to give evidence or produce any document. In such a case,
examination-in-chief is not to be recorded in Court but shall

- be in the form of an affidavit.."

. Whether a witness shall be directed to file affidavit or
be required to be present in Court for recording of his evidence
is a matter to be decided by the Court in its discretion having
regard to the facts of each case”. ‘

5. The Rule i.e. O. 18, R. 4(1) providing inter alia for filing of chief-
examination of every witness in the form of an affidavit; for recording of his
cross-examination and re-examination by a Commissioner to be appointed
by the Court was introduced with a view to reducing consumption of judicial
hours in the process of recording of oral evidence but experience shows that
the hope is wholly belied.

6. Further, in Salem Advocate Bar Association, T.N. v. Union of India
AIR 2005 SC 3353, the Supreme Court, while declaring that the amendments
brought into effect by the Amending Act of 2002 were constitutionally valia,
proceeded to lay down various guidelines for streamlining the new prooedurc
to be followed for recording of evidence in civil cases. The relevant excerpt

reads as under —
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“The power under Order 18 Rule 4(2) is required to
be exercised with great circumspection having regard to the
facts and circumstances of the case. It is not necessary to lay
down hard and fast rules controlling the discretion of the court
to appoint a Commissioner to record the cross-examination
and re-examination of witnesses. The purpose would be served
by noticing some illustrative cases, which would serve as broad
and general guidelines for the exercise of discretion. For
instance, a case may involve complex questions oftitle, complex
questions in partition or suits relating to partnership business
or suits involving serious allegations of fraud, forgery, serious
disputes as to the execution of Wills, etc. In such cases. as far
as possible, the court may prefer to itself record the cross-
examination of the material witnesses and the praver for
recording evidence by the Commissioner may be declined by
the court.” :

(Emphasis supplied)

7. Accordingly, the order-dated 12/10/2011 also deserves to be nullified
in view of the aforesaid facts and circumstances of the case including
performance of the Commissioner and conduct of the petitioner and his
witnesses.

8. The petition, accordingly, succeeds but in addition to-the order in
question, the order-dated 12/10/2011 (supra) appointing Shri T.S. Thakur as
Commissioner is also set aside, Instead, it is directed that the trial Court itself
shall record cross-examinations and re-examinations of the remaining witnesses
of the petitioner on the next date of hearing.

9. Needless to say that — (a) the witnesses shall be produced by the
petitioner himself without applying for summons (b) no further opportunity
shall be granted to him and (c) payment of costs shall be a pre-condition to
further prosecution of the suit.

10.  Now, the parties are directed to appear before the trial Court on
14/5/2013 at 11 a.m. positively.

C.C. as per rules.

Order accordingly.

g
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1.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1069
WRIT PETITION
. . Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra
W.P. No. 2553/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 April, 2013

BIHARIDAS ... Petitioner -
Vs. - ‘ .
. STATEQFMUP. &ors. . B ...Respondents

Panchayat Raj Evam Gram Swaraj Adhiniyam, M.P. 1993 (1of
1994), Section 37, Panchayat (Resignation by Office Bearer) Rules,
M.P. 1995, Rule 4 - Acceptance of Resignation - Resignation submitted
by an office bearer can be accepted only after a full and complete
compliance with the provisions of Rule 4 of Rules 1995, contemplating
consideration thereon by Panchayat at its next meeting under notice
to petitioner - As resignation was accepted circumventing the procedure
prescribed therefor and in view of non-compliance of mandatory’
provisions of rule 4(2) and (3), it is sufficient to hold that the resignation
was not validly accepted - Petition allowed. (Para 5 and 6)

T W vF FIT RIS AT, A 1993 (1994 @7 1), &NT
37, AT (GBI GIT AFTIA) 94, A 1995, fraa 4 — craF @
mﬂ—mﬂmuﬁawaﬁ$ﬁﬁm1ggs$m4$
mai'mﬁmﬁaﬁmﬂmﬁ$wﬁmwﬁmmm%
fora gema mmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂammmwﬁ'wmﬁaﬂ
ﬁﬁmmﬂmwﬁ—-ﬁﬁswﬁmﬁ.mﬁwﬁ%ﬁ
qmaﬁuﬁaﬁmmﬁﬁ%awﬁ'ﬂm)a(a)ﬁmmmmﬁ
$m§qmaﬁqﬁa1mmgqugwnaﬂ#$mw1a%ﬁﬁ
Waﬁﬁﬁazﬁfﬁrﬁlwwﬁﬁaﬁqs‘—mﬁmﬁﬂm

Pradeep Naveriya, for the petitioner.
Puneet Shroti, P.L. for the respondent/State.
ORDER
R.C. MisHRA, J.:- Arguments heard.
1. This is a petition, under Article 226 of the Constitution of India. The
petitioner, who was duly elected to represent as a Member in Ward No.9 of

the Janpad Panchayat Baibar, Distt. Balaghat, is aggrieved by acceptance of
his resignation {Annexure P/1) tendered on 26/12/2012. He has, therefore
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prayed for - (a) certiorari quashing of letter-dated 28/12/2012 (Annexure

P/6)authored by the President, J anpad Panchayat, intimating recommendation
for acceptance of his resignation and (b) mandamus directing respondent
nos.2 and 3 to accept withdrawal thereof, communicated through letter dated
29/12/2012 (Annexure P/2).

2. The prayer has been opposed primarily on the ground that the
resignation submitted voluntarily has already been accepted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 37 of MP. Panchayat Raj Avam Gram Swaraj
Adhiniyam, 1993 (hereinafter referred to as “Adhiniyam”) and consequently,
the office of the member from Ward No.9 has been declared as vacant.

3. According to the petitioner, the resignation could not be accepted
without affording him an opportunity to reconsider the decision. For this, he
has made reference to Rules 3 and 4 of M.P. Panchayat (Resignation by Office
Bearers) Rules, 1995 (for short “the Rules™).

4. Relevant excerpts of the provisions of Section 37 of the Adhiniyam
and Rules 3 and 4 of the Rules may be reproduced as under -

S.37. Resignation by office bearer of Panchayat

(1) A Panch of a Gram Panchayat or a member of Janpad
Panchayat or a member of Zila Panchayat may resign his
office by giving notice in writing to that effect to the
Sarpanch or President as the case may be.

(2 ..

(3) The manner of giving notice and procedure Jor
tendering resignation and its becoming effective shall be
as may be prescribed -

Provided that a person tendering resignation may withdraw
his resignation before it becomes effective.

Rules 3 & 4
3. Manner of giving notice -

+ (1) Any member who desires to resign his office shall give
hotice, thereof in writing in Form ‘A "duly signed by him to.
the Sarpanch or president as the case may be either in

dg
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person or through his representative authorized by him in’

writing in this behalf, a copy of the said notice shall also -

be sent to the Secretary or Chief Executive Officer, as the - -
. case may be.

(2) On receiving the notice under sub-rule (1) the Secretary
or Chief Executive Officer as the case'may be, shall record
on the notice the date on which and the time at which the
notice was given to him and give a receipt thereof in Form
‘B’

4. Acceptance of Resignation - -

(1) On receipt of the notice under rule 3, the Secretary or
Chief Executive Officer shall forward such notice
immediate to the District Deputy Director, Panchayat and
Social Welfare and the Collector.

(2) The notice of resignation given by the member shall be
considered by the Panchayat at its next meeting. Notice
of the meeting shall also be-given to the member who has
submitted the resignation.

(3) The Panchayat shall in its meeting may ascertain from
the member concerned whether he desires to withdraw his
resignation and if the member desires to withdraw the
resignation, he shall give in writing to that effect in Form
IC » ) -

(4) If the member concerned furnishes the statement in -
Form ‘C’ his resignation shall become infructuous. Ifthe

member does not withdraw his resignation, then his
resignation shall be accepted by the Panchayat.

(5) e
(6) ... ) _ .
¢ . . . )
5 These Rules have been framed in exercise of powers conferred by

sub-section (1) of Section 95 read with sub-section (3) of Section 37 of the
Adhiniyam. Accordingly, the resignation could be accepted under sub-rule
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(4) only after a full and complete compliance with the provisions of preceding
two sub-rules, contemplating consideration thereon by Panchayat at its next
meeting under notice to the petitioner.

6. A bare perusal of the record would reveal that the resignation has
been accepted by circumventing the procedure prescribed therefor. Apparently,

non-compliance with the mandatory provisions of sub-rules (2)and (3) is -

sufficient to hold that the resignation was not validly accepted. The
corresponding order, therefore, deserves to be quashed.

7. The petition, therefore, stands allowed and the letter dated 28/12/2012
(Annexure P/6) is hereby set aside. The obvious consequence is that the
petitioner shall be deemed to continue as the elected member representing
Ward No.9 of J anpad Panchayat Baihar, Distt. Balaghat.

Petition allowed

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1072
ELECTION PETITION
Before Mr. Justice R.C. Mishra
Election Petition No. 7/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 April, 2013

RAJESH KUMAR ...Petitioner
Vs.
DEVENDRA SINGH ... Respondent

A. - Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section
33 - Presentation of Valid Nomination - Caste - Constituency was
reserved for Scheduled Caste - Petitioner had sought to contest the
- election as member of Scheduled Caste - However, error crept in
showing him as a candidate belonging to General Category on one page
of form - Not sufficient to reject the same on the ground of
disqualification, (Para 11)

" B. Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Sections
33 & 36 - Presentation of Valid Nomination - Power of Election Tribunal

-
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- Election Tribunal is not bound to confine itself only to the material
available to the Returning Officer at the time of scrutiny - Tribunal is '
well within its power in considering the question of propriety and legality
of order of rejection of nomination papers on the evidence produced in
the course of trial of the election petition. (Paras 17)

& . il glitieT Fffay (1951 71 43), avrd’ 33 7 36 — T
FATET BT FEdIer — [raraT @ #1 wfed — Faias e,
Wi & W Bad g ARSI B Sy weRl 9% € |d $1 Aifim
@ @ B g il — aftrever & Prafas oty 3 fErer @ <Shw
. UT WIE TR e T @) aeigf 3 aw o1 Sifwea | dga @
1 W) R a3 @) iy wtaafa sra 21

C. Representation of the People Act (43 of 1951), Section
33 - Presentation of Valid Nomination - Incomplete Electoral Roll -
Petitioner filed incomplete electoral roll - No where pleaded that he or
his authorized representative was present at the time of scrutiny of
nomination paper and had requested for postponing the scrutiny to the
next day so as to enable him to file 2 complete copy of electoral roll -
As per Section 33(5) electoral roll could be produced only either with
the nomination paper or at the time of scrutiny - Statute does not
contemplate any other time for preduction of such copy - Returning
officer did not commit any impropriety in rejecting petitioner's
nomination form - Petition dismissed. (Paras 19 to 28)

T diF mfferer Ffefraw (1951 &7 43), &7 33 — d9
TrET #T yegdieeT — Ay falaes et — v 3 sqel fafae
el wEgE B — e ) aifrare, T fF e w3 91 Wian @
g a1 SET gIitraa wfafr suRera o siv wfaar ot evdd i @ fog
gﬁlﬂiaﬂﬁmﬁa‘aﬂﬁmﬂmﬁmﬁﬁﬁa’gﬁﬂwmaﬁﬁqﬁ
uﬁruqaawﬁ—mas(s)$mwﬁﬂwwsﬁ$ﬁ.ma?
AATES U D Wi A1 Gf¥em B Hy uegd 9 W ged € — 9o ufu
F fodt Al W0 U F B fay Se e T@ swar - FrafaE
afere™) 3 9l &1 APeT O SRR B ¥ Hi3 Fgfuaar s e
B — gIaST SHR |

Cases referred :

AIR 1999 SC 935, AIR 1956 SC 593, AIR 1964 Punjab 231, AIR
1966 SC 1626, AIR 1959 SC 422, (2011) 7 SCC 721, AIR 2000 SC 256,
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AIR 1969 SC 395.

‘Manoj Sharma with Rajmani Mishra, for the petitioner.
" Imtiyaz Husain with R.B. Patel, for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

R.C. MisHRA, J. :- In this petition, election of the returned candidate
viz. the respondent to the M.P, Legislative Assembly Constituency No.143,
Silwani has been called in question on the ground of improper rejection of the
nomination paper, as contemplated in clause (c) of sub-section (1) of S.100
of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 (for short 'the Act'). The
petitioner has sought declarations to the effect that (a) the order dated
8.12.2008 passed by the Assistant Returning Officer was illegal and (b) election
of the respondent to the Constituency is void.

2. The corresponding calendar was notified as under -

(1) Lastdate for filing of nomination papers : 07.11,2008

(2)  Scrutiny of nomination papers : 08.11.2008
(3) . Withdrawal of nomination papers : 10.11.2008
(4)  Dateofelection : 27.11,2008
| (5) Declaration of results : 08.12.2008
3 Indisputably, on 11.8.2008, the petitioner's nomination paper, a copy

of which has been tendered in evidence as Exhibit P-1, was rejected for the
reason that he, being an elector of a different constituency namely M.P.
Legislative Assembly Constituency Udaipura No.140, had failed to submit a
copy of the electoral roll of that constituency or certification from ERO of that
constituency, as per requirement of sub-section (3) of Section 33 of the Act.

4. According to the petitioner, rejection of the nomination paper was
wholly arbitrary, illegal and against the relevant provisions of the Act, as
contained in Sections 33(4), 33(5), 36(2)(b), 36(4) and 39(2)(c) thereof. In
support of the assertion, he has further pleaded that -

(A)  thenomination form, in the prescribed format, filed in
support of his candidature as an independent candidate, was -

(i) duly completed by him in all respects and

Si
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5.

(i) signed by himself-

(i) subscribed by 10 proposers, who are electors of the
constituency as required by Section 33(1) of the Act.

(B)  Since he was an elector of a different constituency, he
had also filed a copy of the relevant part of the electoral roll of
that constituency as required by sub-section (5) of Section 33
of the Act.

(C)  Letter of Tahsildar (Annexure P-2) clearly reflected
that he had annexed a copy of the relevant part of the electoral
roll in compliance with provision of sub-section (5) of the 5.33
of the Act and even otherwise, in view of the decision in Rakesh
Kumar v. Sunil Kumar AIR 1999 SC 935, the Assistant
Returning Officer should have afforded an opportunity of
hearing to him before rejecting the nomination paper.

1075

While raising preliminary objections to the effect that the petition
deserves to be dismissed at the threshold for -

(a)  want of compliance with the provision of Section 81(3)
of the Act.

(b)  non-compliance with the requiremenfs of Section
83(1)(c) of the Act. '

(c)  absence of a common authorship in signatures onthe -

nomination paper as well as on the petition.

] - the respondent, in his written statement, has submitted that rejection
of the petitioner's nomination paper was justified in view of the facts that
despite grant of opportunity, he did not furnish certified copy of the electoral
roll of the constituency which he belonged to and that the photocopy of the
electoral roll submitted on his behalf, was not sufficient to establish his identity.
According to him, the nomination form was liable to be rejected for other
reasons also namely -

@) [t did not bear signature of the petitioner.

() Provision of Article 173(a) of Constitution of India was
" not complied with. 7
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and amongst them, issue nos.3(a) and 3(b),
already been decided vide order dated 11.]
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(i)  The petitioner had made contradictory statements

regarding his caste.

Inthe light of these pleadings, the following issues have been framed

based on legal objections, have
-2010 as preliminary issues -

No. | Issues Finding
1 Whether the nomination ofthe petitioner No
was improperly rejected. -
2 Whether the nomination form also deserved
rejection for the reasons that-
(1) it did not bear si gnature of the petitioner. No
(i1} for want of compliance with Article No
173(a) of the Constitution of India.
(i) the petitioner has made contradictory No
Statements regarding his caste
3 Whether the petition is liable to be dismissed
at the threshold for-
(a) want of compliance with the provision No
of Section 8 1(3) of the Representation of the
People Act, 1951 (for short 'the Act").
(b) non-compliance with the requirements of No
S.83 (1) (¢) of the Act.
(c) absence of a common authorship in No
signatures on the nomination paper as
well as on the petition.
4 Whether the election of the returned candidate| No
deserves to be set aside on the ground
mentioned in Section 100(1)(c) of the Act.
5 Reliefs and costs? Petition dismissed
with no order as to
costs

o
-
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ISSUE Nos.2(i) and 3(c)

7. The petitioner (PW2) has clearly asserted that the nomination paper
(Ex.P-1), though filled by Neeraj Shrivastava (PW3), an Advocate practicing
at Udaipura, bears his signatures only. His statement has drawn ample support
not only from evidence of Neeraj Shrivastava but also from a candid admission
made by respondent Devendra Singh (DW1) in his chief examination recorded
on 2.2.2012 to the effect that the form was submitted before the Returning
Officer by the petitioner only. From the tenor of his deposition, it is evident
that his objection to the genuineness of signatures of the petitioner on the
nomination form is based on the allegation that the same are dissimilarto his
admitted signatures on the petition. In such a situation, his application, under
Section 45 of the Evidence Act, for summoning an handwriting expert to
compare the signature was rejecteu vide order-dated 20.6.2012 while
endorsing the contention raised by the petitioner that it is not uncommon to
find difference in the signatures of the same person even after a short interval
of time. The relevant excerpt of the order may be reproduced as under -

20.  However, fact of the matter is that in accordance
with Section 81(1) of the Act, an election petition has to
be presented in person before the Registrar of the Court
—and the corresponding report of the Registry raises a
presumption, though rebuttable, that the petition was filed
by the petitioner himself. Moreover, for establishing that
while filing the nomination paper, someone else has
impersonated himself as the petitioner, the Returning
Officer would be the best witness. The well-settled position
of law on the comparison of disputed signature/writing
with the admitted signature/writing has already been
discussed. This apart, it is trite that the effect of an alleged
admission depends upon the circumstances in which it was
made. For this, the following illui=inating observations
made by the Supreme Court in Naguiai Ammal v. B.
Shama Rao AIR 1956 SC 593 may usefully be guoted -

“an admission is not conclusive as to the truth of
the matters started therein. It is only a piece of evidence,
the weight to be attached to which must depend on the
circumstances under which it is made. It can be shown to
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be erroneous or untrue, so long as the person to whom it
was made has not acted upon it to his detriment, when it
might become conclusive by way of estoppel.”

21. To sum up, it is neither expedient in the interests of
justice nor desirable to summon the Handwriting Expert
for opinion on the aforesaid point. This IA. also deserves
refection with costs.

8. Itisrelevant to note that for the reasons recorded in the same order,
respondent's yet another application for summoning the Returning Officeras a
Court Witness was dismissed with liberty to call the officer in evidence as his
own witness. But, the respondent has not preferred to do so.

9. In the light of the oral evidence brought on record as well as the
presumption attached to the correctness of the report of the Registry, it is not
possible to hold that signatures of the petitioner either on the nomination form
or on the election petition were not genuine. Both the issues, therefore, deserve
to be and are answered in the favour of the petitioner.

ISSUE No.2(ii) AND 2(iii)

10.  Eventhough, respondent Devendra Singh (DW1) has been emphatic
in stating that during his presence from 1 p.m. to 2 p.m. in the election office,
the petitioner, despite being asked by the Returning Officer to do so, had
failed to make and subscribe the requisite oath, as enjoined by Article 173(a)
of the Constitution of India yet, he has not been able to explain his own conduct
in not making any complaint before the Returning Officer as well as in not
incorporating the corresponding pleading in the written statement. Moreover,
as concluded already, none of the signatures on the nomination form purporting
to be appended by the petitioner including the one available on the form of
oath can be treated as an ingenuine one. Thus, there is nothing on record to
doubt correctness of the contents of the form of oath, duly signed by the
authorized person, suggesting that the petitioner had subscribed the oath on
7.11.2008 at 1.20 p.m.

11. Coming to the issue no.2(iii), it may be observed that, admittedly,
Silwani Seat in the Legislative Assembly Constituency was declared reserved
for the Scheduled Castes of the State. The nomination form (Ex.P-1) read as
a whole clearly reflects that the petitioner had sought to contest the election as
a member of Scheduled Caste 'Mehra'. As such, the error crept in showing

/

/

/

» i

-
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him as a candidate belonging to General Category on-one of the'pages of the
form was not sufficient to reject the same on the ground of disqualification.

12.  For these reasons, both the issues are decided in the negative.

ISSUE No.1

13.  Atthe outset, it may be observed that in absence of corresponding \
pleadings, the statement on oath made by petitioner Rajesh Kumar to the
effect that neither at the time of presentation nor at the time of scrutiny, he
- was informed about any defect in the nomination form cannot be accepted.
Further, contents of the letter (Ex.P-2) dated 12.1.2009 authored by Aditya
Sharma, the then Tahsildar, Begumganj, clearly indicates that the petitioner
had filed only a photocopy of the relevant extract of electoral roll of Udaipura
Constituency.

14.  Aspleaded by the petitioner, he has substantially compiled with the -
. requirement of sub-section (5) of Section 33 of the Act by annexing copy of
the relevant part of the electoral roll. In order to show that copy [Ex.P-1A] is
a true copy of the relevant extract of the electoral roll, the petitioner, while
placing reliance on decision of the Punjab High Court in Bansi Ram v. Jit
Ram AIR 1964 PUNJAB 231, has sought to bring on record a certified copy
of the electoral roll (Ex.P-3). The objection taken by the respondent on the
ground that the cothng page of the certified copy containing description of
the document to be copied, was not filed along with the election petition, was
kept reserved for being decided on merits.

I5.  Tofortify the objection that the document (Ex.P-3) cannot be taken
into consideration, reliance has been placed to the following observations
made by a Constitution Bench in Rawnjir Smgh v. Pritam Singh AIR 1966
SC 1626 -

"Section 33 (3) requires that it is the copy prodiced by the
candidate which should show-whethi~r he is qualified or
not and for that purpose a copy producea by the candidate
should be complete whether it is of the roll or of the
relevant part thereof. To such a case S.36 (4). has no
application.

16.  Before proceeding further, it would be necessary to advert to the
relevant provisions as contained in sub-section (5) of Section 33 and sub-
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sections (1) and (4) of Section 36 of the Act. The provisions read -

Section 33. Presentation of nomination paper and
requirements for a valid nomination

(5) Where the candidate is an elector of a different
constituency, a copy of the electoral roll of that
constituency or of the relevant part thereof or a certified
copy of the relevant entries in such roll shall, unless it has
been filed along with the nomination paper, be produced
before the returning officer at the time of scrutiny.

Section 36. Scrutiny of nominations

36. Scrutiny of nominations.-(1) On the date fixed for
the scrutiny of nominations under Section 30, the
candidates, their election agents, one proposer of each
candidate, and one other person duly authorised in writing
by each candidate, but no other person, may attend at such
time and place as the returning officer may appoint; and
the returning officer shall give them all reasonable facilities
for examining the nomination papers of all candidates
which have been delivered within the time and in the
manner laid down in Section 33.

2 ..
3) ..

(4) The returning officer shall not reject any nomination
paper on the ground of any defect which is not of a
substantial character.

17. A bare perusal of the judgment rendered in Bansi Ram’s case (ibid)
would reveal that it is based on a three-judge Bench decision of the Supreme
Court in N. T. Veluswami Thevar v. G Raja Nainar AIR 1959 SC 422
propounding that -

"..evidence can be adduced before the Election Tribunal
on the point of the nomination paper having been
improperly rejected; the Election Tribunal is not confined
only to the material actually placed before the Returning

A,
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Officer, Section 36 unequivocally lays down that the
Returning Officer has only to hold such summary enquiry
as he thinks necessary. The statute does not lay down:
anywhere that the Election Tribunal trying the issue
relating to improper rejection of a nomination paper in an
election petition is bound to confine itself only to the
material available to the Returning Officer at the time of
scrutiny. Keeping in view the paramount importance of
the election of the representatives of the people to our
Legislatures the right to seek election could not have been
intended by the Parliament to depend on summary enquiry
of the Returning Officer as contemplated by Section 36.

The Election Tribunal is therefore well within its power in

considering the question of the propriety and legality of
the order of rejection of nomination papers on the evidence
produced in the course of the trial of the election petition.

18.  Accordingly, the objection is overruled and the document (Ex.P-3) is
admitted in evidence. However, the fact remains that the copy (Ex.P-1A)is
an incomplete copy of the part of the electoral roll of which Ex.P-3 is a certified
copy. Apparent defects are -

(§)) it is a photocopy and, as such, there was no possibility
of the document being conipared with original, which,
at the relevant point of time, was in the office of
Returning Officer for Udaipura Constituency.

()  itisnotattested even by the petitioner himself.

(i)  copy of the covering page containing description or

- the receipt comprising particulars of copying

application, if any, made by the petitioner is not annexed
thereto.

(iv)  details of the part of the electoral roll are not reflected,

v) it included details of most of the other voters as
mentioned in the electoral rol] along with his/her
photograph but the space for photograph of the
petitioner is left blank. . ‘
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19.  In Ranjit Singhv. Pritam Singh AIR 1966 SC 1626, 2 Constitution
Bench had the occasion to consider the purport and object of sub-section (5)
of Section 33 of the Act. K.N. Wanchoo, J. (as his Lordship then was),
speaking for the Court, observed -

7. The object of this provision obviously is to enable
the returning officer to check whether the person standing
for election is qualified for the purpose. The electoral roll
of the constituency for which the returning officer is making
scrutiny would be with him, and it is not necessary for a
candidate to produce the copy of the roll of that
constituency. But where the candidate belongs to another
constituency the returning officer would not have the roll
of that other constituency with him and therefore the
provision contained in 8. 33 (5) has been made by the
legislature to enable the returning officer to check that
the candidate is qualified for standing for election. For
that purpose the candidate is given the choice either 10
produce a copy of the electoral roll of that other
constituency, or of the relevant entries in such roll before
the returning officer at the time of the scrutiny, if he has
not already filed such copy with the nomination

12. ....That provision [sub-section (4) of S.36] is to the
effect that the returning officer shall not reject any
nomination paper on the ground of any defect which is not
of a substantial character. But the non-production of a
complete copy of the relevant part in our opinion is a defect
of a substantial character for it makes it impossible for
the returning officer to decide whether the candidate is
qualified or not. Qualification for standing for election is
a matter of substantial character "

20.  Still, making extensive reference to Paragraphs 19 to 21 of a three- '
judge Bench decision in Rakesh Kumar's case, learned counsel for the
peitioner has strenuously contended that principles of natural justice could
not be excluded from the election process. According to him, non-grant of

- b
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opportunity of hearing by the returning officer to meet the objection before
rejecting the nomination form, by itself, is sufficient to render the rejection as
illegal, :

21.  However, a close analysis of the factual aspects in Rakesh Kumar's
case (supra) would show that -

(a)  thelastdate of filing nominations was 20-1-1997 and
the date of polling was 6-2-1997 and, therefore, the case
related to a period prior to the amendment of the Symbols
Order on 20-5-1999 by which para 13-A has been added.
Two persons, namely, Sunil Kumar and Veer Abhimanyu had
submitted Forms A and B claiming to be candidates of the
Bhartiya Janta Party. At the time of scrutiny, the Returning
Officer suo motu raised an objection to the effect that since
BJP had set up more than one candidate, none could be treated
as a candidate of the said political paity and rejected the
nomination papers of both Sunil Kumar and Veer Abhimanyu.
Sunil Kumar made an application stating that he was the official
candidate of the party and he requested for twenty-four hours'
time to produce an official confirmation ofhis candidature but
the application was rejected and no time was given, thoughno
other candidate (including Veer Abhimanyu) had raised any
objection.

(b)  Since the political party in question had not rescinded
the earlier Form B notice, the Returning Officer after declining
the request made by one of the candidates for time to produce
the official confirmation of his candidature by the party,
proceeded to reject the nomination of both the candidates set
up by the party as well as the nomination of the substitute
candidates.

22. It was in the context of the aforesaid facts that the Apex Court
proceeded to hold that the Returning Officer ought to have granted him time
to meet the objection in the interest of justice and fair play as he was not
expected to reject nomination paper without giving an opportunity to the
candidate or his representative present at the'time of scrutiny to meet an
objection capable of being made, particularly, where such an opportunity is
sought for by the candidate or his representative. For aready reference, the
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relevant observations may be reproduced thus -

" The legislature in its supreme wisdom did not amend
the proviso to Section 36 (5} of the Act after Section 33 (1)
was amended in 1996, thereby clearly exhibiting its
intention that the said proviso was required to be given its
full effect, more particularly because the duty which a
returning officer performs while scrutinising the
nomination papers is quasi judicial in character, even after
Section 33 (1) had been amended.

The proviso to Section 3 6(3) of the Act lays down :

Provided that in case (an objection is raised by the returning
officer or is made by any other person) the candidate
concerned may be allowed time to rebut it not later than
the next day but one following the date fixed for scrutiny,
and the returning officer shall record his decision on the
date to which the proceedings have been adjourned.

Through the proviso, the legislature has provided that in -
case an objection is raised during the scrutiny, 1o the
validity of a nomination paper of a candidate, the Returning
Officer, may, give an opportunity (o the concerned
candidate to rebut the objection by giving him time "not
later than the next day”. This is in accord with the principles
of natural justice also. Since, no other candidate had raised
any objection to the claim of the respondent of being the
official candidate of BJP, and the objection had been raised
by the Returning Officer suo motu, the mandate of the
proviso to Section 36 (5) of the Act warranted the holding
of a summary enquiry, to determine the validity of the
nomination paper by the returning officer, while exercising
his quasi-judicial function. In the present case, the
respondent had sought an opportunity to meet the
objection, but even if he had not sought such an
opportunity, the returning officer ought to have granted
him time to meet the objection in the interest of justice
and fair play.
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23.  This apart, as pointed out further -

"The_Returning Officer would have been justified
in rejecting the nomination paper of the respondent, had
the respondent either not sought an opportunity to rebut
the objection raised by the Returning Officer or was unable
to rebut the objection within the time allowed by the
returning officer.... )

Having raised the objection suo motu, the request
of the respondent who was present and sought time in
writing to seek clarification from the BJP as to who was
its oficial candidate, the Returning Officer in all fairness-
was obliged to grant time to the respondent as prayed for
by him and postponed the scrutiny to the next day but he
ought not to have rejected his nomination paper in hot
haste. The Returning Officer, obviously, failed to exercise
his jurisdiction under Section 36(5) of the Act properly
and thereby fell into a grave error in rejecting the
nomination paper of the respondent.”

24.  However, the facts of the instant case are distinguishable as it has
nowhere been pleaded by the petitionier that he or his authorized representative
had remained present at the time of scrutiny of the nomination paper and had
requested for postponing the scrutiny to the next day so as to enable him to
file a complete copy of the relevant extract of the electoral roll.

25.  Jtistrite that if an election petitioner wants to put forth a plea thata
nomination was improperly rejected to declare an election to be void it is
necessary to set out the averments for making out the said ground. The reason
given by the Returning Officer for refusal to accept the nomination and the
facts necessary to show that the refusal was improper is required to be set
out in the election petition. In the absence of the necessary averments it cannot
be said that the election petition contains the material facts to make out a
cause of action (See Nandiesha Reddy v. Kavitha Mahesh, (2011) 7 SCC
721). In this view of the matter, the petitioner's assertion that he himselfhad
remained present at the time of scrutiny, not being in line or consistent with
the pleadings, cannot be looked into or relied upon and as an obvious
consequence, the principle laid down in Rakesh Kumar's case is of no avail
to the petitioner.
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'26.  The other provisions relevant to the present discussion and contained
in sub-sections (6), (7) & (8) of Section 36 of the Act, may also be extracted
thus:-

(6} The returning officer shall endorse on each
nomination paper his decision accepting or rejecting the
same and, if the nomination paper is rejected, shall record
in writing a brief statement of his reasons for such
rejection.

(7)  For the purposes of this section, a certified copy of
an entry in the electoral roll for the time being in force of
a constituency shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that
the person referred to in that entry is an elector for that
constituency, unless il is proved that he is subject to a
disqualification mentioned in Section 16 of the
Representation of the People Act, 1950 (43 of 1950).

(8)  Immediately after all the nomination papers have
been scrutinized and decisions accepting or rejecting the
same have been recorded, the returning officer shall prepare
a list of validly nominated candidates, that is to say,
candidates whose nominations have been Joundvalid, and
affix it to his notice board,

27.  Asindicated already, the so called copy of relevant part of the electoral
roll (Ex.P/1A) pertaining to Udaipura Constituency was not a complete copy
and in terms of Sub-Section (5) of Section 33, the requisite copy of the
Electoral Roll could be produced only either with the nomination paper or at
the time of scrutiny. While pointing out that the statute does not contemplate
any other time for production of such copy, a three Judge Bench of the Supreme
Court in Jeet Mohinder Singh v. Harminder Singh Jassi AIR 2000 SC
256, following to the Constitution Bench Judgment in Ranjit Singh's case
(above) has restated the settled legal position in the following words -

"......Where the candidate is an elector of a different
constituency, Section 33(5) prescribes the ‘manner’ of
proving the factum of the candidate being an elector. ofa
different constituency in one of the three modes - (i) by
producing a copy of the electoral roll of that constituency

(e
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or (i) a capy of the relevant part thereof or (iii) a certified
copy of the relevant entries in such roll. Any other mode
of proof is excluded. This has been explained by the
Constitution Bench of this Court in Ranjit Singh v. Pritam
Singh, AIR 1966 SC 1626. So far as the time is concerned,
as we will deal with shortly hereinafter the earliest and
outer limits of time are prescribed. The requisite document
has to.be produced either with the nomination paper which
is the earliest point of commencement of time limit or at
the scrutiny of the nomination papers which is the outer
limit. It is pertinent to note that Section 33(5) does not
specifically provide who shall produce the requisite
document before the returning officer. All that it provides
for is that one of the three the documents must be
produced.”

28.  Taking into consideration all these factual and legal aspects of the
matter, it is also not possible to hold that the Returning Officer had committed
any impropriety in rejecting the petitioner's nomination form. The conclusion
can be summed up in no better words than the following used by the Apex
Court-in Narbada Prasad v. Chhagan Lal AIR 1969 SC 395 -

"There was no compliance with the provisions of Section
33 (5) of the Representation of the People Act.and there
was no power in the court to dispense with this
requirement. It is a well-understood rule of law that if a
thing is to be done in a particular manner it must be done
in that manner or not at all. Others modes of compliance
are excluded.

. . non-compliance with Sec. 33 (5) is a defect of
a substanaal character and is not covered by Section 36
(4) of the Act. The Returning Officer in this case rightly
rejected the nomination paper of Jivabhai and the rejection '
cannot be held to be improper.”

Accordingly, the issue no.1 is decided in favour of the respondent.
ISSUE No.4
29.  Inthelight of the ﬁndmgs of issue nos.(1), (2) and (3), no case is-
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made out for interference with the result of the electionin question. The issue
is, accordingly, answered in the negative.

ISSUE No.5

30.  Consequently, the election petition is dismissed. There shall be no order
as to costs.

31.  Acopyofthis judgment be forwarded to the Election Commission as
well as to the Speaker of the State Legislative Assembly.

Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1088
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava
M.A. No. 516/2005 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 November, 2012

LALMAN SONI & anr. ~ ...Appellants
Vs.
SHRIRUPINDER SINGH GILL & anr. ~ ...Respondents

A. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 52 - Admission -
Admission in pleadings or judicial admissions or admissions under
Section 58 of Act, 1872 made by parties or their agents at or before the
hearing of the case, stand on a higher footing than evidentiary value.

‘ (Para9)
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B. Workmen's Compensation Act (8 of 1923), Section 30 -
Employer admitted that the deceased was earn ing Rs. 4000/~ per month
- Insurance Company pleaded ignorance - In view of clear admission of
employer, the monthly income of the deceased is assessed at Rs. 4000/
- Deceased was aged about 20 years therefore, relevant factor would
be 224.00 - Compensation would come to Rs. 4,03,200/- with interest
at the rate of 12% from the date of incident - Appeal allowed.(Para 10)
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Cases referred :

M.A. 1234/2005 decided on 02.02.2012, 2009 ACJ 147,2011 ACJ
1749,2010 ACJ 2828, AIR 1974 SC 471, (2009) 11 SCC 545, 2012 (134)
FLR 1064.

Narendra Chouhan, for the appellants.
None for the respondent No.1.
Gulab Sohane, for the respondent No.2.

ORDER

A.K. SIRIVASTAVA, J.:- By filing this appeal under Section 30 of the
Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923 (in short “W.C. Act”) the claimants
have knocked the doors of this Court by preferring this appeal for enhancement
of the amount of compensation.

2. In brief the case of claimants who are parents of deceased/workman
namely Rakesh Soni is that he was employed under the employment of
respondent no.1 Rupinder Singh Gil and was Cleaner upon the Truck
No.MP20-G/4971. The said truck was coming from Ludhiana to Jabalpur
however on the way near Badagaon, District Jalon on 12.09.2003 there was
a traffic-jam and deceased was removing the ballast stuck beneath the tyre so
that the truck may be made moveable at that juncture one car which was
coming towards Jhansi dashed the workman, as a result of which he had
died. It has also been pleaded that accident has arisen during the course of

“employment. According to claimants at the time of death age of deceased

was 20 years and he was earning Rs.4000/- per month. After having served
requisite and statutory notice prescribed under Section 10 of the W.C. Act
since no compensation was paid, the appellants filed an application for grant
of compensation before the Commissioner.

3. In the application it has been pleaded by the appellants that deceased/
workman was earning a sum of §4000/- per month. His age at the time of
accident was 20 years and the accident has arisen during the course of his
employment.
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4. The written-statement filed on behalf of employer. In para 6 of the
written-statement the accident as well as it arose during the course of
employment of the deceased has been admitted. Specifically it has been
admitted by employer/respondent no.1 that salary ¥1600 per month + #80/-
per day towards dearness allowance was being paid to the deceased workman,
which comes to ¥ 4000/- per month as pleaded by claimant/appellant. In the
written-statement filed on behaif of Insurer/respondent no.2 it has been pleaded
that whatever the income employer has stated it is admitted to the insurer.

5. Learned Commissioner framed necessary issues and after recording
the evidence of the parties allowed the claim of the appellants and it was
directed to pay compensation to the tune of ¥ 2,49,984/- alongwith interest
@9% per annum to the employer as well as to the insurer.

6. In this manner, this appeal has been filed by the claimants for
" enhancement of the award. The contention of learned counsel for appellants is
that learned Commissioner has fixed the income of the deceased (workman)
according to minimum wage which is on lower side. It bas also been put-forth
by him that no evidence in rebuttal has been adduced either by Insurer or by
employer. In the claim application it has been specifically stated by claimants
that their son was earning 7 4000/~ per month and if that would be the position
the compensation should have been awarded by fixing the wage 7 4000/~ per
month and therefore the amount of award be enhanced. In support of his
conterition, learned counsel has placed heavy reliance on a Single Bench

decision of this Principal Seat in M.A. No.1234/2005 (Smt. Rehna Begum

vs. Sama Khan & Ors.) decided on 2.2.2012.

7. On the other hand, learned counsel for Insurer/respondent no.2 argued
in support of the impugned order and submitted that merely on the basis of
bald statement without having any support of the document, the income as
stated by claimant should not be accepted. Learned counsel placed heavy
reliance upon the Single Bench decision of this Court Oriental Insurance
Co. Ltd. v. Heerabai and others 2009 ACJ 147, Shankar v. Chief Engineer,
KPTCI and others 2011 ACJ 1749 (Karnataka High Court) and Oriental
Insurance Co.Ltd. v. Bashaboina Bakkamma and another 2010 ACJ2828
(Andhra Pradesh High Court). )

8. Having heard learned counsel for the parties, [ am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be allowed.

R
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9. *  Onbare perusal of the written-statement filed-on behalf of employer it

is gathered that specifically it has been pleaded that deceased workman was
earning 7 4000/- per month although it has been pleaded by him that throughout
for whole month he was not assigned the duty. In the written-statement of
Insurer ignorance has been pleaded in regard to actual income of deceased/
workman. Thus, according to me, there is'clear admission of the employer
admitting the fact that deceased was earning Rs.4000/- per month. According
to me, the admissions in pleadings or judicial admissions, admissible under
Section 58 of the Evidence Act made by the parties or their agents at or
before the hearing of the case, stand on a higher footing than evidentiary
admissions. The former class of admissions are fully binding on the party that
makes them and constitute a waiver of proof. They by themselves can be
made the foundation of the rights of the parties. On this proposition I may
profitably place reliance on the decision of Supreme Court Nagindas Ramdas
v. Dalpatram Iccharam alias Brijram and others AIR 1974 SC 471 para
26. There is a later decision of Supreme Court Seth Ramdayal Jat v. Laxmi
Prasad, (2009) 11 SCC 545 para 26 on the same point. In the present case,
the employer has categorically admitted in the written-statement that deceased
workman was earnirig ¥ 4000/- per month and therefore clear admission of
employer is having on higher footing and as per decision of Supreme Court it
requires no proof. Thus, 1 am of the view that instead of fixing the minimum
wage in order to calculate the compens ation it ought to have been calculated
@ ¥ 4000/- per month. Learned Commissioner has thus erred in substantial
error of law in passing the impugned award on lesser side ignoring the material
admission made in the pleadings which makes the foundation of the parties to
determine their rights. In this backdrop the decision of this Court in Heerabai
(supra) and that of Karrataka High Court and Andhra Pradesh High Court
Shankar and Bashaboina Balkkamma (supra) are distinguishable.

10.  In the written=statement of employer/respondent no.l it has been
pleaded that the workman was not being employed throughout the month for
30 days. Certainly after completing a trip the deceased workman must have
been taking rest for few days and therefore by fixing it to be 5 days in amonth
I am of the view that income of decedsed workman should be computed @ ¥
4000/- per month for 25 days in a month. Since the age of deceased admittedly
at the time of accident was 20 years, thercfore, according to Schedule-IV of
W.C. Act the relevant factor would be 224.00. Since in the present case
workman has died therefore 50% of total wages.is to be fixed and if it is
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multiplied by factor 224.00 the compensation would come to ¥ 4,03,200)/-.
The interest @12% per annum should be calculated upon this amount and it
should be paid from the date of accident. In this regard in the recent decision
Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd v Siby George and others 2012 (134) FLR
1064, the Supreme Court has directed to pay the interest from the date of
accident. Therefore, I am of the view that because W.C. Act is a beneficial
legislation therefore the rate of interest @12% per annum should be paid from
the date of accident. The substantia] questions of law are thus answered in
favour of appellant.

11.  Resultantly, this appeal succeeds to the extent indicated hereinabove.
The amount of award passed by learned Commissioner is enhanced to the
extent indicated hereinabove. Let balance amount alongwith interest be
deposited beforé the Commissioner within a period of three months as agreed
by learned counsel for respondent no.2. No costs.

Appeal succeeds.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1092
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice A.K. Shrivastava
F.A. No. 100/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 November, 2012

NAGAR PALIKA PARISHAD --.Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Specific ReliefAct (47 of 1963)] Section 34 - Declaration
of title - Municipality had given the building for running the Higher
Secondary School for Girls il separate building is constructed - School
was subsequently shifted to newly constructed building hdwever, A
respondent started claiming ownership of the building on the ground
that it has vested in State Govt, - Defendants in various documents
admitting the ownership of the plaintiff/Municipality - No document to
show that the ownership of the building was ever transferred to the
State Govt. - Plaintiff has succeeded in proving its ownership over the
building. (Paras 15 to 19)
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B. Registration Act (16 of 1908), Section 17, Transfer of
Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 5 - Transfer of Property - Registration
- There cannot be a valid transfer of ownership of building in question
to the State Govt. in absence of a valid conveyance deed - In terms of
Section 17(b) of Act, 1908, registration of the documents is mandatory
as the value of the preperty is more than Rs. 100/-. (Paras 20 to 21)
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Case referred :
AIR 2004 Bom. 64.

D.K. Dixit, for the appellant.
Akhilesh Shukla, Dy. G.A. for the respondents.

JUDGMENT

A.K. Surivastava, J.: Feeling aggrieved by the judgment and decree
dated 7.11.1995 passed by learned Second Additional District Judge,
Hoshangabad in Civil Suit No.10-A/1994 (old number)108-A/1992, this
appeal under Section 96 has been filed by the plaintiff-Municipality.

2. Initially, the suit was filed by the plainti({ for declaration having
possession over the disputed property, which is a building, the description
whereof is mentioned in the plaint and which is the subject matter of the suit;
and for injunction restraining the defendants-State of M.P. and its functionaries
(respondents herein) from interfering with the plaintiff’s possession and the
other ancillary reliefs. However, during the pendency of the suit, the plaint as
well as the relief clause has been amended and further it was prayed that
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possession of the suit property be delivered to the plaintiff,

3. During the course of arguments, this has not been disputed by learned
counsel for the parties that later on the possession of the property in question
has been delivered to the plaintiff. :

4. In brief, the plaintiff’s case is that plaintiff-Municipality is the owner
having possession of the disputed property. Till the year 1961 in the township
of Seoni-Malwa there was a separate building for Girls School and there was
a great demand for upgrading the Middle School by the general public of the
said vicinity. The plaintiff-Municipality was also under pressure of the public
to pursue the Govt. to concede the demand of public regarding upgrading of
the said Girls Middle School. During those days, there was a Scheme of the
State Govt. to upgrade the School, therefore, the plaintiff-Municipality offered
to give the disputed building for running the Higher Secondary School classes
for girls till a separate building is constructed. A resolution to that effect was
also passed in the said meeting of the Council on 23.9.1962. From time to
time as per the directions of the State Government, necessary repairs in the
disputed building were carried out by the plaintiff. The State Govt. started
Higher Secondary School classes in the disputed building since 1964:
Thereafter, anew building has been constructed by the State Govt. and now
the State Govt. is running the School in its new building since 1991.

3. After Government shifted the School in the new building, the plaintiff
wrote a letter to the Head Master of the Institution/defendant no.3 to vacate
the disputed building because plaintiff needed the said building to shift its office
in the said building because the building in which presently the office is being
run is insufficient and is very old and further is in dilapidated condition.

6. It is the further case of plaintiff that on 4.11.1992 the Incharge of the
School informed the plaintiff that the disputed building has been vacated,
eventually the plaintiff’s officer inserted the lock. However, in the morning of
6.11.1992, the plaintifflearnt that the Joint Director (Education) (defendant

no.2) has authorized the fourth defendant, Principal of the Govt. Naveen High

School vide letter dated 29th September, 1992 to take possession of the
building in question to hold the classes of the Govt. School. According to the
plaintiff, the students of the said School at the instance of 2nd and 4th defendant
are creating nuisance to the building in question and, therefore, the plaintiffis
in apprehension that they may now break the lock and take illegal possession
of the building. Hence, looking to'the urgency by.taking aid of Section 80(2)

&
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CPC for obtaining immediate relief of temporary injunction, the present suit
was filed. By amending the plaint it has been pleaded that in pursuance to the
letter of defendant no.2 dated 29.2.1992 the defendants have taken illegal
possession of the suit building and are possessing the building in question
illegally although the title of the suit property vest in the plaintiff, Hence, in this
manner the present suit has been filed for possession and injunction.

7. . The defendants by refuting the plaint averments have denied the
plaintiff’s possession over the suit property, as well as its ownership. The
main stand of the defendants in the written statement which has also been
elaborated in the additional pleadings is that vide order No. D/27/36/2776/
70J.3/81 dated 21.11.1981 of the School Education Department of the Govt.
of M.P. and also vide order no. 6911/18/12/81 dated 27.11.1981 of the
Local Self Government it has been directed that the Schools which were being
run in the building of the Municipality or Corporation have been transferred
to the Education Department of the Madhya Pradesh and accordingly the
disputed building is also transferred to the State of M.P. and now the said
building is in the ownership of State of M.P. which is being possessed by the
State/defendants since 1964. Hence, it has been prayed that the suit be
dismissed.

8. On the basis of the averments made in the plaint and denial in the
written statement, the learned Trial Court framed issues on 21.12.1994 which
reads thus:-

(@) Whether plaintiff is the owner of the disputed land?

(ii) Whether possession of the fourth defendant is illegal
on the suit building?

(i)  Whether the letter dated 29.9.1992 written by the
second defendant to fourth defendant is without
jurisdiction, Its effect?

(iv)  Whether defendants are entitled for damages of Rs.
10,000/-?

) Reliefand Costs.

9. On behalf of plaintiff-Municipality, Chief Municipal Officer Ramesh
Kumar Pandey (PW-1) has been examined who also proved the documents
Ex.P/1t P/10. On behalf of defendants two witnesses namely Shri Surya



1096 Nagar Palika Parishad Vs. State of M.P. LL.R.[2013]M.P.

-Kant Awasthy(PW-1) who was earlier serving as Principal of the said Institution
was examined and Shri M.A. Khan (PW-2) Principal of the said Middle School
has been examined. The defendants have also proved two documents Ex.D/1
and D/2 which are letter dated 5.11.1992 and an order of the State
Government, Director, Public Education.

10, Thelearned Trial Court by the impugned Jjudgment while deciding issue

no.2 has held that the possession of the building in question has already been
delivered to the plaintiff, however dismissed the suit of plaintiffholding that it
had failed to prove its ownership. In this manner, this appeal has been filed by
the plaintiff against that part of the impugned judgment by which it has been
held by learned Trial Court that the plaintiffis the owner of the suit building is
not proved.

11. The contention of Shri Dixit, learned counsel for the appellant is that
several documents have been filed by the plaintiff-Municipality in order to
prove the ownership of the plaintiff. In these documents, the defendants have
expressly and impliedly admitted its ownership. Thus, even though the title
deed of the disputed building has now been filed by the plaintiff, it would not
weaken its case on account of clear admission of the defendants. It has also
put forth by him that merely by passing an order Ex.D/2 directing that the
building in which the Govt. Schools are being run shall vest in the State, cannot
be said to be a valid transfer because the valuation of the property in question
is admittedly more than Rs.100/- and, therefore, registration is compulsory.
Learned counsel submits that simply by passing a bald order by Assistant
Director of Public Education Department of M.P., the immovablé property
cannot be transferred and it cannot be said to be a valid conveyance. In this
context, learned counsel has placed reliance upon Section 17 of the Indian
Registration Act, 1908 and also on the decision of Bombay High Court Gango
Co-operative Housing Society Ltd. Mumbai Vs. Municipal Corporation
of Greater Bombay and another AIR 2004 Bombay 64.

12. Onthe other hand Shri Mishra, learned Government Advocate argued
in support of the impugned judgment and submitted that because defendants
denied the plaintiff”s ownership over the suit property, therefore, the burden
of proof ' was upon the plaintiffto prove ownership and having failed to prove
such ownership by filing any document of title of ownership, the learned Trial
Court has rightly dismissed the suit and, therefore, this appeal has no substance
and the same be dismissed.

e
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13.  Having heard learned counsel for the parties, I am of the view that this
appeal deserves to be allowed.

14.  Thave already referred hereinabove the pleadings of the parties.
According to the plaintiff-Municipality, the suit building is owned by it although
this has been denied in the written statement. The stand of the defendants
disowning the plaintiff”s ownership is the order of the Joint Director, Public
Education dated 10.10.1991 (Ex. D/2). For better understanding it would be
appropriate to quote para 10 of the written statement which reads thus:-

(10) == 5 wovo I & wa@ fen M g sHiE 727/
36/2776/70%, 3/81 fasid 21—11—81 qUT AT TG wwr
Hoso & 3mew wmAis 6911/18/12/ 81 Retiws 27—11-81 ¥ 1% Wi
R 2 i gd R fem RifereT T SFUE gRT St W
e Rrer e @) (wree) saia & g9 € 59 aRw @
IR T faeried 7o Y a1q+ 3T €1 AoWo T H E¥AiaRd &
P18 9 39 a1 W 341 f31F | € #ovo wmae @) weg o wre
& gl @ ar fyanfad wa W Hovo A &1 U 1964 ¥ B af
2 :

Thus, on the basis of the aforesaid orders of the School Education
Department and Local Self Government, the defendants are claiming their
ownership right in the suit property. However, these orders have not been
placed on record and are not proved. But, it would not mean that by not filing
the aforesaid orders, the plaintiff would be deemed to be the owner of the suit
property. Thus, this Court is required to ee how far the plaintiff has proved
its ownership over the suit property. Indeed, the plaintiff has not filed any title
deed in order to prove its ownership but it is equally true that defendants have
admitted the ownership of the plaintiff and several documents and, therefore,
there is an admission of the defendants admitting the ownership of the plaintiff
over the suit property.

15.  The letter of the District Education Officer dated 16.6.1978 (Ex.P/4)
is the document which is addressed to the President of the Plaintiff-
Municipality. On bare perusal of this letter of defendant, it is gathered that the
plaintiff- Municipality is keen enough to get the Govt. School transferred in
the disputed building. In the document it is also mentioned that in absence of
relevant documents, the Govt. Girls School cannot be transferred in the
disputed building and, therefore, the Government is unable to carry out the
necessary repairs in the suit building. By this letter it has been requested to
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the plaintiffto carry out necessary repairs so that school building shall remain
intact. Another important document is Ex. P/5 which is a letter of the Director,
Local Self Government of the State of M.P. addressed to the Chief Municipal
Officer of the plaintiff~ Municipality. By this letter it has been asked to the
State Government that what is the valuation of the disputed building and whether
the building in question was given free of cost? If yes, then why it was given
free of cost and if not what is the rent and whether Municipality has made any
demand to realize the rent?. Thus defendants themselves are impliedly admitting
the ownership of the plaintiff, '

16.  The letter dated 5.11.1977 (Ex.P/6) is another important document
which is issued from the office of Divisional Education Superintendent of the
Government of M.P. to the President of the Plaintiff-Municipality. In this
document, again it has been requested to the plaintiff that till the building in
question is not transferred to the State Govt., necessary repairs cannot be
carried out by the State Govt. In this document it has been requested to the
plaintiff- Municipality that for a valid transfer, a gift deed may be executed. It
has further been requested to the plaintiff that necessary correspondence be
made through the Principal of the Govt. School so that after the suit building is
transferred to the State Govt., necessary repairs etc. may be carried out from
the Government side.

17.  Inthe minutes of the meeting dated 24.6.1995 which was presided
over by the Collector of the District Hoshangabad, it was resolved that the
suit building which is owned by the plaintiff and in which the Boarding house is
also situated, in the inspection certain deficiencies were found by the Sub
Divisional Officer O.P. Shrivastava and it was resolved that those deficiencies
be cured by the Municipality so that in the suit building the Central School
may be opened. A copy of said resolution Ex.P/8 was sent vide covering
letter Ex.P/7 by Collector, Hoshangabad to the plaintiff-Municipality. Thus,
by keeping the documents Ex. P/4 to P/8 in juxtaposition to each other, it is
gathered that not only once but every time and throughout, the defendants
have admitted the ownership of the plaintiff since in several documents it has
been categorically admitted expressly and impliedly by the defendants that
plaintiffis the owner of the suit property and hence, the plaintiffis the owner
of the suit property, this has been proved.

18.  Apart from the aforesaid documents wherein the defendants have
admuited the plaintiff’s ownership there is one more important document Ex.



fax

-

LL.R.[2013]M.P. Nagar Palika Parishad Vs. State of M.P. 1099

P/1 which is the resolution of the Municipality dated 23.9.1962 in which it
has been resolved that in pursuance to the letter of the State Government No.
LM.P.L.E./A/62-63/11/820 dated 6.2.1962, Govt. Middle School, Seoni is
to be upgraded and, therefore, in order to upgrade the Govt. school not only
monetary contribution of Rs. 10,000/- shall be given by the plaintiff but its
building shall also be given to the State Govt. to start the School in the dlsputed
building.

19. So faras the oral evidence is concerned, Ramesh Kumar Pandey the
then Chief Municipal Officer of the plaintiff-Municipality has categorically
proved the aforesaid documents and thus has proved-the ownership of the
plaintiff. The-evidence of Surya Kant Awasthy (DW-1) who was the earlier
Principal of the Govt. School has categorically admitted in para 5 of his cross
examination that he has not seen any document in regard to ownership of the
disputed building of the State Govt. nor he tried to gather any information in
this regard and similar type of statement is of another witness M.A. Khan
(DW-2) who is also the Principal and has said that ownership of the suit
building has been transferred to the State Govt. in this regard, he has not seen
any document. Thus, the stand which has been taken by the defendants in the
written statement which I have already quoted hereinabove not at all has been
proved. According to me, when by several documents wherein the defendants
have admitted the plaintiff’s ownership have been proved by the plaintiff. After
having discharged its burden that the plaintiffis the owner of the said property,
the burden of proof shifts upon the shoulders of the defendants to disprove
the case of plaintiff by filing the orders referred in para 10 of the written
statement. In the Trial Court as well as before this Court, the defendants are
banking upon the document Ex.D/2 which is a letter written by the Assistant
Professor, Public Education to Joint Director, Education Department. In this
letter, it has been written to the Joint Director that the schools which are being
run by the Municipality and Municipal Corporation, they are transferred to
the State Govt. but the ownership of the buildings in which the schools were
being run, were still being with the said local bodies. The Education Department
has not given any rent to those Institutions. The ownership of those buildings
have already been given to the Education Department and now these buildings
shall be deemed to be the buildings of the Education Department and, thereforz,
the necessary repairs are to be carried out by the State Govt. According to
me, even if the Assistant Director in its letter addressed to the Joint Director
has opined such a factual aspect, it would not mean that indeed the building in
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question has been vested in the State Govt. or the Education Department. It is
only the opinion expressed by the Assistant Director in this letter. Thus, by
this document Ex.D/2 it cannot be said that the ownership right has been
vested in the State Government.

20.  Evenotherwise, admittedly the valuation of the suit building is more
than Rs.100/- and if that would be the position, in terms of Section 17(b) of
Indian Registration Act, the registration of the documents is mandatory. It is
not the case of the defendants that the building in question has been acquired
or there is any conveyance deed in its favour. On the contrary, in the document
Ex.P/6 it has been requested by the Divisional Education Officer to the President
of the plaintiff to execute the gift deed in favour of the State Government. It is
not the case of defendants that in pursuance to the document, Ex. P/6 any gift
deed has been executed by the plaintiff and, therefore, the State Govt. is the
owner of the suit property. The documents and the orders referred in the
written statement are not proved. Even otherwise, by the said orders it cannot
be said that a valid conveyance has been made in favour of the State Govt. by
the plamntiff. Hence, according to me, the learned Trial Court contrary to the
plaintift’s proved documents Ex. P/4 to P/8 has held that plaintiff has not
proved its ownership over the suit property. According to me, the plaintiff has
proved its ownership.

21.  According to me, there cannot be a valid transfer of the ownership of
the building in question to the State Govt. in absence of a valid conveyance
deed. The term “Transfer of Property” has been defined in Section 5 of the
Transfer of Property Act, 1882 and it would be appropriate to quote Section
5 which reads thus:-

5. “Transfer of Property” defined.- In the following sections,
“transfer of property” means an act by which a living person
conveys property, in present or in future, to one or more living
persons, or to himself and one on more other living persons;
and “to transfer property” is to perform such act.”

If the definition of the term “Transfer of Property™is tested on the touchstone
and anvil of the present factual scenario, it would reveal that by executing any
conveyance deed by the plaintiff, to one or more defendants or any of its
functionaries, the plaintiffis not bound by any order of the State Govt. which
are not even proved and filed.

22.  Resultantly, for the reasons stated hereinabove, this appeal succeeds
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and is hereby allowed. The impugned judgment of learned Trial Court is hereby
set aside and suit of plaintiffis decreed. The possession of the suit property-
has already been delivered to the plaintiffand this has been so held'by learned
Trial Court while deciding issue no.2 and learned counsel for the partles also
did not dispute to this factual aspect. No costs. :
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Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
M.A. No. 4383/2009 (Jabalpur) demded on 5 March, 2013

'SARASWATI KUSHWAHA ...Appellant
Vs. .
BADRI SINGH & ors. ...Respondents

A. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Sections 166 & 173 -~
Rash and Negligent Driving - Accident occurred because of felling of
brldge when the Offending Vehicle was passing - There may be some
‘fault on the part of the concerned department however; if the driver
would have been fully conscious, then the accident could have been
avoided - Tribunal rightly held the owner and driver liable to pay
compensation. : . (Para8)

& wlev i FEfgT (1988 @ 59), TRIY 166 T 173 —
aArTdyT ® oY SUeTyT 9IET Ferr — geieT udY wuife gu A
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B. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Lmbu'lty
of Insurance Company - Violation of Policy - Insurance Company
alleged that offending vehicle was hired by occupants whereas. the
witness examined by Company in this regard was only a hearsay
witness which is having no evidentiary value - There is nothing on record’
to prove that vehicle was being used for commercial purpose - Insurance
Company Liable. ' : . ’ (Para 10)

A nfavwaﬁ?ﬁw(mas afrsg) T 147 — a?wraﬂm?afr



1102 Saraswati Kushwaha V's. Badri Singh LL.R.[2013]M.P.
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C. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability
of Insurance Company - Act Policy - No plea was raised in written
statement that policy which was issued was an act policy - In absence
of any plea raised in written statement, evidence and cross-objection,
the claim of the claimants cannot be defeated on the ground which is

raised for the first time during course of arguments. (Para 11)

T Hev 7 JfIIT (1988 HT 59), SINT 147 — 197 FAH F7
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Cases referred:

2008(2) TAC 691(MP), 2011(1) DMP 204 (Raj), (2006) 4 SCC
404, C.A. No. 8163/2012.

Akhilesh Singh, for the appellant.
Amrit Ruprah, for the respondent No.3,

ORDER

N.K. Mobpy, J.:- This order shall also govern disposal of
M.A Nos.4384/09, 4385/09, 4387/09, 43 88/09 filed by the appellants and
also M.A.Nos.1292/10, 1294/10, 1296/10, 1302/10 and 1303/10 filed by
respondent No.3 as in all the appeals parties are one and the same except the
claimants and also the award is dated 23.7.2009 passed by MACT, Rewa,
whereby various claim petitions filed by the claimants were allowed and
compensation was awarded.

2. Short facts of the case are that appellants filed a claun petltlon alleging
that on 22.5.2006 deceased Ravendra Kushwah, Ramnaresh Kushwah

Ku Krishna Kushwah, Ashish Kushwah and Dayaram Kushwah were travelling™
in the offending Marshal Jeep, which was owned by respondent No. 1, driven
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by respondent No.2 rashly arid negligently and insured with respondent No.3.
It was alleged that because of rash and negligent driving in all five persons,
out of which three were minor, passed away. It was prayed that claim petitions
be allowed and compensation be awarded. The claim petitions were contested
by respondent No.3 on various grounds including on the ground that
respondent No.3 was not liable for payment of compensation. It was alleged
that offending vehicle was a private vehicle and could not be used for hire
and reward. It was alleged.that the accident occurred because of falling of
the bridge and the Jeep fell down in the river. It was alleged that because of
negligence on the part of the Government accident took place for which
appellants were already compensated by the State Government. It was prayed
that claim petitions be dismissed. After framing of issues and recording of
evidence learned Tribunal allowed the claim petitions and awarded the
compensation against which appellants and respondent No.3 has filed the
appeals. '

-

3. Learned counsel for appellants argued at length and submits that
out of the five, three were minor namely Krishna, Ashish and Ravendra
aged 10, 8 and 12 years respectively. It is submitted that in all the three
cases learned Tribunal assessed the compensation to the tune of Rs.
1,80,000/- and deducted Rs. 1,00,000/- on account of ex-gratia paid to
the appellants by the Government. It is submitted that amount awarded is
on lower side. Similarly the deduction of the amount paid to the appellants
under ex-gratia is illegal. Learned counsel further submits that in other
two cases deceased were Ramnaresh & Dayaram and learned Tribunal
assessed the income @ Rs...3,000/- per month and after deducting 1/3
towards personal expenses applied the multiplier of 16 and 13
respectively. It is submitted that income assessed is on lower side and
deduction towards personal expenses is on higher side and application
of multiplier is on lower side. It is submitted that appeals be allowed and
the amount of compensation be enhanced.

4. Learned counsel for respondent No.3 supports the award so far as it
relates to the amount is concerned. Learned counsel further submits that the
offending vehicle was being driven by respondent No.2 on whose part there
was no negligence, therefore, learned Tribunal committed error in holding the
respondent No.3 liable for payment of compensation. Learned counsel further
submits that since offending vehicle was private vehicle and was being used
for carrying passengers in violation of terms of the policy, therefore, learned
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Tribunal committed error in holding the respondent No.3 liable for payment of .
compensation. It is submitted that since the policy does not cover the risk.of
passengers for hire or reward as it was a act policy, therefore, learned Tribunal

was not justified in holding respondent No.3 liable, Learned counsel further

submits that since accident occurred because of negligence on the part of the

PWD, who constructed the bridge, which fell down for which the ex-gratia

payment was made by the State Government, therefore, learned Tribunal

committed error in holding respondent No.3 liable. It is submitted that amount

awarded is otherwise on higher side. It is submitted that appeals filed by the

appellants be dismissed and appeals filed by the respondent No.3 be allowed

and the impugned award so far as it relates to respondent No.3 is concerned,

be set aside.

5. From perusal of the record it is evident that out of the five cases, three
cases are of child death. Accident is of the year 2006 in the facts and
circumstances in each of the cases amount is enhanced by Rs.20,000/-.

6. - So far as the appeals which are filed by the dependents of
deceased Dayaram (MA.no.4385/09) and Ramnaresh (MA.No.4384/09)
are concerned, it appears that the income has been assessed @ Rs.3,000/-
per month and after deducting 1/3rd towards personal expenses multiplier
of 16 has been applied. In the matter of deceased Ramnaresh a sum of
Rs.4,51,000/- was assessed, out of which Rs. 1,00,000/- was deducted
on account of ex-gratia. So far as deceased Dayaram is concerned,
multiplier of 13 has been applied and after deduction a sum of
Rs.2,35,000/- was awarded.

7. In the opinion of this Court, in both the cases appellants are further
entitled for a sum of Rs.50,000/- in each of the case. In the matter of
Bhanwri Bai Vs. Union of India, 2008(2) TAC 691 (MP.) wherein ex-
gratia payment was made as Rs.5,00,000/- and compensation was
assessed as Rs.9,25,000/-, Divisional Bench of this Court has held that
keeping in view the statutory provisions of the Act the amount of
compensation has to be determined as per principles of the Act and the
amount paid as ex-gratia cannot be deducted. Similar view has been taken
by Rajasthan High Court in the matter of Rajesh Kanwar Vs. Munna

Ram, 2011(1,) DMP 204 (Raj.). In view of this this Court is also of the

view that the learned Tribunal was not justified in deducting the amount
paid to the claimants/appellants by the Government as ex-gratia.

e
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8. So far as question of liability of respondents is concerned, undoubtedly
the accident occurred because of felling down of the Bridge, at the relevant
time offending vehicle was passing from pentoon bridge. There may be some
fault on the part of the concerned department of the Government who has
constructed the bridge. If the respondent No.2 would have fully conscious
then the accident could have been avoided. Therefore, this Court is of the
view that learned Tribunal committed no error in holding the respondent Nos.
1 & 2 liable for payment of compensatwn

9. So far as liability of respondent No.3 is concerned, submlssmn
made by Mrs. Amrit Ruprah, advocate on behalf of respondent No.3 are
in two folds, firstly since the occupants were fare paying passengers,
therefore, respondent No.3 is not liable and secondly since the policy
which was issued was an act policy, therefore, also even if the risk of
passenger was covered, then too, respondent No.3 1s not liable for
payment of compensation for the death on account of occupants. For
this contention reliance is placed on a decision in the matter of United
India Insurance Co. Ltd.-Vs. Tilak Singh, (2006) 4 SCC 404 wherein
Hon'ble Apex Court has held that risk of death or injury to gratuitous
passenger carried in a private vehicle, does not cover such a risk under
Section 147 of Motor Vehicles Act. Learned counsel further placed
reliance on a decision in the matter of ‘National Insurance Co. Lid. V.
Balakrishnan passed in Civil Appeal No.8163/12 arising out of SLP
(Civil) No.1232/12 wherein Hon'ble Apex Court has observed that act
policy cannot cover a third party risk of an occupant in a car. .

10. ' From perusal of the record it is evident that to avoid the liability
respondent No.3 has examined VK. Pandey (Investigator) who has stated
that the offending vehicle was hired by the occupants, who passed away. In
his cross-examination he has stated that he was informed by Rajkumar that
the vehicle was hired. The statement of Rajkumar was not recorded by the
investigator. Rajkumar was also not examined by respondent No.3. Statement
of VK. Pandey is based.on hearsay evidence, which is having no evidentory
value. Similar is the position of the statement of Dwarikaprasad Tiwari who is
clerk of respondent No.3 and has stated that the offending vehicle was insured
for personal purpose, while the vehicle was being used for commercial purpose,
for which no premium was charged. For proving the fact that the vehicle was
being used for commercial purpose, except this, nothing is onrecord on the
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basis of which it can be said that the offending vehicle was being used for
commercial purpose.

1. Coming to the second contention that the policy which was issued
was an act policy, therefore, respondent No.3 was not liable is concerned,
the plea was not raised in the written statement. On the contrary the plea
raised by respondent No.3 was to the effect that photocopy of the policy
which has been filed by the appellants has yet to be verified, hence it is
denied that offending vehicle was insured., Similarly it was also pleaded
that since the vehicle was being used for carrying passengers, therefore,
respondent No.3 was not liable for payment of compensation. Thus in
the written statement it was not the case of respondent No.3 that since it
was an act policy, therefore, respondent No.3 is not liable for payment
of compensation. In evidence no cross-examination is made on the witness
examined by the appellant to the effect that since it was an act policy,
therefore, respondent No.3 is not liable for payment of compensation.
The investigator Mr. VK. Pandey and the clerk of respondent No.3 Mr.
DP. Tiwari have also not stated that because of act policy respondent
No.3 is not liable for payment of compensation. In the award passed by
the learned Tribunal also the learned Tribunal has examined whether the
respondent No.3 can be exonerated on the ground that vehicle was being
used for carrying passengers and the driver was not possessing valid
driving license. This aspect was not examined by the learned Tribunal
that whether liability can be avoided on account of act policy. In the appeal
filed by the appellant no cross-objection has been filed by respondent
No.3. In absence of plea raised in the written statement, evidence and
cross-objection, claim of the appellants cannot be defeated on the ground
which is raised for the first time during course of arguments. Otherwise
also ground raised by the respondent No.3 has no basis.

12, Inview of this appeals filed by the appellants stand allowed. Amount
enhanced as indicated above shall carry interest @ 8% P.A. Findings regarding
deduction of amount on account of payment of ex-gratia stands quashed.
Copy of the order be placed in the connected appeals.

No order as to costs.

Appeal allowed

K X
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APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
M.A. No. 79/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 6 March, 2013

M. PEETAMBER : ....Appellant
Vs.
UNION OF INDIA ...Respondent

Railway Claims Tribunal Act, (54 of 1987), Section 17(1)(b)(2)
- Condonation of delay - After deletion of Section 166(3) of Motor
Vehicles Act, the Claims Tribunal should have adopted liberal approach
and should not have dismissed the claim petition merely on the ground
of delay of five years - Appeal allowed and matter remitted back to
Tribunal for decision on merits. (Para5)

Re7 rar ST a7 (1987 BT 54), arer 17(1)()(z) — A&7
F for et — Mex g Aty 3 9RT 166(3) T sT@ WA @ YA,
=Tar Afrever B SER gReHI arqeTy Ay o Y T arfaer @ AT
qig o @ fdd 3. AR R @it TE e arfEe o — arfi|d weR X
arqer rraist X faa f5d o 2y sfteeor w8t afid )

Manoj Patel, for the appellant.
Govind Patel, for the respondent.

ORDER

N.K.Moby, J.: Being aggrieved by the order dated 09/10/12 passed
by Railway Claims Tribunal, Bhopal in Case No.0038/12 whereby the
application for condonation of delay and consequently the petition filed by
the appellant for compensation was dismissed on the ground of delay, present
appeal has been filed. '

2, Short facts of the case are that the appellant filed a claim petition for
compensation on account of injuries sustained in railway accident which took
place on 28/08/05. In the claim petition it was alleged that the appellant was
travelling in Puri-Ahmedabad Express for coming to Durg. It was alleged that
because of heavy rush appellant fell down, with the result right hand of the
appellant was amputated above the elbow and right leg of the appellant was
amputated above the knee. It was further alleged that because of heavy bleeding
appellant was brought t6 Durg and from where he was referred to Jawaharlal



1108 M. Peetamber Vs. Union of India LL.R.[2013]M.P.

Nehru Hospital, Bhilai. It was prayed that the claim petition be allowed and
compensation be awarded. This claim petition was filed on 13/01/2012, while
alleged incident took place on 28/08/05. Since there was delay of five years
four months and 15 days in filing the claim petition, therefore, an application
for condonation of delay was filed, which was dismissed by the impugned
order, hence this appeal.

3. Learned counsel for the appellant argued at length and submits that
the impugned order passed by the learned Court below is illegal, incorrect
and deserves to be set aside. It is submitted that in the facts and circumstances
of the case the approach of the learned Tribunal ought to have been liberal
and application for condonation of delay ought to have been allowed. It is
submitted that the appeal filed by the appellant be allowed and impugned
order passed by the learned Tribunal be set aside.

4. Learned counsel for respondent supports the order and submits that
the plea taken by the appellant for condoning the delay that the appellant was
unaware about the position of Law is not available to the appellant as ignorance
of law is no ground to condone the inordinate delay. It is submitted that no
‘illegality has been committed by the learned Tribunal in dismissing the
application, hence appeal filed by the appellant has no merits and the same be
dismissed. :

5. From perusal of record, it appears that there is an inordinate delay in
filing the claim petition which is more than five years. Under the Railway Claims
Tribunal Act, 1987 claim petition is being filed under Section 13 of thé Act
and in case the claim petition is filed for compensation on account of injuries
or death the limitation is prescribed under Section 17 (1) (b) of the Act which
is of one year and claim petition can be filed after expiry of one year alongwith
the application for condonation of delay under Section 17 (2) of the Act for
which the appellant has to show the bonafide ground for the delay. In Motor
Vehicles Act, 1988 as per Section 166 (3) claim application was to be filed
within six months and as per the proviso delay can be condoned on sufficient
grounds which prevented the claimant to file the claim petition in the prescribed
time. Provisions of Section 166 (3) of Motor Vehicles Act was borrowed
from'Section 110-A(3) of Motor Vehicles Act, 1939. Section 166 (3) of
. Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 was deleted by way of amendment w.e.f, 14/11/
. 1994, with the result in case of injuries or death in a motor.accident claim

petition can be filed at any point of time while it is not possible relating to

LA
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Railway Claims. However, keeping in view the aims and objects for deleting
sub clause 3 of section 166 of Motor Vehicles Act whereby limitation for
filing the claim petition for compensation on account of injuries or death was
deleted, it is expected from the Railway Claims Tribunal to consider the
application for condonation of delay liberally as by allowing the application
for condonation of delay the claim petition is not being allowed as the claimants
have to prove their case for getting the compensation. The whole idea for
deleting Section 166 (3) of Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 was that no claim petition
filed by claimant for compensation on account of injuries or by the dependents
on account of death should not be dismissed on the ground of delay. Same
principles applies when learned Railway Claims Tribunal deals with the
application for condonation of delay. In view of this, this Court finds that
learned tribunal was not justified in dismissin the application for condonation
of delay specially in a death case where appellant is only surviver and lost her
son. Thus, appeal filed by the appellant is allowed and the impugned order
passed by the learned tribunal stands set-aside and case is remanded back to
the learned tribunal to decide the case on merits. Parties are directed to remain
present before the learned tribunal on 09/04/2013.

6. With the aforesaid observations, appeal stands disposed of C C as
per rules.

Appeal disposed of.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1109
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice N.K. Mody
M.A. No. 3350/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 March, 2013

'ORIENTAL INSURANCE CO. LTD. ...Appellant
Vs. ‘
TAKSHASHILA & ors. ' .+-Respondents

A. Workmen's Compensatwn At 18 of 1923), Section 21 -
Claim Petition - Territorial Jurisdiction - - Appeliant did not bring it to
the notice of the Commissioner that it has no territorial jurisdiction -
On the contrary it submitted the jurisdiction of the Court below by
submitting the written statement and by leading evidence - As appellant
has led evidence, therefore, no prejudice has been caused to the
appellant - Claim of claimants cannot be defeated only on the ground
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of lack of territorial jurisdiction. (Para 11)

@, wHBIe BlawY FlEIfray, (1923 @7 8) anT 21 — TraT
@ — G sfaRar — adfiareff 4 iR a wrerd T8 9 Ry
aﬁﬁﬁwaﬁwﬁmaﬁ—sﬁﬁﬁawﬁ%@am&mﬁwm&%aﬁ?
qumamﬁaawaﬁaﬁmﬁmumaﬁ—qﬁimﬁmaﬁ
#wmﬁwﬁrmsﬂﬁrqaﬁmaﬂﬁﬁs‘waﬁﬂﬁmgéé—
gl ST gmar A Ay aftreRar @ ava S SmER TR W ey
fpar o wear|

B. Workmen's Compensation Act (8 of 1923), Section 21 -
Driving License - Driver was killed by terrorists in Nepal while he was
driving the truck - Whether the deceased was having valid driving
license to drive the vehicle at Nepal or not makes no difference as the

incident is not the outcome of the negligent driving of deceased - Appeal
dismissed. (Para 12)

A FHSI ImY Gffam, (1923 #T 8) GRT 21 — WA
FFFA AT ~ maﬁ#m#mﬁmﬁﬁmwwmaﬁgmw
& AT — T SUS U AU A A8 v @ ¢ A awas aqafa oft
_mmaﬁsvﬁaﬁa‘wﬁaﬁusmaﬁﬁﬁm.qwa?eﬁmﬂm
TdM ® aRvmweY ufeq w6 g — adie @R |

Case referred :
(2007) 11 SCC 616.

Amrit Ruprah, for the appellant.
Sanjay Verma, for the respondents No. 1 to 4.

ORDER

N.K. Moby, J.: Being aggrieved by the order dated 25/11/2011
passed by Commissioner for Workmen's Compensation Cum Labour Court,
Jabalpur in case No.128/2006 whereby claim petition filed by the respondents
No.1 to 4 was allowed and compensation of Rs.3,98,800/-was awarded
alongwith interest @ 12% p.a. w.e.f. 20/02/2005, present appeal has been
filed. This appeal was admitted on the following substantial questions of law :-

(1) "Whether in the facts and circumstances of the case,
learned Court below was justified in holding the appellant
“liable for payment of compensation while deceased was .

e
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driving the vehicle for which neither offending vehicle was
having the valid permit nor the deceased was having the
valid license ?”

(2) "Whether in the facts and circumstances of the
case, learned Court below was justified in passing the
award against the appellant while learned Court below
was having no territorial jurisdiction ?"

2. Short facts of the’case are that respondents No.1 to 4 file a claim
petition before the learned Court below alleging that deceased/Nirpat Singh
was driver on a truck bearing registration No.M.P.-23/DA/9185 which was
owned by respondent No.5 and insured with the appellant. It was alleged
that when the deceased was in the said tr~'- 2t Nepal he was murdered by
terrorist. It was alleged that since deceased was in the employment of
respondent No.5 and death took place during course of the employment,
therefore, claim petition be allowed and compensation be awarded. The claim
petition was contested by the appellant on various grounds including on the
ground that offending vehicle was having no permit on the date of incident
and also deceased was having no valid license on the date when the incident
took place to drive the offending vehicle at Nepal. It was alleged, that since
the accident took place out of India, therefore, Court at Jabalpur is having no
jurisdiction to decide the claim petition. It was prayed that claim petition be
dismissed. After framing of issues and recording of evidence, learned Court
below allowed the claim petition filed by the respondents No.1 to 4 and
awarded the compensation against which the present appeal has been filed.

3. Learned counsel for the appellant argued at Iength and submits that
the impugned order passed by the learned Court below is illegal, incorrect
and deserves to be set-aside. [t is submitted that as per.proviso to Section 21
of Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 learned Court below was not justified
in allowing the claim petition filed by the respondents No.1 to 4. It is submitted
that undisputedly incident took place at Nepal. {* is submitted that since the
incident took place during the course of employment, therefore, liability to
pay the compensation is on the employer as the offending vehicle was being
driven in violation of terms of policy. It is submitted that appeal filed by the
appellant be allowed and the impugned order passed by the learned Court
below be set-aside.
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4. Learned counsel for the respondents No.1 to 4 submit that ordinarily
claimants are residing at Seoni, therefore, claim petition was filed at Jabalpur
and the Court at Jabalpur is having the jurisdiction to decide the same. For
this contention reliance is placed on a decision in the matter of Morgina Begum
Vs. Md. Hanuman Plantation Ltd. (2007) 11 SCC 616 wherein Hon'ble
Apex Court had an occasion to dealt with the Section 21 (1) (b) of Workmen's
Compensation Act, 1923 and it was held that application for compensation
could be filed at location where the claimant parents had moved after death of
their son. It was also held that Section 21(1) (b) permits filing of claim petition
in case of death where the dependent ordinarily resides. It is submitted that
learned Court below committed no error in allowing the claim petition filed by
the respondents No. 1 to 4 and awarding compensation. It is submitted that
appeal filed by the appellant has no merits and the same be dismissed.

5. From perusal of record, it appears that to prove the case respondents
No.1 to 4 has filed the documents which are Ex.P/1 to P/6. Apart from this,
appellant has filed the documents Ex.D/1 and D/2. Respondents No.1 to 4
has examined Takshashila as AW/1. Appellant has examined P, Nagarajan
NAW/1, Babulal AryaNAW/2 and Paramjeet Singh NAW/3.

6. Section 21 of Workmen's Compensation Act deals with venue of
proceedings and transfer, which reads as under:

21.  Venue of proceedings and transfer. (1) Where any matter
under this Act is to be done by or before a Commissioner, the same shall,
subject to the provisions of this Act and to any rules made hereunder; be done
by or before the Commissioner for the area in which-

(a) the accident took place which resulted in the injury; or

(b)  the workman or in case of his death, the dependent
claiming the compensation ordinarily resides; or

(c) the employer has his registered office:

Provided that no matter shall be proceeded before or
by a Commissioner, other than the Commissioner having
jurisdiction over the area in which the accident took place,
without his giving notice in the manner prescribed by the Central
Government to the Commissioner having jurisdiction over the
area and the State Government concerned:;
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Provided further that, where the workman, being the-
master of a ship or a seaman or the'captain or a member of
the crew of an aircraft or a workman in a motor vehicle ora
company, meets with the accident outside India any such matter
may be done by or before a Commissioner for the area in
which the owner or agent of the ship, aircraft or motor vehicle
resides or carries on business or the registered office of the
company is situated, as the case may be.

(1A) Ifacommissioner, other than the Commissioner with
whom any money has been deposited under Section 8,
proceeds with a matter under this Act, the former may for the
proper disposal of the matter call for transfer of any records
or moneys remaining with the latter and on receipt of such a
request, he shall comply with the same.

(2)  Ifacommissioner is satisfied [that any matter arising
out of any proceedings pending before him] can be more
conveniently dealt with by any other Commissioner, whether
. in the same State or not, he may, subject to rules made under
this Act, order such matter to be transferred to such other
Commissioner either for report or for disposal, and, if he does
s0, shall forthwith transmit to such other Commissioner all
documents relevant for the decision of such matter and, where
the matter is transferred for disposal, shall also transmit in the
prescribed manner any money remaining in his hands or
invested by him for the benefit of any party to the proceedings:

[Provided that the Commissioner shall not, where any party
to the proceedings has appeared before him, make any order of
transfer relating to the distribution among dependents of a lump
sum without giving such party an opportunity of being heard:}

(3)  The Commissionerto whom any matfteris so transferred
shall, subject to rules made under this Act, inquire thereinto any, if .
the matter was transferred for report, return his report thereon .
or, if the matter was transferred for disposal, continue the
proceedings as if they had originally commenced before him.

(4)  Onreceipt of areport from a Commissioner to whom
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any matter has been transferred for report under sub-section
(2), the Commissioner by whom it was referred shall decide
the matter referred in conformity with such report.

(5)  The State Government may transfer any matter from
any Commissioner appointed by it to any other Commissioner
appointed by it.

7. From perusal of the record it is evident that earlier also claim petition
was filed by respondent Nos. 1 to 4 for compensation under the provisions of
Motor Vehicles Act as is alleged by respondent No.2 in its written statement,
of which copy is not on record. In the written statement the plea which has
been raised by appellant for avoiding the liablity is that MACT, Seoni has

already held that death of Nirpat Singh was not during course of employment,

therefore, claim petition is not maintainable. The other ground which was taken
was that the deceased Nirpat Singh was not possessing valid driving license
to drive the offending vehicle at Nepal. The permit which is filed by the appellant
is valid to ply the vehicle within the territory of India and there was no permit
to take the vehicle abroad. It was alleged that since the vehicle was without
permit, fitness certificate and deceased was not possessing valid license,
therefore, the vehicle was being driven in violation of terms of policy. So far
as jurisdiction is concerned, it is alleged that since the accident occurred at
Kathmandu and respondent Nos. 1 to 4 are not resident of'J abalpur, therefore,
Jabalpur Court is having no jurisdiction, It was also alleged that if the claim
petition would have been filed at Nagpur, then full facts could have been brought
onrecord by respondent No.5 who is having the office at Nagpur.

8. No issue was framed by the learned Court below relating to territorial
jurisdiction of the Court. No effort was made by appellant by moving an
appropriate application to frame additional issue relating to jurisdiction. To
prove the case respondent Nos. 1 to 4 have examined respondent No. 1. In
cross-examination on behalf of appellant, respondent No. 1 has stated that
she is resident of Seoni. Appellant has examined P. Nagrajan Administrative
Officer of Insurance Company, who has stated that as per policy Ex.D/1 driver
should have possess the license of the place where he is driving the vehicle
and also the vehicle must be having a permit of the place where accident
occurred. He has further stated that the deceased was having license to drive
the vehicle in India and the offending vehicle was also having a permit of four
States, while accident took place at Nepal, therefore, there was violation of

B
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terms of policy, hence appellant is not liable for payment of compensétion.

9. Thus, neither any issue was framed in this regard that the tribunal has

_ nojurisdiction to hear and decide the claim pet1t1on nor any evidence was led
in that regard. Even respondent No.1 was not cross-examined in connection
to territorial jurisdiction.

10.  Asper Section21 of Workmen's Compensation Act the claim petition
is maintainable where the accident took place which resulted in injury orin
case of death the dependent claiming the compensation ordinarily resides or
employer has his registered office. As per second proviso of Section21 ifa
workman in a motor vehicle meets with the accident outside India, the matter
can be dealt with before Commissioner for the area in which owner of motor
vehicle resides or carries on business, but as per Clause (2) of the proviso of
Section 21 of the Act if the Commissioner before whom the claim petition is
filed, is satisfied that the matter can be dealt with more conveniently by any
other Commissioner he may transfer the matter to Comissioner either for report
or for disposal. Keeping in view the amendment in Section 21 of Workmen's
Compensation Act and the law laid down by the Hon'ble Apex Court in the
matter of Morgina Begum (Supra) wherein it was observed that the idea
behind introductionof this amendment is that migrant labourers all over the
country often go elsewhere to earn their livelihood. When an accident takes
place then in order to facilitate the claimants they may make their claim not
necessarily at the place where the accident took place but also at the place
where they ordinarily reside. This amendment was introduced in the Act in
1995. This was done with a very loudable object, otherwise it could cause
hardship to the claimant to claim compensation under the Act. It is not possible
for poor workmzn or their dependents who reside in one part of the country
and shift from one place to another for their livelihood to necessarily go to the
place of the accident for filing a claim petition. Labour statutes are for the
welfare of the workmen.

11. Inthe present casé since no issue was framed in that regard and
appellant also did not brmg it to the notice of Commissioner that it has no
territorial jurisdiction to hear and decide the claim petition, on the contrary
appellant submitted the jurisdiction of the learned Court below by submitting
the written statement and by cross-examining AW/1, who was examined by
appellant and also adduced the evidence, this Court finds that at this stage the
order passed in favour of respondent Nos. 1 to 4 cannot be defeated only on
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the groﬁnd that learned Court below was having no territorial jurisdiction.
Since the appellant has led the evidence, therefore, it appears that no prejudice
has caused to the appellant.

12, So far as other ground which has been raised by the appellant that the
deceased was not possessing valid driving license to drive the vehicle at Nepal
is concerned, undoubtedly policy was issued for India and for Nepal as well,
while at the time of issuance of policy the offending vehicle was having permit
of all the four States in India and not for Nepal. No evidence has been adduced
by the appellant to prove that the deceased was having no license to drive the
vehicle at Nepal. Since the plea was raised by the appellant that the deceased
was not having license to drive the vehicle at Nepal, therefore, heavy burden
was on the appellant to prove this fact. No effort was made by the appellant
by issuing notices to the employer who is respondent No.5 to produce the
license of deceased. Though the fact that the deceased was not having license
to drive the offending vehicle at Nepal, was not proved by the appellant, then
too, if for the sake of arguments it is assumed that the deceased was not
having license to drive the vehicle at Nepal, then too, it makes no difference in
the present case as the incident is notoutcome of negligent driving of deceased,
but the incident took place when the deceased was killed by terrorist. In the
facts and circumstances of the case claim petition filed by respondent Nos. 1
to 4 cannot be defeated on this ground also.

13. Inview of this, appeal filed by the appellant has no merits and the
same stands dismissed. .

No order as to costs. .
’ Appeal dismissed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P,, 1116
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice M.C. Garg
M.A. No. 644/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on 14 March, 2013

RAM MILAN GUPTA & anr. "... Appellants
Vs. ’
DASHRATH SINGH GOND & anr. ...Respondents

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 147 - Liability of
Insu=cnce Company - Violation of Insurance Policy - Tractor was
insured for agricultural purposes while it was carrying stones - As the
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Tractor was being used in violation of the insurance policy, Insurance
Company is not liable. (Paras)

ey T AT (1988 FT 59), @rer 147 — Fwr wUAT T
TaIveIied — 197 giferdt &7 veors T — $9eR & |y gAteE gy it
fpar 1T o wafe S weeR & W o @ o — e T’ &1 SuAT
a1 giferdht & Seaaw ¥ foar w1 e o, 4 Susl Scaverdl FE |
Case referred : '

2008(1) MPLJ 72.

Neeraj Ashar, for the appellants.
Rohit Jain, for the respondent No.2/Insurance Company.

‘ORDER

M.C. GARG, J.: Appellant No. 2 is the owner of the tractor bearing
No. MP-17/6572 which met with an accident inasmuch as, while carrying
some stones in the aforesaid tractor it turned which caused injures to the
persons who were sitting in the tractor and also to the injured on account of
turning of the tractor.

2. The claim petition was objected to by the insurance company on the
ground that in this case, insurance company could not have been fastened
with the liability for two reasons i.e. (I) tractor could not have been used for
other purpose except agriculture for which it was insured, carrying stones
could not have been said to be agricultural purpose and (ii) passengers are
not allowed to sit on the tractor.

3. Motor Accident Claims Tribunal accepted the pleas taken by the
insurance company and while granting compensation to the injured has
exonerated the insurance company but fastened the liability on the owner.
Relevant discussion appears in paras 17 to 20 of the impugned award which
reads as under:-

gre uvd $H—3 @ faEa—

17, FAEE WEN @1 Tew, ¥ S adET H @a fear € fF
IOHT AT gae? HB.-YAM17 / 6572 e fEATe B fafdee difva
o7 | FFTde® UeT @1 A 9 e STaRY $u! g ¢a.ga.eL
2geX H—VAUL17 /6572 B fETP 14.12.96 | 13.12.97 TF ARG
STONY o] fafies § fifag 8 g9 aeifrpe—uifer=h Rraer
FER I B 102390 § Bier BN wwgd o 21 59 Qe smes
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e A T A, T ST, T A gAls ST B I8 (AT el
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4. Learned counsel appearing on behalf of the insurance company has
supported the aforesaid finding with judgment of the Full Bench of this Court
in the case of Bhav Singh v. Savirani and others reported in 2008 (1)
M.P.L.J. 72 wherein it has been held as under:

"9. This position of law has been clarified by Supreme Court
in National Insurance Co. Limited v. Prembai Patel, AIR
2005 SC 2337. The relevant portion of the judgment of the
Supreme Court in Prembai Patel (supra) from paragraph 12
of the judgment as reported in the AIR is extracted below:;

"Clause (b) of Sub-section (1) of Section 147 provides
that a policy of insurance must be a policy which insures
the person or classes of persons specified in the policy
to the extent specified in Sub-section (2) against any
liability which may be incurred by him in respect of -
death of, or bodily injury to any person or passenger
or damage to any property of a third party caused by
or arising out of the use of the vehicle in public place.
Sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Clause (b) are
comprehensive in the sense that they cover both 'any
person’ or '‘passenger’. An employee of owner of the
vehicle like a driver or a conductor may also come
within the purview of the words 'any person' occurring
in Sub-clause (i). However, the proviso (i) to Clause
(b) of Sub-section (1) of Section 147 says that a policy
shall not be required to cover liability in respect of
death, arising out of and in the course of his
employment, of the employee of a person insured by
the policy or in respect of bodily injury sustained by

i
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such an employee arising out of and in the course of
his employment other than a liability arising under the
Workmen's Act if the employee is such as described
in Sub-clauses (a) or (b) or (c). The effect of this
proviso is that if an insurance policy covers the liability
under the Workmen's Act in respect of death of or
bodily injury to any such employee as is described in
Sub-clauses (a) or (b) or (¢) of proviso (i) to Section
147(1)(b), it will be a valid policy and would comply
with the requirements of Chapter XI of the Act.

10.  Sub-section (5) of Section 147 of the Act, however,
provides that notwithstanding anything contained in any law
for the time being in force, an insurer issuing a policy of
insurance under Section 147 of the Act shall be liable to
indemnify a person or classes of persons specified in the policy
in respect of any liability which the policy purports to cover in
the case of that person or classes of persons. Thus, if the policy
of insurance covers any liability in addition to the liability under
Section 147(1) of the Act, the insurer will be liable to indemmnify
the insured in case of any liability not because of the provisions
of Sub-section (1) of Section 147 but because of the terms
and conditions of contract of insurance between the insurer
and the insured. Therefore, if the contract of insurance provides .
for a liability to a passenger or to an employee other than the
liabilities provided under Sub-section (1) of Section 147 of
the Act, the insurer would be liable to indemnify the 1nsured
against such liability."

5. Considering the aforesaid judgment given by the Full Bench of this Court,
conditions of the policy and admitted fact that the tractor was used for carrying
stones which were brought for the purpose of putting tube well, in which owner
brought number of persons which were carrying stones probably work of the
owner was for the purpose of getting tube well fixed, the owner apparently
violated conditions of the policy, therfore, there is no infirmity in the impugned
award passed by the tribunal in exonerating the insurance company.

6. In view of the aforesaid, this appeal is dismissed.
.Appeal dismissed.
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JAGDISH PRASAD ._ ...Appellant
Vs.
KANHAIYALAL @ KANDHALI & ors. ...Respondents

A, - Evidence Act (1 0of 1872), Section 21 - Proof of admissions
- Admissions are substantive evidence by themselves though they are
not conclusive proof of the matter admitted - Witness must be asked
questions which would test his veracity more so where there is a direct
contradiction and conflict between his statements before the Court and
alleged previous admission. (Para 19)
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Sections 21, 138 & 146 - Proof
of admissions - Defendant in reply to notice had stated that theé plaintiff
had become unchaste after the death of her husband - In written
statement it was pleaded that the plaintiff was unchaste during the life
time of her husband and therefore, she was ousted from her matrimonial
house in the year 1950 itself - As the defendant had made clear and
specific statements which were directly in conflict with the statement
in reply, the appellants were required to and should have confronted
the defendant with the same during his cross-examination to test his
veracity. (Para 20)
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JUDGMENT

R.S. Jua, J. :- The appellant has filed this appeal being aggrieved by
the judgment and decree dated 2.4.1 996 passed by the District Judge, Panna
in Civil Appeal No.19-A/86 affirming and confirming the judgment and decree
dated 24.10.1986 passed by the Civil Judge Class-I, Panna in Civil Suit No.1-
A/79-85 thereby dismissing the suit of the appellant claiming a decree for
declaration as owner in possession of house No.53/6 situated in Mohalla
Raniganj, Panna as well as for a permanent injunction prohibiting the
respondents from demolishing the wall of his house.

2. The brief facts, leading to the filing of the present appeal, are that the
house in question initially belonged to Gokul Prasad who had two sons,
Narmada Prasad and the original respondent Kanhaiyalal @ Kandhai. The
original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya was the wife of Narmada Prasad who died on
15.3.1949. The suit was filed by the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya on
26.6.1979 alleging that she was in possession of and is residing in House
No.53/6, Mohalla Raniganj, Panna since the death of her husband but when
she approached the local Municipal Authorities for sanction of the map as
well as for a water connection in the year 1979, she came to know that the
house was recorded in the name of the original defendant Kanhaiyalal pursuant
to which she raised an objection on which a notice was issued to Kanhaiyalal
and thereafter the Municipal Authorities dropped the proceedings by permitting
the plaintiffto get her rights decided by the competent civil court. :

It was alleged that subséquent to the aforesaid decision of the Municipal
Council, Guiab Dulaiya issued a notice to the original defendant Kanhaiyalal
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on 3.4.1979 which was replied to on 16.5.1979 denying the claim of Gulab
Dulaiya which led to filing of the suit on 26.6.1979. -

The claim of the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya was based on the

contention that the property of late Gokul Prasad, who had two sons, her late
husband Narmada Prasad and Kanhaiyalal, was divided between them through
aregular partition and House No.53/6 fel] in the share of Narmada Prasad. It
was contended that since the very beginning Gulab Dulaiya was residing in
House No.53/6 Mohalla Raniganj, Panna and continued to do so even after

the death of her husband Narmada Prasad on 5.3.1949. It was alleged that *

the original defendant Kanhaiyalal tried to break an opening in the partition
wall between the two properties and install a door/window in the same which
led to a dispute between the parties and filing of the suit on 26.6.1979. The
suit was vehemently opposed by Kanhaiyalal who alleged that Gulab Dulaiya
had become unchaste during the life time of Narmada Prasad and continued
to remain so even after his death as a result of which one son Jagdish, the
present appellant, was born in 1957 and on that count Gulab Dulaiya had
been thrown out of the house after the death of Narmada Prasad and had lost
all rights in the property and that Kanhaiyalal had become the sole owner.

The present appellant is the son born to Gulab Dulaiya in the year
1957 who was brought on record as the legal representatives on the strength
of a Will executed by Gulab Dulaiya. The present respondent nos.1(a) to (g)
are the legal representatives of the original defendant Kanhaiyalal who died
during the pendency of the appeal.

The suit, as filed by Gulab Dulaiya, was initially dismissed on 11 .7.1983
against which an appeal was filed by her and by judgment dated 23.12. 1985
the matter was remanded back to the trial court. Pursuant to the remand, the
suit was again decided and dismissed by judgment and decree dated
24.10.1986 and the First Appeal, filed against the said Judgment and decree,
has also been dismissed by the impugned judgment dated 2.4.1 996, being
aggrieved by which the appellant has filed the present appeal before this Court,

3. This Second Appeal was admitted by this Court on the following
substantial questions of law:-

“1.Whether on the facts and in the circumstances of the case,
the Courts below were Justified in holding that after the death
of one coparcener, the sole surviving coparcener would

Lo
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become absolute owner of the joint hindu family property and
the widow of deceased coparcener shall not have any right in
the property even after the enforcement of the Hindu Women
Rights Property Act, 1937 ?

2. Whether the finding that deceased Gulab Dulaiya had
become unchaste during the life time of her husband is perverse
and contrary to record as according to Ex.P/2, she had become
unchaste after the death of the husband 7

3. Whether the findings that no partition was effected
between Kanhatyalal and Narbada Prasad is contrary to record
and is vitiated because of non-consideration of Ex.C/1-A ?

4. Whether, the finding recorded by the Courts below
that the suit filed by the appellant was barred by limitation is
perverse 77

4, The learned Senior Counsel for the appellant submits that Gulab Dulaiya
acquired rights in the property of Narmada Prasad on his death on 15.3.1949
which got crystallized in view of the provisions of the Hindu Women's Rights
to Property Act, 1937 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Property Act’) and the
Hindu Succession Act of 1956 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Succession
Act) and in such circumstances the claim made by her in the suit could not
have been dismissed by the courts below by ignoring the aforesaid aspect.

5. It is further submitted that the respondents/defendants, in the initial
written statement filed by them, did not make any statement regarding the
unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya during the life time and at the time of the death of
her husband Narmada Prasad. It is submitted that the written statement was
amended for the first time on 12.3.1981 and a plea that the original plaintiff
Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste during the life time of her husband, was added
by way of amendment. It is submitted that this fact assumes importance in
view of document Exhibit P-2, filed by the appe.'aut, which is the reply to the
notice jssued by the appellant to the respondent Kanhaiyalal dated 16.5.1979
in which he has stated that Gulab Dulaiya had become unchaste after the
death of her husband and that he came to know about this fact, for the first

~ time, when he came to know that she was carrying a child 6 to 7 years after

the death of her husband Narmada Prasad. It is submitted that in Exhibit P-2
the respondent defendant Kanhaiyalal had also stated that Gulab Dulaiya had
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limited rights in the property which ceased to exist on her becoming unchaste.

6. Itis'submitted by the learned Senior Counsel for the appellant that the
subsequent amendment in the written statement, the reply to the notice given
by Kanhaiyalal vide Exhibit P-2 and para-9 of the written statement make it
abundantly clear that the plea of unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya, the original
plaintiff, during the life time of her husband Narmada Prasad is an after thought
and was only taken up to defeat the claim of Gulab Dulaiya. It is submitted
that in view of the specific and clear statement of Kanhaiyalal in Exhibit P-2,
which has totally been ignored and not considered by any of the courts below,
the findings regarding unchastity recorded by the courts below is perverse
and contrary to the evidence on record.

7. Thelearned Senior Counsel for the appellant has submitted that the
document Exhibit P-2 is a piece of substantive evidence against the defendant
and even if he was not confronted with the same during his oral evidence, it is
a conclusive evidence and admission of the fact that the deceased plaintiff
Gulab Dulaiya was not unchaste during the life time of her husband and for
that purpose the learned Senior Counsel for the appellant has relied upon the
decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the cases of Bharat Singh and
Others vs. Mst. Bhagirathi, AIR 1966 SC 405; Biswanth Prasad and
Others vs. Dwarka Prasad and Others, AIR 1974 SC 117; Union of India
vs. Moksh Builders and Financiers Ltd. and others, AIR 1977 SC 409;
and Thiru John and Others vs. The Returning Officer and Others, AIR
1977 SC 1724

8. " Thelearned Senior Counsel has further submitted that the court below
has also not considered the document Exhibit C-1(A), produced by the
appellant before the Commissioner, by which the defendant Kanhaiyalal had
-himself mortgaged the property on 29.9.1955, Exhibit C-1(A) with one Singhai
Lalchand Jain, PW-6, in which the defendant Kanhaiyalal had himself stated
and mentioned that the property of his brother Narmada Prasad was situated
towards the South, which clearly establishes that a partition had taken place
between the two brothers and, therefore, Kanhaiyalal the original defendant
had no right or title to claim the property of Gulab Dulaiya which devolved
upon her on the death of Narmada Prasad.

9. It is submitted by the learned Senior Counsel for the appellant that the
courts below have committed perversity in not taking into consideration Exhibit
P-2 and Exhibit C-1(A) while deciding the suit and in such circumstances the

™
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impugned judgment and decree deserves to be set aside. It is also urged that
the finding regarding limitation, recorded by the courts below against the

appellant, is also perverse inasmuch as the courts below have failed to take

into consideration the fact that the cause of action for filing the suit accrued to
the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya in the year 1978, when she came to know
that the house in question was recorded in the name of of Kanhaiyalal in the
record of the Municipal Council, as well as il the month of May 1979 when
the respondents tried to demolish the intervening wall and, therefore, the suit
filed by her on 26.6.1979 was within the limitation prescribed by law.

10.  The learned counsel for the respondents, per contra, submits that the
claim of the-appellant has been decided against him by as many as three courts
as the suit filed by the appellant, was initially dismissed on 11.7.1 983 and was
again dismissed after remand by judgment and decree dated 24.10.1986 which

_has been affirmed in the first appeal by judgment and decree dated 2.4.1996
and in such circumstances there is a concurrent finding of fact against the
appellant which does not deserve to be disturbed in view of the law laid down
by the Supreme Court in the cases of Kondiba Dagadu Kadam vs. Savitribai
Sopan Gujar and Others, (1999) 3 SCC 722; Saraswati Devi Gupta (Smt.)
vs. Har Narain Johari and Others, (2006) 1 SCC 729; and Narayanan
Rajendran and Another vs. Lekshmy Sarojini and Others, (2009) 5 SCC
264. :

11.  The learned counsel for the respondents contends that the this appeal

_ cannot be permitted to be prosecuted by the present appellant after the death
of the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya as the right to sue on her behalf does not
survive on her death and the present appellant cannot step into her shoes as
he is admittedly not the legitimate or illegitimate son of Narmada Prasad and
has no right in the property having been born 7 to 8 years after his death and
whose share is being claimed by Gulab Dulaiya.

12.  The learned counsel for the respondents further submits that the plea
of unchastity was taken up by the fesponde‘s by amending the written
statemerit on 12.3.1981 shortly after filing the written statement and thereafter
on account of conclusive evidence led by the defendants, specifically the
statement of D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal, the suit was dismissed by the court below.
It is submiitted that the first appellate court again remanded the matter to the
trial court for framing an issue and permitting the parties to lead additional
evidence on the issue of unchastity of Guiab Dulaiya pursuant to which the

-
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court below permitted the parties to adduce additional evidence and thereafter,
on the basis of the statements of D, W-1 Kanhaiyalal, D.W-4 Mahesh Narayan,
D.W-5 Faiz Mohammed and D.W-6 Mangal Prasad, the court below again
recorded a finding against the appeliant regarding unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya
and dismissed the suit. -

13.  Ttis submitted by the learned counsel for the respondents that the
finding recorded by the courts below is based on proper appreciation of
evidence and merely on account of an assertion that another view was possible,
the said finding of fact cannot be interfered by this Court in this Second Appeal.

It is further submitted that the appellant was given two chances to prove and
establish his case regarding the unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya, initially in the first
round as well as after remand but the appellant failed to establish his claim
and in fact did not confront D. W-1 Kanhiayalal at any point of time with the
reply to the notice dated 16.5.1979 document Exhibit P-2 and in such
circumstances, and in the absence of confronting D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal with the
document Exhibit P-2, the reliance being placed by the learned Senior Counsel
for the appellant, for the first time before the Second Appellate Court on the
document Exhibit P-2, is misplaced and misconceived and in fact in the absence
of D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal being confronted with the sajd document, no substantial
question of law in that regard arises for adjudication before this Court in view
of the decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the cases of Sait Tarajee
Khimchand and others vs. Yelamarti Satyam and others, AIR 1971 SC
1865; Sita Ram Bhau Patil vs. Ramchandra Nago Patil (dead) by Lrs.

and another; AIR 1977 SC 1712; Rajendra Singh and others vs. State of
Bihar, AIR 2000 SC 1 779; Udham Singh vs. Ram Singh and Another

(2007) 15 SCC 529; L.I.C of India and Another vs. Ram Pal Singh Bisen,

2010 AIR SCW 1900; and Union of India vs. Ibrahim Uddin and Another,

(2012) 8 SCC 148.

14, The learned counsel for the respondents has vehemently urged and
alleged that on the dismissal of the suit by the trial court on the ground that it
was barred by limitation, the appellant did not at any point of time assail or
challenge the aforesaid finding either before the first appellate court or raise
any issue in that regard before this Court and in fact the fourth substantial
questions of law has been framed by this Court only prior to the final hearing
of this appeal on 19.3.2013 and in such circumstances, in the absence of the
appellant raising any issue in this regard or assailing the finding regarding
limitation as recorded by the courts below, the substantial question of law

]
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regarding limitation framed by this Court need not be answered.

15.  Itisfurtherurged that as per the averment of the original plaintiff Gulab
Dulatya herself, her husband died in the year 1949 and in case she was claiming
any right on the basis of an alleged partition between the brothers, she should
have filed a suit or approached the competent court within three years from
that date itself or at best within three years from 1950 when she was thrown
out of the house on account of her unchastity but she did not do so and in
such circumstances both the courts below have rightly held that the suit, as
filed by the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya, was barred by limitation.

16.  Thave heard the learned counsel for the parties at length and have
also extensively perused and examined the oral and documentary evidence
onrecord. Before I advert to the issue regarding unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya,
it would be appropriate to address the contention of the learned Senior Counsel
for the appellant regarding substantial question of law no.2 which is based on
Exhibit P-2 dated 16.5.1979, which is the reply to the notice issued by Gulab
Dulaiya to Kanhaiyalal, as it is urged by the learned Senior Counsel for the
appellant that a bare reading of this document, which cannot be ignored, the
claim of the appellant stands established as Kanhaiyalal in the said document
has himself stated that he came to know about the unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya
for the first time when she was carrying a child 6 to 7 years after the death of
her husband which clearly indicates and establishes that Kanhaiyalal had no
knowledge about the unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya prior to that date. In the
said document Exhibit P-2, Kanhaiyalal has also stated that Gulab Dulaiya
had limited rights in the property which got extinguished on her becoming
unchaste and this statement in itself clearly establishes that Gulab Dulaiya had
limited rights in the property on the date the reply to the notice Exhibit P-2
dated 16.5.1979 was given by Kanhaiyalal. It is submitted that even if all
other evidence is ignored, Exhibit P-2 in itself is sufficient to decree the claim
of the appellant as the said document is substantive evidence and is admissible
in view of the provisions of Section 21 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872
(hereinafter referred to as the Evidence Act) as has been held by the Supreme
Court in the cases of Bharat Singh (supra), Dwarka Prasad (supra), Moksh
Builders (supra) and Thiru John (supra).

17. - Itisalso urged that the decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the
case of Sita Ram Bhau Patil (supra) which is relied upon by the learned
counsel for the respondents deserves to be ignored as it is per-incuriam and
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is not a binding precedent on the issue involved in the present case on account
of the fact that it has been rendered without considering the judgment in the
case of Biswanth Prasad (supra) and Moksh Builders and Financiers Ltd.
(supra). It is submitted that in the aforesaid judgment of the Supreme Court it
has clearly been held that an admission made in writing by a party is substantive
evidence under section 21 of the Evidence Act and, therefore, there is no
requirement or necessity to confront or contradict the party which had made
it under section 145 of the Evidence Act as it is evidence pro-prio vigore.

18.  Itis submitted that in view of the law as laid down by the Supreme
Court in the aforesaid judgments, even if D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal was not
confronted with the reply to the notice that was sent by him during his evidence,
the court below could not have ignored Exhibit P-2 and in case the court
below had done so and considered Exhibit P-2, the claim of the appellant
would have and is required to be decreed on account of the admission contained
therein.

19.  From a perusal of the judgment of the Supreme Court relied upon by
the learned Senior Counsel for the appellant as well as by the learned counsel
for the ~espondents, it is clear that the Supreme Court, in the aforesaid
judgments, has clearly held while considering and interpreting the provisions
of Sections 21 and 145 of the Evidence Act, that such admissions are substantive

evidence by themselves in view of the provisions of Section 17 and 21 of the .

Evidence Act, though they are not conclusive proof of the matter admitted. It
is also clear from a perusal of the other provisions of the Evidence Act, namely;
Sections 138 and 146, that even otherwise the witness must be asked questions
which would test his veracity moreso where there is a direct contradiction and
conflict between his statements before the court and the alleged previous
admission. ’

20.  Inthe instant case, Kanhaiyalal in his statement recorded before the
court below has clearly stated that Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste during the life
time of her husband and continued to be so even after his death as a result of
which Jagdish was born sometime in the year 1957 several years after the
death of Narmada Prasad and that on account of her unchastity she was turned
out from the house by her mother-in-law Sundaria Bai. In such circumstances,
as Exhibit P-2 even if admitted in evidence is not conclusive proof of the
matter stated therein, as has been held by the Supreme Court in the aforesaid
cited cases and as D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal has made clear and specific statements

-
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before the court below which are directly in conflict with the statement in
Exhibit P-2, therefore, the appellant were required to and should have
confronted Kanhalyalal D.W-1, with the same during his cross-examination
to test his veracity. Apparently, the appellant did not do so cither at the first
instance or when they were given a second chance after remand. Quite apart
from the above, it is also observed that the issue regarding Exhibit P-2 was
never raised by the appellant either before the trial court or before the first

_appellate court and in fact the issue is being raised by him for the first time
before this Court.

21.  The Supreme Court, in the case of Laxmibai (Dead) Through Lrs.

And another vs. Bhagwantbuva (Dead) through Lrs. and others, 2013

AIR SCW 949, while considering the provisions of Sections 138 and 146 of
the Evidence Act, in this regard have held in para-31 as under:-

“31. Furthermore, there cannot be any dispute with respect to
the settled legal proposition, that if a party wishes to raise any
doubt as regards the correctness of the statement of 2 witness,
the said witness must be given an opportunity to explain his
statement by drawing his attention to that part of it, which has

. been objected to by the other party, as being untrue. Without
this, it is not possible to impeach his credibility. Such a law
has been advanced in view of the statutory provisions enshrined
in Section 138 of the Evidence Act, 1872, which enable the
opposite party to cross-examine a witness as regards
information tendered in evidence by him during his initial
examination in chief, and the scope of this provision stands
enlarged by Section 146 of the Evidence Act, which permits a
witness to be questioned, inter-alia, in order to test his veracity.
Thereafter, the unchallenged part of his evidence is to be relied
upon, for the reason that it is impossible for the witness to
explain or elaborate upon any doubts as regards the same, in
the absence of questions put to him with respect to the
circumstances which indicate that the version of events provided.-
by him, is not fit to be believed, and the witness himself, is
unworthy of credit.

Thus, if a party intends to impeach a witness, he must provide
adequate opportunity to the witness in the witness box, to give
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a full and proper explanation. The same is essential to ensure
fair play and fairness in dealing with witnesses. (See: Khem
Chand v. State of Himachal Pradesh, AIR 1994 SC 226;
State of U.P. v. Nahar Singh (dead) & Ors., AIR 1998 SC
1328; Rajinder Pershad (Dead) by L.Rs. v. Darshana Devi
(Smt.), AIR 2001 SC 3207; and Sunil Kumar & Anr. v. State
of Rajasthan, AIR 2005 SC 1096).

22, Insuch circumstances, in view of the law laid down by the Supreme
Court in the aforementioned judgments and the provisions of Section 136 and
146 of the Evidence Act, I am of the considered opinion that the contention of
the appellant, to the effect that the findings recorded by the courts below are
perverse and that the entire claim as made in the suit should have been decreed
only on the basis of Exhibit P-2 by ignoring the entire oral and documentary
~ evidence to the contrary even if Kanhaiyalal, D.W-1, was not confronted with
Exhibit P-2 or asked any question in that regard to contradict him or to test
his veracity, cannot be accepted.

23.  Fromaperusal of the statement of the plaintiffs' witnesses, i.e, P.W-1
Gulab Dulaiya, P.W-7 Kashi Prasad, P.W-8 Badri Prasad Gupta and P.W-9
Hiralal Gupta, it is clear that the aforesaid witnesses have stated that Gulab
Dulaiya was not unchaste during or after the life time of her husband Narmada
Prasad who died in the year 1949, whereas a perusal of the statement of the
defendant's witnesses . W-1 Kanhaiyalal, D.W-4 Mahesh Narayan, D.W-5
Faiz Mohammed and D.W-6 Mangal Prasad, it is clear that the aforesaid
witnesses have clearly and emphatically stated that Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste
during the life time of Narmada Prasad himself as well as after his death as she
was having an illicit relation with one Ram Khilawan and Ram Kumar and that
she continued to remain unchaste even after his death as a result of which
Jagdish, the present appellant was born sometime in the year 1957, eight
years after the death of her husband Narmada Prasad.

24.  Itisalso apparent that the fact of birth of Jagdish 7 to 9 years after the
death of Narmada Prasad, the husband of Gulab Dulaiya is not disputed and
isin fact admitted. However, as far as the issue regarding unchastity of Gulab
- Dulaiya, during the life time of her husband Narmada Prasad, is concerned
there is conflict between the oral evidence adduced by the parties but the
courts below, on the basis of the attending circumstances, have accepted the
. evidence of D.W-1 Kanhaiyalal, D.W-4 Mahesh Narayan, D.W-5 Faiz

a
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Mohammed and D.W-6 Mangal Prasad and recorded a con¢urrent ﬁndmg
against the appellant. - :

25.  Asthelearned Semor Counsel for the appellant has urged that the
aforesaid finding, recorded by the courts below, is perverse on account of the
attending circumstances, I have also examined the aforesaid aspect The
respondents/defendants witnesses have clearly stated that Gulab Dulaiya, the
original plaintiff was turned out of the house on account ofher. unchastity in
the year 1950. These witnesses have also stated that she was enjoying illicit
relations with one Ram Khilawan and Ram Kumar even during the life time of
Narmada Prasad and on that count there was serious conflict between them
though she was not turned out of the house by Narmada Prasad himself. .
From a perusal of the evidence it is also clear that the defendant's witnesses
stated above have clearly stated that she was turned out of the house'and
during this period she was running a sweet shop as well as living in the shop
situated in Jain Mandir. The plaintiff's witnesses P.W-8 Badri Prasad Gupta
and P.W-9 Hiralal Gupta have also stated that after the death of Narmada
Prasad, Gulab Dulaiya was operating a sweet shop from Jain Mandir and not
from the house which is in dispute. It is also clear that the defendants have

~ alleged and brought evidence on record through their witnesses to state that

the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya was staying in the shop situated in Jain
Mandir from where she was operating the sweet shop till the year 1979 when
she was evicted by the landlord pursuant to which the defendant Kanhaiyalal,

on humanitarian ground, had permitted her to stay in the house in question
from27.1.1979 onwards for a short period of time till alternative arrangement
was made. The appellant, on the other hand, has failed to prove and establish
that Gulab Dulaiya was staying in the disputed house from 1949 ill 27.1.1979.

The fact that she was admittedly and undisputedly running her sweet shop in
a tenanted premises in the Jain Mandir also establishes the fact that she was
not residing in the disputed house, as had she been doing so, she would most
certainly have started running the shop in the disputed house instead of a
rented premises as was being done by Kanhaiyalal, D.W-1. The courts below,
on the basis of the analysis of the evidence of thé witnesses, have recorded a
concurrent finding of fact to the effect that Gulab Dulaiya had been ousted on
account of unchastity and was living separately till 1979 when she was
permitted to occupy the house of Kanhaiyalal and for that reason was found
in occupation of the same at the time when the Commissioner appointed by -
the court below examined the premises.
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26. - Inview of the aforesaid facts and circumstances, as the appellant has
failed to prove and establish possession and in fact the evidence on record
establishes the contrary, as analysed above, therefore, the attending
circumstances are also established against the appellant which support and
affirm the findings recorded by the courts below and, therefore, mere conflict
in some oral evidence would not give rise to a substantial question of law or
justify interference in the concurrent findings recorded by the courts below
against the appellant in the present Second Appeal.

27.  Thelearned Senior Counsel for the appellant has alleged that there is
no pleading or proof regarding unchastity of Gulab Dulaiya at the time of the
death of Narmada Prasad which is material for deciding her rights. It is
submitted that a bare reading of the written statement itself, even if accepted
as it is, indicates that the plea only relates to chastity prior to the death of
Narmada Prasad and after his death but there is no plea and in fact a total
absence of any plea to the effect that Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste at the time
of the death of Narmada Prasad., '

28.  Iamofthe considered opinion that in view of the evidence on record
and the findings recorded by the courts below regarding unchastity of Gulab
Dulaiya prior to the death of Narmada Prasad and the undisputed fact of her
subsequent unchastity and the birth of J agdish 7 to 9 years after the death of
her husband Narmada Prasad, clearly leads to only one conclusion that Gulab
Dulaiya was unchaste at the time of the death of Narmada Prasad as there is
no pleading or proof to establish that she suddenly became chaste only at the
time of the death of her husband Narmada Prasad fora very short intervening
period and in such circumstances I do not find any perversity in the findings
recorded by the courts below that Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste for the entire
period which extended from a point of time prior to the death of Narmada
Prasad to the birth of Jagdish in the year 1957.

29.  Thelearned Senior Counsel for the appellant has next contended that
the finding regarding partition recorded by the First Appellate Court is vitiated
on account of non-consideration of Exhibit C-1 (A). Itis submitted that the
said document cleatly establishes that there was a partition between Kanhaiyalal,
D.W-1, and Narmada Prasad. It is submitted that as the property had already
been partitioned, the house in dispute fell in the share of Narmada Prasad and
on his death upon Gulab Dulaiya.

30.  To appreciate the aforesaid contention of the learned Senior Counsel
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for the appellant, Exhibit C-1(A) is perused. The said document is not a
document envisaging partition but is in fact a mortgage executed by Kanhaiyalal,
D.W-1 with one Singhai Lalchand Jain, PW-6, by which he had mortgaged
part of his house and had indicated the existence of Narmada Prasad's house
towards the south. This document is dated 29.9.1955, i.e., it was executed
after the death of Narmada Prasad. The contention of the learned Senior
Counsel for the appellant cannot be accepted in view of the fact that the
mention of Narmada Prasad's house has been clarified, clearly denied and
explained by Kanhaiyalal, D.W-1 in his statement. Quite apart from the above,

on the date of execution of the document, Narmada Prasad had already died
and as held above, Gulab Dulaiya was not occupying the same for, had she
been occupying it, this fact would have been mentioned in Exhibit C-1(A). In
view of the aforesaid, it is clear that the mention of the name of Narmada
Prasad was only for the purposes of identification and does not prove or
establish any partition between Kanhaiyalal, D.W-1 and Narmada Prasad,
moreso as the said fact has not been established by the appellant on the basis
of any cogent evidence being adduced in this regard.

31.  From aperusal of the undisputed facts on record, it is further clear
that the claim in respect of ‘declaration was made by Gulab Dulaiya 30 years
after the death of her husband. It is also an admitted fact that the house in
question was never recorded in the name of the original plaintiff Gulab Dulaiya
and even at the time of filing of the suit, the house was recorded in the name
of Kanhaiyalal in the Municipal records and Gulab Dulaiya objected to the
same for the first time in the year 1979. From a perusal of the findings regarding
possession recorded by the courts below, which have been affirmed in the
preceding paragraphs, it is also clear that the courts below have recorded a
finding that she was ousted on account of unchastity in 1950 and was permitted
to occupy the house only for a short period of time from 27.1.1979 onwards
on account of her eviction, on humanitarian grounds and in such circumstances
the suit, filed by her for declaration as owner of the property, was barred by |
limitation. In the light of the above, it is clear that the right to claim and seek
declaration in respect of the house accrued to Gulab Dulaiya after the death
of Narmada Prasad in 1949 or at best from the day of her ouster whereas the
present suit has been filed in 1979 and is therefore barred by limitation. From
a perusal of the records, it is also clear that this issue or question of Jaw

. regarding limitation has in fact not been raised in the memo of appeal but has
only been raised durmcr arguments.
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32.  Having heard the learned counsel for the parties and in view of the
aforementioned finding of facts recorded by the courts below which do not
suffer from any perversity or illegality, I am of the considered opinion that the
concurrent findings of the courts below that the suit is barred by limitation,
does not call for any interference in this Second Appeal as has been held by
this Court in the case of Smr. Saraswatidevi and another vs. Krishnaram
Baldeo Bank Limited and another, AIR 1998 MP 73.

33..  The learned Senior Counsel for the appellant, on the strength of the
decision reported in Gangadhar Parappa Alur (Original Plaintiff) vs. Yellu
Kom Viraswami Shirawale (Original Defendant), ILR XXXVI Bombay
138 and Radhe Lal vs. Bhawani Ram and Musammat Bidya, ILR XL
Allahabad 178, has submitted that even if Gulab Dulaiya was unchaste during
the life time of her husband Narmada Prasad, the unchastity was condoned
by him by not taking any action against her and in such circumstances her
unchastity would not disqualify her from acquiring rights in the property of
Narmada Prasad.

34.  The aforesaid contention of the appellant needs to be heard only to be
rejected on account of the fact that the appellant has not set up such a defence
in the plaint nor is it her case that her unchastity was condoneéd by Narmada
Prasad and, therefore, she was not disqualified to inherit his property. It is
also apparent that apart from the absence of any pleading or assertion in that
regard, the appellant/plaintiff has also not lead any evidence to plead or
establish the condonation of uncﬁastity. The records also indicate that no issue
to this effect was framed by the trial court as this issue was neither raised by
the appellant/plaintiffin the suit or in the first appeal at the time of its remand
nor was this issue raised when the suit was again tried after remand. There is
no pleading or assertion in this regard even in the first appeal. In fact there is
no pleading, assertion or claim in this regard in the entire proceedings even
before this Court nor has any substantial question of law been framed and it
is, for the first time, at the time of final arguments that the contention is being
raised before this Court.  am of the considered opinion that in view of the
aforesaid undisputed facts and circumstances of the present case and in the
absence of any pleading or assertion in this regard, this contention of the
appellant-deserves to be and is hereby rejected.

35.  The above discussion clearly indicates that the courts below have
examined and re-examined the evidence on record and have duly considered

o ¥
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and applied their mind while arriving at a finding against the appellant to the
effect that Gulab Dulaiya lost all rights in the property on account of unchastity
in view of the provisions of Hindu Law and no rights accrued to her under the
Property Act and the Succession Act. It is also clear from the discussion
made in the preceding paragraphs that the findings recorded by the courts
below do not suffer from any perversity as they are based on proper
appreciation of oral and documentary evidence by the courts below. In view
of the aforesaid facts and circumstances, to re-appreciate the entire evidence
and arrive at a contrary conclusion, only on the basis of an emotional appeal
being made before this Court, is not permissible in a Second Appeal. As the
findings recorded by the courts below do not suffer from any manifest
irregularity or apparent illegality, nor do they suffer from any perversity, I find
no reason to interfere or set aside the concurrent findings recorded by the
courts below on all the issues.

36.  Inview of the aforesaid discussion; the substantial questions of law
framed by this Court are answered against the appellant. The appeal, filed by
the appellant, being meritless is accordingly dismissed. There shall be no order
as to the costs.

Appeal dimissed.

L.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1137
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Alok Aradhe
S.A.No. 325/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on 2 April, 2013

UMANARAYAN & ors. ...Appellants
Vs. :
SANT KUMAR ...Respondent

A. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16(C) - Specific
Performance of Contract - Readiness and willing to perform - There
was no clause that the sale deed would be executed after the diversion
of land - No such clause was mentioned in the notice - No averment in
plaint that diversion was the condition precedent for execution of sale
deed however, such averment was incorporated later on by way of
amendment - Held - Plzintiff was insisting on the performance of a
condition which was not a part of the agreement - Plaintiff was not
ready and willing to go ahead with agreement on the terms and
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conditions stipulated therein - It can be safely inferred that the plaintiff
was not ready and willing to perform his part of contract. (Para7)
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B. Specific Relief Act (47 of 1963), Section 16 - Specific
Performance of Contract - Reasonable time ~ Agreement was executed
on 23.02.1983 - Sale deed was to be executed upto 31.05.1983 - Plaintiff
gave notice on 07.08.1985 i.e. after a period of two years and three
months - Suit was filed on 04.04.1986 - Suit was not filed within
reasonable time. (Para 11)
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JUDGMENT

ALOK ARADEE, J. :- This appeal is by the defendants, which was
admitted on following substantial questions of law :

»
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. (1)  Whether the absence of readiness and willingness on
the part of the plaintiff, is liable to be infetred on account the
plaintiff putting an additional burden of diversion on the
defendant (prospective vendor) ?-

(i) Whether the lower appellate Court hz;s' acted illegally
inholding that time was not the essence of the contract ?”

2. Facts giving rise to filing of the appeal briefly stated are that on or
about 4.4.1986, the plaintiff filed a suit seeking the relief of specific
performance of the contract. The claim in the suit was based on the ground
that the plaintiff had entered into an agreement with the defendant No.1 dated
23.2.1983 (Ex.P/1) for purchase of 0.028 hectare of land for a consideration
of Rs.7,500/--and a sum of Rs.1,500/- was paid as earnest money on
23.2.1983. It was agreed that on payment of remaining amount of sale
consideration, the sale-deed would be executed upto 31.5.1983. It was
pleaded by the plaintiff that he was ready and willing to perform his part of
the contract, however, the defendants did not execute the sale-deed.
Accordingly, the suit seeking the relief as aforesaid was filed.

3. The defendant No.1 filed the written statement, in which inter-alia it
was pleaded that the defendant No.1 was ready and willing to perform his
part of the contract and the time was essence of the contract, However, the

sale-deed could not be executed as the plaintiff was not in possession of
sufficient funds.

4. The trial Court by the judgment and decree dated 29.1.1994 inter-
alia held that the plaintiff has failed to prove readiness and willingness to
perform his part of the contract and that the time wes essence of the contract
as the sale-deed was to be executed on or before 31.5.1983. It was further
held that the suit suffers from mis-joinder of parties. Accordingly, the relief of
spectfic performance of contract was denied. However, the claim of the plaintiff
for refund of the amount paid by way of earnest money along with the interest
at the rate of 6% p.a. with effect from 1.6.1983 was decreed. The appellate
Court vide impugned judgment dated 7.1.2004 inter-alia held that time was
not the essence of the contract and the plaintiff was ready and willing to perform
his part of the contract. It was further held that defendarits have failed to
establish that the plaintiff was not in possession of sufficient funds to perform
his part of the contract. Accordingly, the claim ofthe plaintiff was decreed.
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5. Learned counsel for the appellants submitted that the agreement was
executed on 23.2.1983 and the sale-deed was to be executed upto 31.5.1983.
However, after a period of nearly two years and three months, notice dated
7.8.1985 (Ex.P/2) was sent by the plaintiff to the defendants asking them to
execute the sale-deed. Thereafter, the suit was filed on 4.4.1986. It was further
submitted that the sale-deed was not executed, as the plaintiff was not in
possession of sufficient funds. It was also submitted that neither the agreement
dated 23.2.1983 (Ex.P/1) nor the notice dated 7.8.1985 (Ex.P/2) contains a
stipulation that the sale-deed was to be executed after the land was diverted.
However, by way of amendment in'the plaint, which was allowed by the trial
Court on 20.4.1988, the plaintiff incorporated the plea that the sale-deed
was to be executed after diversion of land, which is after thought and was not
a condition of the agreement. It was further submitted that if a date is specified
for execution of the sale-deed, some sanctity has to be attached to it. In support
ofhis submissions, learned counsel for the appellants has placed reliance on
the decisions in cases of Damroolal Harchan and others Vs, Laxminarayan
Ramanujdas Brijpuria and others, 1976 M.P.L.1. 518, Gyaneshwar Vs.
Smt. Moongabai @ Muneshwaribai and another, 2006 (1) M.P.L.J. 221,
Saradamani Kandappan Vs. S. Rajalakshmi and Others, (2011) 12 SCC
18.

6. On the other hand, learned Senior Counsel for the respondent submitted
that the Lower Appellate Court has rightly found that the plaintiff was ready
and willing to perform his part of the contract. It is further submitted that in the
facts of the case, the time was the essence of the contract. The findings recorded
by the Lower Appellate Court are based on rhaterial available on record. In
support of his submissions, learned Senior Counsel for the respondent has
placed reliance on the decisions of the Supreme Court in the cases of
Mademsetty Satyanarayan Vs. G Yelloji Rao and others, AIR 1965 SC
1405, Motilal Jain Vs. Smt. Ramdasi Devi and others, AIR 2000 SC 2408,
Parmanand Soni and Others Vs. Radhakrishna Dharmartha Pvt. Trust
and Others, 2007 (1) MPLJY 589 and Laxman Tatyaba Kankate & Another
Vs. Smt. Taramati Harishchandra Dhatrak, AIR 2010 SC 3025.

7. I have considered the respective submissions made by learned counsel
for the parties and have perused the record. From the perusal of the agreement
(Ex.P/1), it is evident that it does not contain a stipulation that the sale-deed
would be executed only after the land in question is diverted. Similarly, in the
notice (Ex.P/2), which was sent on behalf of the respondent/plaintiff, there is

o>
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o mention that the defendants are under an obligation to get the land diverted.
It is also pertinent to mention here that when a suit was filed on 4.4.1986,
there was no averment made in the plaint that diversion was a condition
precedent for execution of the sale-deed. However, subsequently by way of
an amendment which was allowed on 20.4.1988, the plea with regard to
diversion of the land before the execution of the sale-deed was incorporated
for the first time, which is obviously an after-thought. The plaintiff was insisting
on the performance of a condition which was not a part of the agreement. The

" plaintiff was not ready and willing to go ahead with the agreement on the

terms and conditions stipulated therein. Therefore, it can safely be inferred
that the plaintiff was not ready and willing to perform his part of the contract.
Accordingly, the first substantial question of law framed by this Court is
answered.

8. In Jamshed Kodaram Irani Vs. Burjorji Dhunjibhai, AIR 1915
PC 83, it has been held that under that law equity, which governs the rights of '
the parties in cases of specific performance of contracts to sell real estate,
looks not at the letter but at the substance of the agreement in order to ascertain
whether the parties, notwithstanding that they named a specific time within
which completion was to take place, really and in substance intended more
than that it should take place within a reasonable time.

9. The aforesaid decision was referred to with approval by the Supreme
Court in the case of Gomathinayagam Pillai and others Vs. Palaniswami
Nadar, AIR 1967 SC 868 and it was held that fixation of period within which
contract is to be performed does not make stipulation as to time essence of
contract. In case of Govind Prasad Chaturvedi Vs. Hari Dutt Shastri and
another, AIR 1977 SC 1005, it was held that if the contract relates to sale of
immovable property, it will normally be presumed that the time is not the
essence of the contract. The intention to treat time as the essence of the
contract may be evidenced by circumstances which should be sufficiently
strong to displace the normal presumption that in a contract of sale of
immovable property stipulation as to time is not i~e essence of the contract.
Similar view has been expressed in case of Smt. Indira Kaur and others V5.

Shri Sheo Lal Kapoor, AIR 1988 SC 1074.

10. - In the case of Chand Rani (Smt.) [dead] by Lrs. Vs. Kamal Rani
(Smt.) [dead] by Lrs.,(1993) 1 SCC 519, it has been held that even if time
is not the essence of the contract, the Court may infer that it is to be performed
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in areasonable time, if the conditions are evident from the express terms of
the contract, from the nature of the property and from the surrounding
circumstances for example the object of making the contraet. Similar view
has been taken in the cases of K.§ Vidyanadam and others Vs, Vairavan,
(1997) 3 SCC 1. and in Veerayee Ammal Vs. Seeni Ammal (2002) 1 SCC
134.

1. Inthe backdrop of aforesaid well settled legal position, facts of the
case may be seen. The agreement (Ex.P/ 1) was executed on 23.2.1983. As
per the terms and conditions of the agreement, the saie deed was to be executed
upto 31.5.1983. However, the plaintiff gave a notice to the defendants after
a period of two years and three months i.e. on 7.8.1 985 and thereafter filed
a suit on 4.4.1986. Thus, the suit has not been filed within the reasonable
time. The conduct of the plaintiff, itself shows that time was not the essence of
the contract as the plaintiff did not file the sujt within reasonable time.
Accordingly, the second substantial question of law framed by this Court is
answered.

12, Inviewof preceding analysis, the judgment and decree passed by the
Lower Appellate Court is set aside and that of the trial Court is restored. In
the result, the appeal succeeds and is hereby allowed. However, there shall
be no order as to costs. '

Appeal allowed,

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1142
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav
S.A.No. 1112/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 12 April, 2013

UDAY CHAND JAIN ...Appellant
Vs.
. SMT. SHARDA JAIN ...Respondent

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 2 - Pleadings
- Construction - Pleadings are loosely drafted and Courts should not
scrutinize the pleading with such meticulous care so as to result in
genuine claims being defeated on trivial grounds - Further pleadings
has to be read as a whole to ascertain its true import and not to cull out
a passage to read the same in isolation. (Para6,7)
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B. Accommodation Control Act, M.P (41 of 1961 ), Section
12(1 )(f) - Bonafide Requirement - Plaintiff has specifically pleaded that
she requires suit accommodation as his son who is unemployed wants
to open a jewellery shop and has no alternative accommeodation - Held
- Nothing more is required to be pleaded as to bonafide need - Evidence
led by Plaintiff is not in variance but in consonance with the pleadings
- Appeal dismissed (Para11)

. T (AT ST, 7.4, (1961 FT 41), ST 12(1)(0%) —
greafas sraegmar — ard) 7 fafafde vu ¥ aftmme fear @ f5 <9 @
I & Aaegear § #Afe Suar g3 & w2, T’ @ g
ST ATET B 3N 9ud U BIE dofeue wme Te 2 — afrfeifa
- IS JIOESdT & vU A R e anifea T - 9 g g
qred, Afaast |4 Idd a9f qfers won @ — arfie @l

Cases referred :

AIR 1976 SC 461, AIR 1976 SC 744, (1999) 6 SCC 337, AIR
1980 SC 193.

Ravi Rajan Shrivastava with Amit Shrivastava, for the appellant.
ORDER
SANJAY YADAv, J.: 'Heard on admission.

1. Having lost from both the Courts, the defendant tenant being aggrieved
by the judgment and decree dated 9.9.2011 possed in Civil Appeal No.01-
A/2011 affirming the Judgment and Decree datea 11.10.2010 in Civil Suit
No6.43-A/ 2009, has preferred this second appeal.

2. -Suit Property is a house bearing No.1008 situated at Andherdeo
being owned by the plaintiff after the death of her husband who received
the same vide partition. One portion of the suit property, marked as ABCD
in the suit map was given.on rent to the defendant on 17.10.1985 under
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Rent Agreement for a period of twenty years which having expired and
being not vacated despite of its being required for the purpose of
establishing gem and jewellery shop by plaintiffs' son led her to file a suit
for eviction on the ground of bonafide need under section 12 (1) (D) of
M.P. Accommodation Control Act 1961 Defendant contradicted the claim
and denied the bonafide requirement stating that suit accommodation is
only required to be re-rented on a higher premium and rent. It was also
pleaded that there is no specific pleadings in the plaint as to bonafide need.

3. Trial Court framed seven issues on the basis of pleadings of which
issue no.4 pertain to bonafide need as to whether the suit premises is
required bonafide to establish the gem and jewellery business for the son
and issue nio.5 as to whether there is no alternative suitable accommodation
available in the town. 'These issues has been answered in favour of plaintiff
in paragraphs 18 and 19 of the Jjudgment by tria] Court which as apparent
therefrom is on the basis of the pleadings and the evidence led in
commensurate therewith. These findings are even affirmed by the first
appellate Court.

4. Though attempt has been made on behalf of the defendant by hair
splitting the pleadings to substantiate that there is no specific pleadings regarding
the bonafide need and that an evidence led in absence of pleadings ought not
to have been looked into.

S. True it is that variance between pleadings and the evidence looses
significance. Equally it is settled that the Court should not scrutinies the
pleadings with such meticulous care so as to result in genuine claims being
defeated on trivial ground.

6. In Madan Gopal V Mamraj : AIR 1976 SC 461 it has been held that
"26.......Itis well-settled that pleadings are loosely drafted in the Courts and
the Courts should not scrutinise the pleading with such meticulous care so as
to result in genuine claims being defeated on trivial grounds......."

7. Furthermore, it has also come to be settled that the pleadings has to
be read as whole to ascertain its true import and not to cull out a passage to

read the same in isolation (See Udhav Singh V. M.R.Scindia: AIR 1976 SC
" 744 wherein it is observed "30. We are afraid, this ingenious method of
construction after cornpartmentalization, dissection, segregation and inversion

L



»n

LL:R.[2013]M.P. Udaychand Jain Vs. Smt. Sharda Jain 1145

of the language of the paragraph, suggested by Counsel, runs counter to the
cardinal canon of interpretation, according to which, a pleading has to be
read as a whole to ascertain its true import. It is not permissible to cull out a
sentence or a passage and to read it out of the context, in isolation. Although
it is the substance and not merely the form that has to be looked into, the
pleading has to be construed as it stands without addition or subtraction of
words, or change of its apparent grammatical sense. The intention' of the
party concerned is to be gathered, primarily, from the tenor and terms of his
pleading taken as a whole.")

8. ° InSyed Datagir V.T.R. Gopalakrishna Shetty:1999 6 SCC 337 it
has been held:

" In construing a plea in any pleading, Courts must
keep in mind that a plea is not an expression of art and science
but an expression through words to place fact and law of ones
case for a relief. Such an expression may be pointed, precise,
some times vague but still could be gathered what he wants to
convey through only by reading the whole pleading, depends
on the person drafting a plea. In India most of the pleas are
drafted by counsels hence aforesaid difference of pleas which
inevitably differ from one to other. Thus, to gather true spirit
behind a plea it should be read as a whole "

9. In the present context reference can  be had of the decision in S.B.
Noronah V. Prem Kumari : AIR 1980 SC 193 wherein it is held:

"6. Pleadings are not statutes and legalism is not verbalism.
Common sense should not be kept in cold storage when
pleadings are construed. it is too plain for words that the
petition for eviction referred to the lease between the parties

* which undoubtedly was in writing. The application,read as a
whole, did imply that and we are clear that law should not be
stultified by courts by sanctifying little omissions as fatal flaws.
The application for vacant possession suffered from no verbal
lacunae and there was no need to amend at all. Parties win or
lose on substantial questions, not 'technical tortures’ and courts
cannot be 'abettors'.

10.  Inthe case at hand in paragraph 6 and 7 of suit plaint it is categorically
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stated that the suit premises is required for the purpose establishingbusiness
for younger son. To have a glimpse of the pleadings the same are reproduced:

6. gg {5, QI 3 AU AT I D] AATIE ATITIHT
AT B TF WA SIF P WEErg SO 1A & ot 5 99 190596
7 5 B when swivl o9 @ SRi &1+ el 9 e @
RN W Y& Sl B AT TG GIEU AT 0 Gierl arear
g 7 ard el gt = € e o 3R wwiflle were w)
SUgH STE A1 $ UR SeergR wes ¥ e ¥ | 9y & gy
G JT W) AT 515 YO8 ekl $T TeA I TN IR B
A 51 ) g Y S werh srerar arg e =€ g | o @i
T Y T TR G STIRIFU B MR R GiRigre) 31 &Ry 12
(1) §®) 7. = FEFT SRR 1961 @ deq e e @)
AT B '

7. Tg &, gfeard) &1 39 90 @1 qol w9 @ 9ol 9y w0 8
& afeh o g 9ftm @ uw ¥ Awd T8 2 9 9 g
U goH B U8 Red gae /w1 & {5 ada vier ghaw
IHT B TS W 761 § | 99 g Afasy § 5 @ are
R SIFY_ 08 Wedt 3 wied & foig Swfw o w2 2 qen
afet & 9= 8 Rofie gem ffdare w0 9 wmew gde
HTTEdal B W & IR g eHe—wi R 9ifech Ud s O
F AETE AN H GAIER T Wl P BT reanT o
AfCraret ¥ 3 arfent o faar T4 o1 feg S g3eY e STeaT
T U FE] far 8 7 STeroT ardl 3 araifyw agarl aravaddr
B T P IUIA Hl WA DX V8T B | I TRE UG SROT
arfe, wierare) & oUW QAW STTavendr @ SR 0Y rshra
U 1 TR ]

11.  Nothing more is required to be pleaded as to bonafide need. The
evidence led by the plaintiff is not in variance but in consonance with the
pleadings. Both the courts therefore are well within their right in construing
that the plaintiff has proved that the premises is required for bonafide need
and that there is no alternative premises available. There being no perversity
with findings, no interference is caused.

12.  Inview whereof second appeal fails and is dismissed at admission
stage. Costs as incurred.

Appeal dismissed.
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LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1147
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jam
‘Cr.A. No. 985/2001 (Jabalpur) decided on 14 February, 2013

MOHAMMAD HUSSAIN ANSARI _ ...Appellant
Vs. . :
STATE OF M.P. ' _ ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Circumstantial Evidence
- Deceased, the wife of the appellant died because of strangulation -
Appellant was in the house along with his wife and children at the time
of death - No explanation offered by the appellant - Recovery of Pillow
and gold nose-pin at the instance of appellant - Appellant guilty of
committing murder of his wife - Appeal dismissed.  (Paras 21 to 23)

TUT WIEAT (1860 & 45), T 302 — GRRerforor wr=y — Jfae,
sdfierreff ®1 o=t 9Y e wied @ oy g - [g @ 9wy adienefl agh
gl Ud qeal & Wit wer § ar — adieneff g S wwedwvor € R
T — afareff 3 frend w afear @ @it @) afv wee @ o -
adierefl sl ot 37 Ter v w9 @1 Tid - adfia @R

Cases referred

(1996) 10 SCC 193, (2006) 10 SCC 681, (2003) 11 SCC 271,
(1944) AC 315.

Raman Patel with Sangee_ta Sharma, for the appellant.
Umesh Pandey, Dy. GA. with Amit Pandey, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
VIMLA JAIN, J. :- Appellant Mohammad Hussain Ansari preferred this appeal
under Section 374(2) of the Code of Criminal Procedure being aggrieved by
the judgment dated 16.5.2001 passed by Additional Sessions Judge, Rewa
in Sessions Trial No.147/2000, whereby he has been convicted and sentenced
as under:-

Provision Sentence

Under Section 302 of IPC hnpﬁsonment for life.

Under Section 201 of IPC | Rigorous imprisonment for three years.
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2. Brief facts of the case are that Rehana Bano (since deceased) was the
wife of accused Mohammad Hussain.Ansari. On the basis of telephonic

information, PW.8 Mustaque Ahmad, brother of deceased, went to the hduse

of the accused and found her sister Rehana Bano to be dead. He gave
information of the incident to Police Station Tyonthar (Ex.P/15). On the basis
of the marg intimation, it was found that in the night of 28.5.2000, accused
had committed murder of his wife Rehana Bano by overlaying pillow on her
mouth. As a result of the incident, gold nose-pin (PHULIA) had come out
from her nose. The accused had buried the pillow and gold nose-pin (PHULIA)
in his house but the same were recovered later on. It was alleged that the
accused had illicit relationship with Asmat Anjum, who was sister-in-law of
his younger brother and on being objected to such illicit relationship by the
deceased, the accused had committed her murder. On the basis of these facts,
the accused was charged under Section 302 of IPC for committing murder of
his wife and was also charged under Section 201 of IPC for causing
. disappearance of evidence used in commission of the offence i.e. pillow and
gold nose-pin (PHULIA). On the basis of the information given by PW.8
Mustaque Ahmad at Police Station Tyonthar (Ex.P/15), the police party
reached the spot and investigation commenced. Spot map was prepared
(Ex.P/7). Panchnama of the dead body was prepared (Ex.P/9). The dead
body of Rehana Bano was sent for postmortem. Statements of witnesses were
recorded. On the basis of the statement on memorandum (Ex.P/2), pillow and
gold nose-pin (PHULIA) used in commission of the offence were recovered
vide seizure memo Ex.P/3 at the instance of accused and he was arrested.

3. After investigation, charge sheet was filed under Sections 302 and
201 of IPC against the appellant before the Court of Judicial Magistrate First
Class, Rewa, who committed the case to the Court of Sessions and ultimately
it was transferred to the learned Additional Sessions Judge, Rewa. On being
charged with the offence under Sections 302 and 201 of IPC, the appellant/
accused pleaded not guilty, complete innocence and claimed to be tried with
the prayer that he had been falsely implicated in the case. On examination
under Section 313 of Cr.P.C, he stated that when the incident occurred, he
was not at his home. He was sewing clothes in his shop.

4. In order to bring home the charges against the appellant, the
prosecution examined fifteen witnesses and proved the documents (Ex.P/1 to
P/17}. The appellant did not examine any witness in support of his defence.

-
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5. The learned Court below, after scanning the evidence found the charges
proved against the appellant, convicted and sentenced him as_stated
hereinabove.

6.  Thisappeal has been filed by the appellant assailing the sald Judgment
of conviction and order of sentence.

7. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the Court below has
committed an error.of law in holding the appellant/accused guilty for the offence
under Sections 302 and 201 of [PC. He also submits that the learned trial
Court had erred in relying on the testimony of child witness Shahnaj (PW.14).
He has prayed that appeal of appellant/accused deserves to be allowed by
setting aside the finding of conviction and order of sentence.

8. On the other hand, learned counsel for the State has supported the
finding of the trial Court.
9. We have con31dered the arguments advanced by 1earned counsel for-

the parties and perused the record.

10.  PW.10 Dr.Anand Mahendra conducted the postmortem (Ex.P/12) of
deceased Rehana Bano and opined that she died due to asphyxia within one
hour after taking her night meal and within twelve hours from autopsy. Her
death was homicidal in hature.

11, There is no challenge from any side to the fact that death of deceased
Rehana Bano was homicidal in nature. According to PW.10 .Dr.Anand
Mahendra, she died as a result of asphyxia. Therefore, it is apparent that
injury caused on her person was fatal in nature and sufficient to cause her
death in due course. Looking to the nature of injuries, death of Rehana Bano
appears to be homicidal.

12.  PW.14 Shahnaj, a minor girl of 7 years of age and daughter of the
accused and deceased, has stated in her deposition that the appellant/accused
is her father. His name is Mohammad Hussain. Her mother's name is Rehana
and she had been expired. Shahnaj further stated that she had one brother,
who was younger to her. She used to call her brother 'LALA!. She stated that
on seeing her mother, she shrieked but her mother did not wake up. At that
time, her father was present but later on he went away somewhere. Her mother
was sleeping on a cot (KHATIA). On the night of the incident, she and her
brother Lala had also slept on the cot (KHATIA) alongwith her mother. She
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tried to wake up her mother but as she was not responding, she had gone to
the house of Bermain Aunty to call her and she came there. When she was
asked to identify witness Kusum, she stated that yes it is Bermain Aunty, who
had come to her house and Bermain Aunty had seen her mother and after the
incident, her mother did not speak to her. In cross-examination of PW.14
Shahnaj, she stated that her father had a shop and he used to go there. It is

true that on the day when her brother Lala was crying and her mother did not

wake up, her father had gone to his shop after taking meals. She was sleeping
alongwith her mother and brother Lala. On hearing the scream of Lala, when
her mother did not wake up, she opened the door and alongwith her brother
Lala went to the house of Bermain Aunty. She did not know whether her
mother was dead or alive but she could not meet her mother from that day.
She also stated that her father never beat her mother. He used to give food
and clothes to her mother. Her mother used to take some medicines but she
did not know the reason of taking such medicines.

13, Rabbulnisha (PW.1) and Kusumbai (PW.2) had corroborated the
statement of Shahnaj (PW.14). Kusumbai (PW.2) stated that Shahnaj (PW.14)
had come with her brother aged two months, Her brother was ctying. Shahnaj
told her that her mother did not wake up. Then she had called her neighbour
Rabbulnisha (PW.1) and went to appellant's house with torch. She saw that
Rehana was dead. They also stated that appellant was present at 10 O'clock
in the night but when they reached his home, he was not present there.

14.  The Apex Court in C.Chenga Reddy and others Vs. State of A.P
(1996).10 SCC 193, observed thus :-

“In a case based on circumstantial evidence, the settled law is
that the circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is
drawn should be fully proved and such circumstances must be
conclusive in nature. Moreover, all the circumstances should
be complete and there should be no gap left in the chain of
evidence. Further the proved circumstances must be consistent
only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused and totally
inconsistent with his innocence.......”.

15.  Inthe case of Trimukh Maroti Kirkan Versus State of Maharashtra
(2006) 10 CCC 681, the Apex Court took the view that where an accused is
alleged to have committed the murder of his wife and the prosecution succeeds
in leading evidence to show that shortly before the commission of crime, they

o
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were seen together or the offence takes place in the dwelling home where the
husband also normally resided, it has been consistently held that if the accused
does not offer any explanation how the wife received injuries or offers an
cxplanation which is found to be false, it is a strong circumstance which
indicates that he is responsible for commission of the crime. In Nika Ram vs
State of H.P, it was observed that the fact that the accused alone was with his
wife in the house when she was murdered there with "Khukhri" and the fact
that the relations of the accused with her were strained Wwould, in thé absence
of any'cogent explanation by him, pomt to his guilt. In Ganeshlal v. State of
Maharashtra, the appellant was prosecutéd for the murder 6f his wife which
took place inside his house. It was observed that when the death had occurred
in his custody, the appellant.is under an obligation to give a plausible
explanation for the cause of her death in his statement under Section 313
Cr.P.C. The mere denial of the prosecution case coupled with absence of any
explanation was held to be inconsistent with the innocence of the accused,
but consistent with the hypothesis that the appellant is a prime accused in the
commission of murder of his wife. : -

16. . In the case of State of Punjab Vs. Karnazl Smgh reported in (2003)
11 SCC 271, the Apex Court quoted with approval from Stirland Vs. Director
of Public Prosecutions [(1 944y AC 315)] thus:-

. "Ifan offence takes place inside the privacy of ahouse and in
such circumstances where the assailants have all the opportunity -
to plan and commit the offence at the time and in circumstances
of their choice, it will be extremely difficult for the prosecution’
to lead evidence to establish the guilt of the accused if'the
strict principle nf circumstantial evidence, as noticed above,

- is insisted upon by the courts. A judge does not preside over a
criminal trial merely to see that no innocent man is punished. A
judge also presides to see that a guilty main does not escape
Both are public duties. -

17.  Thereisno d1spute that deceased was the wife of the appellantlaccused
and she had been living with her minor daughter Shahnaj (PW.14) and son.
Dr.Anand Mahendra (PW.10) stated that he found contents of Khichdi about

. 200 grams in her abdomen. It appears that she took food before sometime of

the incident. Shahnaj (PW.14) also stated in her cross-examination that her
father had taken food and he had gone to shop.
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18.  The contention of learned counsel for the appellant is that statement
of Shahnaj (PW.14) shows that when her father (appellant) had gone to
‘his shop, they had locked the door from inside and slept. When her
younger brother had cried, she opened the door and went out. Learned

counsel submits that it shows that the appellant had not come to home .

before the incident.

19.  Wedonot find any substance in the submission made by the learned
counsel for the appellant because there was no evidence on record that the
appellant remained whole right in the shop.

20.  Shahnaj (PW.14) is a child witness aged 7 years. In her cross-
examination, she stated that "¥ 3R &% ¥%0 G e RaToT 99w W TG A"
Tt does not mearnrthat all the three persons locked the door including two
months' old child.

21.  The medical evidence disclosed that the deceased died of
strangulation during late night hours or early morning. The evidence showed
that the accused and his wife were seen together in the house at night and
they took food. There cannot be any hesitation to hold and to come to
the conclusion that it was the accused (husband), who was the perpetrator
of the crime.

22,  The appellantin his statement undetr Section 313 Cr.P.C did not
offer any plausible explanation as to how his wife received injury, which
was found on her body. Recovery of pillow and gold nose-pin of deceased
. was made at the pointing out of the appellant. In the absence of any
explanation by the appellant about the circumstances in which his wife
died coupled with the fact that no-one else had entry in the house where
appellant was living with his wife and children, the circumstances
enumerated above unerringly point to the guilt of the accused/appeliant,
which are inconsistent with his innocence,

23.  Asdiscussed above, in our opinion there is no merit in this appeal.
The judgment of the trial Court cannot be faulted. Therefore, the appeal fails
and the conviction and sentence awarded to appellant is hereby confirmed.

Appeal is dismissed.
Appeal dismissed.
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I.LL.R. [2013]) M.P.,1153
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr.A. No. 1647/2004 (Jabalpur) decided on 26 February, 2013

SURAJ CHANDRAWANSHI & anr. ...Appellants
Vs. '
STATE OF M.P. " g ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 - Circumstantial Evidence
- Deceased wife of the appellant No.1 and daughter in law of appellant
No.2 found dead in the house - Deceased was living with the appellants
- Deceased died of homicidal death - No explanation offered by the
appellants as to how the deceased suffered injuries and died - Appellants -
guilty of committing murder - Appeal dismissed. (Paras 29-34)
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Cases referred :

(1996) 10 SCC 193, (2006) 10 SCC 681, (2003) 11.SCC 271,
1944 AC 315, AIR 2011 SC 1017, AIR 1994 SC 2420, AIR 2008 SC 533,
AIR 2009 SC 712, 2012 CR.L.J. 1214, AIR 2012 SC 2123, AIR 2012 SC
2248. A :

Madan Singh, for the appellants.
Umesh Pandey, G.A. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
ViMLA JaN, J. :- Appellants preferred this appeal under Section 374(2) of
the Code of Criminal Procedure being aggrieved by the judgment dated
6.8.2004 passed by 1st Additional Sessions Judge, Shahdol in Sessions Trial
No.43/2004, whereby each ‘of the appellants has been convicted and -
sentenced as under:-
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Provision Sentence

Under Section 302 of IPC | Imprisonment for life and fine of Rs. 1 000/-,
in default of payment of fine, rigorous
| imprisonment for one year each.

2. It is not in dispute that Chandrawati (since deceased) was married to
accused/appellant No.1 Suraj. Accused/appellant No.2 Kedarnath is her
father-in-law whereas Balakdas (PW.4), Shankarlal (PW.5) and Amardas
(PW.6) are her brothers. C .

3. Brief facts of the case are that on 18.6.2003 at about 6:30 pm, accused
Kedarnath had given an oral information at Police Station Amarkantak, District
Shahdol that he is a resident of Village Karondi of Police Station Rajendragram.
His son Suraj Chandrawanshi (accused/appellant No.1) was serving in Kalyan
Ashram and was living in Van Udyan, Amarkantak alongwith his wife
Chandrawati. As he was unwell, he had come to the house of his son Suraj at
Amarkantak in connection with his treatment before 10—12 days. His daughter-
in-law Chandrawati, wife of accused Suraj, was also suffering with fever for
‘about 3—4 days and her treatment was going on at Kalyan Ashram,
Amarkantak. On 10.6.2002, his son Suraj had gone to the hospital to perform
his duty.whereas her daughter-in-law Chandrawati was at home.” He
(Kedarnath) was feeding his younger grand son in an other room whereas
Chandrawati was sleeping next to the room of his daughter and son-inlaw. He
had seen Chandrawati sleeping at about 11 am and after about one hour,
when he again saw Chandrawati, she was not there. When accused Suraj
returned {rom the duty at12 pm, he also tried to search his wife. In the evening
at about 4:30 pm, he went to the well in connection with her search, put the
KANTA with rope in the well and pulled out the dead body of the deceased
from the well. On the basis of the information, Head Constable Mangal Prasad
(PW.3) had registered Marg Intimation (Ex.P/4) and the investigation
commenced by Station House Officer Ashok Kumar Mishra (PW.10). He
immediately alongwith staff proceeded towards the spot. e had found dead
body in PARCHHI of room of appellants, He prepared Inquest Panchnama
(Ex.P/6) in presence of the witnesses. As the death of Chandrawati was
suspicious, her dead body was sent for postmortem to Primary Health Centre,
Amarkantak. Spot map (Ex.P/11) was prepared. Postmortem of dead body
was performed vide Ex.P/1 by Dr.S.K.Singh (PW.1), who opined that the
deceased died due to asphyxia resulting from compression of chest and

1
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blockage of air passage. During investigation, it had come in the evidence that
Suraj and Kedarnath (husband and father-in-law of deceased) used to make
demand of Motorcycle and compensation amount received on her father's”
death from Chandrawati and when she could not fulfill their demand, they
committed her murder and with intention to disappear the evidence threw her
dead body into a well of Shaskiya Udyan. Crime under Sections 302, 201/34
of IPC and Section 3/4 of Dowry Prohibition Act was registered against the
accused persons and first information report Ex.P/13 was reduced in writing.
Statements of witnesses were recorded. Copy of FIR was sent to the Judicial
Magistrate First Class, Rajendragram, District Anuppur. The accused persons
were arrested.

4. After investigation, charge sheet was filed under Sections 302, 201,
304-B read with Section 34 of IPC and Section 3/4 of Dowry Prohibition
Act against the appellants before the Court of Judicial Magistrate First Class,
Rajendragram, District Anuppur, who committed the case to the Court of
District and Sessions Judge, Shahdol and ultimately it was transferred to the
Court of 1st Additonal Sessions Judge, Shahdol for trial.

3. On being chargeﬂ with the offence under Sections 498-A,306, 304-
B, 302 of IPC and Section 3/4 of Dowry Prohibition Act, the appellant/accused
pleaded not guilty, complete innocence and claimed to be tried with the prayer
that thcj;y had been falsely implicated in the case.

6. In order to bring home the charges against the appellants, the
prosecution examined twelve witnesses and proved the documents (Ex.P/1
to P/17) onrecord. The appellants did not examine any witness in support of
their defence.

7. The Jearned Court below, after scanning the evidence found the charges
proved against the appellants under Section 302 of IPC and convicted and
sentenced them as hereinabove stated. However, the Court below did not
find the charges proved against the appellants under Sections 498-A, 306,
304-B of IPC and Section 3/4 of Dowry Prohibition Act and acquitted them
from the aforesaid charges.

8. This appeal has been filed by the appellants assailing the sa1d judgment
of conv1ct10n and order of sentence.

9. Learned counsel for the appellant submlts that the Court below has
committed an error of law in holding the appellants/accused guilty for the
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offence under Section 302 of IPC. He has prayed that appeal of accused/
appellants deserves to be allowed by setting aside the finding of conviction
and order of sentence.

10. On the other hand, learned Government Advocate for the State has
supported the finding of the trial Court.

11. We have considered the arguments advanced by learned counsel for
the parties and perused the record. ’

12. " PW.1 Dr.8.K.Singh conducted the postmortem of deceased
Chandrawati vide Ex.P/1 and found following injuries on her person:-

EXTERNAL INJURIES

"Rigor mortis was gone. Face, neck and chest were bluish in
colour. Dependant part back of the body was slight bluish in
colour and echymosed. Eyes were closed, Both eyes
congested and hemorrhage blood present over ri ght eye.
Antemortem abrasion present over supra orbital region 1 ¢m
X Y2 cm. Another antemortem abrasion present over infra
orbital left side region 1 cm X 1 cm with clotted blood. There
was P.M abrasion over right side zygomatic region about lem
X 1 cm. There was clotted blood present over both nasal cavity
and over upper lip. Both lips were slight bluish in colour, Mouth
was half opened and upper teeth seen. Tongue was bitten.
Anterior 1/3 lateral margin of tongue and kept inside oral cavity.
Slight sinelling present. Slight brownish colour abrasion present
over iliac crest right side 5 cm X 3 cm.

No other external injury seen over body. Fingers of
both hands were flexed, congested at carpal joint. Nails were
caganosed of both hands and rest NAD.

INTERNAL INJURIES

Congested dark colour blood present over lower part of
trachea. Right lung pale and congested. Left lung pale and
congested. Small amount of blood present over right and left
side chamber of the heart.

Opinion:- The cause of death asphyxia resulting from

i
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compression of chest and blockage of air passage. It is
homicidal in nature. Period between death and postmortem
examination 24—48 hours."

13.  There is no challenge from any side to the fact that death of deceased
Chandrawati was homicidal in nature, PW.1 Dr.S.K.Singh found injuries on
her person and she died due to asphyxia resulting from compression of chest
and blockage of air passage. Therefore, it is apparent that injuries caused on
her person were fatal in nature and sufficient to cause her death in due course.
Therefore, looking to the nature of injuries, death of deceased Chandrawati
appears to be homicidal in nature. '

14.  The prosecution version essentially rested on circumstances. The trial
Court found that the circumstances were <nfficient to hold the accused/

appeltants guilty.

15. The Apex Court in C.Chenga Reddjz and others V.s‘-. State of A.P
(1996) 10 SCC 193, observed thus :-

“In a case based on circumstantial evidence, the settled law is
that the circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is
drawn should be fully proved and such circumstances must be
conclusive in nature. Moreover, all the circumstances should
be complete and there should be no gap left in the chain of
evidence. Further the proved circumstances must be consistent
only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused and totally
inconsistent with his innocence.......”.

16.  Inthe case of Trimukh Maroti Kirkan Versus State of Maharashtra
(2006) 10 SCC 681, the Apex Court took the view that where an accused is
alleged to have committed the murder of his wife and the prosecution succeeds
in leading evidence to show that shortly before the commission of crime, they
were seen together or the offence takes place in the dwelling home where the
husband also normally resided, it has been cons:~tently held that if the accused
does not offer any explanation how the wife received injuries or offers an
explanation which is found to be false, it is a strong circumstance which
indicates that he is responsible for commission of the crime. In Nika Ram vs
State of H. P, it was observed that the fact that the accused alone was with his
wife in the house when she was murdered there with "Khukhri" and the fact
that the relations of the accused with her were strained would, in the absence
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of any cogent explanation by him, point to his guilt. In Ganeshlal v, State of
Maharashira, the appellant was prosecuted for the murder of his wife which
took place inside his house. It was observed that when the death had occurred
in his custody, the appellant is under an obligation to give a plausible explanation
for the cause of her death in his statement under Section 313 Cr.P.C. The
mere denial of the prosecution case coupled with absence of any explanation
was held to be inconsistent with the innocence of the accused, but consistent
with the hypothesis that the appellant is a prime accused in the commission of
murder of his wife.

17.  Inthe case of State of Punjab Vs. Karnail Singh reported in (2003)
11 SCC 271, the Apex Court quoted with approval from Stirland Vs. Director
of Public Prosecutions [(1944) AC 31 5)] thus:-

"If an offence takes place inside the privacy of a house and in
such circumstances where the assailants have all the opportunity
to plan and commit the offence at the time and in circumstances
of their choice, it will be extremely difficult for the prosecution
to lead evidence to establish the guilt of the accused if the
strict principle of circumstantial evidence, as noticed above, is
insisted upon by the courts. A judge does not preside over a
criminal trial merely to see that no innocent man is punished. A
judge also presides to sce that a guilty main does not escape. -
Both are public duties,"

18.  There is no dispute that deceased was the wife of appellant No.1
Suraj Chandrawanshi and she had been living with him. It is also not disputed
that appellant No.2 Kedarnath is father-in-law of deceased and he had been
there at the time of incident. On his'information, Marg Intimation (Ex.P/4) had
been registered by Head Constable Mangal Prasad (PW.3).

19.  Learned counsel for the appellants submits that the death of deceased
was accidental. He submits that there is possibility that when deceased fell
down in the well, her Sari and Petticoat would have wrapped around her
mouth, nose and ears. In such a situation, she died as a result of asphyxia and
thus water could not be found in her abdomen., - v

20.  Weare not impressed b),.r the argument advanced by learned counse]
for the appellants because in this case there is nothing on record to show that
the dead body of deceased was pulled out from the well. Even appellant

r;)l
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No.2 Kedarnath in his statement under Section 313 Cr.P.C denied this fact
that he had pulled out the dead body of deceased. PW.12 S.C.Raikwar, SDOP
had proved Inquest Panchnama (Ex.P/6) where it is mentioned that "5t &
ERIl TR B W # v/ wr man o 1" Itis only a conjecture that the deceased
died because her Sari and Petticoat were wrapped over her mouth, nose and
ears in the well.

21.  Appellant No.2 Kedarnath had informed the Police Station,
Amarkantak that "eR % ¥ 7 qaw dgad ot § R R 7 v TR0 B D) @
Reretr &1 o Tgadh 3€) SIS a1 FATEY B ATEN a1 HAdl A Al off 11 99 T
IY IEY U AW AT PN TF HL q1E AU AT B PN Y AR b wwl qd
U dgdal oigr |is off 987 7gl off 79 3ER SER o fBar 7€ el aear ¥
A TER 12 T SYA F AU AT I JAR qE | TATL BRIAT WA 4.30 A H
FTER W TS §X W 99 BT § SN T2 3 @il BEES U § ST Hic) TAEr
at Eadl F A U B TR | Fier d Bue) BN A7 T © | WET ¥ BE H
arel 1M @ 9@ ¥ " There is no evidence where they were searching the
deceased. There is also nothing on record to show that appellant No.2
Kedarnath knew that the deceased was in the well. This conduct of appellants
and the cumulative effect of the circumstances, in our opmlon indicate the
guilt of the appellants.

22.  Next submission of learned counsel for the appellants is that in the
case based on circumstantial evidence, motive for committing the crime assurnes
great importance but in the present case, prosecution did not prove motive
for committing the crime. Learned counsel for the appellants relied upon the
judgment in the case of State Through CBI Vs. Mahender Singh Dahiya {AIR
2011 SC 1017}, wherein Their Lordships were pleased to observe thus:-

"Where the case of the prosecution has been proved beyond
reasonable doubt on the basis of the material produced before
the Court, the motive loses its significance. But in cases based
on circumstantial evidence, motive for committing the crime
assumes great importance. In such circ. mstances, absence of
motive would put the Court on its guard io scrutinize the | -
evidence very closely to ensure that suspicion, emotion or
conjecture do not take the place of proof." A

23.  Learned counsel for the appellants has further relied upon the judgment
in the case of Suresh Chandra Bahri Vs. State of Bihar {AIR 1994 SC
24204}, wherein Their Lordships were pleased to observe thus:-
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"Sometimes motive plays an important role and becomes a
compelling force to commit a crime and therefore motive behind
the crime is a relevant factor for which evidence may be
adduced. A motive is something which prompts a person to
form an opinion or intention to do certain illegal act or evena
legal act but with illegal means with a view to achieve that
intention. In a case where there is clear proof of motive for
the commission of the crime it affords added support to the
finding of the Court that the accused was guilty for the offence
charged with. But the absence of proof of motive does not
render the evidence bearing on the guilt of the accused
nonetheless untrustworthy or unreliable because most often it
is only the perpetrator of the crime alone who knows as to
what circumstances prompted him to a certain course of action
leading to the commission of the crime.”

24.  Coming to the contention relating to the motive; Balakdas (PW.4),
who is a brother of deceased Chandrawati, in paragraph 2 of his examination-
in-chief, has stated that his father had expired in an accident as a result of fall
at the time when he was working in a Dam and Rs.30,000-35000 was awarded
by the Labour Court by way of compensation for his death. In paragraph 3 of
his statement, he deposed that his sister Chandrawati was married 3-4 years'
prior to the death of his father. He used to go outside and whenever he used
to return home, he always got a news that in-laws of Chandrawati were not
allowing her to come to her father's house. He did not know as to why her in-
laws were not allowing her to come to her father's house. He further stated
that 2—-3 marriages have been performed in his uncle's house and invitations
have been sent to her in-laws but the accused persons did not send
Chandrawati.

25, Shankarlal (PW.5), who is a cousin of deceased Chandrawati, in
paragraph 1 of his examination-in-chief, has stated that the compensation,
which was awarded due to the death of the father of Chandrawati has been
deposited in the name of Chandrawati and her brother. Chandrawati had told
him that her husband Suraj always asked to withdraw the money of
compensation deposited in her name in the bank but she did not agree to give
it to him.

26.  Amardas (PW.6), who is also a brother of deceased Chandrawati

w
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corroborated the statement of Shankarlal (PW.5) and stated that after the
death of his father, his mother had received an amount of Rs.35,000/-. His
mother had deposited Rs.10,000/- in his favour as well as Rs.10,000/- in
favour of Chandrawati in a fixed deposit in the bank. In paragraph 2 of the
examination-in-chief, he stated that his sister used to tell him that her husband
was insisting her to deposit money in his favour. He further stated that when
accused Suraj had come to know about the money deposited in her favour,
he became greedy and started demanding money.

27.  The above-said statements of witnesses show that appellant No.1
Suraj Chandrawanshi wanted to withdraw the money of compensation

_deposited by the deceased but deceased did not want to give it to him. This
was the motive of the incident proved by the prosecution.

28.  Itistrue that motive is important in case of circumstantial evidence
but it does not mean that in all cases of circumstantial evidence if the prosecution
has been unable to satisfactorily prove the motive, its case-must fail. It all
depends on the facts and circumstances of the case. As is said correctly the
~ men may lie but circumstances do not. )

29.  The medical evidence disclosed that on the body of deceased,
antemortem abrasion was present over supra orbital region 1 em X %2 cmand
another antemortem abrasion was present over infra orbital left side region 1
em X 1 em with clotted blood. The cause of death was asphyxia resulting
from compression of chest and blockage of air passage. It was homicidal in
nature. Period between death and postmortem examination was 2448 hours.

30.  The appellants in their statements under Section 313 Cr.P.C did not
offer any plaugible explanation as to how deceased received injury, which
was found on her body. I the absence of any explanation by the appellants
about the circumstances in which wife of appellant No. 1 Suraj Chandrawanshi
died coupled with the fact that appellants were living with the deceased, the
circumstances enumerated above are inconsistent with their 1 innocence and
unerringly point to the gmlt of the appellants. _

31. For the above-said reasons, the contention advanced on behalf of the
appellants cannot be accepted. :

32.  Learned counsel for the appellants has also relied upon decisions of
the Supreme Court in the cases of Kapildeo Mandal and others Vs. State
of Bihar {AIR 2008 SC 533}, Ramachami Vs. State Rep. By State
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Prosecutor {AIR 2009 SC 712}, State of Rajasthan Vs. Chhote Lal and
others {2012 CRL.L.J 1214}, State of Haryana Vs. Shakuntla and others
“{AIR 2012 SC 2123} and Bishnupada Sarkar and another Vs. State of
West Bengal {AIR 2012 SC 2248}, The facts and circumstances of both
these precedents are clearly distinguishable from those of this case in hand,
therefore, both these authorities do not help the appellants.

33. " Asdiscussed above, the judgment of the trial Court is based on correct
appreciation of the evidence placed on record. The chain of circumstances is

clearly proved by the prosecution, therefore, this appeal fails and conviction-

and sentence awarded to the appellants by the Court below are hereby.
confirmed.

34.  This appeal is dismissed being without merit. The order of suspension
of sentence of appellant No. 2 Kedarnath by granting ad-interim bail on
22.3.2005 during pendency of this criminal appeal stands vacated. Appellant
No. 2 Kedarnath is directed to surrender before the trial Court for undergoing
remaining part of the jail sentence.

Appeal is dismissed.
Appeal dismissed.

1L.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1162
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Smt. Justice Vimla Jain
Cr.A. No.1781/2002 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 March, 2013

KARAN ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ) ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 0f 1860), Section 302 - Murder - Circumstantial
Evidence - Last Seen Together - Material omissions and contradictions
in the statement of witnesses - Complainant admitted that he knew the
appellant even then it was mentioned in the Marg Intimation that one
person was seen carrying the can - Marg intimation is not corroborated
by the statement of the witness - Prosecution has failed to prove that
the deceased and appellant were last seen together - Appellant
accuitted. (Paras 19 & 20)
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Durgesh Gupta, for the appellant.
Umesh Pandey, G.A. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by ;
VimLa JAm, J. :- Appellant Karan preferred this appeal under Section 374(2)
of the Code of Criminal Procedure being aggrieved by the judgment dated
8.6.2002 passed by 2nd Additional Sessions Judge, Betul in Sessions Trial
No.31/02, whereby he had been convicted and sentenced with the direction
to run all the sentences concurrently as under:-

Provision . Sentence

Under Section 302 IPC Imprisonment for life with fine of
Rs.500/- and in default of payment
of fine, rigorous imprisonment for

-three months. )

Under Section 201 IPC . Rigorous imprisonment for two
years with fine of Rs.100/- and in
default of payment of fine, rigorous
imprisonment for one month.

Under Section 404 IPC Rigorous imprisonment for one year
with fine of Rs.100/- and in default of
payment of fine, rigorous imprisonment
for one month.

2. Allegation against appellant/accused Karan is that on 27.11.2001 at
about 6 pm, he intentionally committed murder of Kalabai, wife of Ashok
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Dubey in the field of Ganesh Chawla, caused disappearance of evidence by
hanging her dead body on a tree and dishonestly misappropriated her property
i.e. can of kerosene oil and Rs.500/-, which were in her possession at the
time ofher death.

3. Brief facts of the casé are that complainant Kunjbihari Nandulkar

submitted a marg intimation on 28.11.2001 at Police Chowki Ghodadongri .

that yesterday (27.11.2001) in the evening, his sister Kalabai was returning
from market alongwith his son Durgesh. On the way, she saw a man carrying
her can and she started going towards him. When she did not turn up in the
night, a search was made and her dead body was found hanging on a tree with
her own SARI, tied around her neck.

4. On the basis of the report, Sub-Inspector S.N.Pandey (PW.8)
registered the Marg Intimation (Ex.P/1). The police party reached the spot
and started the investigation. After due notice, witnesses were called and Inquest
Panchnama (Ex.P/3) and Spot Map (Ex.P/4) were prepared in their presence.
Bloodstained earth, plain earth, pieces of bangles, carring, ladies Kajiya,
happal, purse were recovered from the spot and their Seizure Memo (Ex.P/
14} was prepared. The dead body of Kalabai was sent for postmortem wherein
it was opined that she died as a result of asphyxia due to strangulation.
Statements of witnesses were recorded. Crime No. 442/2001 for the offences
under Sections 302, 201 & 404 of IPC was registered against accused Karan.
He was arrested on 1.12.2001. On the basis of memorandum of accused,
pair of chappal, Rs.400/-, GAMCHHA, blue can with 17/18 litres of kerosene
were recovered and seizure memo was prepared. Seized articles were sent to
Forensic Science Laboratory, Gwalior.

5. After investigation, charge sheet was filed under Sections 302, 201
and 404 of IPC against accused Karan before the Court of Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Betul, who committed the case to the Court of Sessions and
ultimately it was transferred to the Court of 2nd Additional Sessions J udge,
Betul for trial. On being charged with the offences under the said sections, the
accused/appellant pleaded not guilty, complete innocence and claimed to be
. tried with the prayer that he had been falsely implicated in the case.

6. In order to bring home the charges against the appellant, the
prosecution examined twelve witnesses and proved twenty five documents
(Ex.21 to P/25). The appellant did not examine any witness in support of his
defence.

fo
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7. The learned Court below after scanning the evidence found the charges
proved against appellant Karan. Therefore, it convicted and sentenced him
as stated hereinabove.

1

3. This appeal has been filed by the appellant assailing the said judgment
of conviction and order of sentence.

9. Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the Court below has
committed an error of law in holding the appellant/accused guilty for the offences
under Sections 302, 201 and 404 of IPC. He also submitted that the
parameters laid down by the Apex Court in deciding such a case based on
circumstantial evidence had not been applied. He has prayed that the appeal
deserves to be allowed by setting as1de the finding of conviction and order of
sentence. :

10.  Onthe other hand, learned counsel for the State has supported the
finding of the trial Court.

11.  Wehave considered the arguments advanced by learned counsel for
the parties and perused the record.

12. The prosecutlon version essentially rested on c1rcumstances The trial
Court found that the circumstances were sufficient to hold the accused/appellant

guilty.
13.  The Apex Court in C.Chenga Reddy and others Vs. State of A.P

(1996) 10 SCC 193, observed thus :-

“In a case based on circumstantial evidence, the settled law is
that the circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is
drawn should be fully proved and such circumstances must be
conclusive in nature. Moreover, all the circumstances should
be complete and there should be no gap left in the chain of
evidence. Further the proved circumstances must be consistent
only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused and totally

kb

inconsistent with his innocence....... .

14. PW.12 Dr.Mohit Tawar conducted the postmortem (Ex.P/23) of
deceased Kalabai and found following injuries on her dead body:-

"(1)  Abrasion over right breast, interrupted semicircular 6
¢m X 1 em, individual marks 1X1 cm.
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(2) 3 cmbelow (1)is similar semicircular area of redness
4X2 cm..

(3)  Single abrasion over left parietal region 1X1 cm.

(4)  Abrasions over right shoulder anteriorly 1X0.5 cm and
1X1 cm, 2 cm apart.

(5)  Abrasion over left shoulder 1X1 cm.
(6)  Multiple abrasions over right elbow.
(7)  Multiple abrasions over left elbow.

(8)  Multiple linear abrasions of varying sizes over back,
both scapular region, B/L paraspinal region, lumbar region in
midline.

) Abrasions over limbosacral region 8X6 ¢cm in midline
with paraspinal region.

(10) Abrasions over medial aspect of right knee 1X1 cm.
(11)  Abrasion over right foot dorsally 1X1 cm.

(12)  Superficial lacerated wound 1X0.25 cm at the base of h
left fist metacarpal laterally.

Ligature marks:- Two marks parallel to each other observed:
(I) In upper part of neck extending from right mastoid process
obliquely downwards and passing above the thyroid cartilage
in midline then running obliquely upwards towards the left
mastoid process as a deep groove 2.5 em wide with multiple
abrasions at side of right neck and multiple vesicular eruptions
on left side of neck below the ligature mark. (II) About 2.5 cm
below (I) mark, encircling whole neck darker on sides and
falling over thyroid region 3.5 cm wide anteriorly running
obliquely upwards posteriorly, narrowing to 2 cm width.

Opinion:- Mode of death is asphyxia due to strangulation. Final
opinion about rape can be made only after the examination of
slide. No signs of rape on postmortem examination, Time
passed since death is within 24 hours at the commencement of
postmortem examination. "
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15.  According to Dr.Mohit Tawar (PW.12), the cause of her death was
asphyxia due to strangulation. Therefore, it is apparent that injuries caused on
her person were fatal in nature and sufficient to cause her death in due course.
Looking to the nature of injuries, death of Kalabai appears to be homicidal.

16.  In the matter of Jaharlal Das Vs State of Orissa (AIR 1991 SC
1388), the Hon'ble Supreme Court observed as under:-

"In cases depending largely upon clrcumstantla] ev1dence there
is always a danger that the conjecture or suspicion may take
the place of legal proof and such suspicion however so strong
cannot be allowed to take the place of proof. The Court has
to be watchful and ensure that conjectures and suspicions do
not take the place of legal proof. The Court must satisfy itself
that the various circumstances in the chain of evidence should
be established clearly and that the completed chain must be
such as to rule out a reasonable likelihood of the innocence 6f
the accused. Bearing these principles in mind we shall now
- consider the reasoning of the Courts below in coming to the
conclusion that the accused alone has committed the offence

In view of the aforesaid principle, we are examining the case
~athand. L

17.  Durgesh (PW.3), a minor of 12 years of age and son of deceased
Kalabai, stated that on 27.11.2001, he had gone to Ghodadongri Bazar
alongwith his mother and two sisters. He was returning home alongwith his
mother and elder sister Kalpana after bazar. On the way, his mother started
talking with his maternal uncle Ashok. His elder sister Kalpana proceeded
towards the home and he remained with his mother. On the way, accused
Karan met them. Accused had a can of kerosene oil. His mother questioned

. the accused that where was he carrying the can? The accused answered that

such can did not belong to her and he had brought this can from the house of
Pinky. Accused also told her to come to his home, he would show more such
cans in his house. This witness also stated that thereafter his mother went to
the house of accused to find out the can. He further stated that he had gone to
his home to search the can of kerosene oil. After search, his sister Kalpana
replied that can was not at home. However, this witness Durgesh (PW.3) did
not tell her sister Kalpana (PW.2) that his mother went to the house of accused
Karan to see the can. :
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18.  Kalpana (PW.2), daughiter of deceased Kalabai, stated that on
27.11.2001 at about 2 pm, she had gone to Ghodadongri Bazar alongwith her
mother and brother. Thereafter, they had also gone to the house of her maternal
uncle Kunjbihari. When they were returning to their home, they met Ashok
(maternal uncle) and he started conversation with her mother Kalabai and she
(Kalpana) had returned to her home. After sometime, her brother Durgesh
came 1o home and enquired her about the can of kerosene oil. She made a
search but could not find the can. Durgesh returned to join her mother. Durgesh
returned back to home and told that he could not find his mother. Her mother
did not return to the home. This witness stated that her mother had sent her

brother Durgesh to home to find out that whether can of kerosene oil was at

_home or not.

19.  Kunjbihari Nandulkar (PW.1), youn ger brother of deceased Kalabai,
stated in Paragraph 2 of his deposition that on 27.11 .2001, Kalabai had gone
to Ghodadongri Bazar alongwith her son Durgesh and daughter Kalpana. In
the evening at 6 pm, when they were returning from market, his sister Kalabai
and nephew Durgesh stopped on the way for talking to somebody and his
niece Kalpana reached her home alongwith some other lady of her village.
Niece Sunaina had come and told him that somebody had stolen kerosene

can of deceased and she followed him to get back her can. He also went to -

see the deceased but he could not find her. On return, he met his nephew. He
(Kunjbihari) returned to his home thinking that deceased would return after
sometime. In paragraph 3 of his deposition, this witness stated that in the
morning of the next day, when he was walking near Behadidhana, he saw
dead body of Kalabai hanging on a Mango Tree and her belongings—bag,
pieces of bangles, Chappal-were lying on the spot. He immediately rushed
towards his home and harrated the incident to his cousin Murli and Ashok. He
also narrated the incident to Police Chowki Ghodadongri. In paragraph 7 of
his deposition, this witness stated that he knew accused Karan before the
incident. His nephew Durgesh told him that accused Karan had carried can of
kerosene oil and deceased had followed him. But he did not report in the

Marg Intimation (Ex.P/1) that accused/appellant Karan had carried can of .

kerosene oil and-deceased had followed him. He only reported that "33 gg7
mwmﬁmmmmﬁmﬁmuaﬁé@m%mﬁﬁ
- mﬁmmﬁﬁmmmiﬁqé@maﬁaﬁﬁ%aﬁmﬂaﬁﬁm

% & 3k sud fe N8 =9 . Therefore, his statement could not be
corroborated from Marg Intimation (Ex.P/1). :

w®
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20.  Afteraclose and careful analysis of the evidence of above-said witness,
the circumstance that was relied on by prosecution namely that accused and
deceased were last seen together was not proved beyond doubt. No doubt
the offence is a shocking one but the gravity of the offence needs legal proof.
Invariably in such cases, a person last seen with the victim, unless otherwise
there are circumstances prima facie exonerating him, would be the prime
suspect but in the ultimate judicial adjudication suspicion, however strong,
can not be allowed to take the place of proof.

21.  Keeping in view the said discussion, there is no satisfactory proof of
the guilt. Therefore, we are of the opinion that it would not be safe to uphold
the judgment of conviction and sentence passed against the appellant. We
have no other option but to give the benefit of doubt to the appellant and we
are constrained to do so in this case. Accordingly, the appeal is allowed. The
conviction and sentence of appellant/accused are set aside and he shall be set
at liberty forthwith if not required in any other case.

" Appeal is allowed.
Appeal allowed.

I.L.R. [2013] M.P., 1169
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Mr. Justice D. K. Paliwal
Cr. A. No. 1604/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 15 April, 2013

ROOP SINGH ...Appellant
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302 & 304 Part I - Murder or
Culpable Homicide not amounting to murder - Appellant came back
to his house in drunken condition - Quarrel between the appellant and
his deceased wife took place in the course of which appellant poured
kerosene on deceased and ignited her - Held - It could be inferred that
the incident occurred under a sudden impulse without any premeditation
- However, since setting fire to deceased after pouring kerosene on
her indicated that appellant acted either with the intention of causing
death or of causing such bodily injury as was likely to cause death -
Appellant convicted under Section 304 Part I and sentence of 10 years
R.I. ) (Para 22)
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Saumen Mukherjee, for the appellant.
Amit Pandey, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by:
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellant has filed this appeal against the
judgment dated 9th April, 2002, passed by Sessions Judge, Bhopal in
Sessions Trial N0.359/2002, convicting him under Section 302 of the
Indian Penal Code and sentencing him to imprisonment for life with fine
0f Rs.5000/-. In default of payment of fine, further rigorous imprisonment
for one year.

2. In short, the prosecution case is that in the night of 2.8.2002 at
about 8.00 O'clock, appellant came drunk in his hut. His wife Lalwati
(deceased) remonstrated him and asked him to take food, but he abused
her and asked her to leave his house. A quarrel ensued between them, in
the course of which, appellant picked up a kerosene Kuppi from the house,
poured kerosene on deceased and ignited her with a matchstick. When
. deceased caught fire and cried, he tried to extinguish her fire whereby he
also suffered burn injuries on his hands. Hearing cries of deceased,
neighbours viz. Sarojbai, Radhabai and Laxmibai reached there and
extinguished her fire by pouring water on her. She informed them that
appellant ignited her. Ladies of the neighbourhood carried her to Hamidiya
Hospital in an auto rickshaw where Dr. Subhash Singh Tomar (PW-5)
examined her injuries and referred her to burn ward for further examination
and treatment. On receiving information from Hamidiya Hospital, ASI
Uday Beer Singh Tomar (PW-6) of Police Station, Jahangirabad, Bhopal

Iy

x
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requested Executive Magistrate, R.K. Singh Tomar (PW-11) to record
dying declaration of deceased. Mr. Tomar (PW-11) went to Hamidiya
Hospital and recorded dying declaration (Ex.P/6) of deceased after
obtaining opinion of duty doctor Praveen Sharma (PW-12) about her
fitness to make statement. '

3. Investigating Officer, ASI Uday Beer Singh Tomar (PW-6), also
enquired about the incident from the deceased and on her information
recorded Dehati Nalishi (Ex.P/6). On the basis of Dehati Nalishi, a
case under Section 307 of the Indian Penal Code was registered against
the appellant. Assistant Sub Inspector Dinesh Onker (PW-8) also went
to hospital and recorded case diary statement (Ex.P/10) of the deceased.
In all the aforesaid statements, deceased stated that appellant set fire to
her. ‘

4. During treatment in Hamidiya Hospital, on 6.8.2002, deceased
succumbed to her burn injuriés. On receiving such information, police
converted the offence against the appellant under Section 302 of the Indian
Penal Code. Investigating officer went at the spot, seized kerosene can,
match box etc. from the spot and arrested the appellant on 4.8.2002.
After completion of the investigation, he filed charge sheet in the court of
Judicial Magistrate First Class, Bhopal, who, in his turn, committed the
case for trial.

5. Oncharge being framed, appellant abjured his guilt and pleaded
false implication. Though no specific defence was taken by him in his
statement under Section 313 Cr.P.C., but he led evidence by examining
Jyoti Dixit (DW-1), Shivram (DW-2) and Sunil (DW-3) to prove that out
of anger deceased made attempt to commit suicide and when he tried to
save her, he also got burnt.

6. Ubpon trial and after appreciation of evidence learned Sessions
Judge held the appellant guilty, convicted and sentenced him under Section
302 of the Indian Penal Code.

7. Aggrieved by the impugned judgment of conviction, appellant has
preferred this appeal.
8. Shri Saumen Mukherjee, learned counsel for the appellant,

submitted that learned Sessions Judge committed error of fact and law in
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holding the appellant guilty on the basis of sole evidence of dying
declaration. In the facts and circumstances of the case, the evidence of
dying declaration was unnatural, improbable and unreliable. According
to him, from the evidence of defence witnesses it was proved that
deceased committed suicide. On the other hand, Shri Amit Pandey, learned
Panel Lawyer for the State, submitted that the evidence of dying
declaration recorded by the Executive Magistrate is reliable. It stood
corroborated from the evidence of police officers who recorded Dehari
Nalishi and the case diary statement of deceased. According to him, no
interference was called for in the impugned Judgment of conviction passed
by the learned Sessions J udge.

9. We have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused
the impugned judgment and the evidence on record carefully.

10. It hasnot been disputed by the learned counsel for the appellant
that deceased died of burn injuries. Radha Bai (PW-1), Saroj (PW-2),
Laxmi (PW-3) and Jagdish Singh (PW-4) unequivocally stated that on
hearing noise at the house of deceased, when they reached there, they
saw deceased burning. They extinguished her fire and carried her to
hospital. During treatment, she died. This fact was not even challenged
by the appellant or by the defence witnesses viz. Jyoti Dixit (DW-1 ),
Shivram (DW-2) and Sunil (DW-3). Head Constable Narendra Pratap
Singh (PW-7) stated that he conducted inquest proceedings and drew
inquest memorandum (Ex.P/4) of the dead body of deceased.

11.  Apart from above, Dr. Geetarani Gupta (PW-10), who conducted
postmortem examination of the body of deceased, deposed that on
6.8.2002 she found following injuries on the body of deceased:-

“1. Marginal scalp hair, eyebrows , eyelashes, axillary
hair, pubic hair singed.

2. Superficial irffected burn present on face all over
including neck,

3. Superficial infected burn present on chest and
abdomen up to waist, while it is in patchy form at pubic
region and upper antero lateral part of right thigh.
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4, Superficial infected burn present on left upper limb
extending from upper part of arm up to wrist and partial
deglobing of hand present while on right upper limb it is in
patchy form extending from upper part of arm up to wrist.
Palm is healthy.

5. Superficial infected burn present on both lower
limbs extending from upper part of thigh up to ankle region
both aspects. On left lower limb dorsum of foot also burnt.

6. Superficial infected burn present on back laterally
both sides while rest of the area is healthy. Both gluteal
region is health,

OPINION:- Death of deceased was due to cardio
respiratory failure as a result of burn and its complications.
Duration of death is within 24 hours since postmortem
-examination.

(Hospitalized case).

Postmortem examination report (Ex.P/14) was written by
Dr. V.K. Dhruv and signed by her and also by Dr. Dhruv.”

From the above evidence, in our opinion, it has been amply
established that the deceased died of burn injuries.

12. Next we have to see whether it was appellant who caused burn
injuries to deceased, which resulted into her death.

13.  The case mainly rested on the evidence of dying declaration
(Ex.P/16) recorded by Executive Magistrate R.K. Singh Tomar (PW-
11). Learned counsel for the appellant submitted that this dying declaration
was not reliable since deceased could not have been in a position to
speak. Naib Tahsildar R.K. Singh Tomar (PW- ! 1} deposed that on the
requisition made by Police Jahangirabad, he went to Hamidiya Hospital
for recording dying declaration of Lalwati, wife of Roop Singh, who was
admitted in burn ward. Before recording her dying declaration, he obtained
opinion from RSO of the burn ward whether she was fit to make statement.
When doctor gave certificate, he recorded the dying declaration (Ex.
P/16), In the dying declaration, Lalwati told that “her husband came after
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consuming liquor and quarreled with her. He also asked her to leave the
house. He then poured kerosene on her from a Kuppi and set fire to her
with a matchstick. She suffered burns at his hands™. After recording the
said statement, he again obtained opinion from the doctor who certified
that Lalwati was fully conscious during the time her statement was
recorded. It was deposed by PW-11 that during the time when he recorded
the dying declaration, no person including any police person was present
near the deceased. She was able to speak and put her thumb impression
on the dying declaration.

14.  The aforesaid dying declaration finds corroboration from the
evidence of Dr. Praveen Sharma (PW-12), who was posted as RSO in
Burn Ward of Hamidiya Hospital. According to Dr. Sharma, when
Executive Magistrate sought his opinion, he examined Lalwati (deceased)
and found that she was fit to give her statement. He endorsed the certificate
on the dying declaration (Ex P/16). According to him, after the dying
declaration was recorded, he again examined Lalwati and found that she
was fully conscious while making statement.

15.  Ona critical examination of the evidence of Naib Tehsildar R.K.
Singh Tomar (PW-11) and Dr. Praveen Sharma (PW-12), we find nothing
to indicate that they recorded dying declaration (Ex.P/16) incorrectly or
falsely or that the deceased was not in a position to make dying declaration.
It is also important to note that the incident had occurred in the night of
2.8.2002 whereas the said dying declaration was recorded in the morning
of 3.8.2002 and that the deceased died on 6.8.2002. These witnesses
were public servants and were totally strangers to the appellant and the
deceased. Therefore, there appeared no reason to doubt that they would
have manoeuvred the dying declaration to make it incriminating against
the appellant. In these circumstances, we are of the opinion that learned
Sessions Judge committed no error in holding the dying declaration (Ex.P/
16) reliable and trustworthy.

16. ~The dying declaration (Ex.P/16) stood further corroborated from
Dehati Nalishi(Ex.P/6) recorded by the Investigating Officer Uday Beer
Singh Tomar (PW-6). According to him, on 2.8.2002 while he was posted
at Police Station, Jahangirabad, Bhopal, on receiving information from
J.P. Hospital, he went to Burn Ward of Hamidiya Hospital, where
deceased was admitted. On the information given by deceased, he
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recorded Dehati Nalishi (Ex.P/6). Deceased informed him that her husband
Roop Singh used to quarrel with her after consuming liquor. At about
8.00 O'clock in the night, he doused her with kerosene and set fire to her
with a matchstick. She also told that hearing her cries women of the
neighbourhood viz. Saroj, Radha Bai and Laxmi reached there and
extinguished her fire and also brought her to hospital. She put her thumb
1mpressmn on Ex.P/6.

¥

17.  Similarly, during investigation, ASI Dinesh Onker (PW-8) recorded
police statement (Ex.P/10) of deceased. According to him, he went to
Hamidiya Hospital and in the burn ward and recorded statement of
deceased wherein she stated that her husband Roop Singh poured
kerosene and set fire to her. He recorded the statement as narrated by
the deceased. Dinesh Onker (PW-8) categorically stated that when he
recorded the statement of deceased, she was fully conscious and no boy
or girl or anybody else was present near her. We have no reason to doubt
the veracity of the evidence of this witness.

18.  Dehati Nalishi (Ex.P/6) as well as the case diary statement of
deceased (Ex.P/10) being the statements of deceased in respect to the
circumstances and the transactions in which she died, are certainly relevant
and admissible in evidence by way of dying declarations under the
provisions of Section 32 of the Indian Evidence Act.

19. In addition to the aforesaid evidence of written dying declarations,
there is also evidence of oral dying declaration made by the deceased to
Radha Bai (PW-1), Jagdish (PW-4) and Dr. Subhash Singh Tomar (PW-
5). Radha Bai (PW-1) and Jagdish Singh (PW-4) stated that when they
reached the house of deceased after hearing her cries, she told to them
that her husband Roop Singh ignited her. When deceased was taken to
J.P. Hospital, Bhopal, she was examined by Dr.Subash Singh Tomar (PW-
5). Dr. Tomar deposed that in giving history of the occurrence deceased
told to him that her husband Roop Singh quarreled with her after consuming
liquor and set fire to her.

20.  Dr. Subhash Singh Tomar (PW-5) stated that the deceased had
suffered second degree burn injuries. After primai'y treatment, he referred
her to the Burn Unit of Hamidiya Hospital. Though upper part of her upper
lip was burnt, but her mouth was not burnt. He stated that since the condition
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of patient was serious, she was referred for further treatment immediately
without detailed examination, but it was wrong to say that deceased was
not able to speak.

21.  After carefully scanning and scrutinizing the aforesaid evidence of
dying declarations, we find that it has been established that it was appellant
who caused burn injuries to deceased. As far as the evidence of defence
witness Shivram (DW-2) is concerned, he stated that on his asking
deceased told to him that after a quarrel with appellant, with a view to
frighten him, she sprinkled a little bit of kerosene and ignited hesself without
anticipating the proportion it assumed. This kind of defence was not
pleaded by the appellant in his statement under Section 313 Cr.P.C. Such
suggestions were also not put to prosecution witnesses. Jyoti Dixit (DW-
1) and Sunil (DW-3) merely stated that deceased did not say anything to
them as she was not in a position to speak. In these circumstances, we
find the evidence of Shivram (D'W-2) an attempt to create an afterthought
~ defence for appellant. -

22.  Now we have to see whether conviction of appellant under Section
302 of the Indian Penal Code is just and proper. It has been deposed by
Radha Bai (PW-1) and also by ASI Dinesh Onker (PW-8) that the fingers
of both the hands of appellant were burnt. According to Jagdish (PW-4),
when he went inside the house of appellant, he saw appeliant extinguishing
the fire of deceased. In the dying declaration (Ex.P/16), Dehati Nalishi
(Ex.P/6) and the police statement (Ex.P/10) it has been disclosed by the
deceased that at the time of occurrence appellant was under the spell of
liquor and because of that the quarrel occurred between them, in the
course of which, he asked her to go oat of the house and set fire to her
after pouring kerosene on her from a kuppi. In this fact situation, in our
opinion, it could be inferred that the incident occurred under-a sudden
impulse/quarrel without any premeditation on the part of the appellant. It
seemed to be a spur of the moment affair with no intention of appellant to
commit murder of deceased. In these circumstances, Exception-4 to
Section 300 IPC was clearly attracted. However, since setting fire to
deceased after pouring kerosene on her indicated that appellant acted
either with the intention of causing death or of causing such bodily injury .
to deceased as was likely to cause her death, the case of appellant clearly
fell under Section 304-1 of the Indian Penal Code.
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23. - For the reasons aforesaid, the conviction and sentence of appellant
under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code is set aside, instead he is
convicted under Section 304-I of the Indian Penal Code and sentenced
to rigorous imprisonment for a period of 10 years. - -

24. Appellant is reportéd to be in jail since 4.8.2002. If he has served
out his sentence, he be released forthwnh if not required in any 'other

. €asc.

25.  Appeal partly allowed..
' " dppeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M_:P. 1177 :
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rakesh Saksena & Mr. Justice Subhash Kakade
Cr. A. No. 1541/2003 (Jabalpur) demded on 16 April, 2013

SURESH & ors. ) _ . ...Appellants
Vs. |~ .
STATE OF M.P. ’ ...Respondent

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 161,
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 - Dying Declaration - Statement
of deceased recorded by police officer under Section 161 of Cr.P.C. as
to the cause of his death and also about the circumstances of the
transaction which resulted in his death, amounts to be a dying
declaration. _ (Para I1)

@ gvS FfHpar wiear, 1973 (1974 &I 2) €T 161, 9T
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B. Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 32 - Dying Declaration
- Statement recorded by police officer - The same is not challenged on
the ground that the officer who recorded the statement was in an
manner interested in bringing about the conviction of appellants by
concocting the said statement - It could not be held that the statement
was doubtful or suspicious. . - - (Parall)
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C. . Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 34 - Common Intention
- Deceased was working in a Mangoda shop - Appellants were passing
from the front of the shop when the liquor bottle slipped from the hands
of appellant No.3 - Deceased asked him to re.nove pieces of glass
scattered in front of the shop - Appellant No.3 pierced the spear in the
abdomen of deceased - AH the appellants grappled with witnesses -
Held - No injury was caused to the deccased by the appellants No.1
and 2 - It does not appear that appellants No. 1 and 2 shared common
intention of appellant No.3 of causing spear injury to deceased - As the
incident took place suddenly and the appellant No.3 assaulted deceased
with spear which he was already having in his hand, it cannot be held
that the appellants No. 1 and 2 shared common intention with appellant. -
No. 3. (Paras 14 & 15)
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" Ramesh Tamrakar, for the appellants.
Amit Pandey, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

« The T udgment of the Court . was . delivered by:
RAKESH SAKSENA, J. :- Appellants have filed this appeal against the
judguient dated 8.9.2003, passed by First Additional Sessions Judge,
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Chhindwara in Sessions Trial No.12/2002; convicting them under Section
302/34 and 324/34.0of the Indian Penal Code and sentencing:them to
imprisonment for life with fine of Rs.1000/- and.rigorous imprisonment
for-one year with fine of Rs.500/-, on each count respectively.

2r In short, the prosecution case.is that in the town of Chhindwara,
in front of a liquor shop, there was.a Mangoda shop.of complainant Ashok
(PW-5). Laxman (deceased) and his son Baba used to work in that shop.

On 17.11.2001, at about 6.30 O'clock in the evening, when deceased
and his son.were selllng Mangodas appellants Surcsh, Ashok and ‘Naresh
passed from the front of the shop of Ashok after taking a liquor bottle
from the liquor shop. Suddenly, liquor bottle.slipped from the hands of
Suresh and broke down in front of the shop. When deceased asked
appellant Suresh to remove pieces of glass scattered in front of the shop,
he got annoyed and sayrng that he would kill him, pierced the spear in his
abdomen, which he already had in his hand .When Ashok (PW-5) tried
to save deceased all the three appellants grappled with him and Suresh
~ inflicted a blow of spear on his abdomen also. Baba (PW-6) was also
beaten by them. Ashok Immedlately went to POllCC Station, Chhindwara
and lodged first information report (Ex. P/22) at7. 00 pm. Deceased and
injured Ashok were sent to District Hosp1tal Chhindwara where deceased
expired in the mght After hls death the case was converted into an offence
under Sect1on 302 of the Indlan Penal Code

3..-' Investlgatmg Ofﬁcer J.S. Blsen (PW-15), after recordmg ﬁrst
information report, went to.hospital and recorded statement of deceased
under Section 161 Cr.P.C. He went to the place of occurrence, prepared
spot map ard seized broken pieces of glass from the spot. After the death
of deceased, he conducted inquest proceedings, recorded memorandum
(Ex.P/2) and referred the body of deceased for postmortem examination.
Dr. R.K. Gohiya (PW-13), who had examined the injuries of deceased
while he was'alive, conducted the postmortem examination and found
injuries on the body of deceased caused by 'sh'ar'p cutting weapon.
Investigating officer arrested appellants and seized their clothes stained
with blood. He also seized a spear on the information furnished by
appeliant Suresh. All the artlcles were sent to Forensm Science
Laboratory for examination. After completlon of the mvestlgauon charge
sheet'was ﬁled and the case was commItted for trlal
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4, On charges being framed, appellants abjured their guilt and pleaded
false implication. They also examined Ashok Yadav (DW-1) and Vinod
Kumar (DW-2) in their defence to show that nobody knew how the
deceased suffered injuries.

5. Prosecution examined Ashaok Parteti (PW-5), Baba (PW-6) and
Ashok Kumar (PW-11) as eyewitnesses of the case, but these witnesses
did not support the prosecution story. Learned trial judge, however, placing
reliance on circumstantial evidence and the evidence of dying declaration
(Ex.P/24) recorded by investigating officez, held the appellants guilty,
convicted and sentenced them as mentioned above. Aggrieved by the

impugned judgment of conviction and sentence, appellants have filed this -

appeal.

6. Learned counsel for the appeilants submitted that the trial court
committed error in holding the appellants guilty under Section 302 of the
Indian Penal Code. According to him, the conviction of appellants Ashok
and Naresh was illegal since they did not cause injury to deceased.
Learned counsel submitted that the incident occurred suddenly on the
spur of the moment and without premeditation. Therefore, the conviction
of even appellant Suresh under Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code
was not justified. Appellant Suresh has already remained in jail for a period
of about 11 years. On the other hand, learned counsel for the State
supported the impugned judgment of conviction of appellant and submitted
that the statement of deceased recorded by investigating officer amounted
~ to be a dying declaration. The evidence of said dying declaration, in the
circumstances of the case, was reliable and sufficient to hold the appellants
guilty, even if the eyewitnasses of incident did not support-th= prosecution
case.

7. It has not been disputed that deceased died a homicidal death,
Baba @ Lakhan, the son of deceased, aged about 13 years, admitted
that his father Laxman had died. He however stated that he did not see
the occurrence and the injuries of his father. Investigating officer Inspector
J.S. Bisen (PW-15) stated that he recorded first information report (Ex.P/
12) on being lodged by Ashok Kumar. On the same day, he recorded the
statement of deceased Laxman in which he disclosed that appellant Suresh
inflicted a blow of spear in his abdomen as a result of which he suffered
injury. injuries of deceased were examined by Dr. R.K. Gohiya (PW-
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13), Assistant Surgeon in District Hospital, Chhindwara. Dr. Gohiya
deposed that on 17:11.2001 when deceased was brought by police
constable Ramesh in injured condition, he examined his injuries. There
was one incised wound admeasuring 4 x 1 cm x ? deep on the left side of
abdomen of deceased. His intestine was coming out from the wound.
The injury was caused by some sharp object. His general condition was
very weak. Therefore, he admitted deceased in male surgical ward for
check up and further treatment. The injury report of deceased (Ex.P/20-
A) was recorded and signed by him. On 18.11.2001, when dead body
of deceased was brought to him; he conducted autopsy and found one
incised injury on the left side of abdomen just below the rib of the
deceased. The size of would was 3 x 5 x 1.5 cm. On internal examination,
omentum and left lobe of liver were found cut. The size of cut of liver
was 3 x 05 x 1 em. About 1% litre of blood was found present in the
abdominal cavity. He also found an abrasion2 x 1 cmon left elbow and
a superficial abrasion 6 x 4 cm on his left gluteal region. In the opinion of
Dr. Gohiya, the injury No.1-to deceased was caused by shatp edged
cutting weapon. Second and third injuries were caused by some hard
and blunt object. The death of deceased resulted duc to shock produced
by the excessive hacmorrhage from the injury of liver. Postmortem
examination report (21-A) was written and signed by him.

8. From the aforesaid evidence, it stood amply established that
deceased met with a homicidal death. ‘

9. Dr. R.K. Gohiya (PW-13), on examination of Ashok, found two
incised injures on his body, one on the left side of abdomen and another
on left hand's little finger. Both the injuries were ultimately fourd to be
simple in nature.

10.  Now the question is whether the trial court was justified in holding
that it were appellants who caused injuries to deceased and to injured
Ashok (PW-5). As already pointed out, eyewitnesses viz. Ashok Parteti
(PW-5), Baba (PW-6) and Ashok Kumar (PW-11) did not support the
prosecution case at trial. They were declared hostile. The trial court,
however, relied on the evidence of investigating officer J.S. Bisen (PW-
15), who recorded the statement of deceased under Section 161 Cr.P.C.
According to PW-15, on 17.11.2001 he went-to hospital and recorded
the statement (Ex.P/24) of deceased wherein he disclosed that he and
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his son used to sell Mangoda in front of liquor shop. At about 6.30 pm
when he and Ashok were selling Mangoda, appellants came at liquor Bhatti
to fetch liquor. After fetching liquor, when they were passing from the
front of Mangoda shop, the bottle of liquor slipped from the hands of
appellant Surcsh and broke down. The pieces of glass scattered in front
of the Magoda shop. When he asked Suresh to clean the pieces of glass,
he got excited and dealt a spear blow, which he already had in his hand,
in his abdomen. When Ashok tried to save him, all the three appellants
scuffled and assaulted Ashok. Suresh dealt a spear blow to him also.

"Alongwith Ashok he went to police station where Ashok lodged report
and carried him to hospital for treatment.

1. Since Ex.P/24 happened to be a statement made by deceased as
to the cause of his death and also about the circumstances of the
transaction’ which resulted in his death, it amounted to be a dying
declaration of deceased, relevant and admissible under Section 32(1) of

the Indian Evidence Act. In view of the fact that it has not been challenged

that the investigating officer, who recorded the statement of deceased,
was in any manner interested in bringing about the conviction of appellants
by concocting the said statement, it could not be held that the aforesaid
statement was doubtful or suspicious. Since the injury of deceased was
serious in nature and there appeared no time to call a magistrate for
recording regular dying declaration, the recording of the statement under
Section 161 Cr.P.C. by the investigating officer was proper and natural.
The statement (Ex.P/24) seems natural, consistent, cogent, coherent and
reliable.

12.  After arrest of the accused persons, their clethes were seized by
investigating officer and on the information given by appellant Suresh, a
spear was also recovered and seized. As per chemical examination report
(Ex.P/25) by Forensic Science Laboratory, blood was found on the spear
and the clothes of appellant Suresh. Human blood was detected on the
clothes of other two appellants. Vide FSL report Ex.P/26 cut marks found
on the clothes of deceased and Ashok tallied with the blade of the spear
recovered from appellant Suresh.

I3.  From the above circumstances, in our opinion, it was established
that all the appellants were present at the spot when appellant Suresh
inflicted spear blow in the abdomen of deceased and caused hurt to Ashok

-
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(PW-5). The evidence of defence witnesses viz. Ashok Yadav (DW-1)
and Vinod Kumar (DW-2) being inconsistent, contradictory and vague
did not appear trustworthy and acceptable.

14.  The question, however, would be whether appellants Ashok and
Naresh were also vicariously liable for causing injuries to deceased and Ashok
(PW-5) by appellant Suresh. As far as Ashok (PW-5) and Baba (PW-6) are
concerned, none of them stated that any injury was caused to them by
appellants. From the statement (Ex.P/24) made by the deceased, it appears
:hat appellants Ashck and Naresh grappied with Ashok Parteti (PW-5) and
manhandled Baba (PW-6), but the fact remains that the injury by spear to
Ashok (PW-5) was caused by appellant Suresh only.

15. Onminutely examining the circumstances in which the incident
occurred, it seems that there was no premeditation or intention on the
part of Suresh to assault the deceased. It was just by chance that the
bottle of liquor slipped from his hand and broke down in front of the
shop of deceased. It was also by chance that deceased asked Suresh to
remove pieces of glass from the front of his shop and on getting excited
appellant Suresh dealt single blow of spear into his abdomen and caused
an injury to Ashok Parteti (PW-5) also. Even if appellants Ashok and
Naresh grappled with Ashok Parteti (PW-5), it does not appear that they
shared the common intention of appellant Suresh of causing spear injury
to deceased or to injured Ashok. Since the incident occurred suddenly
wherein appellant Suresh assaulted deceased with spear, which he already
had in his hand, Ashok and Naresh, in our opinion, cannot be held liable
for the act of appellant Suresh vicariously with the aid of Section 34 of
the Indian Penal Code.

16. Since the genesis of the incident, as brought out by the
prosecution, is traceable to a patty quarrel which sparked off merely on
deceased's asking appellant Suresh to clean pieces of glass from the front
of his shop, it is not possible to hold that appellant Suresh intended to
commit murder of deceased, but, since he inflicted the blow of spear on
the abdomen of deceased, it can be held with certainty that he acted
either with the intention of causing death or of causing such bodily injury
to deceased as was likely to cause his death. His case, therefore, in our
opinion, clearly fell within the ambit of Section 304-1 of the Indian Penal
Code.
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17.  For the reasons aforesaid, we are of the view that it was appellant
Suresh only who could be convicted for causing death of deceased and
for causing simple hurt to Ashok Parteti (PW-1) by a deadly weapon like
spear. -

18.  Accordingly the conviction of appellant No.1 Suresh under Section
302/34 of the Indian Penal Code is set aside, instead he is convicted
under Section 304-1 of the Indian Penal Code and sentenced to rigorous
imprisénment for ten years. His conviction and sentence under Section
324/34 of the Indian Penal Code is affirmed. The conviction of appellants
No.2 Ashok and No.3 Naresh as awarded by the trial court under Section
302/34 and 324/34 of the Indian Penal Code is set aside. They are
acquitted of the said charges. Their bail bonds and surety bonds stand
discharged.

19.  Itis reported that appellant Suresh has been in jail for over 11
years; if that be so, he be released forthwith, if not required in any other
case.

20.  Appeal partly allowed.
Appeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1184
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari
Cr. A. No. 1212/1996 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 June, 2012

RAM RATAN KEWAT & anr. - ...Appellants
Ve. . :
STATE OF M.P. ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) - Gang Rape
= Appellant No.2 entered inside the house of the prosecutrix while she
was alone in the house - Appellant No.1 who had come along with
appeliant No.2 remained outside the house - It cannot be deemed that
appellant No.1 had come with appellant No.2 with intention to commit
rape on the prosecutrix or he had committed any act in furtherance of
their common intention to commit rape - Appellant No.1 acquitted -
Conviction of appellant No.2 altered to 376(1) of 1.P.C. (Para3)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 - F.LR. - Delay -
F.LLR. was lodged after delay of 6 days - Explanation offered by
prosecutrix that her father was suffering from epilepsy and her uncle
was not available and she had also become ill is plausible - Explanation _
not challenged by defence in cross-examination also - Delay explained.

(Para 6)
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G.S. Baghel, for the appellantés.
Swapnil Ganguli, P.L. for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

U.C. MAHESHWARI, J. :- The appellants/accused have directed
this appeal under Section 374 (2) of Cr. P. C. being aggrieved by the
judgment dated 8.7.1996 passed by Sessions Judge, Sidhi in S. T. No.63/
95, convicting and sentencing to each of them under Section 450 and
376 (2) (g) of IPC for RI three years and for RI ten years with fine of Rs.
1,000/-, respectively under such sections.

2. The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that on 23.11.1994
at about 4.00 p. m. the prosecutrix Anarkali was pestling the paddy in
her home, her father was gone to Kardhua and her mother was gone to
pluck leafy vegetables, at the same time the appellants by committing the
criminal trespass entered in her house and out of them appellant No.2
Ramcharan caught hold the pestle of the prosecutrix from her hand and
after laying her on the flour, contrary to her will and wish committed the
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rape on her. At the time of such incident the appellant No.1 Ramratan
was standing on the door of such house, The aforesaid incident was
reported to the police Chitrangi on 29.11.1994, on which FIR (Ex.P.7)
was registered against the appellants for the offence of Section 376/34
of IPC. The cause of lodging the FIR at the belated stage was mentioned
that the father of the prosecutrix was not available at home on the date of
the incident. After registration of the offence, the appellants were arrested,
interrogatory statements of the witnesses were recorded and the
prosecutrix as well as the appellant No.2 were medically examined. On
completion of the investigation they were charge sheeted for their
prosecution under the above mentioned offence. On evaluation of the
papers of the charge sheet on framing the charge of section 450 and
376/34 of IPC by the trial Court against the appellants, each of them
abjured the guilt, on which the trial was held. After recording the evidence
on appreciation of the same after holding guilty to the appellants under

- the aforesaid sections, each of them were convicted and sentenced with
the above mentioned punishment. Being dissatisfied with such conviction
and sentence the appellants have come to this Court.

3. Appellant's counsel Shri G. S. Baghel, after taking me through the
record of the trial Court along with the impugned judgment argued that
on proper appreciation of evidence the appellants ought to have been
acquitted by the trial Court, as such the appellants were convicted under
the wrong premises on false pretext. Lodging the FIR at very belated
stage itself made the case and the story of the prosecution suspicious and
in such premises, the expert /FSL report of the vagina fluid and the cloths
could not be considered against the appellants as the same is based on
the basis of slide vagina fluid prepared near about after 6 days from the
date of incident. As such fluid could not be said to be consequence of the
intercourse committed by the appellant No.2 Ramcharan. In any case,
after six-seven days such fluid could not be found in the vagina. The story
put forth by the prosecution regarding seized clothes of the prosecutrix
as she did not wash such clothes in this period, could not be believed.
FSL report in this regard could not be foundation to hold the conviction
against the appellants. He further argued that in any case keeping in view
the fact that the appellant and prosecutrix family since long had good
relations and in that premises, the prosecutrix and appellant Ramcharan

were very close and in such premises only the inference could be drawn

-
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that such alleged intercourse was committed by the appellant no.2
Ramcharan with the consent of prosecutrix and pursuant to it, the appellant
No.2 Ramcharan, deserves to extend the benefit of acquittal, as on
ossification test carried out by the radiologist, the prosecutrix was found
to be major-of more than 18 years of the age. He also said that in the
lack of any support from the testimony of independent witnesses to the
testimony of the prosecutrix mere on her deposition the appellants could
not be convicted. He further argued that in case on re-appreciation of
evidence if the Court comes to the conclusion that appellant No.2 has
committed the rape against her will and hold him guilty for the same,
even then in view of the specific averments in the deposition of prosecutrix
that appellant No.1 Ramratan although came with the appellant No.2
Ramcharan to her resident but he remained outside of the house and did
not enter in her house. So it could not be deemed that Ramratan came
with the appellant No.2 Ramcharan with intention to commit rape on the
prosecutrix or he has committed any act in furtherance of their common
intention to commit rape on the prosecutrix. In such premises, the
appellant no.1 Ramratan mere on account of standing outside the house
of the prosecutrix at the time of committing the alleged rape by the
appellant no.2 Ramcharan with the prosecutrix could not be convicted

- for the alleged offence of gang rape. He also said that as per deposition

of the prosecutrix herself appellant Ramratan did not enter in the house
of the prosecutrix, therefore, his conviction under Section 450 of IPC is
also not sustainable. With these arguments he prayed to extend the benefit
of acquittal to the appellants or in any case to extend the benefit of
acquittal to appellant No.l Ramratan and modify the conviction and
sentence of the zppellant No.2 Ramcharan from Secticn 375 (2) (g) and
450 of IPC to Section 376 (1) and 450 of IPC., by allowing this appeal.

4. On the other hand learned P. L. Shri Swapnil Ganguli by justifying
the impugned conviction and sentence of the appellants under the aforesaid
scction said that the findings and the approach of the trial Court holding
guilty to the appeliants under the aforesaid section being based on proper
appreciation of evidence and in conformity with law, did not require any
interference at this stage. According ‘to him, appellant-Ramcharan
committed the alleged rape on the prosecutrix in presence and with the
assistance of the Ramratan in furtherance of their common intention as
Ramratan, also wish to commit rape with the prosecutrix, so he is equally

-
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responsible for the alleged offence. However, he fairly conceded that in
' the FIR and in the interrogatory statement, the prosecutrix has categorically
stated that Ramratan was also entered in her house and thereafter while
committing the rape on her by Ramcharan appellant No.2, the appellant
was stood on the door, but on recording her deposition she has not stated
any thing regarding entrance of Ramratan inside of the house at any point
of time either before or after@ommittiﬁg the rape on her by Ramcharan.
So in such circumstances, if any benefit of acquittal is extended to
Ramratan even then the conviction and awarded sentence of the appellant
No. 2 Ramcharan could not be interfered and deserves to be maintained
and prayed for dismissal of this appeal,

5. Having heard the parties keeping in view their arguments, after
perusing the record of the trial Court along with the impugned judgment,
I am of the considered view that trial court has committed error in
convicting both the appellants under Section 376 (2)(g) and Section 450
of IPC while in the available circumstances the trial Court ought to have
acquitted the appellant No.1 Ramratan from both the aforesaid charges
and appellant No.2 Ramcharan ought to have convicted and sentenced
under Section 376 (1) and 450 of IPC.

6. True, it is that incident had taken place on 23.11.1994 and FIR
was lodged by the prosecutrix Anarkali (P.W.3) 0n 29.11.1994 near about
after 6 days, but on perusing the FIR (Ex. P.7) as well as the deposition
of prosecutrix Anarkalj (P, W.3} and investigation officer Damodar Prasad
(P.W.7), it is apparent that explanation regarding lodging the report at
belated stage has been put forth and proved by the prosccution and such
explanation has r.ot been challenged by the defence in the cross-
examination of any witnesses of the prosecution. Even otherwise the
explanation put forth by the prosecutrix that his father was suffering from
the discase of epilepsy and his uncle Bhola was not available at home and
she also became ill, in the available scenario, appears to be reasonable,
proper and reliable so on that count, it could not be deemed that FIR
was lodged by the prosecutrix on false pretext against the appellants at
belated stage. So, the arguments advanced by the appellants' counsel in
this regard are hereby failed.

7. As per FIR (Ex.P.7) and interrogatory statement of the prosecutrix
(Ex.D.1), initially both the appellants entered in her house, but
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subsequently while committing the rape on her by appellant no.2
Ramcharan, the appellant No.1 Ramratan was standing on the door. I am
of the considered view that such averments of FIR unless proved by
ocular evidence neither could be treated to be sustentative evidence nor
sufficient to convict the accused like appellant no.1. The interrogatory
statement of the prosecutrix or other witnesses could not be read as
evidence against the accused unless such facts are proved by.ocular
evidence in deposition of such witnesses. Such interrogatory statements
in view of provision of Section 161 and 162 of the C1.P.C., could only
be used by the defence for contradiction and omission and not for any
other purpose, hence the same could not be treated to be the substantive
evidence unless the same is proved by concerning witnesses.

8. In the case at hand, the deposition of the prosecutrix being ocular
evidence could only be foundation to draw any inference against the
appellant or appellants in the matter.

9. On perusing the deposition of prosecutrix Anarkali (P.W.3) L have
not found any where in her chief in which she stated that appellant No.1
Ramratan entered in her house accompanied with the appellant no.2
Ramcharan and was remained inside either at the time of committing the
rape by Ramcharan or subsequent to his such act. In her further deposition
she has not stated anything agairnst the appellant No.1 showing that he
also came with the appellant no.2 Ramcharan in furtherance of their
common intention to commit rape on her. In view of such testimony of
prosecutrix mere averments of FIR and her case diary statement, no
inference could be drawn against the appellant No.1 that he also came to

- her residence with their common intention to commit rape on her as defined

and enumerated in explanation 1 of Section 376 (2) of IPC. The same is
read as under: .

"Where a woman is raped by one or more in a group of
persons acting in furtherance of their - “mmon intention,
each of the persons shall be deemed to have committed
gang rape within the meaning of this sub-section."

In the aforesaid premises, the 1mpugned conviction of appellant
no. 1 could not be sustained.

10.  As per prosccution case excépt the prosecutrix, no other eye
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witness of the alleged incident of rape has been examined, however, two
witnesses namely Vishnu and Deolal were cited as witnesses, who saw
the appellants while they were running away from the side of the house of
the prosecutrix. Out of them, one Vishnu has neither been examined nor
any explanation regarding his non-examination has been put forth by the
prosecution on record. Deolal, on recording his deposition had
categorically stated that he only saw the appellants when they were running
away from the house of the prosecutrix but mere on such evidence it
could not be assumed or deemed that Ramratan, had also committed any
offence either of criminal trace pass by entering in the house of the
prosecutrix or by committing any act along with the appellant no.2 in
furtherance of their common intention to commit rape on the prosecutrix.

11. ltis settled law that in the lack of any positive, admissible and
convening evidence on the record showing the involvement of the accused
with the alleged offence mere on the basis of averments of the FIR and
case diary statement of witnesses or any papers of the charge sheet, the
accused like appellant No. 1 could not have been convicted by the trial
Court. So in view of the aforesaid discussions, it is held that the
prosecution has failed to prove the aforesaid alleged offence of Section
376 (2) (g) or Section 450 of IPC. Against the appellant no.1 Ramratan.
Consequently the findings and approach of the trial Court holding him
guilty for such offence deserves to be and is hereby set aside.

12. Coming to consider the sustainability of impugned conviction and
sentence of appellant No.2 Ramcharan is concerned, it is apparent that
on lodging the FIR (Ex.P.7) the prosecutrix categorically stated that
appellant No.2 Ramcharan accompanied with the Ramratan by committing
the criminal trace pass entered in her house, where appellant No.2
committed forcefully rape on her. On recording her deposition as P.W.3
(Anarkali) she supported the incident of alleged rape till the extent of
appellant No.2 Rarncharan. She deposed each and every act with
description of such appellant no.2 regarding rape committed by him on
her. In para 2 of her deposition, she categorically stated that she was laid
by Ramcharan on the flour and thereafter, he committed the rape against
her will and wish and on her crying by leaving her he ran away. Such
story is further supported by her uncle Bhola Singh (P.W.4) and mother
Golari (P.W.5), and Deolal (P.W.6), to whom she stated the scenario of
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the incident after happening the same. On going through the cross-
examination of all these witnesses, I have not found any material substance
discarding or destroying the version stated by them in their chief alleging
that appellant no.2 committed rape on the prosecutrix. So in the light of
such evidence I have not found any error in the approach of the trial
Court holding guilty to the appellant No.2 Ramcharan for committing the
alleged rape on the prosecutrix, thus till this extent, the findings of the
trial Court with respect of appellant No.2 Rarncharan is hereby affirmed.

13. The argument advanced by the appellant's counsel with respect
of FSL report regarding vagina fluid of the prosecutrix could not be
connected with the appellant No.2, as such slide was prepared after six
days is concerned, true it is that such slides were prepared after six days,
therefore, such report could not be deemed to be relevant or admissible
to the case at hand but, in view of other available evidence mere on such
ground the appellant No.2 Ramcharan could not be acquitted.

14, TItissettled proposition of law that whenever and wherever if there

is a conflict between the medical/expert evidence and ocular evidence,

then in such circumstance,. the available ocular evidence if reliable shall

prevail over the medical/ expert evidence. Therefore, arguments of the.
appellants counsel relating to the FSL report regarding vagina fluid or the

clothes of the prosecutrix are not helping to the appellant No.2 Ramcharan

for extending him the acquittal.

15.  The law is also well settled on the question that in the matterof
rape the independent corroboration to the testimony of prosecutrix is not
necegsary if in the available circumstances her testimony appears to be
reliable then mere on her testimony conviction could be held against the
accused like appellant, No.2. As per aforesaid discussion the deposition
of prosecutrix Anarkali (P.W.3) does not appear to be suspicious in any
manner._

16.  Lawis also well settled that in the matter of rape it is not necessary
that sign of the struggle or any injury must be found on the person of the
prosecutrix. So the absence of any injury on the person of the prosecutrix
does not give any circumstance to cxtend the benefit of acquittal to the
appellant No.2 Ramcharan,

17. In view of the aforesaid discussion, it is held that trial Court has
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not committed any error in holding guilty to the appellant No.2 for
committing the alleged rape on the prosecutrix. So till this extent the
findings of the impugned judgment are hereby affirmed.

18.  After acquitting the appellant No.1 Ramratan from both the
charges as stated above the appellant No.2 Ramcharan even after
holding guilty could not be convicted under Section 376 (2) (g) of IPC
relating to the gang rape and it requires modification from such section
to Section 376 (1) of IPC. So till this extent the impugned judgment
requires modification while his conviction and sentence under Section
450 of IPC do not require any interference at this stage, hence the same
deserves to be affirmed.

19. In view of the aforesaid by allowing this appeal in part the
appellant No.1 Ramratan is acquitted from the alleged charge of Section
376 (2) (g) and Section 450 of IPC. Consequently his awarded jail
sentence and imposed fine is set aside. While by affirming the conviction
and sentence of appellant No.2 Ramcharan under Section 450 of IPC
his conviction under Section 376 (2) (g) of IPC is modified from such
section to Section 376 (1) of IPC and pursuant to it his sentence
awarded by the trial Court under Section 376 (2) (g) of IPC is set aside
and instead to it, he is convicted and sentenced under Section 376 (1)
of IPC for seven years RI with fine of Rs. 1,000/-, in default of
depositing the fine amount he has to suffer further six months RI. The
amount depositing by the appellant No.2 shall be adjusted in the
aforesaid imposed fine. In view of the aforesaid the bail bonds of the
appellant No.1 is hereby discharged while the bail bonds of the appellant
No.2 is hereLy cancelled and he is directed to surrender himself before
the trial Court on or before 15th of July, 2012 for facing the remaining
part of the aforesaid awarded jail sentence. The amount of fine, if
deposited by the appellant No.1 Ramratan be refunded to him after
proper verification. Till this extent the findings of the impugned judgment
are hereby modified while the other findings are hereby affirmed.

20. The appeal is allowed in part, as indicted above.

Appeal partly allowed.

[\l
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CIVILREVISION
Before Mr. Justice U.C. Maheshwari -
C.R. No. 113/2006 (Gwalior) decided on 13 February, 2013

BHAGWATIDEVI (SMT.) : : ...Applicant
Vs.
JAMEELA BEGAM , ...Non-applicant

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 115 - Admissibility
of Promissory Note - If the requisite duty is paid on the document
like promissory note, Such document could not be held to be
inadmissible - So that duty may be either in the shape of embossed
stamp or revenue ticket or stamp - Such findings of holding the
document/promissory note inadmissible are liable to be set aside -
Hence, the findings may be modified in revisional jurisdiction.

' (Para 8)
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Cases referred :

2011(2) MPLJ 101, 2000(2) MPLJ 104, AIR 2005 SC 439, AIR
1970 MP 225.

N.X. Gupta, for the appficant.
Sunil Jain, for the non-applicant..

"ORDER

U.C. MangsHwARy, J.:  The applicant/ plaintiff has filed this
revision under Section 115 of CPC being aggrieved by the judgment and

decree dated 23.1.2006 passed by 8th Additional District Judge, Gwalior

in Civil Appeal No.1-B/2006 affirming the judgment and decree dated
18.7.2005 passed by 8th Civil Judge, Class-I, Gwalior whereby his suit

¢
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filed against predecessor in title of the respondent namely Munna Khan
for recovery of Rs.10,000/- was dismissed.

2. The facts giving rise to this revision in short are that the applicant
herein filed the impugned suit against the predecessor of the respondent
namely Munna Khan the proprietor of M/s Kishan Rehat Industries for
recovery of Rs.10,000/-. As per further averments such sum was arrears
against Munna Khan, on 17.3.1991 by accepting the liability to pay such
sum Munna Khan had executed promissory note of Rs.10,000/- in favour
of the appellant with assurance to pay such sum along with interest @
1.75 % per month within 120 days i.e. four months and later sum of
Rs.1050/- as interest was paid by the deceased Munna Khan to the
applicant on 17.7.1991 and when remaining sum was not paid by Munna
to the appellant then the impugned suit for recovery of the same was filed
16.1.1994.

3.  In the written statement by the predecessor in title of the
respondents Munna Khan by denying the material facts of the alleged
transaction it is stated that there was no arrears of alleged sum against
principal defendant Munna. It is also stated that neither the alleged
promissory note was executed nor any terms and conditions were settled
between the parties. The amount of interest as stated in the plaint has
also not been paid to the appellant by the deceased principal defendant.
The suit is also opposed on the ground of lacking proper cause of action
and as per plaintiff herself it was an old transaction and accordingly the
suit was not filed within the prescribed limitation, so the suit being time
barred is not maintainable. The objection with respect of the validity of
the promissory note in the lack of proper stamp duty was also taken.
With these averments the prayer for dismissal of the suit was made.

4. In view of the pleadings of the parties after framing the issues,
parties were directed to adduce their respective evidence, after recording
the same, on appreciation, the trial Court has dismissed the suit holding
that in the lack of the embossed stamp of proper denomination the alleged
promissory note is not admissible and in such premises the alleged
transaction was not found to be proved. The suit was also dismissed on
account of non-examination of the plaintiff herself, taking into consideration
tha. iu this regard no explanation has been put forth by the applicant on
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record. However, the suit was held within limitation by the trial court.
Subsequent to dismissal of the suit the applicant had preferred the appeal
under Section 96 of CPC before the District Court. In such appeal a
cross-objection to hold the suit barred by time, from the date of original
transaction which had taken place in the year 1988, was also filed on
behalf of the respondents herein under Order 41 Rule 22 of CPC. On
consideration, by affirming the judgment and decree of the trial Court
dismissal of the suit the cross-objection of the respondents was also
allowed and taking into consideration the circumstance that the suit is
filed after six years from the date of the original transaction which had
taken place in the year 1988 the suit was also dismissed as barred by
time. Thereafter, the applicant/ plaintiff has come to this Court with this
revision. o

3. The applicant's counsel after taking me through the record along
_ with the judgment of the Courts below by referring the decision of the
Full Bench of this Court in the matter of Gurunanak Medical and
Surgical Agency Vs. Sitaram Shivhare reported in 2011 (2) MPLJ 101

argued that the decision of the single Bench of this Court in the matter of
Ismail Khan Vs. Ram Prakash Verma reported in 2000 (2) MPLJ 104,

on which the Courts below relied upon has been over ruled and it has
been held that the purpose of the fiscal law is only to recover the revenue,
either through embossed stamp or the revenue tickets, in any case, revenue
should be paid. In such premises, he said that the findings of the Courts
below holding that in the lack of embossed stamp the promissory note is
inadmissible, is not sustainable and prayed to-hold the promissory note
executed on revenue tickets, is admissible and in such premises also prayed
to hold the suit of the applicant is within limitation. He further argued that
case has been successfully proved by the appellant through her power of
attorney holder by recording his deposition and in the available
circumstances there was no necessity to enter the appellant into the witness
box to prove the case. Thus even in the lack of deposition of the applicant/
plaintiff, her suit could not be dismissed by any of the Courts below. In
this regard he also said that the decision of the Apex Court on which her
suit has been dismissed, is distinguishable on facts with the present case
but such aspect was not considered by the courts below. With these
submission he prayed to set aside the judgment and decree of the Courts
below and decreed her suit by allowing this appeal.
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6. On the other hand responding the aforesaid arguments by justifying
the impugned judgment and decree the respondents counsel said that same
being based on proper appreciation of the available evidence is in
conformity with law, does not require any interference at this stage under
the revisional jurisdiction. In continuation he said that in view of aforesaid
Full Bench decision if the impugned promissory note is held to be
admissible even then the impugned suit could not be decreed against the
respondents. By referring the decision of the Apex Court in the matter of
Janki Vasudeo Vs. Indusand Bank reported in AIR 2005 SC 439, he
argued that it is settled proposition that in the absence of the examination
of plaintiff in support of his/ her pleading to prove the alleged transaction
the suit could not be decreed mere on the basis of the pleadings. He also
argued that it is apparent fact from the pleadings of the plaintiff that the
impugned transaction was personal transaction between the applicant and
the predecessor in title of the respondents and in such premises if the
material facts of the transaction was in the knowledge of the applicant/
plaintiff herself then it could not be assumed that such thing was in the
knowledge of the Power of Attorney specially when nothing has been
stated in this regard in the plaint. Therefore on account of non-entrance
of the appellant in the witness box is sufficient circumstance to draw the
inference that the appellant-plaintiff had failed to prove the alleged
transaction and execution of promissory note and prayed for dismissal of
this revision.

7. Having heard the counsel, keeping in view their arguments after
perusing the record of the Courts below along with the impugned judgment,
1 am of the considered view that some findings of the impugned judgment
requires some modification while the approach of the courts below

dismissing the suit does not require.any interference under Section 115 of
CPC.

8. It is undisputed fact on record that the impugned suit was filed by
the applicant herself to recover sum of promissory note as alleged executed
on 17.3.1991 by Munna Khan the predecessor i title of the respondents.

It is also undisputed fact that such pronote was executed by Munna Khan
by accepting the liability of earlier arrears of sum. It is settled proposition
of law whenever the negotiable instrument takes place between the parties
then old transaction becomes the new transaction for all the purposes,

Ed
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including the purpose for assessing the period of limitation to initiate the
proceedings. Although, in the case at hand in the light of the decision of
the single Bench of this Court in the case of Ismail Khan (Supra) the
impugned promissory note was held to be inadmissible on the count that
the same was not executed on proper embossed stamp but subsequent
to the decisions of both the Courts below in the pendency of this revision
on arising the occasion in some other matter such question was answered
by the Full Bench of this Court in the case of Gurunanak Medical and
Surgical Agency (Supra), according to which in any shape either in the
shape of the embossed stamp or in the shape of revenue ticket/ stamp if
the requisite duty is paid on the document like promissory note then such
document could not be held to be inadmissible, as such same should be
treated to be admissible document. So, in such premises this Court has
no any other option except to hold the aforesaid promissory note is
admissible document and in such premises, the findings of the courts below
holding the promissory note inadmissible being perverse is set aside and
alleged promissory note is held to be admissible.

9. After holding the aforesaid promissory note as an admissible
document, I proceed to examine the question of limitation to file the
impugned suit. As thie promissory note was executed on 17.1.1991 and
the impugned suit being filed on 16.1.1994 within three years from the
date of execution of promissory note within limitation. In such premises,
the appellate Court has wrongly held the same to be barred by time. So
such finding of the appellate Court deserves to be and is hereby set aside.

10.  On holding the aforesaid promissory note as an admissible
document and the suit of the applicant within limitation, I proceed to
consider the question whether in view of available evidence the impugned
suit ought to have decreed by any of the Courts below or the ultimate
approach of such Courts regarding dismissal of the suit is correct.

11.  Itis apparent from the pleadings of the impugned suit that the
impugned transaction was between the applicant and the predecessor in
title of the respondents namely Munna Khan and such transaction was
not carried out by the applicant through some power of attorney holder
namely Tarachand. If the transaction had been carried out through power _
of attorney holder then certainly the pleading in this regard should have
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been made in the plaint. So, in the lack of such pleading it shall be deemed
that the impugned transaction was personal transaction of the applicant
with Munna Khan and the material facts of such transaction was within
the knowledge of the applicant, and not in the knowledge of the power of
attorney holder. it is also undisputed fact on record that in order to prove
the pleading of earlier transaction regarding arrears of sum and execution
of the promissory note the applicant herself has not entered into the
witness box. Accordingly it could be assumed that the plaintiff herself has
neither entered in the witness box nor proved her case. In the lack of her
deposition mere on the basis of deposition of her power of attorney holder
Tarachand the suit could not have been decreed by the Courts below in
the light of the principle laid down by the Apex Court in the matter of
Janki Vasudev (Supra), in which it was held as under : :

“Order I, Rules 1 and 2, empowers the holder of power
of attorney to “Act” on behalf of the principal. In our view
the word “acts” employed in Order IIl Rules 1 and 2, CPC,
confines only in respect of the “acts” done by the power of
attorney holder in exercise of power granted by the
instrument. The terms “acts” would not include deposing
in place and instead of the principal. In other words, if the
power of attorney holder has rendered some “acts” in
pursuance to power of attorney, he may depose for the
principal in respect of the such acts, but he cannot depose
for the principal for the acts done by the principal and not
by him. Similarly, he cannot depose for the principal in
respect of the matter which only the principal can have a
personal knowledge and in respect of which the principal
is entitled to be cross-examined.”

12.  Long before on arising the occasion the aforesaid question was
also answered by this Court in the matter of Gulla Kharagjit Vs.
Narsingh Nandkisore reported in AIR 1970 MP 225, in which it was
held as under:

“When a material fact is within the knowledge of a party
and he does not go in to the witness box without any
plausible reason, an adverse inference musts be drawn

.
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against him. A presumption must be drawn against a party

who having knowledge of the fact in dispute does not go

into the witness box particularly when a prima facie case
- has been made out against him.

13.  Inview of the aforesaid settled proposition, there was no option
with the Courts below except to dismiss the suit of the applicant on account
of non-examination of the plaintiff herself. So, in such premises the
findings of the subordinate Court dismissing the suit and appeal deserves

l

to be and are hereby affirmed. N

14, Inview of the aforesaid even after modifying the findings of the
appellate Court and holding the impugned promissory note admissible
and the suit of the applicant was within limitation on account of non-
examination of applicant in the matter, [ have not found any illegality,
irregularity or'anything against the propriety of law in the approach of the
Courts below regarding dismissal of the suit, consequently, this revision
being devoid of any merits is hereby dismissed with costs.

15.  The applicant shall bear its own cost as well as the cost of the
respondents, if the same is certified.

6. Revision is dismissed as indicated above. : ;

Revision dismissed,
LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1199 ~ '
CRIMINAL REVISION -

Before Mr. Justice N.K. Gupta
Cr. Rev. No. 1291/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 11 March, 2013

SUNNY GAUR T L ...Applicant
Vs. - ' :
STATE OF M.P, . ...Non-applicant

A.  Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 319 -
Simultaneous Trial - Investigating agency during investigation found that
Security Guards had opened fired, although it was mentioned in F.LR.
that initially the applicant opened fired and thereafter other office bearers
of the factory opened fire - Scriber of the F.I.R. did not support the F.LR.
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during trial - Case of Security Guards is diagonally opposite to the case of
applicant - If it is presumed that the firing was done by applicant and his
comnpanions then the case of prosecution against the security guards would
go away and triaiwounld not proceed against them because two contradictory
cases cannot be tried simultaneously - Addition of applicant as accused
bad. . (Paras3 & 6)

@ gvs UiFYT WiEgar, 1973 (1974 @1 2), €%T 319 — & W
frareer — W Torelt A Ay & SR o 5 e st F M aens
off eIy wort E RUIE & 77 iR o f% wsdt smdss o1 mie gorg
AT WD T FREM B I UT aTiRar § Mo gend — geoH gam Rud
% oawal 7 faarer @ <tm wom gae Rard ST wweds w8l fear — gren
wrel H1 WA, andew B Ad ¥ Revia: feg € — aft ag Syuwen 9 W
f5 Meerd amdge dor S9@ wikEl g1 & 1 99 grar el @ favg
GRS BT UHOr TAE € 31X 9aa faee At fearer T faar s
e © war el gweon @1 fEmer e e a8 fear o owwar —
AfgE & BT W A[AEE B Sl S SR

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 319 -
Addition of accused - No Proposed accused can be added in absence of
convincing evidence - There are lot of contradictions in the statements
of witnesses - Same set of witnesses were not believed by the Trial Court
for making companions of applicant as accused - There is no cogent
evidence against the applicant and in case if he is added then, the
presecution case against present accused persons would be damaged -
Order passed by Trial Court under Section 319 set aside.(Paras 8 to 10)

. TvE girar wiear, 1973 (1974 &T 2), I%r 319 — SffrgwT
wP wier o — Adiugg gy ¥ aguferfy @ fedl gwarfaa
sfrgad &1 WIST TEY o wHar — WifEl @ werdl ] srey faxiwrery
& — amTe @ 9l o afrgag € TU A IR W B WA
giftral & wqF WX framer =mraw g faggmw 9 fear mar -
JEEE © favg &1F uad Wieg ad) Aiv afx vk SisT T 9l qd 5
sfgaanet @ foeg affmive @ gaor &1 sy &N - faaro
ATATAY §INT SRT 319 @ aud qIika fear a1 SAQe AU |
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(1985) 1 SCC 422, (1999) 7 SCC 467, (2000) 1 SCC 285, AIR 2009
SC 2792, (2010) 1 SCC 250, (2009) 3 SCC 329, (2009) 4 SCC 423,2010 (2)
MPLJ 611, 2010 (2) MPLJ 617, 2005(3) MPLJ 398, (2007) 6 SC 460.
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. Surendra Singh with Prakash Upadhyay, for the applicant.
Mohd. Nasir, for thie non-applicant No.1.
S.K. Kashyap, P.P. for the State/Non-applicant No:2.

ORDER

N.K. GupTa, J.: These two revisions are connected with the
common order dated 3.7.2012 passed by the learned Sessions Judge,
Rewa in S.T.No.135/2008 and therefore, decided by 2a common order.

2. The applicant Sunny Gaur (hereinafter he will be referred to as
‘Applicant/accused’) of criminal revision N6.1291/2012 has challenged
the impugned order dated 3.7.2012 passed by the learned Sessions Judge,
Rewa in S.T.No0.135/2008, whereby he was included in the list of accused
persons under section 319 of the Cr.P.C., whereas the criminal revision
No0.2457/2012 has been preferred by the applicant Vinod Kumar Mishra
(hereinafter he will be referred to as 'dpplicant/applicant”), in which
he has challenged the impugned order to add the remaining persons to be
accused in the case, by an application under section 319 of the Cr.P.C.
filed before the trial Court. :

3. The facts of the case, in short, relating to the present revisions,
are that, on 2.9.2008, at about 7 a.m. in the morning, some unemployed
villagers of their association gathered before Vindhya Gate of JP cement
factory, Naubasta, District Rewa. They demonstrated to get their demands
fulfilled. They demanded that the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur should
come to the gate to receive their memorandum but, the applicant/accused
did not accept their demand. Thereafter, to maintain the law and order,
the authorities decided that the demonstrators be arrested and sent to
the jail in various buses. One bus was also parked near the Vindhya Gate.
Thereafter, the demonstrators started using their sticks and pelted stones
upon the officers of the administration of the factory as well as the district
administration and police including the guards of the factory. They
damaged the buses, some motorcycles and they tried to destroy the
Vindhya Gate. Some firing was done and one Raghvendra Singh Belira
succumbed to the injuries due to firing, whereas 42 other persons were
alleged to be injured in that firing. An FIR was lodged by Rajbahadur
Singh, brother of the deceased, by way of a Dehati Nalshi and case was
registered but, in investigation no one supported the case of the
complainant that the firing was done by the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur
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and therefore, the case was registered against two security guards namely
Sanjay Kumar Singh and Raghunandan Singh. In investigation, the police
found that those two security guards were responsibie for firing and
therefore, a charge-sheet was filed against two security guards. The trial
Court has exaimined as many as 27 witnesses, prior to the filing of the
application under section 319 of the Cr.P.C., whereas the complainant
Rajbahadur Singh (P.W.4) did not support his own FIR, Ex.P/4. Some
witnesses like Rajbahadur Singh (P.W.20), Rajababu (P.W.21) and
Chandrashekhar Singh (P.W.24) have stated that the firing was done by

the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur initially and thereafter, the fire was

done by Rajnesh Gaur, K.P.Sharma, Ajay Singh Rana, Shivshankar
Choubey, Ramesh Gupta and others and so many persons of the crowd
sustained injuries. On the basis of the evidence given by said witnesses,
the applicant/applicant has filed an application under section 319 of the
Cr.P.C. to add the applicant/accused and other persons like Shivshankar
Choubey, Rajnesh Gaur, K.P.Sharma etc. to be accused in the case. The
learned Sessions Judge vide the impugned order, partly allowed that
application and name of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur was added
and remaining application filed by the applicant/applicant was dismissed.

4. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties at length. They
have raised so many points in the matter and therefore, their contentions
will be considered pointwise at present,

5. The learned Senior Advocate for the applicant has submitted that
provisions under section 319 of the Cr.P.C. can be applied to those, who
can be tried simultaneously. At present, the case of the present accused
persons is totally different from the case of the applicant/accused and
therefore, they cannot be tried in the same case. Consequently, the
application under section 319 of the Cr.P.C. could not be accepted. In
his support, he has placed his reliance on various judgments and orders
passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court in cases of “Harjinder Singh Vs.
State of Punjab and others”, [(1985) 1 SCC 422], “Shiv Kumar Vs.
Hukam Chand and another”, [(1999) 7 SCC 467], Balbir Vs. State of
Haryana and another”, [(2000) 1 SCC 285].

6. It is true that the application was filed under section 319 of the
Cr.P.C. but, acceptance of that application would result in a joint trial of
the present accused persons alongwith the proposed accused persons,

W
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whereas, their cases are diagonally opposite. Initially, it was mentioned
in the FIR that the security guards were armed with guns but, it was
alleged that the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur took a gun from the guard
and fired from that gun, causing death of Raghvendra Singh. Thereafter,
remaining office bearers of the factory, took the guns from various security
guards and fired from those guns, by which 42 persons were injured.
However, in investigation, the present accused security guards were found
to have fired. If the applicant/accused and other office bearers of the
factory are joined as accused persons in the present case then, that case
is entirely different from the case of the present accused persons. Rather
it can be said that the case of the security guards (the present accused) is
diagonally opposite to the case of the applicant/accused. If it is presumed
that firing was done by the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur and his
associates then, case of the prosecution against the present accused
persons shall go away and trial would not proceed against them because
two contradictory cases cannot be tried simultaneously and if trial is
proceeded against the present accused persons then, opposite factual
story cannot be established in the same case. Hon'ble the Apex Court in
case of Balbir (supra) has directed that :-

“Thus, where there is commonality of purpose or
design, where there is continuity of action, then all those
persons involved can be accused of the same or
different offences "committed in the course of the same
transaction,"But if in one case the accused is alleged
to have killed a person without any junction with the

\ accused in the other case, then it cannot be freated as
the same offence or even different offences "committed
in the course of the same transaction”. If such two
diametrically opposite versions are put to joint trial
the confusion which it can cause in the trial would be
incalculable. It would then be a mess and then there.
would be no scope for a fair trial.”

Therefore, in the light of law laid by Hon'ble the Apex Court in
case of Balbir (supra), the present accused persons cannot be tried
simultaneously with the proposed accused persons in the present case in
a common trial. If provisions of section 319 (1) of the Cr.P.C. are perused,
which are as under:- :
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“(1) Where, in the course of any inquiry into, or trial
of, an aoffence, it appears from the evidence that any
person not being the accused has committed any offence
for which Such person could be tried together with the
accused, the court may proceed against such person for
the offence which he appears to have committed.”

Then, it would be clear that the persons can be added with the
help of those provisions. They could be tried together with the present
accused. In the present case, if it was stated by the witnesses that the
guards were firing upon the crowd and thereafter, the applicant/accused
Sunny Gaur and his companions also took the guns of guards and they
also fired then, they could be tried in a common case but, at present, the
prosecution's case is that only the security guards had fired from guns,
causing the entire incident, whereas the applicant/applicant has contended
in this application under section 319 of the Cr.P.C., on the basis of the
statements of various witnesses that the security guards did not fire but,
fire was done by the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur and his companions
and therefore, in the light of judgment passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court
in case of Balbir (supra), the present accused persons cannot be tried
simultaneously with the proposed accused persons and therefore, the

proposed accused persons cannot be added as accused under section
319 of the Cr.P.C.

7. The learned counsel for the applicant/accused has stated that
looking to the entire story of the case, no proposed accused can be added
in absence of the evidence produced before the Court, which should be
convineing for the purpose of the exercise of the extraordinary jurisdiction
of the Court under section 319 of the Cr.P.C. In support of the
submissions, law laid by Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of “Sabarjeet
Singh and another Vs. State of Punjab and another™ [AIR 2009 SC
2792] is referred. On the other hand, the learned counsel for the State
and the learned counsel for the applicant/applicant have referred the
various judgments passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court in cases of “Suman
Vs. State of Rajasthan and another”, [(2010) 1 SCC 250], “Brindaban
Das and others Vs. State of West Bengal”, [(2009) 3 SCC 329] and
“Rampal Singh and others Vs. State of Uttar Pradesh and another”,
[(2009)-4 SCC 423] and some orders of single Bench of this Court in
cases of “Ramlakhan Dhakad Vs. State of Madhya Pradesh”, [(2010)
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(2) M.P.L.J. 611], “Sumitra W/o Mukesh Vs. State of Madhya
Pradesh”,[(2010) 2) M.P.L.J. 617] and “Jagjeevan Tiwari Vs. State
of Madhya Pradesh and others * [(2005) (3) M.P.L.J. 398] are
referred. In all the aforesaid judgments, it is directed that what would be
the consideration of the evidence at the time of considering the application
under section 319 of the Cr.P.C. Out of such cases, in law Jaid by Hon'ble
the Apex Court in case of Sabarjeet Singh (supra) a clear direction is
given by Hon'ble the Apex Court, a judgment of Hon'ble the Apex Court
in case of “Y.Saraba Reddy Vs. Puthur Rami Reddy and another”,

8

" [2007 (6) SC 460]. is referred :-

© *_ Undisputedly, it is an exiraordinary power which is

conferred on the Court and should be used very sparingly
and only if compelling reasons exist for taking action
against a person against whom action had not been taken
carlier. The word "evidence" in Section 319 contemplates
that evidence of witnesses given in Court..."

~ Also, by quoting that para, Hon'ble the Apex Court in case of
Sabarjeet Singh (supra) in para 17, it is directed as under:-

“An order u-ndef Secticn 319 of the Code, therefore,
should not be passed only because the first informant

or one of the witnesses seeks to implicate other .

person(s). Sufficient and cogent reasons are required
to be assigned by the court so as to satisfy the
ingredients of the provisions. Mere ipse dixit would not
serve the purpose. Such an evidence must be convincing
one at least for the purpose of exercise of the
extraordinary jurisdiction.

For the aforementioned purpose, the courts are
required to apply stringent tesls; one of 'he lests being whether
evidence on record is such which would 1 asonably lead {0
conviction of the person sought to be summoned.”

. In the light of aforesaid judgments passed by Hon'ble the Apex Court,
if evidence of the present case is.considered then, the FIR, which was lodged
by the witness Rajbahadur Singh (P.W.4) was discarded by himself and
therefore, FIR, which was lodged after so many hours of the incident, is highly
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doubtful. The application of the applicant/applicant was-dependent upon the
evidence given by Rajbhan Singh (P.W.20), Rajababu (P.W.2 1) and
Chandrashekhar Singh (P.W.24), whereas, all otherindependent eyc witnesses
have turned hostile. Shri U.C.Tiwari, SHO (P.W.22) and Tahsildar Shivanj
Pandey (P.W.26) did nof state that fire was done either by the applicant/
accused Sunny Gaur or his companions. There is a lof of contradictions in the
statements of witnesses Rajbhan Singh, Rajababu and Chandrashekhar Singh.
The witness Rajbhan Singh has accepted that he did not state to the police
that it was the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur, who fired from the gun and
killed the deceased Raghvendra. His contradiction with his case diary statement,
Ex.D/2 was recorded and therefore, his testimony cannot be believed. It is an
after thought statement given by the witness Rajababu Singh. Chandrashekhar
Singh has stated that initially the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur fired from the
gun and thereafter, his companions also started firing from the gun, whereas
Rajababu did not say that the companions of the applicant/accused fired from
the guns, which indicates that Chandrashekhar Singh is telling a falsehood
about the companions of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur and hence, the
learned Sessions Judge did not believe the witness Chandrashekhar Singh in
respect of the companions of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur while
considering the application under section 319 of the CrP.C.

9. The witness Rajababu did not state to the police that the proposed
accused Rajnish Gaur was present at the time of the incident. He has stated
that he was not at all examined by the police and he was not amongst the
demonstrators but, he was going through the passage, where the crowd was
gathered. If a crowd is gathered on the Vindhya Gate and a pedestrian is
while passing through the passage cannot see that who fired from the gun
because in between the proposed accused and this witness, a crowd of many
persons was present and therefore, he cannot pinpointone person from the
crowd. Therefore, the statement of the witness Rajababu appears to be not
believable. Chandrashekhar Singh has accepted that the applicant/accused
Sunny Gaur took a gun from a security guard and killed the victim Raghvenglra,
who fell on Earth but, such description is not written in his case diary statement,
Ex.D/4. Similarly, he has stated that the companions of the applicant/accused
Sunny Gaur had also fired from various guns but, no such statement was given
by him to the police and a contradiction was recorded with his case diary
statement, Ex.D/4. The learned Sessions J udge has rightly disbelieved this
witness relating to the companions of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur.

o
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Looking to his contradiction with the case diary statement, his testimony cannot
be accepted against the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur. -

10. Under such circumstances, if the statements of SHO, U.C.Tiwari
(P.W.22) and Tahsildar Shivani Pandey (P.W.26) are considered then, no
doubt is created against the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur that he assaulted
the deceased Raghvendra by firing from a gun. If the applicant/ accused Sunny
Gaur would have come on the gate then, 2 memorandum could be given to
him by the crowd and there was no possibility of any incident. Under such
circumstances, where the FIR of the case is discarded because the complainar.t
himself did not support the FIR and only 2-3 witnesses are telling against the
applicant/accused Sunny Gaur and his companions, also the learned Sessions
Judge did not rely upon these witnesses for the companions of the applicant/
accused Sunny Gaur, therefore, in absunce of their such previous statements
or due to evidence of majority witnesses, the evidence given by these three
witnesses would not be accepted finally and therefore, with help of the evidence
given by these three witnesses, neither the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur, nor
his companions can be convicted for the offence punishable under section
302 or 307 of IPC. Hence, it is apparent that there is no cognate evidence
against the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur, s0 that this extraordinary power
be used to implicate him in the case as an accused. On the contrary, if he is
added then, the prosecution's case against the present accused persons shall
be damaged. The learned Sessions Judge did not rely upon the witnesses for
the companions of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur then, such witnesses
should not be relied against the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur also. Hence, in
the absence of any cognate evidence, neither the applicant/accused Sunny
Gaur, nor his companions could be made accused in the present case.

11, Also, as discussed above, acommon trial cannot be done against the
present accused persons and the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur and his
companions and therefore, they cannot be joined asan accused in the present
case. The learned Sessions Judge has committe an etror of law in passing the.
order against the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur to join him as an accused in the
case.

12.  So faras the joining of remaining proposed accused is concerned, as.
discussed above, there is no cognate evidence against them that they
participated in the crime and therefore, the learned Sessions Judge has rightly
rejected the application under section 319 of the Cr.P.C. against those
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proposed accused persons and therefore, the revision filed by the applicant/
applicant Vinod Kumar Mishra cannot be accepted. Also, it is pertinent to
note that the applicant/applicant Vinod Kumar Mishra sought a relief against
the proposed accused persons, by way of a revision but, he did not include
those persons to be party in the present revision and therefore, in absence of
those proposed accused:persons, no relief can be granted to the applicant
against the persons, who were not made party in the present revision.

13.  On the basis of the aforesaid discussion, the revision filed by
the applicant Vined Kumar Mishra cannot be accepted. Hence, it is
hereby dismissed. On the other hand, the revision filed by the applicant/
accused Sunny Gaur is acceptable and therefore, it is hereby accepted.
The impugned order passed by the learned Sessions Judge, Rewa
relating to implication of the applicant/accused Sunny Gaur to be
accused in the present case under section 319 of the Cr.p.C. is hereby
set aside.

14. A copy of the order be sent to the trial Court, so that he may
continue with the trial against the present accused persons. However, by
perusal of the impugned order, it appeéars that the learned Sessions Judge
has disclosed his mind in detail prematurely and therefore, a prejudice
would be caused to the State if trial will proceed before the Sessions
Judge, Rewa, therefore, the learned Sessions Judge, Rewa is advised
that the trial may be transferred to any other Additional Sessions J udge,
Rewa.

Order accordingly.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1208
CRIMINAL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice N.K, Gupta
Cr.Rev. No. 2109/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 May, 2013

PAPPU @ CHANDRA PRAVESH TIWARI ...Applicant
Vs. :
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

‘A Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 233(3)
-Summoning of Prosecution witness as defence witness - If the prosecution
witness is called as a defence witness then, his statement shall continue
which was recorded in the deposition sheet, where his prosecution evidence
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was completed - His statement shall be started as a defence witness from
the end of his previous statement. (Para7)

%  ovg ofpar oixar, 1973 (1974 &7 2), €INT 233(3) —
FfratorT aret s g aredt @ v 4 gEd sewr — afs st
et w9 well ¥ v7 ¥ 4T WW 8, 99 99el W€, §E
SaPT aftrate wey gl ghan, 98 | s afafatea el ™ W
] ST RIT — TS HF 9A9 WiE) B o A quT ¥ AR §1AT WLT
IUST (AR FT AW gIAT T |

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections
233(3) & 311 - Summoning of witness in defence - Two prosecution
witnesses were examined and cross examined - Application under
Section 311 for recall of thoseé witnesses rejected - Application filed
under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. without disclosing as to what
defence, the applicant wants to establish-Application was rightly
rejected as the same was not bonafide and was made with a view to
frustrate the order rejecting application under Section 311 of
Cr.P.C. ' (Paras 8to 9) |

@ ave gfpar afeor, 1973 (1974 FT 2), €RIY 233(3) 7
311 — FITT § Wit B wAT Fear — < afmies s a1 et
ud TRITAE PR T ~ ORT 311 @ Fa9d S g {Wid ST ww
sTdeT areflPR FFAT AT — S.UE. B ORY 233(3) @ AT ATAEA
g“&mmwmaﬁuaﬁﬁmﬁﬁm.ﬁﬁ?ana‘amwnﬁﬁm
areaT & — @TdeT SPrd sy | wifiw fear T sl te g wfae
T o7 @il UL, @ ORT 311 @ AW AT F TS AT B
Frem wva @1 gite | fipar Tar o)

Cases referred :

AIR (36) 1949 Federal Court 6, 1992 Cr.L.J. 436, 2000(1) JLJ
321, 2007(1) MPLJ 84, 1989 JLJ 217, AIR 2006 SC 1769.

S.K. Dwivedi, for the applicant.
Ajay Tamrakar, P.L. for the non-applicant/State.

ORDER

‘N.K. Gupta, J.: The applicant has pre_férred the present revisi‘oﬁ
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against the order dated 23.11.2011 passed by the learned 4th Additional
Sessions Judge, Katni in S.T. No. 152/04, whereby the application filed
by the applicant under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. was dismissed.

2. The facts of the case, in short are that, the applicant is an accused
in a murder trial pending before the trial Court. In that trial, the witnesses
namely Arun Tiwari (PW-9) and V.P. Singh were examined and cross-
examinationed. Thereafter, an application under Section 3 11 of Cr.P.C.
was moved to recall these witnesses but the same was dismissed by the
trial Court. Thereafter, an application under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C.
was moved, which was dismissed by the trial Court by passing the
tmpugned order.

3. [ have heard the learned counsel for the parties,

4, The learned counsel for the applicant has submitted that the name
of the applicant was not mentioned in the FIR and therefore, re-
examination of the witnesses namely Arun Tiwari and V.P. Singh is
necessary. The right given to the accused under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C.
is absolute and the Court cannot deprive him from his rights. In support
of his contention, the judgment of the Federal Court in the case of “Sudhir
Kumar Datt and others Vs. the King” [AIR (36) 1949 Federal Court
6] is referred. Also the orders passed by the Single Bench of this High
Court and various High Courts are referred. One Judgment of Kerala
High Court passed in the case of “T.N. Janardhanan Pillai Vs. State”
[1992 Cri.L.J. 436] is also referred, whereas the order passed by the
Single Bench of this Court in the case of “Nyaju @ Niyaj Mohd. Vs.
State of M.P. [2000 (1) J.L.J. 321] is alsc cited. Similarly, the order
passed by the Single Bench of this Court in the case of “Nand Lal S/o
Dayaram Dewani and others Vs. State of Maharashtra” [2007 (1)
M.P.L.J. 84] is also referred. The learned counsel for the applicant has
further submitted that the witness, who is examined as a prosecution
witnesses may be recalled as a defence witness again and in support of
this contention, the order passed by the Single Bench of this Court in the
case of “Harbhajan and others Vs. State of M.P.” [19891.L.J. 217] is
referred. '

5. Mn the other hand, the learned Panel Lawyer has submitted that
the scope of Provision under Sections 311 and 233(3) of Cr.P.C. are

L)

. &
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- different and the applicant‘cannt get that relief under the garb of Provision

under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. , which was refused under Section 311
of Cr.P.C. and therefore, the learned Additional Sessions Judge has rightly
dismissed the application filed by the applicant.

6. After considering the submissions made by the learned counsel
for the parties and looking to the facts and circumstances of the
case, it is apparent that the application under Section 311 of Cr.P.C.
was moved to recall the aforesaid witnesses, which was rejected.
Thereafter, an application under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. was
moved. It is true that the scope of both the sections is slightly
different. If the provision of Section 311 of Cr.P.C. is perused, which
is as under:-

“Power to summon material witness, or examine
person present- Any Court may, at any stage of any

- inquiry, trial or other proceeding under this Code, summon
.any person as a. witness, or examine any person in
attendance, though not summoned as a witness, or recall
and re-examine any person already examined; and the Court
shall summon and examine or recall and re- examine any
such person if his evidence appears to it to be essential to
the just decision of the case”. |

Whereas, the provision of Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. is perused
which is as under:-

“If the accused applies for the issve of any process for
compelling the attendance of any witness or the production
of any document or thing, the Judge shall issue such process
unless he considers, for reasons to be recorded, that such
application should be refused on the ground that it is made
for the purpose of vexation or delay or for defeating the
ends of justice.”

- '

- On comparison of these two provisions, it would be clear that the
Provision under Section 311 of Cr.P.C. is more wide. The Court can
recall any prosecution witnesses, if it is required to meet the ends of the
justice. It may also call any witness, though not cited by any of the party
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for the just clecmlon of the case. In general, If a witness is examined by
the prosecution then, he can be recalled according to the Provision of
Section 311 of Cr.P.C. and that witness cannot be recalled under Section
233(3) of Cr.P.C. For the purpose of Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. witness
is required to prove the defence evidence or to produce any document or
a thing. Various orders cited by the learned counsel for the applicant
about the Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. were about the calling of the witnesses
in defence and not about the recalling of the prosecution witnesses
therefore, except the order passed in the case of Harbhajan (Supra),
and other orders cited by the learned counsel for the applicant they are
not at all applicable in the present case because it is a case of recalling of
the witnesses.

7. The Hon’ble Apex Court in the case of “State of M.P. Vs. Badri
Yadav and another” [AIR 2006 SC 1769] has held that if a prosecution
witness, who had been examined, cross-examined and discharged to
be juxtaposed as defence witness, then he remains as a prosecution
witness. In the light of the judgment passed by the Hon’ble Apex Court,
the fact as to whether the prosecution witness can be called as a defence
witness needs to be examined. For example, if a doctor is examined by
the prosecution, who has proved the various injury reports of the victims
and was released after his cross-examination, it was found that he was
required to prove the injuries caused to any of the accused persons and
the i an ury reports are filed after his cross-examination by the defence
then, such a doctor can be a defence witness for the i injury reports of
the accused persons. Therefore, if the prosecution witness who has
already been fully examined is required to be recalled as a defence
witness then, it is for the accused to show as to how he may be counted
as a defence witness. In the order passed by the Single Bench of this
Court in the case of Harbhajan (Supra), it was observed that, though
the prosecution's witness was recalled as a defence witness but he
shall remain a prosecution witness and a further cross-examination if
necessary can be done upon that witness. In that order, the Single Bench
of this Court has found an error that one witness, who was examined as
a prosecution witness also examined a defence witness and his evidence
was recorded for two times in a different manner. In the light of the

order passed by the Single Bench of this Court in the case of Harbhajan

(Supra), it would be apparent that if the prosecution witness is called

e

w M
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as a defence witness then, his statement shall continue, which was
recorded in the deposition sheet, where his prosecution evidence was
completed. His statement shall be started as a defence witness from
the end of his previous statement.

8. Under such circumstances, it was for the accused to establish
that both the witnesses who were examined as a prosecution witnesses
were the defence witness and therefore, examination was necessary. If
the application filed by the applicant before the trial Court under Section
233(3) of Cr.P.C. is perused thén, it would be apparent that no reason
has been mentioned by the applicant as to why he wanted to examine
those two witnesses as a defence witness. What was the kind of defence
that he wanted to prove by those witnesses. The applicant did not
mention any reason in that application and therefore, it is apparent that
when the application under Section 311 of Cr.P.C. was dismissed and
that order attained finality, thereafter to defeat that order, an application
under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. was moved and therefore, it would be
apparent that the applicant’s application was not submitted on bonafide
grounds. No defence was to be proved by the applicant from those
witnesses but he wanted to recross-examine them with the help of the
application and therefore, the application moved by the applicant under
Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. for the purpose of vexation and therefore, it
could not be allowed under Section 233(3) of Cr.P.C. The trial Court
has rightly rejected the application filed by the applicant under Section
233(3) of Cr.P.C. because it was moved only to defeat the previous
order of the trial Court under Section 311 of Cr.P.C., which attained
the finality.

9. On the basis of aforesaid discussion, no illegalify or perversity is
visible in the impugned order passed by the learned Additional Sessions
Judge and therefore, there is no basis by which the revision filed by the
applicant can be accepted. Consequently, the revision filed by the
applicant is hereby dismissed.

10.  Copy of this order be sent to the trial Court for information and
to proceed with the case with the direction that the interim stay granted
to the applicant is hereby vacated.

Revision dismissed.
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LL.R. [2013]) M.P., 1214
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
M.Cr.C. No. 8898/2012 (Gwalior) decided on 22 January, 2013

UMMED SINGH & ors. ...Applicants
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Non-applicants

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 12 of 1974), Section
438 - Anticipatory Bail - The Court may examine the FIR or
Complaint on its face value at this stage. (Para 8)

7. 7UT UfFgT wieal, 1973 (1974 BT 2), €NT 438 — JfFy
UAITd — SEd IH 999 TR 9 gaar Ruaid W Rrewma @
YTHEA: B SR YR THETT 6] aaal & |

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section
438 & Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of
Atrocmes) Act (33 of 1989), Section 18 - Maintainability of
Anticipatory Bail - If the Litmus test is satisfied i.e. the offence
is prima facie not made out anticipatory bail can be granted - The
objection regarding maintainability of anticipatory bail in the teeth
of Scction 18 of the Act overruled. (Paras 14 &15)

A TUS GhpaT GIear, 1973 (1974 BT 2), SIRT 438 T FELIT
Trfa FiY ggfa aauifa (Frcgrare Farer) affry (1989 &1 33),
T 18 — JIF7 wrArTa w1 wivefiyar — afe gw WA B Awgfe a1
ATl @ AerlT gorA gre AT AN W) gat, Y ST ST @) W
wodl @ — afyy waa N wuvfigar @ dTRe ey, afrfrasw @
€T 18 3 9@9g Sdc f§d 73|

C. Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention
of Atrocities) Act (33 of 1989), Section 3(1}(x) - It must be prima
facie clear that the incident took place in 'public view' - An essential
ingredient of the section - If it is not clear prima facie bail u/s 438
can be granted - However the discussion made in the bail order
will not affect the trial of the case in any manner. (Paral6)

s Y
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7. Fgqfaa wrfa siv gIafaa wTarfa (aeqrare
f%ar\mr) SfErf=aeT (1989 BT 33), &IT 3(1)(x) — 48 YFT TAT T
g9 =@ifdy 5 e a@iw gfenws afew g - axr o1 aEws
gcE ¢ — afy 9% vew gaewl W wE), 98 N7 438 B AANd AT
I F ST AFA! € — feeq weea adw 7 w1 wF fadwsn, gwweor
a%ﬁwaﬁmumﬁqmﬁaa‘aﬁﬁrﬁl

Cases referred

(2012) 8 SCC 795, (1995) 3 SCC 221,-(2008) 8 SCC 435,
1997 CR.L.J. 2036 (Ker), (2011) 11 SCC 259, 1991 JLJ 468, 1999(1)
JLJ 84, 2004(4) MPHT 78(CG), 2006(1) MPLJ 400, 2006(1) MPLJ
439, 2009(1) MPLJ 604, 2009(2) MPHT 13(CG).

Ankur Maheshwari, for the applicants.
B.K. Sharma & Sangita Pachauri, P.P. for the non-apphcant/ State.

ORDER

Susoy PauL, J.: In this case a preliminary objection was
raised by the State regarding maintainability of this application under
section 438, Cr.P.C., in view of specific bar under section 18 of the
Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of Atrocities) Act,
1989 (for short, the “SC/ST Act") for grant of anticipatory bail. In
other words, it is the stand of the State Government that application
for grant of anticipatory bail for offences under the SC/ST Act is not
maintainable.

2. With the consent of parties, matter is finally heard on the question
of maintainability as well as on merits.

On maintainability:

3. In this case the offences are registered vide crime-No. 476/2012
under sections 447, 294 of Indian Penal Code and section 3(1)(x) of
SC/ST Act by Police Station.Chachoda as well as by Police Station AJK,

- Guna.

.4, Learned counsel for the State heavily relied on section 18 of SC/

ST Act to submit that anticipatory bail is completely barred It is profitable
to quote section 18, which reads as under:-
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“18. Section 438 of the Code not to apply to persons
committing an offence under the Act.-- Nothing in
section 438 of the Code shall apply in relation to any case
involving the arrest of any person on an accusation of having
committed an offence under this Act.”

5. Learned counsel for the State heavily relied on a recent judgment
Supreme Court delivered in the case of Vilas Pandurang Pawar v. State
.of Maharashtra (2012) 8 SCC 795, to submit that anticipatory bail
" cannot be entertained in view of prohibition under section 18 of the SC/
ST Act. Shri B.K.Sharma, learned Public Prosecutor for the State,submits
that in Vilas Pandurang Pawar (supra) the Apex Court has dismissed
the anticipatory bail, which shows that the anticipatory bail application
cannot be entertained.

6. Shri Ankur Maheshwari, learned counsel for the applicants, on
the other hand, relied on various judgments of this Court and other High -
Courts to submit that when prima facie on reading of the complaint/FIR
the ingredients of section 3(1)(x) of the SC/ST Act are not satisfied/
attracted, bar of section 18 has no role to play for entertaining the
application under section 3(1)(x) of the SC/ST Act. '

7. In view of rival contentions of learned counsel for the parties, I
deem it proper to trace the legal history on the subject. Section 438 of
Code of Criminal Procedure was introduced pursuant to 41st report of
Law Commission. The recommendation for introduction of anticipatory
bail reads as under:-

“We agree that this would be a useful advantage.
Though we must add that it is in very exceptional cases
that such power should be exercised.”

In the light of this recommendation, Section 438 was incorporated,
for the first time, in the Criminal Procedure Code of 1973. Thus, it is
essentially a statutory right conferred long after coming into force of the
Constitution of India. The Apex Court considered this aspect in (1995) 3
SCC 221 (State of MP v. Ram Krishna Balothia), wherein the-
constitutional validity of section 18 of SC/ST Act was called in question
and opined that section 18 neither violates Article 14 nor 21 of the
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Constitution. Thus, the question is whether section 18 aforesaid provides
a blanket prohibition for'anticipatory bail under section 438 ? In other
words, whether anticipatory bail is totally barred if offences under section
3(1)(x) are alleged against the accused.

8. In (2008) 8 SCC 435 (Swaran Singh vs. State) the Apex Court
opined as under:-

“24. In our opinion, calling a member of the Scheduled
Caste “chamar” with intent to insult or humiliate him
in a place within public view is certainly an offence
under Section 3(1)(x) of the Act. Whether there was
intent to insult or humiliate by using the word
“chamar” will of course depend on the context in which
it was used.

25. A perusal of the FIR clearly shows that, prima facie,
an offence is made out against Appellants 2 and 3. ds
already stated above, at this stage we have not to see
whether the allegations in the FIR are correct or not.
We only have to see whether treating the FIR
allegations as correct an offence is made out or not.”

A bare perusal of the underlined portion shows that the court may
examine the FIR or complaint on its face value at this stage.

9. The court has also examined the language employed in section
3(1)(x) of the SC/ST Act, wherein the legislature has chosen to use the
words “in any place within public view”. The makers of law have not
chosen to insert the word “public place and deliberately chosen the
words “in any place within pubtc view”. The Apex Court in para 27 of
Swaran Singh (supra) opined as under:-

“27. Learned counsel then contended that the alleged
act was not committed in a public place and hence does
not come within the purview of Section 3(1) (x) of the
Act. In this connection it may be noted that the
aforesaid provision does not use the expression “public
place”, but instead the expression used is “in any place
within public view”. In our opinion there is a clear
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| distinction between the two expressions.”

10.  Kerala High Court in E. Krishnan Nayanar v. Dr. M.A.
Kuttappan (1997 Cri.L.J. 2036 (KER), opined that the words used i m
section 3(1) (x) are not “in public place” but “within public view”
which means the public must view the person being insulted for which he
. must be present and no offence on the allegations under the said section
gets attracted. Kerala High Court opined on the basis of complaint that
no offence is made out against the petitioner. This judgment of Kerala
" High Court was considered by Supreme Court in the case reported in
" (2011) 11 SCC 259 (4dsmathunnisa v. State of Andhra Pradesh) and
Apex Court opined as under:-

“9. The aforesaid paragraphs clearly mean that the
words used are “in any place but within public view”,
which means that the public must view the person being
insulted for which he must be present and no offence
on the allegations under the said section gets attracted
if the person is not present.”

In para 11 of the same judgment the Apex Court opined as under:-

“11. The learned counsel for the appellant has also drawn
our attention to a judgment of this Court in Gorige Pentaiah.
v. State of A.P.2 The relevant paragraph of this judgment
is as under:

“6. ..._According to the basic ingredients of
Section 3(1)(x) of the Act, the complainant ought
to have alleged that the appellant-accused was
not_a member of the Scheduled Caste or a
-Scheduled Tribe and he (Respondent 3) was
intentionally insulted or intimidated by the
accused with intent to humiliate in a place
within public view. In the entire complaint.
nowhere_is it mentioned that the appellant-
accused was not_ a_ member of the Scheduled
Caste or a Scheduled Tribe and he intentionally
insulted or intimidated with intent to humiliate

s

4
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Respondent 3 in a place within public view. When
the basic ingredients of the offence are missing
in the complaint, then permitting such a
complaint to continue and to_compel the
appellant to face the rigmarole of the criminal

-trial would be totally unjustified leading to
abuse of process of law.”

1219

Pausing here for a moment, it is proﬁtable to quote the Judgments
of this Court and other High Courts on the subject:-

- 1991 JLJ 468 (Ramdayal and others v. State of MP)

“8. On the allegation that a particular person has
committed an offence or is an accused under the Act
or if he has been so described by the Police as an
accused, the Court would not without examining the
merits of the accusation, dismiss his application. Where

" there is no material to reasonably raise a suspicion of

the commission of an offence, it cannot be said that
there is an accusation within the meaning of section

. 18 of the Act and the maintainability of application

under section 438 CrPC, cannot be challenged.”
1999¢1) JLJ 84 (Suresh Kumar Vs. State of M.P.)

“4. On considering the submissions of the learned

counsel and perusing the orders of this Court in cases’

of Kalyan Singh v. State of M.P. and Bablu v. State of
M.P. (supra), it is not disputed that the bar created to
grant anticipatory bail for under the S.C. & S.T. Act
U/s. 18 of the said Act shall not apply when no Prima-
fucie material is available on the case diary to raise
suspicion of commission of any offence under the Act
is found out against the accused-applicant. In Ramdayal
and others v. State of M.P. (1999 JLJ 498), this Court
has also held that, “a particular person has committed
an offence or is an accused under the Act or if he has
been so described by the police as an accused, the
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Court would not without examining the merits of the

accusation dismiss his application filed U/s. 438 Cr.P. C.

Where there is no material to reasonably raise a

" suspicion of commission of the offence it cannot be said

that there is an accusation within the meaning of Sec.

18 of the Act and the maintainability of application U/s.
438 Cr.P.C. cannot be challenged.

3. In view of the above, on considering the

" allegations made against the applicant and the evidence

available on the case diary, without commenting on the

merits of the case at this stage, I do not find material

for prima-facie suspecting the applicant of having

- committed an offence under the Act. As such, the ban

imposed by Sec. 18 of the Act does not come into play

and the applicant, under the facts and the circumstances

“of the case deserves the benefit of anticipatory bail Uys.
438 CrP.C.” '

2004(4) MPHT 78 (CG) (Dilip Chhabariya Vs. State
of Chhattisgarh)- .

“7. In order to attract the provisions of Section 3 (1)
(x) of the Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes
(Prevention of Atrocities) Act, it is necessary that the
accused intentionally insults or intimidates with intent
to humiliate a member of a Scheduled Caste or a
Scheduled Tribe in any place within public view shall
be punishable with imprisonment Jor a term which shall
not be less than six months but which may extend to
five years and with fine.

8. Perusal of the First Information Report shows that,
at the time of the incident the accused abused the
complainant in the name of the caste and mother. There
Is no mention in the First Information Report that the
accused abused the complainant with intention to
Intimidate or insylt or humiliate him beine a member

of the Scheduled Caste.
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9. Therefore, looking to the above facts, I am of the
opinion that it is a case to grant anticipatory bail to
the applicant. Accordingly, the bail application is
allowed.” -

2006(1) MPLJ 400 (Shayam Singh @ Dhannu vs.
State of MP)

“S. Besides this, taking the name of caste of any citizen
of this country itself is not the offence till it is not taken
with the intention to humiliate that person because of
his community. Thus bar created by section 18 of the
SC and ST Act does not attract in the case at hand.

6. So far breach of contract is concerned, it gives to
Civil Right.to the parties. Thus in view of the aforesaid
dictum of this Court and the Apex Court and
considering the other circumstances of the case, without

expressing any opinion on the merits of the matter I

deem fit to allow this application. Thus, the application
is allowed.” :

2006(1) MPLJ 439 (Rajendra Singh vs. State of MP)

“7. Having heard the learned counsel for the parties,
after perusing the case diary, it is apparent that
according to FIR incident did not take place because
of that the victim was belonging to caste which is
covered by the said Act. Beside this no ingredients are
found in the FIR about the offences of the said Act and
considering other facts and circumstances it appears
that no act has been attributed to humiliate the victim
on the basis of his caste, but alleged incident was
happened because of earlier political enmity or sudden
altercation in the function of marriage. Thus, in_such
circumstances the bar of section 18 of the said Act is
not applicable while other alleged offences are
bailable.”

2009 (1) MPLJ 604 (Kavindra Nath Thakur vs. State

1221
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of MP) -

“15. To attract section 3(1)(x) of the Scheduled Castes
and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention of. Atrocities) Act the
intentional insults or intimidation must be at the place
in the public view. According to Bharatlal Raut this
incident took place in the hoyse of appellant. No
evidence is adduced as to how the Place of occurrence
was within the public view, therefore, this essential
element 1o prove the offence under section 3 (1)(x) of
the Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes (Prevention
of Atrocities) Act is missing in tis case.

16. In the case of J. Sumana vs. Endluri Aseerwadamma,
2003 (1) ALD (Cri) 252 (AP) it has been held that where
the petitioner was alleged to have abused in his chamber,
the complainant on the ground of caste. But there was
no pubic in the chamber and it was not within the public
view. As such, no offence could be said to be committed .
under section 3(1)(x). '

17. In the case of K. Padma Reddy vs. Station House
Officer, Bellampalli, 2004 Cri.IJ 5 03 (AP) it has been

* held that where FIR was registered on a complaint for
abusing a person in the name of caste by the petitioner.
Held that every utterance which came within the
purview of provision of At by itself was not offence,
unless it was made in a place within the public view. In
the instant case scene of offence wds Chamber of
Municipal Commissioner. As there was no allegation to
effect that said utterance was-made 'within the public
view', therefore, offence could not be said to have been
committed by the petitioner.

18. To attract this section the alleged insult or
intimidation is to be done within intent to humiliate a
member belonging to that particular community. Merely
call b caste is not sufficient to constitute the offence. ”

2009(2) MPHT 13 (CG) (Leedhar Yadav Vs. State of
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Chhattisgarh)-

“6. Provision of Section 438 of the Code is a general
rule for.granting anticipatory bail but bar of
anticipatory bail under Section 18 of the Act is an
exception to the general rule. In case of any exception
the prosecution is required to show prima facie the facts
which attract the bar in the general rule. Without there
being any material to this effect it cannot be said that
the person concerned would not be entitled for
anticipatory bail as he has been merely described as
accused by the Police for committing an offence
punishable under the provisions of the Act. There must
be material available on record to show that the person
is involved in the offence punishable under the
provision of the said,Act. While dealing with the
application under Section 438 of the Code, the Court
is required to examine ‘the material collected by the
prosecution or the complainant and if the Court finds
prima facie sufficient material for the commission of
the offence under the Act, then the bar created under
Section 18 of the Act comes into play and it is not
competent to grant bail under Section 438 of the Code.
But if it does not find any such material against the
applicant under the provisions of the Act, then it is
competent to consider the application filed under
Section 438 of the Code. Merely by mentioning section
of the Act does not create a bar for considering the
application under Section 438 of the Code.

11. Taking into consideration the aforesaid facts, the
previous dispute and apprehension of the applicant
prior to the lodging of the written complaint, I am of
the view that at this stage, the prosecution has not
collected any material against the applicant to prima
facie show that the applicant has committed the offence
punishable under Section 3(1)(x) of the Act.

12, Consideration for b&il is different from that of framing
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the charge or making out the case against the applicant
for trial even if strong suspicion is there. Therefore, in the
light of the above discuszi~» ~ud the law laid down by the
Apex Court in respect of entertaining the application under
Section 438 of the Cr. PC in the matter of offences relating
to the Act, 1989, I'am of the opinion that it is a fit case in
which the benefit of Section 438 of the Cr.PC should be
extended to the accused/applicant. Accordingly, the
application is allowed. It is, therefore, directed that in the
event of arrest of the accused/applicant namely Leeladhar
Yadav, if he furnishes a personal bond of Rs. 10,000/- with
a surety in the like sum to the satisfaction of the arresting
Olfficer, he be released on bail.”

12, Learned counsel for the State submits that although the judgments
passed by this Court and various other High Courts on earlier occasions
cannot be doubted but in view of recent judgment of Supreme Court in
Vilas Pandurang Pawar (supra), no anticipatory bail is permissible. At
the cost of repetition, Shri B.K.Sharma, learned Public Prosecutor for
the State, by relying on paragraph 13 of the judgment of Vilas Pandurang
Pawar (supra) submits that anticipatory bail is ultimately rejected by the
Supreme Court, which goes to show that anticipatory bail itself is not
tenable in view of bar under section 18 of SC/ST Act.

13. In the light of this contention, it is apt to quote the relevant
paragraphs of the judgment in Vilas Pandurang Pawar (supra), which
read as under:-

“9. Section 18 of the SC/ST Act creates a bar for
invoking Section 438 of the Code._However, a duty is
cast on the court to verify the averments in the
complaint and to find out whether an offence under
Section 3(1) of the SC/ST Act has been prima facie made
out._In other words, if there is a specific averment in
the complaint, namely, insult or intimidation with intent
to_humiliate by calling with caste name, the accused
persons are not entitled to anticipatory bail.

10. The scope of Section 18 of the SC/ST Act read with
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Section 438 of the Code is such that it creates a specific
bar in the grant of anticipatory bail. When an offence
is registered against a person under the provisions of
the SC/ST Act, no court shall entertain an application
for anticipatory bail, unless it prima facie finds that
such _an offence is not made out. Moreover. while
considering the application for bail, scope for
appreciation of evidence and other materigl on record
is limited The court is not expected to indulge in critical
analysis of the evidence on record. When a provision
has been enacted in the Special Act to protect the
persons who belong to the Scheduled Castes and the
Scheduled Tribes and a bar has been imposed in
granting bail under Section 438 of the Code, the
provision in the Special Act cannot be easily brushed
aside by elaborate discussion on the evidence.

12. In view of the specific statutory bar provided under
Section 18 of the SC/ST Act, the above decisions relied
on by the petitioners cannot be taken as a precedent
and as discussed above, it depends upon the nature of

the averments made in the complaint.
]

13. In view of the above discussion and in the light of the
specific averments in the complaint made by the
complainant Respondent 3 herein, we are of the view that .
Section 18 of the SC/ST Act is applicable to the case on
hand and in view of the same, the petitioners are not
entitled to anticipatory bail under Section 438 of the Code.
Accordingly, the special leave petition is dismissed.
However, it is made clear that the present conclusion is
confined only to the disposal of this petition and the trial
court is free to decide the case on merits.”

(Emphasis Supplied)

| 14.  The highlighted portion by this Court shows that the argument of
learned Public Prosecutor is devoid of merits and substance. The Apex
Court held that when offence under section 3(1)(x) of the SC/ST Act is
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prima facie not made out and if there is no specific averment in the
complaint regarding insult or intimidation with intent to humiliate by calling
with caste name, anticipatory bail is not barred. It is further held that
although there is no scope of critical examination of evidence at the stage
of considering anticipatory bail, consideration of the complaint, FIR or
evidence on its face value is permissible for considering whether case
under section 3(1)(x) of SC/ST Act is prima facie made out. A bare
perusal of the judgment of Vilas Pandurang Pawar (supra) shows that if
the litmus test laid down by Supreme Court is satisfied, anticipatory bail
can be granted under section 438 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. It
is also clear that the court must satisfy itself that prima facie case under
section 3(1)(x) is not made out and, therefore, anticipatory bail can be
entertained,

15.  Thus, the contention of the learned Public Prosecutor for the State
cannot be accepted. In the opinion of this Court, the objection regarding
maintainability of anticipatory bail in the teeth of section 18 of the SC/ST
Act deserves to be and is accordingly overruled. The Supreme Court in
para 13 in Vilas Pandurang Pawar (supra) dealt with the facts of the
case on hand and it is of no assistance to the State.

On merits:

16.  Inthe present case, in the FIR it is stated that the applicants were
not permitting the complainant to work on the agricultural field and was
using abusive and filthy language. However, a bare perusal of the FIR
shows that there is no allegation that the present applicants do not belong
to SC/ST community. It is also not prima Jacie clear that the incident
took place in public view and, therefore, prima facie the ingredients of
section 3(1){x) of the SC/ST Act are not satisfied. However, it is made
clear that this discussion is only for the purpose of granting anticipatory
bail and it will not affect the trial of the case in any manner.

17.  Inthe light of aforesaid and applying the test laid down in various
judgments of this Court and in recent judgment in Vilas Pandurang Pawar
(supra), I deem it proper to enlarge the applicants on anticipatory bail.

18.  Accordingly, this application is allowed. It is directed that in the
event of arrest, applicants be released on bail on their executing a personal
. bond in the sum of Rs.50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) each

IS
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and fumishing two solvent suréties, each of Rs.25000/-, by each applicant
to the satisfaction of the arresting officer subject to following conditions:-

1. The applicants will comply with all the terms and
_conditions of the bonds executed by them;

2. Theapplicants will cooperate in the investigation/
trial, as the case may be;

3. The applicants will not indulge themselves in
extending inducement, threat or promise to any person
acquainted with the facts of the case so as to dissuade
him/her from disclosing such facts to the Court or to the
Police Officer, as the case may be;

4, The applicants shall not commit an offence similar
to the offence of which they are accused.

5. The applicants will not seek.unnecessary
adjournments during the trial; and

6. The applicants will not leave India without previous
permission of the trial Court/Investigating Officer, as the
case may be.

Certified copy as per rules. -
Application allowed.

LL.R. [2013] M.P., 1227
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Anil Kumar Sharma
M.Cr.C. No. 2356/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 1 March, 2013

AVDHESH RAGHUVANSHI ...Applicant
Vs. '
STATE OF M.P. _ ...Non-applicant

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 403, 405, 415 &
425 - Civil Nature - If allegations in the complaint are taken on
their face value, discloses a criminal offence, complaint cannot be
quashed merely because it relates to a commercial transaction or
breach of contract for which civil remedy is available or has been
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availed - Commercial transaction may also involve a criminal
offence. (Para 10)

. TUS GIEAT (1860 FT 45), sTIVIY 403, 405, 415 T 425 —
fifea wor — afe fiera @ sfreest +t fad 9T W™ gaaeg:

Tis® JuxTEr goe wiar €, 93 Rrerd w1 a9 gafhy g 99y

FFaT oir aaar fp g8 afvives weas ar ST @ 77 ¥ 99it
g, e favy fufya svar suawr @ a1 SueT SuaiT fear a1 2 —
qfTivas WergeR A qrfves auvie oY aigiwd & wEdr 2

B. Co-operative Societies Act, M.P. 1960 (17 of 1961),
Sections 72, 74 & 76, Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974),
Section 5 - Cancellation of Plot - Maintainability of Complaint -
Complainant was allotted plot by the society, however, the allotment
was cancelled as he had not deposited the maintenance charges,
Bhoo Bhatak and further did not complete the registration process
- Complainant did not remove deficiencies inspite of repeated
notices issued to him - Held - Dispute regarding allotment or
cancellation of plot is punishable under Sections 72, 74 of Act and
cognizance can be taken only on a sanction given by Registrar under
Sectlon 76 - Provisions of Cr.P.C. not applicable (Paras 11 &12)

7. WE-'?J‘F\‘? ararzet aﬁrﬁﬂm 7H. 1960 (1961 FT 17),
STV 72, 74 T 76, TUS UIFGr ST, 1973 (1974 7T 2), &7 5 — wii'e
B T T ~ Rrarga Y wiwvfiaar - Arergasa @ ataEad gRT
wic aafea fFar wan, g am@ed gz foar @ st wwd
AIREYT UAR,  FH-wTcd a1 ad fFr @iy gwe afaRea ovshg=
ufiEar &t Y 3Y — Reraeal R, 9@ aroaR aifew @i fd o
® IraeE oAl B QX T fear — afifrefRe - wie @ srges ar
WEeeT ¥ et faarg st @Y sy 72, 74 @ g evediy
? Y $9a WA 5 o 76 B Fana F T Ao w @) ws
form s owear @ - UM, $ SUFEH ang TE T

Cases referred : -

(2000) 4 SCC 168, (2006) 6 SCC 736, AIR 1965 SC 1, 1992 AIR
SCW 237.

PN. Dﬁbey, for the applicant.
Alok Tapikar, P.L. for the non-applicant/State.
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ORDER

ANIL KUMAR SHARMA, J.: Petitioner has filed this petition under
Section 482 of Cr.P.C. seeking quashment of 8.T. No. 235/11 pending
before the XIII Additional District and Sessions Judge Bhopal for the
offence punishable under Sections 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section
120-B of IPC.

2. The brief facts of the case are that complainant Mukesh Lala
forwarded a complaint to the Deputy Commissioner, Cooperative making -
allegation that Shri Ganesh Grih Nirman Sahkari Sanstha Maryadit,
Bhopal (herein after shall be referred as "Society") has illegally allotted
plot No. 127 to some other person ; however, the said plot was allotted
to complainant on 29/10/1998 by Lottery System.

3. An enquiry was conducted by Shri Pramod Rai, Investigation
Officer, Cooperative Bhopal and it was found in enquiry report dated
26/09/2009 that after allotment of the said plot No. 127 to the complainant
in the year 1998, the complainant has not deposited the maintenance
charges, Bhoo Bhatak and further did not complete the registration
process, which was necessary for the complete allotment of the said plot
to the complainant. On the basis of said deficiencies mentioned above,
the right of the complainant to receive the plot was taken away in year
2000 after giving him due notice and even after publication of public notice
in the newspaper and after giving the complainant several notices for
cancellation of allotment of plot in accordance with the byelaws of the
society. The report of the investigating officer, Cooperative Bhopal has
been filed as Annexurs A/1 with the petition. Thereafter, the Deputy
Commissioner, Cooperative, forwarded a letter in accordance with the
report on 13/10/2009 to the Superintendent of Police, Bhopal by letter
dated 13/10/2009 on the basis of said letter, an FIR has been registered
against the Prakash Chand Jain and Board of Directors of the society,
under Sections 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC and
thereafter on the basis of the FIR investigation was conducted and final
report dated 23/11/2000 was filed before the competent Court. Copy of
the challan and order-sheet of the Court have been filed as Annexures
A/3 and A/4 with the petition respectively.

4. The petitioner has challenged the FIR and final report and the
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proceedings before the learned trial' Court on the ground that he is a
Public Servant, therefore, no action under the provisions of Cr.P.C. can
be initiated against him without prior sanction against him as enumerated
under Section 197 of Cr.P.C..

5. Learned counsel for the petitioner has submitted that FIR has been
lodged ignoring the provisions of M. P. Cooperative Societies Act, 1960
(for short "Act of 1960"). The provisions of Cr.P.C. are not attracted in
the case as for alleged offence there is provisions under the Cooperative
Societies Act for imposition of punishment. It is further submitted that the
matter involves dispute between member of society and governing body
of the society and for resolving the same the only competent authority is
Deputy Registrar or Joint Registrar of the Cooperative Society. Learned
counsel for the petitioner has drawn attention of this Court towards the
provisions of Section 64 of the M.P. Cooperative Societies Act, 1960
which is reproduced below:

"64. Disputes.-(1) Notwithstanding anything contained in
any other law for the time being in force (any disputes
touching the constitution, management or business, terms
and conditions of employement of a society or the
liquidation of a society shall be referred to the Registrar)
by any of the parties to the dispute if the parties thereto
are among the following (a) a society, its committee, any
past committee, any past or present officer, any past or
present agent, any past or present servant or a nominee,
heirs or legal representatives of any deceased agent or
deceared servant of the rociety, or the liquidator of the
society; (b) a member, past member or a person claiming
through a member, past member or deceased member of a
society or of a society which is a member of the society;
(c) a person other than a member of the society who has
been granted a loan by the society or with whom the
society has or had business transactions and any person
claiming through such a person; (d) a surety of a member,
past member or deceased members or a person other than
a member who has been granted a loan by the society,
whether such a surety is or is not a member of the society;
(e) any other society or the liquidator of such a society;
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and (f) a creditor of a society. (2) For the purposes of
sub-section (1), a dispute shall include- (I) a claim by a
society for any debt or demand due to it from a member,
past member or the nominee, heir or legal representative
of a deceased member, whether such debt or demand be
admitted or not; (ii) a claim by a surety against the principal
debtor where the society has recovered from the surety
any amount in respect of any debt or demand due to it
from the principal debtor as a result of the default of the
principal debtor, whether such debt or demand be admitted
or not; (iii) a claim by a society for any loss caused to it by
a member, past member or deceased member, any officer,
past officer or deceased officer, any agent, past agent or
deceased agent, or any servant, past servant or deceased
servant, or its committee, past or present, whether such
loss be admitted or not; (iv) a question regarding rights,
etc, including tenancy rights between a housing society and
its tenants or members; and (v) any dispute arising in
connection with the election of any officer of the society
or representatives of the society or of composite society;
provided that the Registrar shall not entertain any dispute
under this clause during the period commencing from the
announcement of the election programme till the declaration
of the results. (3) If any question arising whether a dispute
referred to the Registrar is a dispute, the decision thereon
of the Registrar shall be final and shall not be called in
question in any court.” . :

On perusal of the above provisions, it is clear that as per above
mentioned section 64 of Act, 1960 the Registrar, Cooperative Societies
has jurisdiction to resolve the dispute between the member of society
and the society. Learned counsel for the petitioner has further submitted
that even if any criminal aspect is found out in dispute of society then the
Registrar is competent to Jodge a criminal case and as such the cases can
be registered after obtaining due permission from the registrar as per the
provisions of the Act, 1960. He has further drawn attention of this Court
towards provisions of Section 72-D of Act, 1960 which shall amount to
and be construed as offence punishable under Section 74 of the Act. The
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provisions of Section 72-D are reproduced below:-

"72D. Offences- Any of the following acts shall amount
to and be construed as an offence under Section 74,
namely.- (i) transfer of a registered plot, dwelling house
or flat to another person, in violation of the provisions
of this Act; Rules, Byelaws of the society or any
condition of allotment; (ii) tempering with the membership
list; (iii) admitting members in excess of the number
prescribed in the byelaws; (iv) not developing the land
in accordance with the development plans of the society;
(v) allotment or the sale of the land, in violation of the
approved lay out plans of the society; (vi) non
development of the land which is reserved for general
use of the society such as for community hall, school or
hospital, or for any other purpose specified in the bye
laws; (vii) not maintaining or providing services paid for
by the members without just and sufficient cause; (viii)
allotment.of plots to members are not made according
to the oriority list of members; (ix)selling or leasing out
the land held by society or transferred the land without
permission of the Registrar; (x) not complying with the
provisions of clause (f) of sub-section (1) of Section 72
B.ll

6. According to Section 76 of the Act, 1960 for instituting the
prosecution, previous sanction in writing of the Registrar is necessary
and the competent Court having jurisdiction to try such offence shall be
not to inferior to that of a Magistrate of the first class shall try any offence
under this Act. Provisions of Section 76 of the Act, 1960 are reproduced
below:- -

"76. Cognizance of offence-(1) No court inferior to that of
a Magistrate of the first class shall try any offence under -
this Act. (2) no prosecution shall be instituted under this
Act without the previous sanction in writing of the Registrar
and such sanction shall not be given without giving to the
person concerned an opportunity to represent his case."

'
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7. According to provisions of Section 72 (D) (i) of the Act, 1960,
the transfer of a registered plot to any person in violation of provisions of
Act, 1960, rules, byelaws or any condition of allotment ,shall amount to
and be construed as an offence under Section 74 of the Act of 1960.
Considering the allegation made in the complaint, the only grievance of
the complainant is that his plot has been allotted to other person. Learned
counsel] for the petitioner has submitted that the plot of the complainant
has been allotted to other person after not only publishing public notice
in newspaper Dainik Bhaskar dated 5/10/2008 and 6/10/2008 but also
after sending him several notices. Copy of the notices published in Dainik
Bhaskar are at page No. 142 and 143 of the petition. Annexure A/S and
Annexure A/6 are making a reference of earlier notices dated 16/6/1999,
10/01/1998 and 25/11/1999. Learned counsel for the petitioner has also
drawn attention of this Court towards the resolution passed by the society
dated 29/10/2000 which has been filed as Annexure A/7 by which
allotment of plots to the members who have not got registered their plots
and have not given any reply to the notices sent to them after giving several
notices, have been cancelled and resolution has been passed to allot these
plots to the members who are in waiting list. List of those persons to
whom allotment of plot has been cancelled finds name of complainant at
serial No. 26. The copy of the resolution has also been sent to Deputy
Registrar, Cooperative Societies thereafter letter Annexure A/9 has been
sent by Registered AD post to complainant under Section 19 (c) of the
Act of 1960 by which the resolution of general meeting dated 25/3/2007
regarding cancellation of membership and allotment of plot to the
complainant, has been intimated to him. Copy of the acknowledge of
regictered letter has also been filed by the petitioner.

8. Therefore, the allotment of plot to the complainant has been
cancelled alongwith his membership with the society by passing resolution
of which due intimation was also given to the complainant. Since, the act
of the society has been done in accordance with the byelaws of the society
and allotment of plot to the complainant has been cancelled in accordance
with the byelaws of the society, therefore, looking to the provisions of
Section 72 read with Section 74 of the Act of 1960, no offence punishable
under Sections 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC is
made out against the petitioner.
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9. Learned counsel for the petitioner has cited the judgment of Hon.
Apex Court in the matter of Hridaya Ranjan Prasad Verma and others
Vs. State of Bihar and another. (2000) 4 SCC 168 in which it has been
held that where the complaint and criminal proceedings are abuse of
process of Court and the transaction of sale of land by appellants to
respondent 2 society and cheques issued by respondent 2 in favour of
appellant dishonoured by bank because of insufficiency of amount in the
account of drawer, the allegations in the complaint read as a whole not
indicating, expressly or impliedly, any intentional deception on the part of
the appellants right from the beginning of the transaction, prima facie the
allegations made by respondent 2 not constituting offence punishable under
Section 420 of IPC or allied offences mentioned in the complaint, it has
been held continuing the criminal proceedings against the appellants would
amount to an abuse of process of Court, therefore, High Court erred in
refusing to quash the complaint and the proceedings.

10. ~Counsel for the petitioner has also cited the judgment of Hon.
Apex Court in the matter of Indian Oil Corporation Vs. NEPC India
Ltd. And others, (2006) 6 SCC 736, in which it has been held that in
case of default in making payment of oil in accordance with the contract
(i) the complaint related to purely contractual disputes of a civil nature in
respect of which IOC had already south injunctive reliefs and money
decrees (ii) even if all the allegations in the complaints were taken as
true, they did not constitute any criminal offence as defined under Sections
378,403,405,415 or 425 of IPC. It has been further held that if allegations
in the complaint are taken on their face value, discloses a criminal offence,
complaint cannot be quashed merely because it relates to a commercial
transaction or breach of contract for which civil remedy is available or
has been availed. A commercial transaction may also involve a criminal
offence. if it is found that a frivolous criminal complaint had been filed
knowing well that remedy lay only in civil law, person who filed such
complaint should himself be made accountable in accordance with law at
the end of such proceedings. The Court should exercise power under
Section 250 of Cr.P.C. frequently where there is malice or frivolousness
or ulterior motives on the part of the comp!ainant.

11.  In the present case, the membership-and allotment of plot to the
complainant have been cancelled for non-following the due procedure in
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accordance with the byelaws of the society and complainant has not filed any
objection or taken recourse of any legal action by filing a suit against the
petitioner, further no complaint has been lodged by him before the Deputy
Registrar, Cooperative Societies, who is competent authority to enquire into
and lodged complaint, if any offence is committed by society with regard to
allotment of plot and in absence of such proceedings, under Section 76 of the
Act of 1960, the FIR registered against the petitioner is liable to be quashed.

12.  Learned counsel for the petitioner has further drawn attention of
this Court towards the provisions of Section 5 of Cr.P.C. which is
reproduced below:-

5. Saving.-Nothing contained in this Code shall, in the
absence of a specific provisions to the contrary, affect any
special or local law for the time being in force, or any
special jurisdiction or power conferred, or any special form
of procedure prescribed, by any other law for the time
being in force. '

On perusal of above provision, it is clear that dispute regarding
allotment of plot or cancellation of plot allotted to a member by society
is punishable under Section 72 read with Section 74 of Act of 1960 and
cognizance of such offence can be taken only on a sanction given by
Registrar, Cooperative Societies under Section 76 of the Act of 1960
and the provisions of Cr.P.C. are not applicable to such offence which
are part of a special act i.e. M.P. Cooperative Societies Act.

13.  Learned counsel for the petitioner has cited the judgment of Hon.
Apex Court in the matter of Nilratan Sircar Vs. Lakshmi Narayan Ram )
Niwas, AIR 1965 SC 1, in which it has been held that under Section 5 of
Cr.P.C. proceedings an offence shall be investigated, inquired into,tried
and otherwise dealt with according to the provisions contained in the Cr.
P.C., but subject to any enactment for the time being in force regulating
the manner or place of investigating, inquiring into, trying or otherwise
dealing with such offences. The Foreign Exchange Regulation Actis a
Special Act and it provides under Section 19-A for the necessary
investigation into the alleged suspected commission of an offence under
the Act, by the.Director of Enforcement. The provisions of Cr.P.C.
therefore will not apply to such investigation by him.
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14, By applying principle of analogy, this citation is also applicable to

"M.P. Cooperative Societies Act, 1960 which makes the provisions for
investigation and filing of complaint after due sanction and co gnizance of
offence on a complaint filed by the Registrar, Cooperative Societies.
Therefore, provisions of Cr.P.C. are also not applicable to the facts and
circumstances of the present case.

15. Therefore, considering the fact that first, no offncce punsiahble under
Section 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC is made out
against the petitioner as the plot allotted to the complainant has been cancelled
alongwith his membership with the society after following due procedure of
law under the Act of 1960 and in accordance with the byelaws of the society.
Secondly, after the allotment has been cancelled after due intimation to the
complainant inthe year 1999 and after cancellation of membership and allotment
of plot to the complainant, complainant has been given due intimation of the
resolution passed by society in its general meeting, therefore, also the complaint
submitted by the complainant is just a counter blast to the cancellation of plot
allotted to him and there is no ingredient of cheating involved in the case as the
plot has been allotted to other person after due intimation of the same to the
complainant in accordance with the byelaws of the society and rules made
thereunder.

16.  Learned counsel for the petitioner has drawn attention of this Court
towards the letter (Annexure A/11) according to which complainant has
been allotted a house by Danish Grih Nirman Sahkari Sanstha Maryadit,
Bhopal and he is not a homeless person, therefore, after allotment of
house to the complainant, complainant is not entitled to get the plot in the
society of the petitioner.-

17. Looking to the provisions of Section 72-D, 74,76 and 64 of the
Act 0f 1960, neither the police has any power to investigate the dispute
between member of society and society relating to business of society
which include allotment and cancellation of plot, therefore, looking to the
provisions of Act of 1960 and bye laws of the society for allotment of a
plot and cancellation of allotment, no cognizance for the offence punishable
under Section 420,467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC can
be taken or FIR can be lodged as the offence falls within the ambit of
Section 72-D of the Act of 1960 and provizions of punishable have been
made in the said Act and cognizance of such offence can only be taken

A



LLR[2013]MP. Avdhesh Raghuvanshi Vs. State of M.P. 1237

under Section 76 (2) of the Act of 1960 on a sanction given by Registrar
of the Cooperative Society, therefore, the proceedings pending against
the petitioner in S.T. No. 235/11 pending before the XIII Additional
District and Sessions Judge Bhopal for the offence punishable under
Sections 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC and FIR
lodged against him at crime No. 616/2009 at police station
Shahjahanabad, Bhopal are liable to be quashed considering the
circumstances No. 1, 2, and 4 as laid down by Hon'ble Apex Court in
the matter of State of Haryana Vs. Bhajanlal, 1992, AIR SCW 237,
which is reproduced as under:

1) Where the allegations made in the FIR or the
complaint, even if they are taken at their face value and
accepted in their entirety do not prima facie constitute any
offence or make out a case against the accused.

- 2) Where the allegations in the FIR and other materials,
if any, accompanying the FIR do not disclose a cognizable
offence, justifying an investigation by police officers under
Section 156 (1) of the Code except under an order of a
Magistrate within the purview of Section 155 (2) of the Code.

4) Where, the allegation in the FIR do not constitute
a cognizable offence but constitute only a non-cognizable
‘offence, no investigation is permitted by a police officer
without an order of a Magistrate as contemplated under
Section 155 (2) of the Code.

18.  Resultantly, petition is allowed and the proceedings pending

" against the petitioner in S.T. N6. 235/11 pending before the XIII

Additional District and Sessions Judge Bhopal for the offence punishable
under Section 420, 467, 468, 471 read with Section 120-B of IPC and
FIR lodged against him at crime No 616/2009 at police station
Shahjahanabad. Bhopal are hereby quashed and petitioner is acquitted
from all the charges.

~ "Acopyof this order be sent to concerned Court for necessary
action and compliance. '

Petition allowed.
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MISCELLANEQUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. J::~%e: 2ij Kishore Dube
M.Cr.C. No. 4819/2011 (Gwalior) decided on 21 March, 2013

RAMCHARAN & ors. ...Applicants
Vs. :
YOGENDRA SINGH (MINOR) ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 145 -
Dispute regarding Iand or water is likely to cause breach of peace
~ It merely recites the circumstances under which a presumption of

possession may be made in favour of the dispossessed party - If"
the Magistrate decides the question as to which of the party was in

possession on the relevant date, then it is not necessary to see
whether or not any of the parties had been dispossessed within two
months next before the date of the preliminary order. (Para13)
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Cases referred :

(2007) 1 SCC (Cri) 376, 1997 SCC (Cri) 679, (2009) 6 SCC 698,
(2006) 1 SCC (Cri) 320, 2005(3) MPLJ 432. -

Rajmani Bansal, for the applicants.
S.K. Shrivastavq, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

Bru KiseoRE DUBE, J.: By invoking the jurisdiction of this Court
under Section 482 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 (In short, the
Code), the petitioners have called in question the legality, validity and propriety
of the impugned order dated 02/07/11 passed by I Additional Sessions Judge,

el
W

»
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Vidisha in Criminal Revision No.61/11 affirming the order dated 25/04/11

. passed by the SubDivisional Magistrate, Kurwai, District Vidisha in Criminal

Case No.12/2008/ Section 145 of the Code whereby an order directing
delivery of the possession to the respondent herein has been passed.

2. The . facts necessary for adjudication of this matter are. that the
respondent herein filed an application on 23/10/08 under Section 145 of the
Code before the SubDivisional Magistrate, Kurwat, District Vidisha. The SDM
passed an order under Section 145(1) of the Code and issued notices to both
the parties. On the same day, an order under Section 146(1) of the Code
directing the Officer-in-Charge of the Police Station, Kurwai to deliver the

- disputed land in supardgi to Anwar Khan s/o Dildhar Khan was passed. On

'18/11/08, the petitioners herein have filed an application for change of receiver
and by allowing the application on 29/01/09, Laxman Singh was appointed
as receiver. Thereafter, after affording opportunity of being heard to both the -
parties, the SDM by an order dated 25/04/11 held that the respondent herein

is the owner and in possession of the land in dispute and directed to the
supardgidar, Laxman Singh to handover the possession to the respondent
herein. The order dated 25/04/11 was tested before the Additional Sessions
Judge, Vidisha in Criminal Revision No.61/11 by the present petitioners. The
Revisional Court by the impugned order dated 02/07/11 dismissed the revision
and maintained the order passed by the SDM, Kurwai. Being aggrieved by
both the orders, this petition has been preferred by the petitioners herein.

3. Shri Rajmani Bansal, learned counsel for the petitioners submits that
there was no material before both the Courts below which shows that the
respondent herein was in possession and on the contrary, the material shows
that the petitioners are in possession. Section 145 of the Code is applicable
only when the person is in possession of the disputed property but in the
present case, the petitioners herein are in possession of the disputed property
and on the basis of this factual matrix, the Apex Court granted stay in favour
of the petitioners herein. The suit property was attached from the possession
of the petitioners. Therefore, an order passed directing the delivery of
possession to the respondent herein is illegal and arbitrary. It is further submitted
that the Magistrate while deciding the proceedings under Section 145 of the
Code has to decide which of the party had been in possession on the date of
preliminary order and within two months next before it. The SDM has not

conducted any enquiry as required under proviso to Section 145 (4) Code. In
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absence of any material to show that land was in possession of the respondent
herein on the date of complaint or soon before it, Section 145 of the Code
could not have been invoked g=A th- 1w2medy is only to file a civil suit for
restoration of the possession. He has placed reliance on the following decisions:

(6] Kunjbihari Vs. Balram and another, (2007) 1 SCC
(Cri) 376;

@  RC.Patuck Vs. Fatima A. Kindasaand others, 1997
© SCC (Cri) 679

(i)  Bharat Prasad and others Vs. State of Bihar and
others, (2009) 6 SCC 698; and

(iv)  Mahar Jahan and others Vs, State of Delhi and
others, (2006) 1 SCC (Cri) 320

4. On the contrary, Shri S K.Shrivastava, learned counsel for the
respondent submits that initially Kunwarlal, the father of the petitioner No.1
filed a civil suit for declaration, permanent injunction and for restoration of the
possession by virtue of 'will' against predecessors of the respondent herein.
He lost from this Court and even the SLP filed before the Apex Court was
withdrawn by him. Meaning thereby, the possession is still with the respondent
herein. It is further stated that after withdrawal of the SLP, the petitioners
herein started creating nuisance and hindrance over the suit property, therefore,
the respondent herein filed an application under Section 145 of the Code
which was allowed by the SDM after considering the material placed on record.
The SDM opined that the respondent herein was in possession at the time of
filing the application under Section 145 of the Code and, therefore, passed
the order in favour of the respondent herein. The conduct of the petitioners of
placing the false affidavits before the SDM shows that they wants to grab the
property of the respondent herein by hook or crook. The finding of fact arrived
at by the SDM cannot be interfered with by the High Court while exercising
the jurisdiction under Section 482 of the Code. In this regard, he has cited
Sarwar Beg and others Vs, Satyanarain and others, 2005(3) MPLJ 432
wherein this Courtheld as under: .

“7. When a finding of fact was arrived by the SDM on
appreciation of the material before him, the same cannot

&
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interfered with by the High Court while exercising Jjurisdiction
under section 482, Criminal Procedure Code. Ina petition
under Section 482, Criminal Procedure Code it is is not the
practice of the High Court to go into the disputed question of
fact. It is not open to a party to assail a concurrent finding of
fact given by two courts below. It is not a case where a glaring
thing is brought to the notice of this Court which proved beyond
any shadow of doubt that the facts mentioned in the order are
not true.

8. When there was a clear finding in the order of the SDM
that the apprehension of breach of peace exists, existence of
emergency was implicit in the order, therefore, it will not be
appropriate to interfere with the orders of the courts below.
The petition is, therefore, sans merit and the same is
dismissed.”

I have heard learned counsel for the parties at length and bestowed

my anxious consideration on rival contentions.

6.

In Kunjbihari (supra), it has been held by the Apex Court that if any
party claims to be in possession of the property and seeks its protection, it is
for that party to approach the civil Court and get an appropriate order. The
proceedings under Section 145 of Cr.P.C., cannot be allowed to continue. In

R.C.Patuck (supra), the Apex Court observed as under:

“9. It will be seen from the facts stated above that the order
under Section 145(1) was passed by the learned Magistrate
on 16-3-1993. The question is whether the Magistrate could
have passed any order in favour of the petitioner under sub-

1241

section (4) of Section 145. Going by the main sub-clause 4 .

of Section 145 it is clear that the Magistrate could initially

- decide who was in possession as on the date when the order

under Section 145(1) was passed on 16-3-1993. In cases
where the proviso to the said sub-clause (4) applied, that is, if
it appeared to the Magistrate that any party had been forcibly
and wrongfully dispossessed, within two months next before
the date on which the report of a police officer or other

1
.
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information was received by the Magistrate, or after that date
and before the date of his order under subsection (1), the
Magistrate might treat the party so dispossessed as if the said
party had been in possession on the date of his order under
subsection (1). In other words, if the conditions mentioned in
the proviso to sub-section (4) were satisfied, the Magistrate
could deem a person to be in possession as on the date of the
order under Section 145(1) notwithstanding the fact that he
was not in fact in possession on that date, but lost possession

earlier, within two months before the order.....”

7. In Bharat Prasad and others (supra), there was clear finding of fact
in bataidari proceeding that the appellants are bataidars. In such circumstances,
it has been held by the Apex Court that if the respondents are aggrieved by
the findings reached in the bataidari proceeding they have the statutory right
of the appeal to be exercised according to law. Without doing that the effect
of bataidari proceeding cannot be scuttled with the subterfuge and juggle of
Sections 144/145 of the Code. -

8. In Mahar Jahan and others (supra), it has been held by the Apex
Court as under: '

“4_Ttis not disputed by the learned counsel for the parties that
this very property which is the subject-matter of these criminal
proceedings is also the subject-matter of the civil suit pending
in the civil court. The question as to possession over the
property or entitlement proceedings have remained pending

for about a decade. We do not find any propriety behind
allowing these proceedings to continue in view of the parties
having already approached the civil court. Whichever way
proceedings inder Section 145 Cr. P.C., may terminate, the
order of the criminal court would always be subject to decision
by the civil court. Inasmuch as the parties are already before
the civil court, we deem it proper to left the civil suit be decided
and therein appropriate interim order be passed taking care of

~ the grievances of the parties by making such arrangement as

may remain in operation during the hearing of the civil suit.

Admittedly, the petitioner No.1, Ramcharan is the son of Kunwarlal
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who had died. Phoola Bai was the widow, Deva Bai and Kasturi Bai were the
daughters of the deceased, Dhiraj Singh and the respondent herein is claiming
the property in dispute through them.

10.  From a bare perusal of the record, it is evident that Phoola Bai and
others filed a civil suit for declaration and injunction against Kunwarlal and
others which was numbered as Civil Suit No.39-A/78 wherein it was alleged .
that the disputed land situated at village Karmodia was owned by Dhiraj Singh
(since deceased), husband of Phoola Bai. The defendants have no right, title
and interest over the suit property and they are interfering with the possession
of the plaintiffs on the basis of forged 'will' alleged to be executed by the
deceased, Dhiraj Singh in their favour, hence they filed a civil suit claiming
declaration of title, injunction and to restrain the defendants from interfering in
their possession over the suit land. The defendant, Kunwarlal had also filed
Civil Suit No.42-A/78 for declaration of title, possession and injunction in
respect of the same land alleging that the land was owned by Dhiraj Singh
who had died on 02/10/1977. He (Kunwarlal) was residing with the deceased,
Dhiraj Singh and was serving him. The deceased, Dhiraj Singh executed a
'will' dated.04/06/75 in his favour in respect of the suit land and, therefore, he
has acquired the title to the suit land, therefore, he be declared as owner of
the suit land. It was also prayed that the defendants be restrained from
interfering in his possession and alternative, it was prayed that if the Court
finds that the defendant, Phoola Bai to be in possession of the suit land then,
adecree for restoration of possession be granted in his favour.

11.  The suit filed by Phoola Bai was partly decreed by the Trial Courtto
the extent that the defendants shall not dispossess her without following the
due process of law and the suit filed by Kunwarlal was decreed, hence, two
civil appeals were filed by Phoola Bai and both the appeals were dismissed
by the First Appellate Court and, therefore, two second appeals bearing
S.A.N0.29/90 and S.A No.40/90 were filed by Phoola Bai and others. During
the pendency of the proceedings, Phoola Bai had died and, therefore, her
legal representatives were brought on record. Both the second appeals were
allowed by a common judgment dated 18/03/05 passed by this Court holding
that Phoola Bai being widow of Dhiraj Singh entitled to succeed his property
and granted declaration of title as well as injunction whereby restrained the
defendants from dispossessing her. The suit filed by Kunwarlal for declaration
of title, possession and injunction was dismissed. Being aggrieved by the
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aforesaid common judgment passed in the second appeals by this Court,
Kunwarlal filed SLP wherein on 03/10/05, the Apex Court passed the following
order: '

“Without going into this dispute as to who is in possession, we
direct that status quo as of today shall be maintained.”

' This SLP was dismissed by the Apex Court as withdrawn vide order
dated 19/08/2008. Thus, the rights of the parties settled by the judgment and
decree passed by this Court, none of the parties is justified in reagitating the
same issue again. The parties must respect the judgments and decrees of the
Courts.

.12, On23/10/08, the respondent herein filed an application before the
SDM, Kurwai under Section 145 of the Code alleging that the petitioners
herein knowing well that they do not have any right, title, possession and
interest over the suit land even then, they are illegally trying to interfere with
the possession of the respondent herein and hence, there is likelihood of breach
of the peace between the parties. The SDM, Kurwai passed the orders under
Sections 145(1) and 146(1) of the Code and after considering the material
available on record passed the impugned order dated 25/04/11 and the same
was upheld by the Revisional Court vide the impugned order dated 02/07/11.

13.  Proviso to sub-section (4) of Section 145 of the Code merely recites

the circumstances under which a presumption of possession may be made in-

favourof the dispossessed party. If the Magistrate decides the question as to
which of the party was in possession on the relevant date then, it is not necessary
to see whether or not any of the parties had been dispossessed within two
months next before the date of the preliminary order.

14.  Forthe forgoing reasons and the peculiar facts and circumstances of

the case, this Court in exercise of the powers under Section 482 of the Code

does not find any ground to interfere in the impugned orders. This petition is
.devoid of merit and is, therefore, dismissed.

Petition dismissed.
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